NOTICE OF MEETING

OF THE

PUBLIC, LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS,
AND WATER RESOURCES
COMMITTEE

OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE

\‘
( inland Empire Utilities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

IS SCHEDULED FOR
WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2016

9:00 A.M.

AT THE ADMINISTRATION HEADQUARTERS
6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A
Chino, CA 91708



A\ §
K Infand Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

PUBLIC, LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS, AND WATER RESOURCES
COMMITTEE MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CALIFORNIA

WEDNESDAY, FEBRUARY 10, 2016
9:00 A.M.

CALL TO ORDER

PUBLIC COMMENT

Members of the public may address the Board on any item that is within the jurisdiction of the Board;
however, no actlon may be taken on any ltem not appearing on the agenda unless the action is otherwise
authorized by Subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2 of the Government Code. Those persons wishing to
address the Board on any matter, whether or not it appears on the agenda, are requested to complete and
submit to the Board Secretary a “Request to Speak” form, which are avaifable on the table in the Board
Room. Comments wili be limlited to five minutes per speaker. Thank you.

ADDITIONS TO THE AGENDA

1.

In accordance with Section 54954.2 of the Government Code (Brown Act), additlons to the agenda require
two-thirds vote of the legislative body, or, if less than two-thirds of the members are present, a unanimous
vote of those members present, that there is a need to take immediate action and that the need for action
came to the attention of the local agency subsequent to the agenda being posted.

ACTION ITEMS

A. MIN
The Committee will be asked to approve the Public, Legislative Affairs, and
Water Resources Committee meeting minutes of January 13, 2016.

B. RESOLUTION NO. 2016-2-2, AUTHORIZING __AGENCY
EMBERSHIPS AND AFFILIATIONS

It is recommended that the Committee/Board:

1. Approve the Agency-wide memberships and affiliations for FY
2016/17, in the amount of $238,500 (includes 5% contingency); and

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-2-2, authorizing Agency organizational
memberships and affiliations.




Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee
February 10, 2016

Page 2

C.

R PURCHASE AND STORAGE AGREEMENT
It is recommended that the Emmu'ﬁee?goaﬁ: —

1. Approve the Water Storage Agreement between Inland Empire
Utilities Agency and Cucamonga Valley Water District for the
purchase of up to 5,000 acre-feet of supplemental water;

2. Approve an inter-fund loan of up to $3,000,000 from the Regional
Operations and Maintenance (RO) Fund to the Water Resource
(WW) Fund to support the water purchase; and

3. Authorize the General Manager, subject to non-substantial changes,
to execute the Agreement and inter-fund loan.

2. INFORMATION ITEMS

J.

T @ m m O O

LPLUBLIC OUTREACH AND COMMUNICATION !WRITTENI[

LEGISLATIVE REPORTS (WRITTEN)
1. Woest Coast Advisors

2. Innovative Federal Strategies
3. Agricultural Resources

CALIFORNIA STRATEGIES MONTHLY REPORT !WRITTENI)
FEDERAL LEGISLATION MATRIX (WRITTEN)

MID-YEAR BUILDING ACTIVITY UPDATE ‘PO\NERPOINT!
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM UPDATE !POWERPOINT!

CONSERVATION AND DATA INITIATIVES (POWERPOINT)

CHINO BASIN BOUNDARY UPDATE FOR THE 2014 SUSTAINABLE

T ———————————————————

GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT (SGMA) (POWERPOINT)

ENERGY MANAGEMENT PLAN (EMPXWRITTEN/POWERPOINT)
PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES UPDATE (ORAL)

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S COMMENTS

4. COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS

S~ -

5. COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

6. ADJOURN



Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee
February 10, 2016
Page 3

*A Municipal Water District

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in
this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary (909-993-1736), 48 hours prior to the scheduled
meeting so that the Agency can make reasonable arrangements.

Proofed by: _B&

DECLARATION OF POSTING

T, April Woodruff, Board Secretary of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, A Municipal Water District, hereby certify that a copy of this
agenda has been posted by 5:30 p.m. in the foyer at the Agency's main office, 6075 Kimball Avenue, Building A, Chino on Thursday,
February 4, 2016.

“ '53!;!
Sor April Wobdruft

-




Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

ACTION
ITEM

1A



{ "\ Inland Empire Utiiities Agency
- A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

MINUTES

PUBLIC, LEGISLATIVE AFFAIRS, AND WATER RESOURCES
COMMITTEE MEETING
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*
AGENCY HEADQUARTERS, CHINO, CA

WEDNESDAY, JANUARY 13, 2016
9:00 A.M.

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT
Steven J. Elie, Chair
Michael Camacho

STAFF PRESENT
P. Joseph Grindstaff, General Manager
Chris Berch, Executive Manager of Engineering/AGM
Martha Davis, Executive Manager of Policy Development/AGM
Christina Valencia, Chief Financial Officer/AGM
Kathy Besser, Manager of External Affairs
Andrea Carruthers, Senior External Affairs Specialist
Jason Gu, Grants Officer
Sylvie Lee, Manager of Planning and Environmental Resources
Teresa Velarde, Manager of Internal Audit
April Woodruff, Board Secretary/Office Manager

QTHERS PRESENT
Jasmin A. Hall, Director
Travis Hickey, Audit Committee Advisor

The meeting was called to order at 9:20 a.m. There were no public comments received or
additions to the agenda.

ACTION ITEMS
The Committee:

& Approved the Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee meeting
minutes of December 8, 2015.

& Recommended that the Board adopt Federal and State Legisiative Priorities;
as an Action [tem on the January 13, 2016, Board meeting agenda.

INFORMATION ITEMS
The following information items were presented or received and filed by the Committee:

Public Outreach and Communication Report

Legislative Reports

California Strategies, LLC Activity Report

Federal Legislation Matrix

2™ Quarter Planning and Environmental Resources Update

[ B N B



Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee
January 13, 2016
Page 2

GENERAL MANAGER'S COMMENTS
General Manager Joseph Grindstaff had no additional comments.

COMMITTEE MEMBER COMMENTS
There were no Committee Member comments.

COMMITTEE MEMBER REQUESTED FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS
There were no Committee Member requested future agenda items.

With no further business, Director Elie adjourned the meeting at 9:55 a.m.
Respecitfully submitted,

April Woodruff

Board Secretary/Office Manager

*A Municipal Water District

APPROVED: FEBRUARY 10, 2016



Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

ACTION
ITEM

1B



Inland Empire Utilities Agency

-~ A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: February 17, 2016

To: The Honorable Board of Directors

Through: Public, Legislative Affairs and Water Resources Committee (2/10/16)
Engineering, Operations, and Biosolids Management Committee
(2/10/16)
Finance, Legal and Administration Committee (2/10/16)

From: . Joseph Grindstaff
General Manager

Submitted by: Kathy Besser @/
Manager of External Affair

Subject: Resolution No. 2016-2-2, Authorizing Agency Organizational Memberships
and Affiliations

RECOMMENDATION

Tt is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1. Approve the Agency-wide memberships and affiliations for FY 2016/17, in the amount of
$238,250 (includes 5% contingency); and

2. Adopt Resolution No. 2016-2-2, authorizing Agency organizational memberships and
affiliations.

BACKGROUND

Each year in preparation for IEUA’s fiscal year budget, the Board of Directors, by four-fifths vote,

approves a resolution authorizing memberships and affiliations with certain organizations (California
Water Code — Section 71597).

A listing of the proposed Agency-wide memberships greater than $5,000, along with a brief summary
of the benefits associated, is attached for the Board’s review. The attached membership dues are
estimates provided by the organizations. Agency-wide memberships are due throughout the fiscal
year and can fluctuate from the provided estimates. Due to unknown fluctuations in renewal costs,
staff proposes that a 5% contingency be included in the Board’s approval. Any individual
membership renewal with an increase greater than 5% will be brought back to the Board for approval.



Resolution No. 2016-2-2, Authorizing Agency Organizational Memberships and Affiliations
February 17, 2016
Page 2 of 9

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

On February 18, 2015, the Board of Directors approved the Agency-wide memberships and
affiliations for FY 2015/16 in the amount of $178,718 through adoption of Resolution No. 2015-2-2.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The proposed membership fees in the amount of $238,250 (which includes the 5% contingency) will
be appropriated in the Agency’s FY 2016/17 Administrative Services Fund Budget spread between
multiple cost centers, under account number 10200-100000-514010, Agency-wide Membership.

Attachments: Agency-wide membership benefit summary and details

G-\Board-Rec\2016\16036 Agency-Wide Memberships Board Letter FY 16-17.docx



Resolution No. 2016-2-2, Authorizing Agency Organizational Memberships and Affiliations
February 17, 2016
Page 3 of 9

AGENCY-WIDE MEMBERSHIP BENEFIT SUMMARY
(Greater than $5,000)
FY 2016/2017

PMembership  ____ Representation ________FEstimatedDucs __

Association of California Water
| Agencies

Bioenergy Association of California
California Association of Sanitation
Agencies (CASA)

California Special Districts Association
(CSDA)

California Wastewater Climate Change
Group

Isle Utilities

National Association of Clean Water
Agencies (NACWA)

National Water Research Institute
(NWRI)

Southern Cal. Alliance of Publicly
Owned Treatment Works (SCAP)

Southern California Salinity
Management Coalition

WateReuse Association

WateReuse Foundation

Martha Davis
Martha Davis, Pietro Cambiaso
Director Hall, Martha Davis

Director Hall, Christina Valencia

Pietro Cambiaso, Martha Davis
Jeff Noelte
General Manager Joe Grindstaff

Director Elie, Jeff Noelte, Andy
Campbell

General Manager Joe Grindstaff,
Pietro Cambiaso

Chris Berch, Craig Proctor

Director Hall, General Manager Joe
Grindstaff, Martha Davis

General Manager Joe Grindstaff,
Martha Davis

Total:

G\Board-Rec\2016\16036 Agency-Wide Memberships Board Letter FY 16-17.docx

$29,920
Approx. 2% decrease dve to
removal of Delta assessment

$5,500

$19,845
3-5% increase from last year

$6,515
$0
CASA will absorb CWCCG

$12,000
$30,560

$50,000
$15,001

$10,000

$8,624

$12,000 + $26,940 =
$38,940

Merger w/ Water Environment
Research Foundation (WERF)

$226,905



Resolution No. 2016-2-2, Authorizing Agency Organizational Memberships and Affiliations
February 17, 2016
Page 4 of 9

AGENCY-WIDE MEMBERSHIP BENEFIT DETAILS
FY 2016/2017

Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA):

ACWA is the lead water policy advocacy organization in California and provides members

with cost savings through an additional voice in state and federal legislative and regulatory
arenas.

ACWA’s federal affairs, legislative and regulatory activities advance bills and issues of
concern to members, while halting potentially damaging measures. Initiatives include
determining components of newly-passed water bond legislation, Bay Delta Conservation
Plan and Delta Plan advocacy, long term water infrastructure financing, and renewable
energy policy.

Representation: Martha Davis (committee member)
Dues: $29,920 (4Approximately 2% decrease due to removal of Delta assessment)

Biocnergy Association of California (BAC):

BAC was established to promote sustainable bioenergy production, which includes

electricity, biogas, renewable liquid fuels, thermal energy and heat and power generated
from organic waste.

BAC is focused on promoting community-scale bioenergy generation from a wide range of
sustainably available organic waste sources, including dairy and agricultural waste, food and
food processing waste, water treatment waste and other organic urban waste.

BAC’s work is focused primarily on policy advocacy, communication, public education and
outreach, research, and industry best practices.

Representation: Martha Davis, Pietro Cambiaso
Dues: $5,500

California Association of Sanitation Agencies (CASA):

CASA serves as the lead advocacy group for wastewater agencies in California on
legislative and regulatory issues. Since CASA employs legal representation, it is extremely
effective on regulatory issues, particularly before the State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB) and California Department of Health Services (CDPH), and has, in recent years,
saved association members costs of individually having to address such issues as the
proposed Whole Effluent Toxicity policy (WET) and draft SWRCB monitoring policy for
Constituents of Emerging Concern in recycled water.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16036 Agency-Wide Memberships Board Letter FY 16-17.docx



Resolution No. 2016-2-2, Authorizing Agency Organizational Memberships and Affiliations
February 17, 2016
Page 5 of 9

CASA maintains lobbyists in Sacramento and Washington, D.C., in addition to a Director of
Regulatory Affairs. Priorities include adoption by SWRCB of acceptable WET policy,
development with SWRCB of alternative approaches to nutrient issues to cost-effectively
reduce impairments, and promotion of biosolids as a renewable energy resource.

Representation: Director Jasmin A. Hall (committee member), Martha Davis (committee
member)

Dues: $19,845
California Special Districts Association (CSDA):

CSDA is a statewide association of various independent special districts whose primary
function is legislative advocacy. In the past year, CSDA played a vital role in coordinating
responses to major legislative initiatives that impacted special districts, including
redevelopment agency reform, proposed property tax shifts, and pension reform,
successfully pushing back on changes that would have been harmful or increased costs to
special districts.

The Agency was awarded the Transparency Certificate in 2015. The organization is very
active on the legislative front working closely with our lobbyist on critical legislation that
impacts the Agency. In 2015, CSDA continued to track and engage Agency staff on
property tax and rate related issues. CSDA provides timely and essential training, including,
but not limited to: Ethics, Board Secretary, Brown Act, and Proposition 26 and 218
requirements. CSDA also acts as a great resource for the Agency’s self-insured programs.

Representation: Director Jasmin A. Hall, Christina Valencia
Dues: $6,515

California Wastewater Climate Change Group:
CASA to absorb CWCCG.

Representation: Pietro Cambiaso, Martha Davis
Dues: $0

Isle Utilities:

A Technology Approval Group (TAG) membership will serve as a valuable tool for IEUA
staff to learn about new wastewater technologies that have the potential to provide
significant benefits to the Agency. TAG gives its members access to a portfolio of new
technologies while allowing its members to stay focused on their core businesses. TAG
searches out technologies which are innovative and ready for potential trials, and then
presents these technologies to its members. Members then have a vote on the top prospects,
allowing those that align best with the members needs to take precedence.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16036 Agency-Wide Memberships Board Letter FY 16-17.docx



Resolution No. 2016-2-2, Authorizing Agency Organizational Memberships and Affiliations
February 17, 2016

Page 6 of 9

The TAG membership also provides a forum for IEUA to request technology searches that
relate to the Agency’s specific needs and challenges. TAG members also have access to
global industry trials, online support, and interactive workshops. Some of the southern
California wastewater agencies that are members of TAG include Orange County Sanitation
District, Trvine Ranch Water District, and the city of Escondido. IEUA’s participation in

TAG has provided value to staff in identifying technologies that can benefit future Agency
projects and initiatives.

Quarterly TAG meetings were attended by Agency staff at Orange County Sanitation
District. These all-day meetings provided valuable information relating to wastewater
treatment (e.g., process optimization, reducing energy use, and resource recovery), and
provided a forum to initiate further discussions with technology providers. The Technical
Services Department’s investigations on aeration performance and on-line nutrient analyzers
have benefited significantly from the TAG membership.

Representation: Jeff Noelte
Dues: $12,000

National Association of Clean Water Agencies (NACWA):

NACWA's active membership and close working relationship with Congress and the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) allow members to interact with national policy
makers and shape the course of America's environmental protection legislation.

Today's increasingly complex threats to water quality present many legislative and
regulatory challenges to the wastewater treatment community. NACWA is responding to
these challenges through heightened involvement in a broadening array of clean water
concerns, such as advocating increased funding, developing enforceable controls on
nonpoint sources, and working to improve the total maximum daily load (TMDL)} program,
in addition to a host of other clean water priorities.

Since its founding in 1970, NACWA has emerged as a nationally recognized leader in both
the legislative and regulatory arenas and as a sought-after technical resource on water
quality and ecosystem protection.

Representation: General Manager Joe Grindstaff
Dues: $30,560

National Water Research Institute (NWRI):

NWRI provides valuable research and policy guidance to the industry on important issues
affecting the usage of water, wastewater and recycled water. NWRI is highly regarded by
the environmental regulatory community and often collaborates with regulators such as the
California Division of Drinking Water and the Regional Water Quality Control Board at
their request to provide expert panel support on water quality related issues. Through

G-\Board-Rec\2016\16036 Agency-Wide Memberships Board Letter FY 16-17.docx



Resolution No. 2016-2-2, Authorizing Agency Organizational Memberships and Affiliations
February 17, 2016
Page 7 of 9

strategic partnerships with leading organizations in the water and wastewater industries,
NWRI sponsors projects and programs focused on ensuring safe, reliable, sources of water
for current and future generations. Notable areas of focus are treatment technology and
regulatory aspects of recycled water use.

IEUA Board Member Steven J. Elie currently serves on NWRI’s Board of Directors (Jeff
Noelte is designated as the alternate). NWRI is active in research in the field of water reuse
and has produced guidelines for such projects as development of direct and indirect potable
reuse projects. NWRI provides technical expertise and is a respected venue for development
of technical review panels, both of which assist the Agency to advance its programs.
Specifically, IEUA will utilize an NWRI expert panel for its recycled water injection effort
and has previously used an expert panel to further its recycled water recharge program.
NWRI includes TEUA staff in its formation of technical panels, as appropriate, giving [EUA
an opportunity to provide leadership in selected fields.

Representation: Director Steven J. Elie, Jeff Noelte, Andy Campbell
Dues: $50,000

Southern California Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works (SCAP):

SCAP is organized under the “strength-in-numbers™ concept in order to ensure that
environmental regulations applied in southern California are appropriate, reasonable and
cost-effective. Through the committee efforts information is gathered and disseminated to
all members using the SCAP Monthly Update, published committee reports and periodic
SCAP Alerts. SCAP provides specific leadership on key regulatory focus areas, such as
air, water, energy, biosolids and collection systems, and works closely with CASA to
communicate these issues at the state and federal level. Specialized committees have
played an integral part in proactively affecting the outcome of proposed regulations that
would have had significant economic impacts to the Agency.

Joe Grindstaff has served on the SCAP Board of Directors in previous years, and Chris
Berch and Jesse Pompa have both served as the vice chair and/or chair of the energy
committee.

Representation: General Manager Joe Grindstaff (Board member), Pietro Cambiaso
Dues: $15,001

Southern California Salinity Management Coalition:

Formed in 2000, IEUA is a founding member of the Coalition, which addresses the complex
problems of salt management in southern California. The Southern California Salinity
Coalition has financially assisted IEUA on the water softener reduction project and regional
board regulatory issues and continues to sponsor new research that will support the Chino
Basin in addressing long term salt management issues.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16036 Agency-Wide Memberships Board Letter FY 16-17.docx



Resolution No. 2016-2-2, Authorizing Agency Organizational Memberships and Affiliations
February 17, 2016

Page 8 of 9

Agency staff actively participates and serves on the Board of Directors for this organization.
The meetings are very productive and cover a lot of ground in the area of salinity
management within the southern California region. The coalition does not hold conferences,
but periodically holds workshops for various stakeholders in which the Agency participates.
The coalition membership includes agencies such as LACSD, OCWD, MWD, EMWD, and
SDCWA to name a few. Some of the past efforts of this organization included assistance in
the development of public outreach materials on salt management and water softeners and
contributing funding to help with IEUA’s water softener study. The main focus of this

group is to coordinate salinity management strategies for water and wastewater agencies
throughout southern California.

Representation: Chris Berch, Craig Proctor
Dues: $10,000

WateReuse Association:

WateReuse Association is the lead advocate for water recycling in the nation. Membership
in WateReuse includes state section membership. Regarding the use of recycled water,
WateReuse Association has proactive programs, legislation, government relations,
regulatory agency oversight, technology transfer and public education/outreach. At the
national level, WateReuse Association is an advocate for Title XVI funding, and works
closely with IEUA to ensure continued federal support for recycled water programs. The
California section is active in legislative and regulatory affairs, and played a pivotal role in
securing passage of IEUA’s historic water softener legislation (AB1366). Ongoing
priorities include protection of Title XVI funding, support of programs at the federal level
and promoting legislation that advances potable reuse along with indirect potable reuse.

IEUA benefits from membership in the WateReuse Association. Martha Davis serves on
the Board of Trustees for WateReuse California. The WateReuse Inland Empire chapter,
the State and regional associations provide opportunities for IEUA participation in
conferences and regional meetings. Many IEUA staff and board members have attended
WateReuse conferences over the past few years. IEUA staff have presented at regional
chapter meetings and State conferences, providing staff with invaluable leadership,
networking and training opportunities. At various times, IEUA staff have made
presentations for WateReuse regarding the IEUA recycled water distribution and recharge
programs. WateReuse is an advocate of [IEUA’s goal of increased use of recycled water.

Representation: General Manager Joseph Grindstaff, Martha Davis (board member,

committee member)
Dues: $8,624

G-\Board-Rec\2016\16036 Agency-Wide Memberships Board Letter FY 16-17.docx



Resolution No. 2016-2-2, Authorizing Agency Organizational Memberships and Affiliations
February 17, 2016
Page 9 of 9

WateReuse Foundation:

WateR euse Foundation is an educational, nonprofit, public benefit corporation that serves
as a centralized organization for the water and wastewater community to advance the
science of water reuse, recycling, reclamation, and desalination. The Foundation’s research
covers a broad spectrum of issues, including chemical contaminants, microbiological
agents, treatment technologies, salinity management, public perception, economics, and
marketing.

The WateReuse Research Foundation has undertaken more than 150 research projects,
applying more than $46 million in federal, state and private funding to date, to create
leading-edge programming that stimulates new knowledge, information programs and
products to advance water recycling and desalination for the benefit of the nation’s water
supply.

Representation: General Manager Joe Grindstaff, Martha Davis
Dues: $12,000 + $26,940 — WERF = $38,940 (Merger with the Water Environment
Research Foundation (WERF), so dues were increased)

G-\Board-Rec\2016\16036 Agency-Wide Memberships Board Letter FY 16-17.docx



RESOLUTION NO. 2016-2-2

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY*,  SAN
BERNARDINO COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING
AGENCY-WIDE ORGANIZATIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
AND AFFILIATIONS

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of Inland Empire Utilities Agency* authorized Agency-
wide memberships in and affiliations with various organizations which benefit the Agency; and

WHEREAS, Section 71597 of the California Water Code requires that Agency-wide
memberships must be approved by at least four-fifths (4/5) majority of its Directors.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of Inland Empire Utilities Agency* does
hereby RESOLVE, DETERMINE, AND ORDER as follows:

Section 1. That this Board of Directors does hereby approve and authorize the fiscal year
Agency-wide annual memberships in and affiliation with, and authorize the General Manager to
execute payment of membership fees to these organizations (see attachment).

Section 2. That this Board of Directors does hereby approve and authorize the General
Manager, or in his absence, his designee, to approve all Agency-wide annual memberships in and
affiliation with, and payment of membership fees to these organizations less than $5,000.00.

Section 3. That the appropriation of funds necessary for the dues and/or fees associated with
the Agency-wide memberships is hereby authorized.

Section 4. That the appropriation of funds necessary for the dues and/or fees associated with
the Agency-wide memberships and employee professional memberships be authorized by the Board
of Directors in the budget each fiscal year.

Section 5. Upon adoption of this resolution, Resolution No. 2015-2-2 is hereby rescinded in
its entirety.



Resolution Ne 2016-2-2
Page 2 of 4

ADOPTED this 17* day of February, 2016.

ATTEST:

Steven J. Elie

Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency* and the Board

of Directors thereof

*A Municipal Water District

Terry Catlin

President of the Inland Empire
Utilities Agency* and the Board
of Directors thereof



Resolution No 2016-2-2

Page 3 of 4

STATE OF CALIFORNIA )
)SS

COUNTY OF SAN BERNARDINO )

I, Steven J. Elie, Secretary/Treasurer of the Inland Empire Utilities Agency*, DO
HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Resolution being No. 2016-2-2, was adopted at a regular

meeting on February 17, 2016, of said Agency by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:
Steven J. Elie
SEAL) Secretary/Treasurer

¥ A Municipal Water District



Resolution No 2016-2-2
Page 4 of 4

AGENCY-WIDE MEMBERSHIP BENEFIT SUMMARY
(Greater than $5,000)
FY 2016/2017

Association of California Water

. Martha Davis A 2% d due
Agencles 1m of De?:am;izssm::t
Bioenergy Association of California Martha Davis, Pietro Cambiaso $5,500
California Association of Sanitation i $19,845
Agencies (CASA) Director Hall, M LA 3-5% mcrease from last yea

California Special Districts Association Director Hall, Christina Valencia ~ $6,515

(CSDA)
California Wastewater Climate Change .. . . $0
Group Pietro Cambiaso, Martha Davis s o
Isle Utilities Jeff Noelte $12,000
National Association of Clean Water
Agencies (NACWA) General Manager Joe Grindstaff ~ $30,560
National Water Research Institute Director Elie, Jeff Noelte, Andy $50.000
(NWRI) Campbell ?
Southern Cal. Alliance of Publicly General Manager Joe Grindstaff, $15.001
Owned Treatment Works (SCAP) Pietro Cambiaso ~
Southern California Salinity . )
Management Coalition Chris Berch, Craig Proctor $10,000
i e Director Hall, General Manager
WateReuse Association Joe Grindstaff, Martha Davis $8.624
General Manager Joc Grindstaff, ~ $12,000 + $26,940 =
WateReuse Foundation Martha Davis $38,940
Merger w/ Water Environment
Research Foundation (WERF)

Total: $226,905



Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

ACTION
ITEM

1C



4

Inland Empire Utilies Agency

e A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIC!
Date: February 17, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee (2/10/16)
Finance, Legal, and Administration Committee (2/10/16)
From: P. Joseph Grindstaff
General Manager
Submitted by: Chris Berch [
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
!
Sylvie Lee 1( g/
Manager of Planning and Environmental Resources
Subject: Water Purchase and Storage Agreement
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors:

1.  Approve the Water Storage Agreement between Inland Empire Utilities Agency (IEUA)
and Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) for the purchase of up to 5,000 acre-

feet of supplemental water;

2.  Approve an inter-fund loan of up to $3,000,000 from the Regional Operations and
Maintenance (RO) Fund to the Water Resources (WW) Fund to support the water

purchase; and

3.  Authorize the General Manager, subject to non-substantial changes, to execute the

Agreement and inter-fund loan.

BACKGROUND

In response to the 2015 Governor’s Order, several IEUA member agencies have significantly
reduced their demands on imported water purchases through Metropolitan Water District (MWD).
These demands have resulted in ongoing operational challenges for the CVWD. As required
within the MWD Administrative Code, CVWD must maintain a minimum flow of 15 cubic-
feet/second (10% of total turnout capacity) to their water treatment plant through the MWD turnout

at any time. Use below this level will be charged at 15 cubic-feet/second (take-or-pay).



Water Purchase and Storage Agreement
February 17, 2016
Page 2 of 3

Several planned IEUA water resource programs are contingent upon the development of Chino
Basin groundwater storage. IEUA has a pending storage application with the Chino Basin
Watermaster (CBWM); however, it is anticipated that the processing of the application will take
at least a year to be formally considered and approved by CBWM. Storage of supplemental water

during wet years and use of stored water during dry years is an IEUA Business Goal and a
fundamental strategy within the Integrated Water Resource Plan.

In late 2015, CVWD and IEUA developed an approach that would help CVWD meet their
minimum flow needs and enable IEUA to purchase and store water in the Chino Basin. This

approach is memorialized in the attached Water Storage Agreement (Agreement). Key provisions
of the Agreement are as follows:

e CVWD would maintain a minimum MWD turnout flow rate.

o  CVWD would purchase actual water needed through the MWD turnout.

e [EUA would purchase the additional increment of water needed for CVWD to meet the
minimum flow requirement.

= JEUA has the option to purchase and deliver supplemental water to groundwater recharge

e An equivalent volume of Chino Basin groundwater will be stored by CVWD for IEUA for
all supplemental water purchases (in-lieu groundwater storage).

o CVWD will carry [EUA’s water in storage until such time that IEUA elects to sell or
transfer stored water.

It is anticipated that purchases of water through this Agreement will primarily be through the
CVWD treatment plant (in-lieu); however, this Agreement will also provide opportunities/options
for groundwater recharge blend purchases or storage of other wet-year water supplies.

The approval of this Agreement would allow for the purchase of up to 5,000 acre-feet of water.
Based on the 2016 MWD Untreated Tier-1 rate of $594/acre-foot, approximately $3,000,000 of
water could be purchased and stored under this Agreement. The purchase and subsequent resale
of stored water will be recorded in the Water Resources (WW) Fund.

This Agreement meets the IEUA adopted Business Goal of Water Reliability by reducing demands

for imported water during dry and normal years, and storing imported water into the Chino Basin
during wet years.

G:\Board-Rec'2016'16038 Water Purchase & Storage Agreement



Water Purchase and Storage Agreement
February 17, 2016
Page 3 of 3

PRIOR BOARD ACTION
None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

Upon approval, water purchases will be supported by an inter-fund loan ot up to $3,000,000 from
the RO Fund. Execution of the inter-fund loan will decrease the RO Fund reserves. All revenues
associated with the future sale of stored water will be used to 1) repay the inter-fund loan, and 2)
make future supplemental water purchases.

Attachment: 2016 Water Storage Agreement

G:\Board-Rec\2016416038 Water Purchase & Storage Agreement



2016
WATER STORAGE AGREEMENT

inland Empire Utilities Agency
and
Cucamonga Valley Water District

This Water Storage Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of , 2016, by and
between the Inland Empire Utilities Agency, a Municipal Water District, (“lEUA”), and the
Cucamonga Valley Water District ("CVWD"). IEUA and CVWD are hereinafter collectively
referred to as the Parties or individually as a Party.

RECITALS

WHEREAS, The Chino Groundwater Basin (Chino Basin) is one of the largest subsurface
storage aquifers in Southem California and has the potential to store large volumes of
water for local use during dry periods.

WHEREAS, Cucamonga Valley Water District (CVWD) has overlying pumping rights and
storage rights within the Chino Basin.

WHEREAS, IEUA has the desire and ability to purchase untreated imported water to
supplement local groundwater supply.

WHEREAS, IEUA contemplates delivering and storing imported water in the Chino Basin
for the purpose of providing supplemental local water supplies during dry years.

WHEREAS, IEUA desires to have a designated storage account within the Chino Basin; a
process that is scheduled to be worked through over the next year with the Chino Basin
Watermaster (Watermaster).

WHEREAS, During times when water demands are very low, CVWD does not reliably have
sufficient demand on the Metropolitan Water District (MWD) service connection that meets
the minimum take-or-pay flow requirement.

WHEREAS, |IEUA would be willing to supplement CVWD’s minimum take or pay MWD
service connection requirement, if the additional supplemental flow could be credited to
IEUA through CVWD’s Chino Basin storage account.

WHEREAS, IEUA desires to have CVWD store water (in-lieu or recharged) within its
existing Chino Basin storage account on behalf of IEUA for the purpose of a future transfer
to CVWD or other member agencies.

“

IEUA-CVWD Water Storage Agreement - Draft 1.22.16 Page 1 of 6



NOW, THEREFORE, the Parties hereto agree as follows:

SECTION 1: IEUA ROLES/RESPONSIBILITIES

1,

When delivered to a treatment facility, IEUA will purchase the volume of water
necessary for CVWD to meet their minimum service connection flows from MWD at
the request of CVWD, or as otherwise coordinated among the parties.

. |IEUA will purchase and deliver water through a Chino Basin groundwater turnout or,

through coordination and request by CVYWD, through a service connection at one of
CVWD's treatment facilities.

When purchased for delivery through a Chino Basin groundwater recharge turnout,
IEUA will notify Watermaster (copy to CVWD) that said water shall be stored in
CVWD’s existing Supplemental Storage Account.

Any water delivered through a Chino Basin groundwater recharge turnout wilt not be
counted towards the CYWD Tier-1 allocation.

IEUA will be responsible for MWD Readiness-To-Serve charges only as they apply
to stored water as outlined in this Agreement.

IEUA will report any deliveries through a Chino Basin groundwater recharge turnout
to CVWD no more than 5-working days following the end of the calendar month (if
deliveries have been made).

For IEUA stored water, IEUA will be responsible for all costs associated with the
delivery of water to the IEUA service area up to the MWD service connection point
for treatment facilities.

IEUA will be responsible for any incurred storage losses to CVWD associated with
the storage of IEUA-credited stored water.

In the event that IEUA requests a transfer of IEUA-credited stored water to another
party, IEUA shall provide written notice of such request to CYWD no less than 30-
days prior to the proposed transfer being filed with Watermaster.

SECTION 2: CVWD ROLES/RESPONSIBILITIES

1.

If CVWD desires to have IEUA purchase MWD Tier-1 water deliveries to meet their
minimum service connection flows, CVWD will provide IEUA a forecast of
anticipated purchases no later than 30-days prior to the start of actual delivery.
CVWD will be responsible for all costs associated with the treatment and distribution
of any water delivered to one of CVWD’s treatment plants. For clarification, CVWD'’s
responsibilities for treatment and distribution start after the MWD service connection
point.

Following the delivery of water purchased by IEUA through a CVWD treatment plant,
CVWD will account for an equivalent volume of Chino Basin groundwater to IEUA
within CVWD's existing Supplemental Storage Account (IEUA-credited stored
water).

ﬁ

IEUA-CVWD Water Storage Agreement - Draft 1.22.16 Page 2 of 6



4. Following the delivery of water purchased by IEUA through a groundwater recharge
turnout, CVWD will account for an equivalent volume of Chino Basin groundwater to
IEUA within CVWD's existing Supplemental Storage Account (IEUA-credited stored
water).

5. Any water that is purchased by IEUA at the request of CVWD will be counted
towards the CVWD Tier-1 allocation (limit is 28,368 for FY15/16).

6. Any water that is purchased by IEUA without the request of CVWD will be counted
towards the IEUA Tier-1 allocation.

7. IEUA-credited stored water shall be subject to losses nommally assessed to
Appropriative Pool storage accounts by Watermaster and any such losses shall be
passed-through to IEUA by CVWD.

8. In the event that IEUA requests a transfer of their credited water in storage to
another party, CVWD shall file the necessary paperwork required by Watermaster
within 30-days.

0. CVWD shall provide a written summary of storage balance (provide at a minimum,
prior water balance, water added, losses applied, transfers infout and new water
balance) within 45-days of the end of each quarter (i.e. May 15% for January —
March).

10.CVWD shall notify IEUA no later than 5-working days following the end of the
calendar month (if deliveries have been made at the request of CVWD) of actual
delivery of water through the MWD service connection that they wish to have applied
to this agreement. The reported volume of water will therefore be paid for by IEUA
and removed from any imported water billing to CVWD.

11.Upon termination of this Agreement, CVWD shall notify IEUA of the balance of
IEUA’s stored water which shall remain IEUA's asset. |IEUA may transfer the
remaining water balance to IEUA's-dedicated water storage account, request
transfer of the water to another party or leave the balance in CVWD's storage
account as an IEUA stored water asset.

SECTION 3: EFFECTIVE DATE

This Agreement shall be effective from the date of execution of this agreement by both
Parties and terminate on June 30, 2017, unless a one-year, mutually-agreed-to extension
is executed, which shall be made by written amendment to this Agreement.

SECTION 4: MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION

Each party agrees to protect, defend, indemnify and hotd harmless the other party and its
officers, directors, agents, employees, servants, and volunteers from any and all liability,
claims, judgments, costs and demands, including demands arising from Injuries or death of
persons and damage to property, occurring as a result of its own or its respective officers,
directors, agents, employees, servants, volunteers or subcontractor's wrongful or negligent

M

[EUA-CVWD Water Storage Agreement - Draft 1.22.16 Page 3 of 6



acts or omissions in performing or failing to perform this Agreement. Each party shall be
responsible to the extent of their negligence.

Each party further agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, provide defense for and defend
any such claims, demands or suit required hereunder at their sole expense.

SECTION 5: OBSERVING LAWS AND ORDINANCES

The Parties shall keep fully informed of all existing state and federai laws and all county and
city ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect the conduct of any services or
tasks performed under this Agreement and of all such orders and decrees of bodies or
tribunals having any jurisdiction or authority over the same. The Parties shall at all times
observe and comply with all such existing laws, ordinances, regulations, requirements, orders
and decrees, and shall protect and indemnify, as required herein, the other Party hereto, its
officers, employees and agents against any claim or liability arising from or based on the
violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order or decree, whether by the their
Contractors or its employees.

SECTION 6: DISPUTE RESOLUTION

The Parties shall seek to resolve any dispute concerning the interpretation or
implementation of this Agreement through good faith negotiation, involving, as and when
appropriate, the general manage or chief executive officer of each of the Parties. Any
dispute that remains unresolved thirty days (30) days after notice of the dispute is made to
the Parties, shall be resolved by a single arbitrator with substantial experience in the matter
or matters in dispute, conducted in accordance with Judicial Arbitration and Mediation
Services (JAMS). The JAMS arbitrator shall apply the American Arbitration Association’s
rules on commercial disputes, which shall govern any arbitration. If the Parties cannot
agree on a single arbitrator within ten (10) days of the written election to submit the matter
to arbitration, any Party may request JAMS to appoint a single, neutral arbitrator. The
Parties shall use their reasonable best efforts to have the arbitration proceedings
concluded within ninety (90) business days of selection of the arbitrator.

SECTION 7: NOTICE

Written notices to be given to any Party must be given by personal delivery or by registered
or certified mall addressed and delivered as set forth below. Other correspondence and
invoices may be sent by first-class mail, addressed and delivered as set forth below:

Intand Empire Utilities Agency
6075 Kimball Avenue

Chino, CA 91708

Attention: Chris Berch

“M—._

IEUA-CVWD Water Storage Agreement - Draft 1.22.16 Page 4 of 6



Cucamonga Valley Water District
10440 Ashford Street

Rancho Cucamonga, CA ¢1730
Attention: John Bosler

SECTION 8: TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

Each party reserves and has the right to immediately suspend, cancel or terminate this
Agreement at any time upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party. In the event of
such termination, the Party shall pay any amount owed for all authorized costs or any
obligations hereunder up to the date of such termination.

SECTION 9: REPRESENTATION OF AUTHORITY

Each Party represents to the other that it has the authority to enter into this Agreement and
that the individual signing this Agreement on behalf of their respective Party has the
authority to execute this Agreement and to bind their respective Party to the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

SECTION 10: GOVERNING LAW

This Contract is o be governed by and constructed in accordance with the laws of the State
of California in the County of San Bernardino.

SECTION 11: INCORPORATION OF RECITALS

The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made a part of this Agreement.
SECTION 12: ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement is intended by the Parties as a complete and exclusive statement of the
terms of their agreement and it supersedes all prior agreements, written or oral, as to this
subject matter. This Agreement may be modified only upon the mutual written agreement
of the Parties hereto.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, each of the Parties has caused this Agreement to be executed

by its respective duly authorized officers. The effective date of this Agreement shall be the
in accordance with the terms of this Agreement.

M—_

IEUA-CVWD Water Storage Agreement - Draft 1.22.16 Page 5 of 6



Executed this__ day of , 2016 by:

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY: CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT:

P. Joseph Grindstaff Martin E. Zvirbulis
General Manager General Manager/CEQ

IEUA-CVWD Water Storage Agreement - Draft 1.22.16 Page 6 of 6



Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

2A




Pl
‘ Inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: February 17, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee (2/10/16)

From: . Joseph Grindstaff
9 eneral Manager
Submitted by: Kathy Besser W
Manager of External Affairs
Subject: Public Outreach and Communication
RECOMMENDATION

This is an informational item for the Board of Directors to receive and file.
BACKGROUND

February

e February 25, Cypress Elementary Garden in Every School® (GIES) Dedication, 9751
Cypress Ave., Fontana, 5:00 p.m. — 6:30 p.m.

March
e March 3, GEIS Mandatory Workshop, IEUA HQB, Event Room, 4:30 p.m.

e March 21, IEUA Hosted Special District’s Dinner, Panda Inn - 3223 E. Centrelake Drive,
Ontario, 6:00 p.m. — 9:00 p.m.

April
e April 20, IEUA Earth Day Event {Student Day), Chino Creek Park, 9:00 a.m. —2:00 p.m.

e April 21, JEUA Earth Day Event (Community Day), Chino Creek Park, 4:00 p.m. — 7:00
p-m.

o April 22, Bagle Canyon Elementary GIES Dedication, 13435 Eagle Canyon Drive, Chino
Hills, 11:30 am. — 1:00 p.m.

May
e May 5, Truman Middle School GIES Dedication, 16224 Mallory Drive, Fontana, 2:00
p-m. — 3:00 p.m.
e May 13-15, MWD Solar Cup Competition, Lake Skinner



Public Outreach and Communication
February 17, 2016

Page 2

May 24, Cortez Elementary School GIES Dedication, 12750 Carissa Ave., Chino, 5:45
p.m.

Outreach/Education - Civic Publications Newspaper Campaign

IEUA staff has been working, in collaboration with Civic Publications, to develop and
distribute Kick the Habit display ads that focus on irrigation tips during the winter season.
The display ads are linked to the Kick the Habit micro-site, which displays IEUA’s
campaign message, tips, and member agency links.

IEUA has developed an email blast that was distributed the first week of February. The
email blast led viewers to the Kick the Habit micro-site. The email was sent to 157,000
email addresses throughout our service area. The email was sent in Spanish to 46,000
email addresses of Spanish speaking households and the link will be directed to the micro-
site displayed in Spanish.

Media and Qutreach

TEUA staff is working with member agencies to distribute Kick the Habit mirror clings
and vehicle magnets. To date, the city of Chino, city of Ontario, Chino Basin Water
Conservation District, Fontana Water Company, and San Antonio Water Company have
requested and received magnets for their city/company vehicles and mirror clings to be
used on mirrors in multiple locations. The city of Upland and Monte Vista Water District
are working with management to implement the magnets onto their vehicles as well.
Internally, staff is working with Facilities Management and Maintenance on distribution
and placement of vehicle magnets on all Agency vehicles.

Kick the Habit print advertisements ran in the Chino Champion-Healthy Living Section
on January 23, and in the Chino Connection on February 6.

Kick the Habit bus advertisements began on October 5, 2015, and will run for six months.
IEUA staff worked with Tripepi Smith and Associates to develop a movie theater ad that
is currently showing at Victoria Gardens, Ontario Mills, and Ontario Palace. The ad will
run through mid-March. The trailer ad is also running on YouTube and has developed
over 14,000 views.

Education and Outreach Updates

Water Discovery Program: 594 Girl Scout troop members, clementary, middle, and high
school students have taken part in the park field trip from July 1, 2015 through January 31,
2016. Seventeen additional Water Discovery Field Trips for school year 2015/16 have
been scheduled. The Busing Mini-Grant program was extended through December 2020.
Staff has begun outreaching for IEUA’s GIES Mandatory Workshop for Fiscal Year
2016/17.

Staff has begun outreaching for IEUA’s “Water is Life” poster contest.

Staff, in cooperation with member agencies, has recruited three teams for MWD’s 2016
Solar Cup Competition to be held May 13-16, 2016. Final team names and contact
information were submitted to MWD on October 1, 2015, for the 2016 program year:
Chino High School (Chino), Chino Hills High School (Chino Hills) and Henry J. Kaiser

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16042 Public Outreach and Communication February 2016.docx



Public QOutreach and Communication
February 17, 2016
Page 3

High School (Fontana). All teams are scheduled to attend a mandatory technical
workshop on January 30, 2016.

e Staff has begun scheduling schools for the Earth Day Student Day field trip. [EUA is
partnering with the city of Chino for this year’s event.
PRIOR BOARD ACTION
None.

IMPACT ON BUDGET

The above-mentioned activities are budgeted in the FY 2015/16 Administrative Service Fund,
External Affairs Services budget.

G-\Board-Rec\2016116042 Public Outreach and Communication February 2016.docx



Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

2B




A West Coast Advisors
Strategic Publlc Affairs.

January 29, 2016
To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency
From: Michael Boccadoro
President
RE: January Legislative Report
Overview:

The Legislature returned to Sacramento in early January to begin the second year of the two- year
session. They immediately started work on moving bills still in their house of origin out to the
second house before the January 29 deadline. Legislators are also busy working on new bills for
2016. Additionally, the Governor released his Fiscal Year 2016-2017. The $170.7 billion budget
includes a $3 billion Cap and Trade Expenditure Plan that prioritizes $500 million for low carbon
transportation and fuels, $25 million for biofuels facility investments, $100 million for organic
waste diversion, and $30 million for water and energy efficiency projects.

The Public Policy Institute of California recently released a report looking at the state’s most
pressing long-term challenges. The paper notes that policymakers, including California’s voters,
need more and better information about the future consequences of policy choices made today.

The water chapter acknowledges that solutions to California’s water management challenges are
not easy and will involve difficult and sometimes costly trade-offs, as well as hard-to-achieve legal
and political changes. The report makes suggestions for how to mitigate for the next drought,
protecting wildlife and ecosystems, flood management and infrastructure funding,

The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) issued a Draft Resolution in late January
which would adopt the human right to water as a core value and directing its implementation in
Water Board programs and activities. The resolution directs and encourages State Board and
Regional Board staffs to consider the human right to water when reviewing and creating
programs and activities. Additionally, where feasible, the resolution encourages collaboration
with other agencies and organizations should be attempted to help ensure the human right to
water.

The initiatives submitted by State Board of Equalization Vice Chairman George Runner and
Senator Bob Huff (R- Diamond Bar) have been cleared for circulation by the Secretary of State.
The two initiatives would reallocate any un-used high-speed rail bond funds to water storage
projects. The initiatives will need to collect more than 500,000 signatures by mid-July if they are
to make it onto the November statewide ballot.

The California Public Utilities Commission adopted the Net-Energy Metering (NEM) successor
tariff on January 28. The new tariff extends the NEM program while making some minor
changes for future installations. Most of the changes affect residential customers, not commercial
installations.



Assemblymember Susan Talamantes Eggman (D-Stockton) recently introduced legislation to
block the Twin Tunnels project unless it is approved by the voters of California on a statewide
ballot. An opposition coalition has already started to form and will be submitting an opposition

letter soon. In the highly unlikely event the bill passes through both houses, Governor Briwn
would be unlikely to sign in.

Governor Brown delivered his annual State of the State address in mid-January. The short
address highlighted the successes of the administration’s policies and focused on fiscal discipline
and long-term obligations. He did mention the importance of groundwater management,
recycling, stormwater capture, building storage and reliable conveyance, improving efficiency
everywhere, and investing in new technologies, including desal.

With winter storms slowly boosting water supply, the Department of Water Resources (DWR)
increased its water delivery estimate for most recipients from 10 percent of requests for the
calendar year, as announced in December, to 15 percent.

Inland Empire Utilities Agency
Status Report - January 2016

PPIC: California’s Future

The Public Policy Institute of California recently released a report looking at the state’s most
pressing long-term challenges. The paper notes that policymakers, including California’s voters,
need more and better information about the future consequences of policy choices made today.

The paper focuses on a diverse set of topics from corrections to climate change, and includes a
section on water.

The water chapter acknowledges that solutions to California’s water management challenges are

not easy and will involve difficult and sometimes costly trade-offs, as well as hard-to-achieve
legal and political changes.

The chapter is broken up into small sections highlighting successes, failures and suggestions for
California’s water future. The sections include:

Drought

¢ Investment in diversified water supplies pays dividends during droughts: most
urban and suburban areas have been minimally effected by the drought because of
significant past investment to improve and diversify supplies and manage demand.

* Groundwater is the state’s most important reserve, particularly for agriculture: the
current rate of groundwater withdrawal is unsustainable.

e Drought increases hardships for disadvantaged rural communities: Long-term
solutions are needed in small, poor, rural communities that have lost drinking water
supplies.

e Drought is a severe problem for the state’s rivers, wetlands, and forests: the state
has not prepared adequately for drought implications on ecosystems. Low rivers,



shrinking wetlands and severe wildfires all have drastic effects on wildlife and
ecosystems,

¢ The state must improve interagency coordination and management of water rights,
water transfers and ecosystems to better prepare for the next drought,

Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta
¢ The state needs to make a strateglc decision about the future of Delta exports
California WaterFix would improve water supply reliability and quality and provide
flexibility in managing water for the environment. The plan is costly, but failing to
address threats to the Delta may prove more expensive as water supply becomes less
reliable. The approach requires well-designed policies on governance, finance, and
mitigation for Delta landowners and residents.

Extreme flood risk
¢ Local governments and residents need incentives to limit flood risk.
o Local governments should consider future conditions when approving new
development.
¢ Floodplain mapping should account for climate change in increasing flood risk.

Funding gaps

e The state faces critical funding gaps in five orphan areas: provision of safe drinking
water in small, disadvantaged communities; flood protection; management of stormwater;
aquatic ecosystem management; and integrated water management,

¢ California needs to move beyond bonds to fill funding gaps: while bonds have helped
local water agencies fund some innovative projects, they do not address all critical
funding gaps.

* Legal constraints are an obstacle to sustainable local funding gaps: Propositions 13,
218 and 26 severely limit the ability of local agencies to raise funds to fill capital gaps
and address rising costs. California must better align its funding laws with modern water
management.

Aquatic ecosystems management

» The state needs to stop the decline of native fishes,

* Ecosystem-based approaches can help: There is no integrated vision of how to foster
overall ecological improvement. Coordinated, flexible approaches that seek to improve
environmental performance of entire watersheds would be much more effective in-
protecting native species then the current siloed approach.

Ellen Hanak, of PPIC, has reported on these issues at Legislative hearings in the late fall, and, as
reported in earlier reports, has suggested several measures, including a public goods charge to
fund many of California’s water infrastructure needs.

State Water Resources Control Board Issues Human Right to Water Resolution

The State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) issued a Draft Resolution in late January
adopting the human right to water as a core value and directing its implementation in Water
Board programs and activities.



In 2012, the Legislature passed, and the Governor signed a bili establishing policy of the state
that every human being has the right to safe, clean, affordable, and accessible water adequate for
human consumption, cooking and sanitary purposes.

The SWRCB resolution directs and encourages the State Board Staff and Regional Boards to
consider the human right to water when enacting policies and when feasible, offer assistance to
disadvantaged communities. There are other provisions, including data collection and
collaboration with other agencies and organizations, that are designed to direct State Board staff
and encourage Regional Board staff to consider the human right to water then adopting policies
and approving projects.

The Resolution is up for consideration in February.

Runner/Huff Initiative

The two initiatives reallocating bond authority to water storage projects submitted to the
Secretary of State in the fall by State Board of Equalization Vice Chairman George Runner and
Senator Bob Huff (R, Diamond Bar) have been cleared to start collecting signatures. The first
measure would give the High-Speed Rail Authority another ten years to complete all the design,
permitting, environmental review and other permits for the entire segment from Los Angeles to
San Francisco with routes to San Diego and Sacramento. If the work is not completed the
authority would be precluded from receiving any more bond funds.

The second measure would redirect $8 billion from the voter-approved high-speed rail funds, and
$2.7 billion from the storage chapter of Proposition 1 and allocate it to the following water
projects, in order:

$4.2 billion for Sites Reservoir and Temperance Flats

$900 million for expansion of San Luis Reservoir and Shasta Dam

$2 billion for groundwater storage

$2.2 billion for modernizing existing groundwater and surface storage

$1.7 billion for future local storage projects (only if there is leftover funding from the above
funding priorities)

The proponents must collect 585,407 valid signatures by July 25,

Net-Energy Metering .

The California Public Utilities Commission adopted the Net-Energy Metering (NEM) Successor
Tariff on January 28. As discussed in previous reports, with the current version of the NEM
program set to expire soon, the CPUC has been working on crafting the next version of NEM,
referred to as NEM 2.0, with interested stakeholders. The Proposed Decision that was released in
December does not make any major changes to the program for commercial customers, The most
significant changes are on the residential side that would add new interconnection costs and non-
bypassable charges to distributed solar systems, while also imposing new minimum bill
requirements and time-of-use rates that could complicate the solar value proposition. -



Bill Requiring Public Vote on Twin Tunnels Introduced

Assemblymember Susan Talamantes Eggman (D-Stockton) recently introduced legislation to
block the Twin Tunnels project unless it is approved by the voters of California on a statewide
ballot.

The bill will require approval via ballot initiative for any infrastructure project that conveys
water directly from a diversion point in the Sacramento River to pumping facilities of the State
Water Project or the federal Central Valley Project south of the Delta,

The legislation, AB 1713, cannot be acted on until the end of February and will liker have a
difficult path, especially if it makes it to the Governor’s desk. There is a coalition forming to
strongly oppose the bill.

Governor Brown Delivers State of the State Address
Governor Brown delivered his annual State of the State address in mid-January. The short

address highlighted the successes of administration policies and focused on fiscal discipline and
long-term obligations.

The governor cited passage of Proposition 1 in November 2014 as “one of the bright spots in our
contentious politics,” and noted that the water bond — together with the governor’s California
Water Action Plan — “establishes a solid program to deal with the drought and the longer-term
challenge of using our water wisely.”

He said the goal must be to preserve natural systems and ensure a vibrant economy.

The Governor noted that the state has to recharge aquifers, manage the groundwater, recycle,
capture stormwater, build storage and reliable conveyance, improve efficiency everywhere, and
invest in new technologies, including desal, while recognizing the difficult task of achieving
balance among conflicting interests.

DWR Ups State Water Project Allocation ,
With winter storms slowly boosting water supply, the Department of Water Resources (DWR)
increased its water delivery estimate for most recipients from 10 percent of requests for the
calendar year, as announced in December, to 15 percent.

The 29 public agencies that receive SWP water (State Water Project Contractors) requested
4,172,786 acre-feet of water for 2016. With the allocation increase, they will receive 631,115
acre-feet.

Collectively, the SWP Contractors serve approximately 25 million Californians and jﬁst
under a million acres of irrigated farmland.

Key reservoirs are beginning to rise from early winter storms, but remain low. Not a single major
reservoir feeding the SWP or CVP has reached the half full level yet.



Last year’s 20 percent allocation was the second lowest since 1991, when agricultural customers
of the SWP got a zero allocation and municipal customers received 30 percent of requests. In
2014, SWP deliveries were five percent of requested amounts for all customers.

The last 100 percent allocation, difficult to achieve even in wet years largely because
of Delta pumping restrictions to protect threatened and endangered fish species, was
in 2006.

SWP allocations in recent years:
2015 — 20 percent
2014 -5 percent
2013-35 percent
2012-65 percent
2011-80 percent
201050 percent
200940 percent
2008-35 percent
2007-60 percent
2006-100 percent

El Nifio conditions are giving many hope that the allocation will be raised as more rain and snow
accumulate.

Governor Brown Releases Fiscal Year 2016-2017 State Budget

As constitutionally required, Governor Brown released the FY 2016-17 State Budget on January
10. The $170.7 billion plan increases total reserves to more than $10 billion and also allocates a
sizable portion of discretionary resources to one-time infrastructure spending.

Included in the budget is the 2016-17 Cap and Trade Expenditure Plan. The $3.1 billion planisa
combination of funds that were not allocated last year and the funds for the coming year, $1.2
billion is allocated to continuous appropriations for high-speed rail, transit assistance, intercity
rail and affordable housing. An additional $1 billion is allocated to help achieve a 50 percent
reduction in petroleum use (a mandate he had to remove from SB 350 in order to secure passage
in 2015). The $1 billion includes $500 million for low-carbon transportation and fuels and $25
million for biofuel facility investments allocated to the California Air Resources Board (CARB)
and the California Energy Commission (CEC), respectively.

Other notable investment categories include $100 million to CalRecycle for organic waste
diversion, and $30 million for water and energy efficiency.

The Legislature will now have their turn to discuss the Governor’s proposal before the May
Revise is released, and has until mid-June to pass the budget by majority vote. There is already

an effort to inctude funding for water and wastewater agencies in Cap and Trade Expenditure
Plan.



Legislative Update

Members returned to Sacramento in early January to begin the second year of the two-year
session, Members focused on the January 29 deadline for bills introduced in 2015 to pass out of
their original house. There was a slow trickle of legislation introduced with only a few notable
bills thus far. Members have until February 19 to introduce bills for the 2016 session.,

Bills of note:

SB 814 (Hill, D- San Mateo) would require each urban retail water supplier to establish a local
definition of excessive water use. Additionally, it would make a violation above the excessive
water use definition an infraction and punishable by a fine of at least $500 per 100 cubic feet.

Many in the water community are very concerned because creating a definition of excessive
water use is not easy and it is very difficult to create a definition that fits the varying
characteristics of retail customers. Additionally, the use of the term “infraction” has many
worried that this triggers a legal proceeding that water agencies are not equipped to handle.

AB 1463 (Gatto, D- Glendale) would require establishment of criteria, water quality standards
and distribution, monitoring, and reporting requirements for onsite recycling systems prior to
authorizing the use of onsite recycled water in internal plumbing for residential and commercial
buildings. Many agencies are concerned that if too much water is treated and reused onsite, it
will reduce flows and complicate regional recycled water distribution systems. .

The next report will have a list of bills of interest introduced before the February deadline.



Innovative Federal Strategies ..

Comprehensive Government Relations

MEMORANDUM
To: Joe Grindstaff and Kathy Besser, IEUA
From: Letitia White, Jean Denton, and Drew Tatum
Date: January 29, 2016
Re: January Monthly Legislative Update

Republicans Send Election Year Messaging Legislation to the President

January was scheduled to be a short legislative month for Congress since both the Democrats and
Republicans schedule their annual “issues conference” at the beginning of the year. House and
Senate Republicans huddled in Baltimore on January 13-15 in an effort to lay out an election
year legislative strategy. House Democrats held their won retreat in Baltimore on January 27-29,
which featured speeches from both President Obama and Vice President Joe Biden. The
legislative calendar was further compressed when a blizzard hit the DC area, dropping up to
three feet of snow in the surrounding communities.

Already this year, Republicans have used legislation as a means of delivering on campaign
promises through budget reconciliation. This process, created through the Congressional Budget
Act of 1974, can only occur once during a fiscal year and speeds along the process for enacting
tax, spending, and debt reduction legislation by limiting debate and only requiring a simple
majority in the Senate for passage. Late last year, the Senate amended a House-passed
reconciliation package that took aim at two domestic issues that have divided Republicans and
Democrats—Planned Parenthood funding and the Affordable Care Act. The legislation would
prohibit federal funding to Planned Parenthood for one year while Congress continues to
investigate claims that it has improperly sold fetal tissue from abortions. It would also undo
much of the Affordable Care Act, which is the president’s signature domestic accomplishment
from his first term. While the House passed the amended legislation, President Obama quickly
vetoed it. The House was originally scheduled to vote to override the veto before the end of
January, but inclement weather caused them to move votes the final week of the month.

Another mechanism Republicans are using to advance their agenda is through resolutions of
disapproval under the Congressional Review Act. The Act allows Congress to take aim at
regulations proposed and published in the Federal Register by federal agencies, but it has only
successfully been used once because a resolution of disapproval requires the signature of the
president or a veto override from Congress if he or she isn’t supportive. While Republicans face
an uphill battle, they plan to continue using the process to combat what they call executive
overreach. Congress has already sent President Obama several CRA disapproval resolutions
related to environmental regulations, and each has been vetoed by the president. For example,
the Senate passed a resolution of disapproval of the “waters of the United States” regulation

511 C Street, NE e Washington, DC 20002 « 202-347-5990 « Fax 202-347-5941



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC

finalized by the EPA and Army Corps of Engineers in late 2015. The House took up the measure
in January, but it was vetoed by President Obama. The Senate attempted a veto override, but did
not have the votes to overcome procedural hurdles. The veto override attempt has been
suspended indefinitely. Speaker Paul Ryan (R-WI) has indicated that while neither process has
been successful to this point, both serve as a blueprint as to how Republicans would advance
legislation if they maintain control of the House and Senate and are successful in winning the
White House in 2016.

Both parties are expected to use 2016 to advance legislation that benefits their individual
platforms moving into the November election. In addition to the presidential election, all
Members of the House and a third of Senators will face voters this fall. Due to the Republican
and Democratic conventions that will take place the last two weeks of July, the legislative
calendar will be relatively condensed for the remainder of the year. After passing a two-year
budget deal, Republicans have indicated that they once again plan to introduce, markup, and
debate the twelve individual appropriations bills before the end of the fiscal year. Since
appropriations bills are typically debated under an open rule in the House, it gives Republicans
and Democrats the best opportunity to force votes on controversial amendments that can be used
on the campaign trail later in the year.

President Obama Announces New Gun Measures

In January President Obama and CNN held a town hall on guns in America after he announced
that he would be directing federal agencies to implement new measures regarding gun control
policies. He hopes that these actions will stop future gun related tragedies in the United States.
The president reiterated his frustrations with Congress who he said has not done enough to
combat gun violence during his seven years in office. The newly announced measures include:

e The Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco, Firearms and Explosives (ATF) is expanding the
background check and licensing requirement for any individuals in the business of selling
firearms.

o ATF is finalizing a regulatory rule that requires background checks for people trying to
buy some weapons and other items through a trust, corporation, or other legal entity.

e The FBI is overhauling the background check system, including hiring an additional 230
examiners and other staff to help process background checks.

o ATF has established an Internet Investigation Center to track illegal online firearms
trafficking and is dedicating $4 million and additional personnel to enhance the National
Integrated Ballistics Information Network.

e ATF is finalizing a rule to ensure that dealers who ship firearms notify law enforcement
if their guns are lost or stolen in transit.

o The Social Security Administration has indicated that it will begin the rulemaking
process to include information in the background check system about beneficiaries who
are prohibited from possessing a firearm for mental health reasons.

o The Department of Health and Human Services is finalizing a rule to remove unnecessary
legal barriers preventing States from reporting relevant information about people
prohibited from possessing a gun for specific mental health reasons.



Innovative Federal Strategies LLC

» Additionally, the president will call on Congress to provide additional funding for AFT
agents and investigators to help enforce gun laws and for investments in access to mental
health care in his FY17 budget.

At the town hall, President Obama heard from supporters and opponents of his actions in a
civilized exchange on an issue that often sharply divides. But while Obama respectfully
conversed with those who questioned him in person, he did not spare his foes in the gun rights
debate, accusing them of spouting "imaginary fiction" about his motives and evoking the
partisanship that typically encompasses the issues. In the end, President Obama called on citizens
to come together on a limited set of measures to reduce thousands of gun deaths and regular
mass shootings, striking a theme of unity and national possibility.

The fight over gun control in American is expected to turn into a debate at the Capitol during this
election year. Senate Democrats are already looking to reintroduce a measure that would repeal
Jegislation granting gun manufactures immunity from legal liability—a measure that Democratic
presidential candidate Senator Bernie Sanders says he will cosponsor. Republicans in Congress
and on the campaign trail have called the president’s latest action an overreach of his authority
and have promised to challenge it. While the debate is unlikely to be resolved through the
legislative process, House Republicans may authorize another lawsuit challenging the actions in
court.

Outlook for February

The Appropriations Committees in the House and Senate will see a flurry of activity during the
month of February after the President’s Budget is released on February 9. Committees will begin
scheduling hearings to receive testimony from the agencies on their budget requests for fiscal
year 2017. Early in the month, the House has rescheduled votes on legislation that were
cancelled at the end of January due to the snow. Included are votes on Iran sanctions and a vote
to override the president’s veto of the budget reconciliation legislation. The Senate will resume
consideration of the wide-ranging energy policy bill,



Congress of the Uniled States
Haslington, DC 20313

hiNH i R
P Denar
%A Bneo 0 b2

st

Re: Western drought funding in the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016

Dear Secrctary Jewell:

We are writing to cxpress our strong support for the use-of western drought money
included in the Consolidated Appropriations Act. 2016 (P.L. 114-113) on projects that
will make water available now through the next three years to alleviate the impact of the.
extruordinary drought on local communities in California and other western states. The
only water supplics that can be developed this quickly are through projeets that improve
water efficiency in the urban and agricultural sectors and through water recycling and
desalination.

In May, 2015 your office announced the availability of $50 million for Calitornia and 11
other western states from fiinding made available in the Consolidated and Further
Continuing Appropriations Act. 2015 (P.L. 113-245) for drought relief. Of that funding,
$14 million was allocated to support the Bureau of Reclamation’s Title XVI (recycled
water and dusalination) and WaterSMART (water efficiency) projects. Now that the
amount of discretionary western drought money available to the Department has been
doubled for this ycar, we would like to see a significant additional investment made in
these two critical Bureau water supply programs.

Water recycling and water efficiency projects arc a good investment for this federal
moncy because they support the mitigation of both the short and long-term effects of the
current and potential future droughts in. the western United States. While Members of
Congress continue o discuss ways that we can help the western United States through
legislative action, we hope your office will usc its discretionary spending authority
provided through the Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2016 to address'the immediate
“drought conditions.

Both the Title XV1 and WaterSMART programs represent a good partnership between
the federal and local governments——as both require-a cost-sharing contribution of non-
federal money. Providing additional farding for these programs at the faderal lcvel has
the potential to moro than double the local investment in water conservation and
recycling progeams. Last year's investment of an additional $14 million in these
programs was matched by $14 to $28 million of non-federal money into projeets that



Congress of the inited States
Washinglon, D€ 20515

mitigate both short.and long term drought effects. In addition to bringing federal and
local money together, these programs have a positive impact on the interest ratc local
agencies are able to seécure if they are financing projects through the bond market. In
return, thosc savings are passed along to ratepayers.

While.there is po orie project or progiam that will provide a solution to-the drought, the
Bureau's Title XVIand WaterSMART programs have proven that there is capacity to
conserve water as well-as to create additional water supply in the middle of a drought.
Furthermore, the recipients of federal funds through these grant programs, including
agencies within our Congressional districts. have proven to be good stewards of federal
funding and model project partners for the Bureau of Reclamation,

As both the House and Senate Appropriations Comittees noted in their respective
commitice reports, it is incumbent on the Bureau of Reclamation to lead the way in
increasing the water that is availablc from year to year and to incentivize more efficient
use-of the water that is available. Additionally, the only way to mifigate the effectsof
future droughts is through a strategy of providing a combination of additional storage,
improved conveyance, and increased cfficiencies in the uses of water both for agriculture
and potable purposes. We believe both programs are vital to the westemn States as 4 way
to achieve these goals.

We look forward to continuing to work with you as we seek to mitigate drought impacts
on our state and throughout the western United States.
Sincerely,

- /
//’
E@WM: / a./ ¢

Pete Aguilar Paul Cook
Member of Congress Member of Congress
Ed Roycc '
Member of (¢ ongrcss
i / rd \
Lgwd { Jiamn. gy e
A mma'lorr J dy Chyt

M'ember of Congress ember of Congress



A gricultural Resources

635 Maryland Avenue, N.E.
Washington, D.C, 20002-5811
(202) 546-5115
agresources(@erols.com

January 29, 2016
Legislative Report
TO: Joe Grindstaff
General Manager, Inland Empire Utility Agency
FR: David M. Weiman
Agricultural Resources

LEGISLATIVE REPRESENTATIVE, IEUA

Su: Legislative Report, January 2016

Based on past history, January is typically a slow month —~ a time for a break, a time to regroup
and a time to establish the agenda for the year — in this case, a presidential election year. Last
calendar year — 2015 — was marked by extended gridlock, internal fighting and Speaker
Boehner’s forced resignation as Speaker, Repeated threat(s) of another government shutdown
never materialized. Notwithstanding the political stalemates — the legislative year ended with a

productive burst unseen in years with the budget, appropriations and major infrastructure bills
being enacted.

Snapshot.
This year, January was not slow.

| El Nino arrived in California, the West Coast and even into the Rocky Mountains.

= January was CA’s wettest month since the drought began (beneficial but not definitive).
v] President Obama delivered his last State of the Union address.
=]

Stalled drought legislation brought more recriminations, public denunciations, finger-
pointing and blame assessment.



NOAA reported that 2015 was the hottest year on record,

California remains in drought — almost half the state remains in extreme or exceptional
drought (highest categories).

Senator Feinstein introduced her drought bill (and reports indicated that she’s now
modifying her own bill).

Wayvs and Means — Tax Reform Agenda

Throughout January, reports emerged from House GOP leaders, Ways and Means
Committee leaders, and also Freedom Caucus leaders — all saying the same thing: tax
reform will be initiated in 2016.

No one realisticaily expects legislation to fully mature (out of committee, off the floor or
even by both the House and Senate), but they expect the process to get underway in a
meaningful way. How much can be accomplished this year? Not clear right now.

At the end of January the Ways and Means Committee Rs scheduled a retreat to map out
their activities for the coming year, the results of which won’t be known until next
month,

Overall and broadly, the House R leadership policy objective is to lower tax rates — for
both corporate and personal. In other to achieve that policy goal, then provisions of the
tax code must be eliminated or at least modified.

IEUA’s interest — municipal bonds are the primary funding for all local governments
across America (and in the Inland Empire) and the deductibility of those bonds is at
political risk in the pending tax debate. To lower rates to a targeted level (down to 25%,
corporate and personal) sections of the tax code must be modified or even eliminated
altogether. This specific provision — the deductibility of muni bonds — is one of the
provisions being targeted.

IEUA, along with ACWA, NWRA along with almost every major form of infrastructure
(water, airports, energy, transportation, hospitals, schools, libraries, recreation, etc.), have
worked with the Municipal Bonds Coalition of America, headed by Columbia, SC
Mayor, Steve Benjamin to protect this tax code provision and oppose efforts to eliminate
or modify it. This is also a high priority for the US Conference of Mayors and the bond
industry in the finance sector.

The coalition is upgrading itself from an informal working group to a formal legal entity
and expects to be even more active in 2016 and beyond.



Water/Weather/Drought

After Drought Bill Talks Collapse in 2015, Feinstein Introduces New Bill

The legislative year came to an end in 2015. Drought legislation talks collapsed amid
furious accusations by all parties and interests (reported in detail in last month’s report).

Weary — and angry — legislators departed at the close of the First Session.
Senator Feinstein circulated a new comprehensive drought/water development bill.

A revised version of her bill is expected in early February and formal introduction shortly
thereafter.

No date for hearings yet.

Of special important to IEUA, there is a provision that will allow recycling projects, not
authorized by Congress to be considered. If enacted, this would allow the Cucamonga
Valley WD project to be considered for funding, BuRec’s current opposition
notwithstanding.

Appropriations — $100 Million for Drought Relief

it The massive appropriations bill signed into law in December provided for $100 million
drought relief (the provision was requested by Senator Feinstein).

| WateRcuse, ACWA and others have written the Commissioner asking that a portion of
that money be allocated to water recycling projects.

] IEUA worked with its House delegation (Cook, Aguilar, Torres, Royce, Chu and
Napolitano) to submit a letter to Secretary Jewell urging the same thing — that a portion
of the $100 million be allocated to Title XVI/Water Smart programs.

El Nino

& Storms arrived. There is snow — very welcome — in the Sierra Nevada mountains.

| As of the end of January, the early winter precipitation is approaching “normal” (stronger
in some areas, less so in others) for December-January, but the water year begins with a
severe deficit.

] A little more than 40% of the entire state is still, according to the Drought Monitor, in
severe or exceptional status.

H Larger question — modified from last month — will the El Nino provide a positive “wet”

February and/or March. To be determined.

Unanticipated Drought-Related Federal Tax Issue

As previously reported, the “unintended tax penalty” resulting from the Governor’s

-3-



Drought Orders (from MWD's turf rebates) remains unresolved and unclarified.

MWD, absent clarity from Treasury and IRS, issued tax notices to individuals and
companies informing them that they may have a tax obligation related to the grant.

This is not a California-only issue. Texas and other states are now concerned.

Drought Status — CA and Rest of the West

| Drought Conditions — California. Even with El Nino storms, the Drought Monitor
indicates that all 58 counties remained in various levels of drought.

| EI Nino. Drought Monitor also reports that westwide, that drought conditions are
lessening in most western states.

| Lake Mead. BuRec is projecting that Lake Mead remains at risk (even with storms in
the Rocky Mountains) and 2017 remains problematic.

Looking Into February 2016

[ | A presidential year will be underway with the Iowa Caucus followed 1mmed1ately by the
New Hampshire primary. After that, South Carolina.

0 The Presidential year will be in full swing. Look for a number of candidates to drop out
of the race.

[ | February 9, the President’s proposed budget for all Departments and Agencies will be
submitted to Congress. Senate Maj onty Leader, Mitch McConnell (R-KY) and' Speaker
Paul Ryan (R-WT) have stated that passing all of the appropriations (regular order) in
2016 is a high priority.

[ | Revisions to Feinstein’s drought bill are expected in February.

&} ACWA DC Conference — third week of February.

Note: This is a somewbat abbreviated report as I was in Southeast Asia for most of the month.

Among other things, T had the opportunity to see and learn about water systems in
Vietnam and Cambodia. Very education and informative.



Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

2C



CALIFORNIA STRATEGIES, LLC

Date: January 26, 2016

To: Inland Empire Utilities Agency
From: John Withers, Jim Brulte

Re: January Activity Report

Listed below is the California Strategies, LLC monthly activity report. Please feel free to call us
if you have any questions or would like to receive any more information on any of the items

mentioned below.

» Met with IEUA Executive staff to review priority issues and to discuss activities for January that Executive
Staff wanted accomplished.

= Discussed ways to highlight the customer retum on investment for the building of recharge basins in our
service teritory.

= Discussed LAFCO and made recommendations to staff about upcoming issues. Support and advise on
I[EUA/SBVMWO transfer transaction on an as needed basis.

» Provided an update on the recent filing of a Sphere of Influence amendment filing by the CVWRD.

» Continue to monitor statewide water issues including the BDCP, water bond, and drought relief act activate.
Made recommendation regarding the request for money from various state special funds.

» Monitor Santa Aria Regional Board agenda and issues of interest to IEUA.

18800 VON KARMAN AVENUE, STE. 190 - IRVINE, CALIFORNIA 92612
TELEPHONE (9949) 252-8990 - FACSIMILE (949) 252-8911
WWW.CALSTRAT.COM




Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

2D



Aq peonpoIul UONB[SISY |

"OSNOH Y] pIssed 1YBnoig WSISIM oepefeA puae(l 'doy | 868THH
“SUOISSNOSIP 1S3Ye] SY3 UI PIA[OAUL 10T 9IoM AU} Pres AR ISnOH 913
ur sweoriqnday eIWIOfI[E)) YSNoy) “)JeIp UOISSIOSIP M3l 197 978310 0] s1omred
[BI9P9] PUR “03¥)S TEOO] [IIM JIOM 0} PINUIIUOD SeY 3YS JET) pres Wojsuld ]
“Juampuswre 105 Kyrunyroddo apgyy M paouaIou0d-a1d uaq seq
Tey) [[1q © Sudnpoxnur wey) Jagier 19p1o rem3ar ysnory passoxd o1 [[1q oY 1 ‘syoofoad
PINOM 3YS PSIBOIPUL OSTE SBY WINSUIS,] “TeaK ST JO PU 9y} 18 [[1q asTuroxdwod JAX °TILL SZLIoyIne 0}
2 JO UOISIOA UMO II0Y} ppe 03 pajdurone sweorjqndsy ssnoy 1eyye Arenuep ssar8uo)) 10§ yusuwraxmbax
UT 1JRIp UOISSNOSIP © JO WLIOJ AU} Ul [iq pejepdn ue poonponult Ula)suld, 9} PIAOWIAI OS[R
1] “I91eM PIJIAIAI UO PN Jyerp
"BTUIOJIR)) opnjoul 1sni J0u ‘apLm-1som © surejuod N ‘I 103 UOISSNISIp,,
2q 0} pa1oodxa st [[iq ssTmoidwo  “AffeuonIppY "YHOf pue Joeq popex Suiaq | A[realroadg eruoyE) e Jo
1ou are sjesodoxd nq ‘S[Iq JYSNOIP SSNOF] PUR SJRUIS AU} USIMIaq SFenTue] Ui JYInoIp 1equIod Loy 91} Ul
ssrumoIdmos yim [[1q B 20u219Ju0d91d 0} Jundinaye aIe SSRIUIU0)) SIIIMOSIY O} QIUOWI 3} JO SARD JUSWIPUIIR
TemTEN SSNOL] 9y} PUE SOPIIUTIO)) SIXMO0STY [eImeN pue £310uf 18udS [eUL] 243 UT uone[s18a] aqissod
a1} woXy Jyels “19qojoQ) ATes Ut pjoy sem SULIeo] S0NIWIWO)) JATRSIZYT 1SIL PAONpoONUL UISISUR | UISUID.] SUURL(] "USF /¥681'S
“TedA
ot 10] sysonbar oy Surpredox £ mss) 01 ATeruqo,] e[ se A[Ied se SILIjaI1dg
jourqe)) [ sBurreoy SuIp[oy 1e)s [[ix ssapurmodqng suonerdorddy aq
tey opedionue o\ “pases|es uaaq sey] 193pnq ST 2900 1834 Y 10§ SSATUOD $310Ua3Y
03 s3s0nbaI INO PUE S[PAS] SUIPUNT JO BAPI 15)3q B SARY [[IM O "910T 6 | POFR[dY PUR JUsWo[oA(] |  ISPUEXSY IBWE] U T8
ATeniqa, Uo pased[a1 aq 0} 198 SI ss31300)) 03 159nbar 323pnq S JUSPISAIJ AL | IleA puB A8mouyg L1 AT juosdung g doy | / AH
odox A[quour 91 0} pIYdee SI IoNS[ YL JO Ad0d Y "SI0,
pue “0okoy ‘oueyjodeN Ty Y007 ‘e[ I01S] 5y} 0} U0 PoUsIs ssAU3U0)
Jo s1oqusjA Surmo[roy g, svaford [YVINSIRM PUe IAX S[ML 0¥ JotaI
YBNOIp UIISIM,, O PAYEIO[TE KSUOUX J0AIP IOLIANU] 3 JO Jusuneda oy
1By} s 0} §SIFU0)) JO SISQUISIAL (UM H0JJa e Surpesyxeads are V(A1 / S4I
"910¢ ‘0¢ Ioquisidog ydnomny suni YoM Ted X [eISL] Y1 JO pud
ot ySnony sarousSe Terapsy [ spury 19y suoneudorddy pajeprosuo)) sqL.
*KQUOTA, TYBNOI(] WIAISIA SOUIWIO,)
r worfjIwx 0O 1§ SuTeInod ofexoed ay; ‘A[reuonIppy "910TA UL IAX 2DLL | 910T 0V suonendosddy suonendoiddy
10 woTIw £Z4 Jo yiou isnf surejuoo 10y suonendoiddy payeprjosuo) 4T, Ppa1epI[osuo)) aleuog pue asnoly | 6Z0TIH
sneIg/Arpmung Ademmng 10/pue AL 1osuodg | Idquuny g

Foupdtfiusis fo uoyvis1Say 10L1apay




-Kouatogye A310ud uo ysnd &

se [[om se ‘pus a3 Sunepdn Sururen qof ‘puny UONEAIISUOY [RISPJ UIEW o1}
Surzuogne ‘Fumuad suredid sed [emeu :arMdNSLIUT PUE S|S0 [ISSOJ UO
pea)sur [[1q oYL *[[1q wesnrediq ATnn 8 8 poWTe SSHIANOER 1910 PUE [IBanno

s3urjeow ‘SuONENoSoU JO SYITOW JO JNSAI B SB SUIBO PUB SJBID0WS(] PUe S10Z
sueorqnday qioq woyg sanuoiid Lorjod Jo Iaquunu e SSpNYOUL [[1q YT, "SIBaA JO 19V UONRZIULISPOIA]
WS w [[1q £s17od uwoya1 £319us peolq 1SIY S)1 FULISPISUOD ST JeUdg AL Korjoq ABrouyg D{SMOYINIA BST'T WS Z107'S
"9 ) SUIBUS[feYD $AJLIS WOLf
SjUSWINSIR TEOY SLN0D U} SB SPIMUOTEU POy GO AJUSLIND ST Uonjendar o[,
SIeaUIFU
"[oyuyoput Jo sdio) Awry pue
papuadsns u2aq sey 1dWYIe SPLLIDAOC O19A S, sa[pmy [ermpasord SWIODIQA0 Vdd 2y £q paonponut
0] S9]0A 9} AR JOU PIP INq ‘OPLLISAC 019A € pajdinaye JJeuas Sy |, ‘BureqQ uornefndar  saes
JuapIsald £q PaojeA sem 31 inq ‘Arenuer Ul sumseswr Y3 dn oo} 3snOH Y, paun) 991 Jo sivjem,,
‘s1oamBuy jo sd10)) Awry pue yJd oY) £q pIzI[eUl] UONEIAI (SEIS PIU(] a3 Jo [eaoxddesi(y Jo
a1 JO sIojeMm,, 3y Jo feaoiddestp Jo uonnjosa1 oy) passed sey] 3jeUSE I, | UOUN[OSSY [euoIssaI3uo) JSWI of uds | ZTSIU('S
"BTUIOJI[R)) Spn{oul 1SNl J0U “IpIM-ISIM syoaload oFe10)s
aq 0} payoadxo st J[iq esTuroIdwods € “A[renontppy iIoJ pue Joeq papel Juroq | 1018M JoJ Sumyrmmad 1a1sER
10u ore sfesodoid nq ‘S[fIq 1Y3n0IP SSNOH PUR SBUIS ST USIMI3q oFenue| 10§ ap1aoad suonemgar
asToIdwos YIM [fiq B 9ousiofuosasd 01 Jundtus)e are 93| SA0IMOS3Y [EIUSUWIHONAGD 2582
[eINEN SSNOL] Sy} PUE S)IUIIO0) S30MOSTY [eIIEN pue A315uY ajeusg pinom yeq) swesrqndsy
oY) WOXJ RIS 19q0100) AJIed Ul p[oy Sem SULIEOH SONTURIO) oATIR[SI39T ISI] 9SNoOY eIuIOLE)D)




Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

2E



LORLSIAQ d3IVM TVAIDINNW V

A>uaby saniin andwi3 puoju| ’Ay

9L0z Aseniqad

(5L0Z Jaquiadaq - Ajnr)
Joday AjAnoy Buipjing JesA-piA




LINHLSIC ALV TVIIDINDW ¥

43BN 2803 PATTof ﬁw

}seos.04 pajebpng YNl 4O %6S =
s)seoa.d04 Aousby JaquIB JO %t =

sNA3 1252 «(8yep 03) Aanoy buipjing =

sSNA3 0ce'y Isedalod pajebpng yn3| =
SNA3 6178°G :1sedalo4 Aouaby Jaquia| =

A)Anoy Buipjing JeaA-pi :Atewwng




ADIISHE BUYM TYIIDINAW ¥

€ Aty ST SRAT PUBT ﬁﬁ
#

eleq GTOZ Jaquiada( s||iH owyd 8ulpuad  «
Jaguinu 3|0y 1S21B3U Y} 0} PIapuncl snNQd [eled .

snas4

puejdn ouewQ JIB]DIUON euejuo4 amnd S||IH oulyD oulyd
- I 0
59T s q..:'. oS- -
yee—F — B8t
SEVSPY .
169 \
Zv8— 000'T
6VT'T
00S'T
000'Z
005°C
|enoy =
. 000°€
000‘€ pajdsfoid m
00S'€

ApAnoy Buipling 91/S1 JeaA-pIN



e L el e &

6v8's 0S2‘L 665V sjejo] pajoaloid
116°C 8LLlL 161 S[ejol [enjoy JeaA PIN

Gol 4> eel pueldn

882 ocl 8G1 oueQ

%% L 43 JIejojuoiN

GEY €S Z8e euepO
6vL‘L 08 145 dMAD

001 19 6E s|liH oulyo

68¢ 1T 29¢ oulyo

(sna3) (sna3)

|eLIsnpu| Aouaby Buijoeajuon

lenuspisay

JleloJawiwio?)

AAnoy Bulpjing 91/G1 1edA-PIN




o Aaxum Fv LOHHISIC MAAVAR TVIIDINOWN ¥ -
B m:om mwm Asuaby saqinn andwz puoytl

§
oulyo ﬂw

BJeQ STOZ J3qWa0ag S|IIH ouy) Sulpuad
J3qUiNU J[OYM 152Je3U 3y} 0] papunos snadj |elsed -

(%)
snNQg3 00l
S|IH ouIyD

(%S¥)
snNad 054l
dMAD

(%1L1)

“$Nd3 68¢
ouBluo

(%9)
$NAa3 SOl
pueldn

(%2)
. snNa3a ev
R = = (%L1) JIB[oIUOIN
—— sNad3 sev
BUBUOS

Buipuny y¥y99D ul INE’LS Ul pajnsay sNA3

AiAnoy Buipjing 91/G1 1e9A-PIN



ADIAL5HD WLVM TYIIDINDY ¥

ASUEE S 20T PO ﬁd
&

(5102 AoN)
Heop

610z AON) |
SIIH.0WYD

7
/

{610z AoN}
pueydn

.

ot S b g0 0

= =) =

QIO 3TN ATYH

00k .
ooi-o1 @ i
Gi=> @
feinsnput
00 .
TH-I @
Ti=e @
(LR
Ehis o
oo -0 B
Oim> o
{eRuepISey
falA) naa
paytodicouuin i
eauy oouies [

pueba

==Y

Lol MD R Pt

91/G10Z 164 [BIS1d LA - Hoday A1AdY Bulpjing




suolnsanp




Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

2F



910z AdenJqo4
so|etad-ues.io es|q 1D1A1SIA YALVM TVIDINNW V U

Auaby sapynn andw3 pubjuf ’

ajepdn weibo.id uoijeAiasuo)) isjeM




Z LINLSIA Y3V TVAIDINOW Y
fouaby sapjjpn a4idwi3 pubfuj

onsy ©
uonen|eA] eadeospue] ©
aouepua)ny sse|) Alojepuep ©

(mapN) weiboud uolje|jejsu] J9||0Ju0) HewS [enuapisay

(maN) weiboid uone|nbay ainssald swoH |ejol

sejeqey |enuspisay loj Buipund |ejuswalddng yN 3| [eUCHIpPpPY
sajeqey [elosswwo)) 10} Buipung jejuswalddng YN 3| jeuonippy

GLOZ ‘_mn_Eo.\,oz
deosay salAloY JybnoliQg




PR N RIE LU S
L' 1 LML

t [

avdion ()

BuY RINRS v u

000°0ST 4940 .
DOO0SE - 00000+ .

866 66 - 000 05 ‘
00005 KpUn A

way aenbs |0l
Neald

CODOSE 980 .
D00 asz - Docan: .

see'es-oanos

cooaswpun @
1802 PaRnbs jej01
iqnd

008 0ST 19AD _\. 1,..
.rf\_..,_
s656-00005 ()

000SE - BOO'00)

pgeos®pun O
1904 sienbs o)
YOH

pusBe}

W 6714 :21ep 03 pied uonuod yn3| sapnpuj
amw Aq (W 8°8$) pred g pasajdwiod says 0f1
*}} *bs 96£°791G :parowad q 03 Jin|
paywgns suopnedjjdde aanoe 61

910T “I€ “uer —1oz

‘I“qo4 wo.a4

A by

ErTe Y
ik

T
By

o
-
rdy
wpiry
LETTUY
gt
FEE R ]
i
g~
kﬁ
.vv‘
rd
-
=" %
o
e
Bty
WL
et
e
LInTTEY

>_c0 wco:mo__aa,q _m>oEom_ uny 1o




LIORLSKE Y3V TVAIDINNOW ¥V

Aouaby sanijian axdui3 pupjuy ’

)

198)-8108 0Q0° | :So1e! paseq 1eBpng Buusws|dw sepusbe z wou) sbulnes Jajeps pejosloid [enuuy 0O
199)-0108 000" | ANANOY ma|N woll sBuiaes Jajepp pajosfoid lenuuy M

SWeibold palejSiuiupY aMIN woly sejeubuo jijeusy swelboid jeucibey ammw
sweiboi4 pajuawadiy Ajeao 40f Y31 01 pasingiuias st buipund feuisix3 gmmw
Sajewfsa ale LL/9L Ad 9 9L/SL A ‘Temoe SI GL/pL Ad — yduag sweiboid uoneasasuo) feuoibay M 310N

*

L/ N
0.0 0..

GLE'SBL'ES  ST9'GSS‘'6S  SI8OLILS uoj8ay 2y} 10} s1ydUdY WeIF0ld UOIeAIISUD) ||BIIAD

000'00S‘T$  000°000°8$ '86S'6T9'T$  AMIN Wouy Jyduag sweiFold uopeAIasuo) [euoiday |euswalddng

GLE'STSTS  §29'66LS 0.1'686°CS 323png - dsuadx3 10341q VN3l [eI0L

000°09Z$- 000°09L$- 0SL°T9STS- 19410 ‘VdMVS ‘AMIA ‘UM :8uipuny [eusalx] jejol

GLE'G8TTS  S79°SSS'TS  0ZTTISS'VS 1283png UOHIBAIaSUO) J3IEM [BIOL

000SZS 0S 0$ UONEAISUOT) 8mjnol8Y|

000°0SES 0S 0s uonejuawa|dw| aley paseg 198png

000°0STS 0S 0s aiemyyos paseg ASojouyda)

0S 000°0SS 0L6'68T'€S sweigoid |eroway pn) |euoiSay

0000625 0SL'€8TS 0S2'891S sweiBoud Aduaiolyy3 asn 4238 |eI3WWO) |euotday

00000T'TS  000°000'TS  000'SL6S swetSoad Aduaidiy3 asn JaIBM |eluapIsay |euoiday

GLE'0TES GL8'1TTS 00S°LTCS yoeannQ g yoddng Aduady Jaquialy ‘uoneanpy
+L1-9TAd  OT-ST Ad «ST-VT Ad ] weJSo0.d

M3INSY 18Dbpng uoleAIasSu0) Jalep)




G LIDRESIG 33V TVEIDINAW V
Aouaby sanjjnn adiduig pupjul ‘ U

N
qmmhﬁemm asuejeg Suipul
__looodomm weiSoud apeasdn 49]jo3uo) [eizuapisay pasodold
_m.mm ‘TW6S asuejeg Suipu3
1000°52S sonAjeuy - aAleIOqe||0D) Bled
6V TTTS alem1Jos Aduaidiyl asn 191em
000005 AJUQ $321A2(Q - $331g3Y [BJaWWO)
Vooo-oomm AJUQ S21A3(Q - S31Rg3Y [B1IUDPISIY
€52°0TTS Sa11IAIPY pue uSiedwe) 1y8noiq
T spafold/sweidoid Jysnoiq

000°008°T$ |eloL

0000065 9T-ST Ad anuaAay 1ysnoiag

D00‘006S ST-v1 Ad | -

Bupjoel | AlIAROY anuaAay jybnoig




1MMISEA YIEVM TVAIDINNDW V

AIN31D1443 3SN YILVM Asuaby saginn aydwiz puojul ’AU

ADNIOV SN
FaIdW3 ANYINI

ajepdn ue|d
ssauisng Aouaiolyg asn Jajepn - wa}| oju| O

Ae/udy

weJlboid apelbdn J18|j0,uo) [enuapisay MmN — Wa)| Uolloy ©
Bunosiy pieog yolepy =

sdals 1XeN




uoifa. ay3 uiyam sajjddns 1a3pm acubyua 03 Uoizpanpa pup Auapiffa
asn 1230m Sunowo.d Aq Aujiqpijay 13pAA Buispaiout fo [pon ssauisng s,A2uady Ym Jua3sisuo)

g0 Tt

NOISSNDSIA




Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

2G



910¢ A1enigad
LOMUASIC HIVM TVIIDINAW ¥

Sy Wwo \
ysy h - £>uaby saapy 37idui3 pudjul ’.U

aAIleIlIu] dAIlRIOR||0D BleQ 21B)S
2
‘eje 49A0) pueT
‘Aauaidiyyg uonnesii) ainyndusy

S9AI}eI}U| B}R( X2 UOIJBAIdSUO)




rd LNELSICE BALYAA TVELANTN ¥

spJepues 25N 9|qeuoseal,, I =

saypeoidde Louspiys
JUDIDHHP 24Inbau swiie) Justapiq  *

SIDWIBS UM MIOA =

fuspiy3
as( Ja1ep 8 J0oj Ssjuedn Y93

s19sn ueqJn pue Sy
10§ SN 3[JEUOSE,, JO UOIIB|MIJR) =
Suynpayps uonediu seaoadw]
sjue|d jo (@184 uonelndsuesjodeal)
13 93 SaJnseaut uoieIs SINID -

(SIWID) wa3sAs uonewiou] JuswaSeury uoneSII| BIUIOJI[E) JOJ UONEIO| 323

P £

f>uaniyy3 uoneSii] 24Ny NdZY



£ LONMASHD BELVAA TWlEHNNW ¥

SJIOSUDS 24N1SIowW [10S ‘uonesLul
dup ‘uonels 13 :uopeaysuowdqg

suoned|jdde yuein
104 Aylunyioddo [eRualod =

s8ujaes AS1oud [eRURIOd
SSUIABS J12)BM |B[JUIOd
uonesado wie) wia3l-8uo] ‘98Ie7

wiied Ajod [eD/WID
:9}IS uonessuowaq ajdwiex3

A>uaidiyy3 uonegLu] 24Ny N8y




RIRN & k4 s - Srr Trasr
- = EL TN -y i
1mdrg A saso] pue 14 LHEASIG STLVA TWAEDINMW ¥

LU

SpJepuels
asn 131eMm 10} SIUaWAINb3a1 gOUAAS 24n3ng
pUB JULIND UYIM SDIDUDSER JOqUISLL ISISSY =

B1EpP 3SN 2|qEUOSEDI Q 2SN pug| [enide
= R o yum Suiuued ‘siejjop uoieAIdSUOD 19818

S Fooos 28pajmouy puedxa 031 [BIIUSIOd
fgliLin
weceese & juawdo|aAap eyep 3y} jo uondope Ajuea uno

naogcese 10} YN3| 9sinquuiad [|Im uedd g doid YdMVS =

>U:wm< >_.._ .meE—.mﬁﬁ —-mw_-m_”u””wamﬂ_._m._ mm_ucmmm .‘—UH—EME Lo* m—mtoa —Ucm MHm—U -—m>ou
_ - puej 04 364$ ‘SLOT ‘aunr ‘ylied uw) =«
Y . spleoqyse( J9]1e}oY/I9[es3|OYM
.o R PN

JOopINo 13 Jo %08 / Joopul 4ddD mmv uonejnoed
-« 198pngisjem o} spea| elep j9dded

+{00d0) Aiewiung 381 Jaiepm Kefuapisay Aousby

" -

S 9 i Pual seep Aajep efiuoweans Kaouaby
Luuﬁ.%nbuﬁﬁéiﬁaﬁ.ﬁ:.,

a8pajmouy| A>uaiiy)3

19]EAA 10} Uojepuno4 e se ejeq 12A0) pues



LML BARVA TWIEDINTN ¥

S ?&g.gfd

O®m< 5 - IED y o ﬁ

Aaijog atqnd o jooyag

n =u>— rﬁ.._.r._.._.ll A3MNH AR AT AN ._...._r.._....... ........E = fuy
_Zzau_..-«M ccccccccccc = A\x_ ‘lv ’ F F
ADNZIONEA4T ADHINI-HALYM 304 zm._.ZNUn _%I.w
SIAVAON an <.

sonAjeue ejep [9A3]-ysiy yym sanijod [ernuajod uo asIApy

Apnjs 10} e1ep 3sn Jawo3snd A>uady JoaquisW YN3I| L 1sed] 1e sauinbay
Yoea 45z$ ©) 10]id | aseyd Suleys-1s0d sapuady

103235 91eAld pue ejwuapede ‘sajpuade JO WNRJIoSUoD)

soiAjeue eiep pided ym A[pAidaya alow swesdoud ydepy :[eon

9AI}BI}IU| AI}RI0QR[|0D Ble(

*

&

*

*



9 ADURESICH RV TWIEINGW ¥

ST0Z nopuaiang Yo :324nos

nxvo O}N—‘ axuN@ “—.hol-—mu.ﬁ_m_n Q—UNE |
spjoyssnoy %

188+ 683+ vz- (1834/3)
joeye abeiany

S)H2EBQ-}N2 asealou| sojel paseq
Aiojepuewl @21d woun -uoljesojje

¢ aAljeusally ‘L aaljewssyly S.OMI3

S8191]04 8ABUIB)jY SNSIoA Sajey PaSEq-UOIJRIO|Y JO 108l aejjap ApniS
:sonAjeuy aAleIoge||0)) a|dwex]

soijAjeuy aAnesoqe||od eyedq




Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

2H




910z Auenuqa
Suuueyq jo 1a8euew Aindag 1D1J1SIA YTIVM TVAIDINNW V

I i Aouaby SBIfAN S11dUIT PuD]U] ’U

uuuuuuuuuuu

£302 9IkpER gLL NUATING

HILVMANNOYD
S.YIN¥O41TY2

(YWDS) 1V Juawageuey

19)}empunoJun ajqeurelisns 10z 2y}
10} 91epdn A1epunog uiseg ouiyd



9107 Arenuqad

Suluueld "_.O ._ummcms_ >.._.:n_00 ' 1ORIASIA YIAVM TVAIDINNW V

Aouaby sapynn andw3 puojuj

£0gz wiupdyl gLl NILITING

Y1IVMANNOYO
S.VINYO4ITVD

WAy 1 wssliandag]
g o
MU J0 amg

B,

i (VIWDS) 1V jJuawaSeuey
19)}empuno.n d|qeuieisns 10z 2y}
10} 9)epdn A1epunog uiseg ouiyd



I2HELSIO HALVAM TVLIDINOIW ¥

z ouab7 TGS P f)&
sweJ3o.d pue sue|d
o Sunepdn pue ‘uonejuswsajdwi ‘yuswdojaAap
au3 ysnouya AJ[e50] paAaiyde 359 S! DS

Ajjiqeljal wial-3uoj JoJ Ajqeureisns
pageuew 2q 0} aJe S224N0S3.J JO1BMPUNOID)

‘sieak AIp ul D 104 Jo3em Suipiaoad
suiseq JayempunoJ8 10230.4d 03 SME[ SUIBIUOD YIADS

VINDS 7101




LMULSIC HRAVAR TWVRIDHNITIY Y

¢ kounby ST S PG f/.
A

‘Sallepunoq [euodIpsunl yum
1odwod 03 pasiaal 99 Aew saliepuNno( uiseq [eutajul
Uo1ym ySnoayy wsiueydaw e apiaoid suonengay

"VIDS JO uoiesnsiujupe
0} Se Ajulenaoun sa3eaud sallepunoq uiseq gLl uils||ng
YAMd pue paiedipnipe ay3 usamiaq Aouedaldsiq =

suone|n3ay >u:ww.._u_.=u

Liepunog uiseg




(mawbpng 8/61)
Alepunog Ujses Uiy

U|SBGANE JO UISEQ AG Donge]
LIBpUNCE g1l ULalg YA

fauaby samin axdw3 puey




AEMASHT BRAVM TVEIDINNDW ¥

S Aousbiy sappap andia3 puoiu] »d

uoneuawndop unuoddns pue [es1uyd9}
||e 9p1Aoad 0] JJP1S J9)SBULIDIBAA

_,,ﬁ cozeg /f H_ < sapuage [e20] 9y} Se YAQ 01 1senbau
SIOMTHS 7 Lo'g-gNL. | ulof 9xew 03 AMWAL ‘AMIWM VN3l
u...a.,.ﬂ..“c:q ._m_,ummw saddn A
pAZ-ga0UBIUO ¢ )\ ‘Aoua8e [BD0] B J0U S IDISBULIDIRAA SE

~ 98ueyd e 3sanbau Jouued J9ISBWIDIBAA
eg é \\:w‘
sallepunoq paiedipnipe ydyew

e

- | 03} Saliepunoq uiseg ouiyd gL unajing
e SHMA 93epdn YINDS YHM A[dWod of «

13sonbay J93sewidiepn



LOMYASIT BRIV TWIIDINMW ¥

9 Aouably sanjigin adw3 pujul f‘
1sanbay uone>ylpoy Alepunog uiseg Huwqns
uolssiigns 3sanbaJ e aew 03 suoide
pue S1usWN>op paJinbal 91elidoidde suiwiilaq

“dMd
pue “1ignd ay3 ‘sanuagde [ed0] J2Y30 AJ30U 03 SOAIDS 3|

*IND20 Aew }sanbaJ uonesiipow e s[eugis UOIEdIION
uonediHpow e
duliojdxa Jo sAep SL UIYyHM UOIBDIHION [elMU] HwgnS =

AMWWM pue ‘AMINAL ‘YN3l 03

1sanbay J93sewiajepn




EMHASICO UERVA TVAIDINGIW ¥

L Kouabiy SN 4GS PUDIY] fu

1sanbay aguey) Aiepunog aaoudde 03 uoide pieog YNl *

W9}l |[euojewLIOUI JO SABP S1L UIYNM UOIBDIHION [e1Hu] 9)i4
0LOT YDJIBA

pleog YN3| 03 W3] [BUORBLIIOJU|
9L0T ‘zz Auenuqo =

UM Aq pa1dadoe sysanbau uonediipow Auepunoq uiseg s
0L0T ‘L€ YdJe\ — 9L0T ‘L Auenuef «

3|NPaY>S




Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee

INFORMATION
ITEM

21



-

\ ™ inland Empire Utilities Agency
A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

Date: Febmary 17, 2016
To: The Honorable Board of Directors
Through: Public, Legislative Affairs, and Water Resources Committee (02/10/16)
From: P. Joseph Grindstaff
; General Manager
Submitted by: Chris Berch
Executive Manager of Engineering/Assistant General Manager
Sylvie Lee
Manager of Planning and Environmental Resources
Subject: Energy Management Plan (EMP)
RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the Board of Directors concur with the findings of the EMP.

BACKGROUND

The primary objectives of the EMP is to benchmark the Agency’s current energy performance
and greenhouse gas emissions baseline; forecast future demands; and explore measures that will
cultivate a reliable and sustainable energy infrastructure to achieve the objectives set forth in
IEUA’s Business Goals. This plan also aims to identify projects and business practices that can
improve the Agency’s Integrated Demand Side Management (IDSM) and work in concert with
energy utilities whenever possible to benefit grid management.

The major initiatives discussed in the EMP are:
Peak power independence

Grid interdependence

Organics diversion, and

Carbon neutrality

As described in past planning documents, peak power independence has been a central goal for
the Agency due to cost of this power. IEUA has progressed toward this goal by developing a
diverse energy portfolio that includes energy efficiency, as well as solar, wind, and fuel cell
generation. As more renewable energy comes into the state’s power grid; however, the State
must cope with changing grid conditions. This means that assumptions about peak power



Energy Management Plan
February 17, 2016
Page 2 of 3

demand periods will shift, as will the times when surplus power needs to be taken off the grid.
IEUA’s demand response and battery storage projects are at the cutting edge of addressing this
emerging grid management issue. Additionally, environmental regulatory issues related to

energy generation will require detailed studies to identify new technologies to address these
issues.

In concert with peak power independence and grid interdependence, the EMP also introduces a
new initiative to assist the member agencies in complying with the State’s anticipated increase in
organics diversion requirements, by diverting food waste to the Agency’s anaerobic digesters
and composting facility. The State has a target to reduce landfilling of solid waste by 75% by
2020, and this is expected, under the 2016 Short Lived Climate Pollutants Plan, to increase to
90% by 2025 in order to further reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Staff is currently conducting a
feasibility study to estimate the amount of food waste available in the service area; the biogas
generation potential; and the possible alternatives to beneficially use the digester gas generated
in a cost effective manner.

A direct consequence of the implementation of the first two initiatives is the proposed carbon
neutrality goal, which requires the Agency to acquire 100 percent of its electricity needs from
carbon neutral sources by 2030. This will be accomplished through increased energy efficiency
and renewable energy generation, and optimized interdependence with the State’s power grid. In
addition to greenhouse gas emissions voluntary reporting initiated in 2013 (with an audited
cartbon emissions bascline completed in 2016), staff will establish a carbon impact evaluation
criteria to ensure future energy projects selected for implementation contribute to the Agency’s
achievement of the 100% carbon neutral goal.

The EMP relied on forecasting to evaluate the feasibility of site-specific energy projects.
Forecasts were developed by incorporating projects from the Ten-Year Capital Improvement
Plan (TYCIP) and findings from the Wastewater Facilities Master Plans, as well as, the
anticipated performance of applicable self-generation installations. Wastewater flow projections
were utilized to forecast anticipated seasonal demands at each IEUA facility. The EMP identified
several potential energy projects, such as lighting upgrades and expansion of the solar
installation at the TERCF, that are recommended to undergo more detailed analyses to determine
whether they will be incorporated into the 2016/17 TYCIP.

Focused business practices, such as energy procurement strategies and improved energy
monitoring were discussed within the plan, as cost saving measures can extend beyond
conservation projects. Through prudent planning that considers past performance and anticipates
regional needs, this EMP constructs a blueprint to shape a reliable and efficient energy profile for
the Agency and an open communication with energy utilities to enhance the water-energy
relationship.

The EMP will be reevaluated every two years. A Programmatic Environmental Impact Report
(PEIR) is being prepared and will incorporate the findings of the EMP, along with the remainder
of the Agency’s planning documents, such as the Wastewater Facilities Master Plan and the
Integrated Resources Plan. Following the Board approval of the PEIR, anticipated in summer
2016, each of these planning documents will be brought to the Board for final approval.

G:\Board-Rec\2016\16033 Energy Management Plan 02-17-2016



Energy Management Plan
February 17, 2016
Page 3 of 3

Development of the EMP is consistent with the IEUA business goal of Wastewater Management,
namely optimizing facility energy use, achieving state environmental sustainability and
renewable energy goals, cffectively managing renewable resources to achieve peak power
independence, and providing for future rate stabilization.

PRIOR BOARD ACTION

None.
IMPACT ON BUDGET

The EMP was entirely developed in-house. Projects recommended by the EMP will be included
in the TYCIP to ensure they are properly funded.

Attachments:
Attachment 1: PowerPoint Presentation

Attachment 2: 2015 Energy Management Plan
Attachment 3: Fact Sheets



1D1A1SIA ¥3LVM TVdIDINNW V

Aouaby sanijnn aidw3 pupjuj ,

ue|d Jusawabeue Abiauz




Ajljesinau uogue)

9ouspuadaplajul puo)

UoIsSJaAIp soluebli

gouapuadapul Jamod yead

soAleniu| dN3




= Lo FR el
LIIMINA WM TN

€ asm_gJ@hJ.fy
puewaq jead Aduady a8esaAv ]
Jdy Je|N qe4 uer J9q AON 10 das Sny |nf

- —H— . Q
- 000°T

- 000°C

- 000°€

- 000V

- 0009

- 0009

(M) puewaq Jamod

- 000°L

- 0008

- 0006

- 00007

s | = 000'TT

-] [
— iv -

mc_x._mEcu.:wm_ 19MOd ¥ead




Axuably saginn a4 puosy

- - l‘\\l\,
v LOfi1S10 HIVM THLVINERA ¥
y

DIE pum i Jejosi 8D 9Nd F puewaq jead Adualdy aSesanyd
un{ Aeyy Jdy ey qo4 uef o =Tg) AON PO dag 8ny |nr
-l i - Q

- 000°T

000°C

o
|

—1 |+ ooo's

- 000y

|

A5

|
-_J.

i - 000°S

(M) puewaqg jamod

- -+ 000°9

+ 000°L

- 0008

- 0006

-~ 000°0T

P 000'TT

Bunyiewyouag ._..n..iom yead




... .-{ ADFMESHD BLVM WADINNW <
A2uFBY S AT PUOTI] ﬁv

G

JDIE (@) 8N4 F PUIM T JBJOS T SUOIIONPaY JOMOd R puewa( 1amod M
dv3aA VOIS

YE/EE 62/82 ve/ee 6T/8T YI/€T

S = e o

= i

d

Q

000°S 000°S m

~

o

S

000°9 o00's 3

=

o

000'6 - - 0006 uMn
00071 000°ZT
000ST - ANYINIA VId HIANIANS 000°ST

s100f01d WS -HOYS pue ‘SdINAM ‘dIDAL Sapnjou|

spuewag m::mmoo(_o.._



L 5 LTSI A TVADINOA ¥
A3u3D 53N 2HANLT DU} ﬂ w

SUICUNIODIA M JDIW |2D [SN4 A PUIM T JBJOS i SUOIIINP3Y JAMOJ [  puewa(q Jamod M

HVY3AA IVISI4
ve/ee 62/8¢ vZ/EeT 6T/81 vT/€T
0 === . : ¥ == . - = ..|u 0
I !
9
(o]
000°€ 000t =
= |
(w)
m
0009 0009 S
2
w)
000’6 - 0006 m
000°ZT 000ZT
, ) ANVINIA VId HININNS ‘
000'ST 000°'ST

sjoafoid wis-buo pue wis-uoys ‘sdiNdM dIDAL Sepnjou]

spuewa( buiyseosato




LIS HEVAM TVAINAW ¥

L AUIB SR M Py ﬁj
AN

syueln|jod ajewiId PaAl-LOYS |EDIJlI0 80NPaY =

sal)i|ioe} SpIjos SN O} Sliypue| woly soluebio PaaIg -
sjuswalinbal UoISIBAIp

wo_cmm_o $,9]E1S 8y ynm A[dwo9 03 seuaby Jaquial ISISSY =

e

uoisiaAlq saiuebip



%91

N\

X
TN
= ] " h_ll * ,.-f.u .

=

%L

pum \rh.,__ _.,ﬁ_ anu__n_m_.sw ¥
S povodwy
= :
(legnsN %001) peiosfoid 0£0z (leqneN %9¢) €102

deb abplq 0} saniunpoddo Ajuapi 0} SdINT @4ning =
9]qemausl Mau pue sainseaw Aousiolye JO UONBUIqWO)) =
Ajllennau 9,18 aAsiyoe 0} pajoadxe spoys Buluue|d Jusuny «

=

0€02Z Aq |eaynaN uoqgie)



5H HIEVAA TYAIDING ¥

119
6 A5 SeRY g P _l/.w

910z Jouenb puoosas Aq paje|dwod aq 0) Hoday =
Apns Ajjigisea uoisiaalg soluebiQ =

910z Jeuenb isii Aq pejejdwod aq 0} uolejelsul G-dy =
Juswdojanasp ul Juswaaiby abeiolg ABisu3 -

910z Jouenb puooss ui uifaq o} uoneziwpdo dwnd =

910Z Jepenb jsay ui uibaq o} Jyonal Bunybiy =
seapy Aouaioiyg pue pajeidwo) sipny Ablou3 =

ST

paynusp| seun

S)}104}g JUd29Yy



0l

"$82.1n0Ss8. sjgemeus. buibeuew
A1ennosye pue asn ABious Anoey Buiziwdo Aqg juswiebeueyy 101emo)Sses
pue juswebeuepy ABiau jo jeos) sseuisng s.Aousby ayj sjoeuw josloud siyy

/102 — sieah om} Auana 4iNT ay) @1epdn =
910¢ J/swwng — Y|3 onewweltboid 9)8|dwo)) «
pauiusp| seibsjeng pue s|eox) Jusws|dw| =

sda)g }IXoN




(\ Inland Empire Unlities Agency

A MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

e A PR 5 o e e




Inland Empire Utilities Agency
2015

Energy Management Plan

inland Empire Utilities Agency
6075 Kimball Avenue
Chino, CA 91708



Executive Summary

he Southern California water industry is currently operating within a

burdensome climate, as adverse environmental conditions are driving

policy change during a time of continued population growth and

socioeconomic decline. Meeting both water and energy demands in this
region in a reliable and environmentally responsible manner have converged to form
a substantive challenge for water agencies. The Inland Empire Utilities Agency has
addressed this challenge through the development of an Energy Management Plan
(EMP]) that will focus on resource optimization and sustainable operations.

This EMP analyzes historical energy usage, defines a current energy and Greenhouse
Gas emissions baseline, forecasts future demands, examines procurement strategies,
and proactively explores measures that can ease the Agency’s load on the utility
while cultivating a reliable and sustainable energy infrastructure across its facilities.
This plan also aims to identify projects and business practices that can improve the
Agency’s Integrated Demand Side Management (IDSM} and work in concert with
energy utilities whenever possible to benefit grid management.

As detailed in past planning documents, grid independence during peak periods has
been a central goal within the Agency. Though IEUA has taken advantage of its
renewable resources by developing a diverse energy portfolio, further planning is
needed to address changing environmental regulations that may dictate available
technologies. The EMP introduces a new initiative to assist the member agencies in
complying with the organic diversion goals, by diverting food waste to the agency’s
anaerobic digesters and composting facility. The EMP also establishes a new
Business Goal that will require 100 percent of IEUA’s electricity needs to be procured
from carbon neutral sources by 2030 through strategic planning and renewable
resource optimization.

Wastewater flow projections are utilized to forecast anticipated seasonal demands at
each IEUA facility. The EMP relies on forecasting to evaluate the feasibility of site-
specific energy projects, which resulted in a total of 11 projects that are estimated to
require approximately $38 million in capital expenditures. These projects will
undergo more detailed analyses to determine whether they will be implemented into
IEUA’s Ten Year Capital Improvement Plan (TYCIP).



The EMP outlines economic, operational, environmental, and regulafory factors that
inflience new project implementation at the Agency’s wastewater treatment plants,
as well as current aspects that tend to impede new project development. Costly and
time-intensive grid interconnections, generating capacity limitations on Net Energy
Metering (NEM) eligible renewable installations, and limited economic incentives
are all identified as elements that can negatively impact new energy management
projects. This EMP also offers recommendations that would address each obstacle
for regulatory consideration.

Focused business practices, such as energy procurement strategies and improved
energy monitoring are discussed within the plan, as cost saving measures can extend
beyond conservation projects. Through prudent planning that considers past
performance and anticipates regional needs, this EMP attempts to construct a
blueprint to shape a reliable and efficient energy profile for the Agency and open
communication with energy utilities to enhance the water-energy relationship.



Table of Contents

Executive Summary. R ——— PR |

0¥ ol 70 11 o ' ¢ PO VO 1
Water-Energy NeXus...uummemssmmmnmsessesssssssarmms s 1
Regional Programs and Facilities Overview — 2
Work Completed Since 2008 w5
Short-Term GOAlS.......cccouein et e e e 10
Long-Term Goals..........cccevrsciimmmmmmmmmrmers s s s s s s s 13
Policy Recommendations.......c.vceceensnimiiminnun s s s s e sesans 16

Energy Data.... R 19
LN T € U OP PP 19
24 (=Yt g o | 7O — 22
GGreenhouse Gas EMiSSioNS.....ccmrrmmsasas et remeimessansna RS SsRa TR e b eSS 29

Facility DesSCriptions. .. mmmmsmsmsssssssmsmssasssasssssns v 35
Regional Plant No. 1....... .. 35
Regional Plant No. 4 and Inland Empire Composting Facility......u 51
Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility........ccovinini e 62
Regional Plant NO. Zuw . e s sssssssssssmssssssssessssssrs s stsssssssssssmssssessss 7 1
Regional Plant No. 5 and IEUA Headquarters......u. 81
Al TEUA FaCilitieS..uveveeeeectacrmon i s sss e s e sss s s ssnanssn e ensonsaes 92

Path £0 IMpPlemMentation.. .. s masssss s s s ssssssmsss s assssssssssss s 106
New Project Drivers........ T — 106
New Project Barriers...........ccminimime s s e s st s cnssosens 108



Management PractiCeS. e e s marsss sssssmsssssssssssetsssssessts esssssssens eseses 115

Procurement.... 115
Increased Monitoring.. Ee S— LU e e R 117
EdUCAtiON....couueucrmmssremsssessessssscosssssasssissscasas sessrsss sssssssssssssrssessesssssssssassssses . 118
New Project Solicitation.......uum s smesssssmsssesssssessmessmsamn . 119
AUGIEING. ... o ceiris s 1t et sensssssrecsssssecsssssmromssscsmssssces s sesssas sessessassares svwses evonss v v seRsassnRRS RS 119
Appendices:
A: JEUA Business GOalS .. oumwmmmusmmummsmimsmreinsssmsressressssesmssrsssssesessasssssssesssas - 120
B: Carbon Management Plan... - 160
C: Organics Diversion ... 168




Acronyms

AMP
AF

BAC
BCE
BTU
CARB
CASA
CBWM
CBWCD
CEC
CCWRF
CEC
CEQA
CH,
Co2
COze
CPUC
CWCCG
DA

DG

Asset Management Plan

Acre-foot

Bioenergy Association of California

Business Case Evaluation

British Thermal Unit

California Air Resources Board

California Association of Sanitation Agencies
Chino Basin Watermaster

Chino Basin Water Conservation District
California Energy Commission

Carbon Canyon Wastewater Recycling Facility
California Energy Commission

California Environmental Quality Act
Methane

Carbon Dioxide

C0: Equivalent

California Public Utilities Commission
California Wastewater Climate Change Group
Direct Access

Distributed Generation



DOE
DR
EMP
EMS
ESP
FY
GHG
GWP
HVAC
ICE
IDSM
IE
IERCF

10U

MwW
MWH
MWD
Nz20
NEM
NGOM

o&M

Department of Energy

Demand Response

Energy Management Plan

Energy Management System

Energy Service Provider

Fiscal Year

Greenhouse Gas

Global Warming Potential
Heating/Ventilation/Air Conditioning
Internal Combustion Engine
Integrated Demand Side Management
Inland Empire

Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility
Investor-Owned Utility

Kilowatt

Kilowatt-hour

Megawatts

Megawatt-hour

Metropolitan Water District of Southern California
Nitrous Oxide

Net Energy Metering

Net Generation OQutput Meter

Operations & Maintenance

vi



PPA Power Purchase Agreement
REC Renewable Energy Certificate
REEP Renewable Energy Efficiency Project

RES-BCT Renewable Energy Self-Generation Bill Credit Transfer

RFP Request for Proposal

RP-1 Regional Plant No.1 in the City of Ontario

RP-2 Regional Plant No.2 in the City of Chino

RP-4 Regional Plant No.4 in the City of Rancho Cucamonga
RP-5 Regional Plant No.5 in the City of Chino

RP-5 SHF  RP-5 Solids Handling Facility

RPS Renewable Portfolio Standard

RWRPs Regional Water Recycling Plants

RWQCB Regional Water Quality Control Board
SAWPA Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority
SBCFCD San Bernardino County Flood Control District

SCAQMD South Coast Air Quality Management District

SCAP Southern California Alliance of Publicly Owned Treatment Works
SCE Southern California Edison

SCF Standard cubic feet

SCGC Southern California Gas Company

SGIP Self-Generation Incentive Program

SLCP Short-Lived Climate Pollutant

SWP State Water Project

vil



TA/TI
TCR
TOU
TYCIP
VFD

vocC

Technical Assistance and Technology Incentives
The Climate Registry

Time of Use

Ten-Year Capital Improvement Plan

Variable Frequency Drives

Volatile Organic Compounds

viii



Introduction

WATER-ENERGY NEXUS

Tightening environmental regulations and increasing electrical demand has brought
significant challenges to Southern California electrical utilities. Meeting the electrical
demands of millions of consumers becomes more difficult during periods of peak
activity (generally between 12:00 p.m. and 6:00 p.m. and highest in summer
months), as reflected in increased utility rates during these times. The water
industry is not only one of the electrical utilities’ largest consumers, but is also
subject to the same temporal variability in demand.

The water sector is subject to many energy-intensive processes, including water
extraction, conveyance, treatment, distribution, and wastewater treatment. Since
population growth drives demand for water and energy usage, both are expected to
continue increasing in parallel. The wastewater treatment industry is in a unique
position to positively impact both water and energy sectors through improved
efficiency and using renewable resources from the process.

IEUA has taken advantage of its position by focusing efforts to reduce energy
consumption and ease demand on the local electric utility. In 2012, IEUA developed
an energy management plan with the goal of going “gridless” by 2020, with the intent
of generating enough electricity on site that Agency facilities would be independent
from the already taxed Southern California power grid system. IEUA has explored
various power generating technologies in pursuit of this goal since its inception.
Although IEUA prioritizes the utilization of renewable digester gas produced on site,
a spectrum of renewable energy systems have been pursued to develop a robust
portfolio across all facilities. While securing renewable technologies along the way,
[EUA has also learned lessons that altered the roadmap to meet the 2012 goal.

In order to achieve grid independence with renewable technologies, IEUA must build
an energy infrastructure that is capable of handling the full demand of each facility at
any given time. Realistically, this would result in the daily export of energy back to
the grid when generation exceeded demand. Furthermore, Southern California
Edison (SCE) policies dictate that renewable installations are subject to standby and/
or departing load charges that rise as the nameplate rating increases, hindering the



cost effectiveness of renewable technologies as the generating capacity grows. Since
one of the pillars of the “Gridless by 2020” initiative was to hedge against market
volatility, IEUA adjusted its focus on achieving relative independence from the grid
during peak periods, when electricity costs are highest. This effort aligns with IEUA’s
Business Goals (included in Appendix A}, adopted by the Board of Directors in 2013
as part of the Agency’s Strategic Plan.

REGIONAL PROGRAMS & FACILITIES OQOVERVIEW

IEUA is a regional wastewater treatment agency and wholesale distributor of
imported water. Today the Agency is responsible for serving approximately 830,000
people: over 242 square miles in western San Bernardino County. The Agency is
focused on providing three key services: (1) treating wastewater, developing
recycled water, local water resources, and conservation programs to reduce the
region’s dependence on imported water supplies and drought-proof the service
area; (2) converting biosolids and waste products inte a high-quality compost made
from recycled materials; and (3) generating electrical energy from renewable
sources,

Industrial and municipal wastewater collections are provided through regional
wastewater interceptors and two non-reclaimable wastewater pipeline systems.
Recycled water is produced at four regional water recycling plants (RWRPs). In
addition, the Agency has three facilities where the biosolids produced at the water
recycling plants are handled: RP-1 Solids Handling Facility, RP-2 Solids Handling
Facility, and the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility. The Agency also has a
solids handling facility at RP-5 which is leased to a private enterprise that intends to
produce biogas and energy from food waste.

Although the Agency is a wholesale water provider, the Agency has very little
infrastructure or assets related to potable water treatment, conveyance, or use.
Water resources-related assets are primarily connected to the recycled water
program. In addition to recycled water and wastewater services, the Agency
operates a network of groundwater recharge facilities in partnership with Chino
Basin Watermaster (CBWM), San Bernardino County Flood Control District
(SBCFCD), Chino Basin Water Conservation District (CBWCD). The Agency also
operates the Chino Desalter [ facility in coordination with the Chino Desalter
Authority. The Agency also manages an extensive regional water use efficiency
program, and collaborates with Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority {SAWPA),
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWD), and the Regional Water

ISource: Californic Department of Finance, April 2013 census projection.

2



Quality Control Board (RWQCB) to develop regional planning documents.

Regional Wastewater Facilities

The Agency has four RWRPs which produce recycled water that meets Title 22
standards for indirect reuse and groundwater recharge. All of the RWRPs have
primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment and recycled water pumping facilities
and are interconnected in a regional network. Agency staff routinely uses the
Agency’s bypass and diversion facilities, such as the San Bernardino Lift Station,
Montclair Diversion Structure, Etiwanda Trunk Line, and Carbon Canyon bypass, to
optimize the Agency’s flows and capacity utilization. In general, flows are routed
between regional plants in order to maximize recycled water deliveries while
minimizing overall pumping and treatment costs. Figure 1 illustrates the service
area boundaries for the Agency’s four RWRPs.

FIGURE 1. REGIONAL PLANT SERVICE AREA BOUNDARIES

i » . npa
F%mm || Cmgrel W1
% Wwﬁi &
- adl Fulure
T o Db o 10 P4 T
s [y =
o 3 _ |
Boushern Monkaiow i RE TR 2 e b
B T T
Shana ta e —
H-ll' 4
s r
@ P B mepaeng
-
i lullﬂ-mw
Tl 1y 12 COAES & E‘m‘". - w
» . Cheno ko RPSS
The . CnmorswoRPS 'QLL.E-'-:' ﬁ;ﬁ” four
.
i B e o P2 ® Regtonal Plants
Pumpad ¢t RP.8 [ LiftSwtion |
= Sewer Pipelines
FARUID FLmpad At of GItne Hé
A
Cacom Snetes Bo¥ Cowe 4 St




Regional facilities are: Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 (RP-1}, Regional Water
Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP-4), Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 5 {RP-5), and
Carbon Canyon Wastewater Recycling Facility (CCWRF). The biosolids produced at
RP-4 and RP-1 are thickened, digested, and dewatered at solids handling facilities
located at RP-1. Similarly, the CCWRF and RP-5 biosolids are treated at Regional
Water Recycling Plant No. 2 (RP-2). The stabilized and dewatered solids are then
transported to the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility (IERCF) for
processing into soil amendment.

The Agency has a network of regional interceptor sewers that can be used to bypass
flow from one water recycling plant to another to balance and optimize the use of
treatment capacity. Currently, the regional interceptors can bypass flow from RP-4
to RP-1 and from CCWRF to RP-5. In addition, primary effluent can be bypassed
from the RP-1 equalization basins to RP-5.

The Agency also has four wastewater lift stations, which are used to shift flows that
would naturally flow from one portion of the service area to a different treatment
plant. The lift stations are instrumental in balancing flows and keeping water in the
northern portion of the service area to maximize potential recycled water use.

Recycled Water Distriution System

The Agency has been serving recycled water to its member agencies since formation
of the Regional Sewerage Service Contract in 1973. Initially, recycled water was
delivered to Whispering Lakes Golf Course and Westwind Park in the city of Ontario,
as well as to Prado Regional Park and El Prado Golf Course in San Bernardino
County. In the early 1990’s, the Agency planned and built the first phase of the
Carbon Canyon Recycled Water Project, which now serves several customers in
Chino and Chino Hills. The connected demand for the recycled water has more than
tripled since FY 2006/07 from 13,000 AFY to over 43,800 AFY. Recycled water and
groundwater recharge sales have nearly tripled as well.

Groundwater Recharge Basins

The Agency, in conjunction with the CBWM is implementing the groundwater
recharge program to increase artificial groundwater recharge within Chino Basin
using storm water, recycled water, and imported water. By enhancing the recharge
capacity in the Chino Basin, greater quantities of high quality water can be captured



and stored during wet years. Subsequently, the stored water can be drawn from the
Basin during droughts and shortages of imported water. Annual recharge varies due
to weather patterns, and the availability of imported water and recycled water
supplies.

Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility

The IERCF, constructed in Rancho Cucamonga in 2007 under a Joint Powers
Authority agreement between the Agency and the CSDLAC, is completely enclosed to
control odors and meet stringent air quality regulations. It is the nation’s largest
indoor biosolids composting facility. The IERCF uses the Aerated Static Pile
composting process to recycle approximately 150,000 wet tons per year of
dewatered and stabilized biosolids from the Agency and CSDLAC’s wastewater
treatment processes, as well as wood waste from local communities. It

The facility is currently operating at its design capacity, receiving nearly 600 tons per
day of combined biosolids and recycled waste amendments and preducing over
230,000 cubic yards of high quality compost each year for local landscaping and
horticultural use. For energy management purposes, RP-4 and IERCF are considered
to be a single entity, as they share the same electrical meter.

WORK COMPLETED SINCE 2008

Renewables

IEUA began the renewable energy procurement process by issuing Requests for
Proposals (RFPs) for solar, wind, fuel cell, and in-conduit hydroelectric projects in
2008. The RFPs offered vendors the ability to propose outright sale of equipment or
Power Purchase Agreements (PPAs) that would eliminate up front capital costs,
aside from labor, for the Agency. Multiple proposals were received for solar, wind,
and fuel cell projects, while no in-conduit hydroelectric proposals were received.
[EUA performed Business Case Evaluations (BCEs) for the proposals received to
determine the most economical projects for each facility. In addition to cost and
operational reliability, site variations such as digester gas production, land use, and
electrical load were important factors in determining the site-specific feasibility of
each project.

The first product of the RFP process was a PPA, signed in June 2008, for 3.5 MW of
solar energy across four Agency facilities. The solar installations were completed in



December of the same year. Through the agreement, IEUA purchases the energy
produced by the solar panels at a competitive rate with fixed escalation over a 20-
year period.

This rate structure, typical for all PPAs that the Agency has since entered into, allows
the Agency to avoid capital outlay while still receiving the benefit of on-site
renewable energy. In each PPA project, the private entity has financed, designed,
constructed, operated, and maintained the generation equipment. In return, the
private entity receives any incentives available through government funding
programs and sells the energy generated to IEUA at a fixed rate.

In March 2010, IEUA entered into a second public-private partnership te install a 1
MW wind turbine at Regional Plant No. 4. The PPA is structured similarly to the solar
agreement, with the Agency purchasing 100 percent of the energy produced by the
equipment at a fixed escalating rate over 20 years, The turbine installation was
completed in December 2011.

In September 2010, IEUA entered into a third public-private partnership with an
environmental engineering consulting firm to develop IEUA’s RP-5 Solids Handling
Facility (RP-5 SHF) as a food waste digestion site. The facility, initially designed as a



manure digestion site, has been diverting food waste regionally since 2012 with the
goal of producing enough digester gas to fuel two 1.5 MW cogeneration engines that
will provide power for the facility. The project is still under development, with
engine commissioning expected in June 2015.

The Agency has historically employed cogeneration engines to combust the digester
gas and produce heat and power to be used on-site. However, the 2008 amendment
to South Coast Air Quality Management District (SCAQMD) Rule 1110.2 required
cogeneration engines to be retrofitted with costly pollution control technologies in
order to achieve stringent emissions limits. The Agency issued another RFP to
evaluate potential alternatives that could utilize the digester gas in a more cost-
effective manner.

In October 2010, IEUA entered into a PPA with a third party te install, maintain, and
operate a 2.8 MW molten carbonate fuel cell operating on digester gas at Regional
Plant No. 1. The fuel cell is also equipped with a 4.1 MMBtu/hr heat recovery unit to
increase overall plant efficiency. As with other PPAs, the Agency agreed to purchase
all renewable electricity generated by the fuel cell at a fixed escalation rate over 20
years. The agreement not only provided the Agency with the ability to procure clean
renewable energy with no capital costs, but it also mitigated risk associated with the
fuel cell technology by combining the digester gas cleaning system and fuel cell
power plant under a single entity. In researching the feasibility of a fuel cell system,
IEUA staff discovered that previous installations suffered from ineffective gas
conditioning that resulted in prolonged shutdowns and reduced equipment
lifecycles. IEUA’s fuel cell agreement is structured to ensure that downtime is
minimized and equipment maintenance is optimized.

Conservation

In addition to the renewable installations, IEUA worked with third parties to
perform energy audits at Agency facilities. Select recommendations from these
audits were implemented to reduce energy consumption. Lighting retrofits and
controls were installed across several facilities, along with variable frequency drives
(VFDs) on many pumps and motors, Damper installation on high volume air blowers
alse resulted in significant electricity savings at the Agency’s composting facility.
Furthermore, a project is currently underway to improve the aeration basin air
handling system at Regional Plant No. 1 to minimize air leaks. This preject is
expected to reduce electricity consumption at the plant by approximately 1,500
MWh annually.



Demand Response

IEUA has also been involved in Demand Response (DR) programs to reduce Agency
costs and to ease pressure on the electrical grid during times of high usage. The
Agency’s first involvement in DR was in a Time-of-Use Base Interruptible Program
(TOU-BIP)} from 2008 to 201.0. However, because of the financial risk associated with
the BIP, the Agency terminated the TOU-BIP contract, and since July 2011, has
participated in a Demand Response (DR) program through EnerNOC (a SCE
authorized third-party DR provider), a private entity providing energy intelligence
software that displays real-time electricity usage. In addition to facilitating DR
events, EnerNOC software is used to track consumption from facility processes over
time.

The Agency has agreed to provide EnerNOC a total cumulative curtailment of 1,230
kW for all facilities enrolled in the program (RP-1, RP-2, RP-4/1ERCF, RP-5 and
CCWREF) at a value of approximately $74,000 per year. Reduced energy import from
the grid during demand response events is primarily achieved by shutting down
some of the recycled water pump stations and through reduced ventilation at the
IERCE. These temporary energy conservation techniques do not have any negative
impact to the recycled water customers (operations staff was able to increase the
reservoir level prior to the event) or to the indoor air quality at IERCF.

Table 1 shows the results of the six DR events that SCE dispatched during FY 13/14.
Each facility enrolled in the DR program has a curtailment target, but the IEUA
combined total of 1,230 kW is used to determine whether the Agency will be
compensated for its performance during each event. IEUA’s DR contract with
EnerNOC contains a provision that requires the delivered load capacity to be at least
75 percent of the target reduction. If the delivered capacity falls below 75 percent,
IEUA does not receive any credit for reducing load during the DR event. However,
IEUA strives to reduce its load to match 100 percent of the target reductions at each
plant during every event. In FY 13/14, IEUA reached its overall reduction goal in
three of the six DR events.

Table 1 shows that IEUA's facilities generally perform better during DR events that
occurred in warm months. The reason for this seasonal difference stems from
reduced recycled water demand during winter months. Because each DR reduction
target is calculated using a baseline averaging energy usage from the previous ten
working days, reducing energy usage from RW pumping is difficult, or even
impossible, during periods in winter months when pumping is limited or stopped
completely due to low demand. The table also shows that RP-1 consistently



TABLE 1. FY 13/14 IEUA DEMAND RESPONSE RESULTS
Percentage of Target Reduction Achieved

EventDate  pp.i RP-2 RP-4/IERCF RP-5  CCWRF  Overall
7/31/2013 | 552 130 81 422 4 96
8/29/2013 = 484 90 95 974 6 125
8/30/2013 = 1,550 120 91 968 .20 160
2/6/2014 666 0 86 -636 68 43
2/6/2014 = 1,608 0 44 108 4 91
5/29/2014 = 786 0 114 428 80 145
Average 941 57 85 341 1 110

performed above expectations, while CCWRF had difficulty meeting its target goal.
The DR capabilities of each facility will be examined in detail later in the EMP.

Monitoring

ENERNOC’s software also allows IEUA to track electricity usage at each facility in real
time. The Agency invested in sub-meters that gauge electricity usage from individual
processes within the treatment facilities. Sub-metering involves the use of digital
meters connected to the SCADA system as a resource to help monitor kW, kWh,
amperes, load factor and other units of energy consumption.

A combination of sub-meters and load profiling data can help staff understand
operating patterns, increase operating efficiency, assist in identifying malfunctioning
equipment and reduce energy demand charges. In addition, this electrenic data can
be brought into the treatment plant control systems, which will enhance operational
control of the facilities, reduce maintenance costs, and preleng equipment operating
life.

As of April 2015, the sub-metering installation was complete, but various pieces of
equipment were undergoing modifications to improve performance and reliability.
Once the modifications are complete, IEUA intends to compare the energy usage of
each process to industry metrics to gauge levels of efficiency. Continuous energy
tracking of treatment processes will also allow Agency staff to measure the
effectiveness of energy projects that are implemented.



SHORT-TERM GOALS

This EMP establishes goals aimed to improve the Agency’s energy management
through various means, including renewable portfolio diversification, increased
monitoring, resource optimization, and strategic procurement. This section focuses
on goals that are to be achieved within the next five years.

Procurement

IEUA’s renewable PPAs benefit IEUA by establishing energy rates for the next 20
years and eliminating uncertainty that comes with purchasing imported electricity.
Nevertheless, [EUA is continuously evaluating the economic landscape of its
renewable resources, and is in the process of evaluating the option of purchasing the
solar installations-that were procured through a PPA in 2008. If the purchase value
is economical, IEUA could benefit over the remaining term of the agreement . As the
owner of the solar arrays, IEUA would assume responsibility for any required
Operations and Maintenance (0&M) expenses, but would also avoid electricity
expenses for the energy generated from the panels moving forward.

In addition to renewable installations, [EUA is consistently evaluating procurement
options for imported purchases. IEUA purchases both electricity and natural gas
from an Energy Service Provider (ESP) through the Direct Access (DA) program.
These services are procured via an agreement that has a one-year term. The term
length is designed to allow the Agency flexibility to adapt to market changes. IEUA
will continue te evaluate its procurement options on an annual basis and extend the
DA agreement in one-year increments, as necessary.

Integrated Demand Side Management

The California Public Utilities Commission {CPUC) has funded programs designed to
help Investor-Owned Utilities (I0Us) develop Integrated Demand Side Management
(IDSM) programs that focus on energy efficiency, conservation, demand response,
and distributed generation (DG). With an array of renewable resources at its
disposal, IEUA has plenty of opportunity to assist the IQUs by improving demand
side management at all of its facilities.

IEUA's solar, wind, and fuel cell installations provide a DG portfolio with a total
nameplate capacity of 7.3 MW, IEUA will track the generation profiles of these
resources to optimize their integration into the grid. Further expansion of the

10



Agency’s renewable portfolio will consider current and future load demands to
determine the impact on imported needs and potential for export. IEUA is also
pursuing energy storage technology, which would add significant flexibility to the
Agency’s energy usage profile. By integrating energy storage into its renewable
installations, IEUA could temporally manage its load on the grid at each facility.
Storage would also impact procurement, as IEUA could take advantage of TOU rates
by purchasing and storing electricity when grid demand and tariffs are lowest.

Integrating energy storage into IEUA’s energy infrastructure would also benefit the
DR capabilities of each facility. During DR events, facilities with energy storage
maximize electricity consumption from batteries in order to offset grid demand.
Unlike typical DR load reduction techniques, which require turning off equipment
otherwise used for normal operations, integrating energy storage into IEUA’s DR
program would reduce imported electricity levels without interrupting operations.
Combining both techniques could result in significantly more load reduction capacity
to offer SCE during DR events.

Increasing energy efficiency at IEUA facilities is another component of improving
IDSM. IEUA has partnered with The Energy Network, which is part of the Energy
Coalition and funded by the California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC), to
conduct comprehensive energy audits of IEUA’s treatment plants and identify
efficiency measures that can reduce energy consumption. Results from these audits
will provide direction on the potential reductions that can be achieved at each site.

-gi__ : .. L _
= ]
U Sl et ae

‘l-. =

11



Each of these IDSM concepts will require collaboration with SCE. New distributed
generation projects will require interconnection agreements with SCE, as will
incorporating battery storage into IEUA’s energy infrastructure. Efficiency projects
may also be eligible for SCE’s incentive programs, so IEUA will coordinate with The
Energy Network and SCE to ensure that all available funding resources are properly
utilized.

Resource Management

RP-1 and RP-2 generate renewable digester gas. Gas produced at RP-1 is either
consumed by a fuel cell, boilers, or an emergency flare. Gas produced at RP-2 is
either consumed by an internal combustion engine (ICE), boilers, or an emergency
flare. Both sites utilize anaerobic digestion processes to generate the gas. The first
phase of this process produces a low quality acid phase gas that has a heat content
between 200 and 300 Btu/scf. Due to its reduced quality, this acid phase gas cannot
be directly consumed by the boilers, ICE, or fuel cell. At RP-1, this acid phase gas is
constantly flared. At RP-2, the acid phase gas is injected in the digester gas mixing
system, blended with the high BTU gas, and beneficially used.

IEUA will conduct an evaluation to determine the most effective method of utilizing
the acid phase gas at RP-1. Even with a low heat content, continuous flaring of this
gas amounts to wasted energy that could otherwise be beneficially used. IEUA
Engineering, Technical Services, and Operations staff will collaborate to identify
projects that can utilize the acid phase gas through mixing, conditioning, or storage.

In addition, this EMP establishes a goal of reducing the total digester gas consumed
by the flares at RP-1 and RP-2 by 50 percent within the next five years. Integrating
acid phase gas into the gas loop will significantly reduce the amount of gas flared at
RP-1, but [EUA will also pursue projects that optimize gas usage.

LONG-TERM GOALS

Long-term goals, discussed in the following section, are expected to be completed
within the next 20 years. These goals typically require significant modifications to
the Agency’s infrastructure and coordination with multiple utilities, which requires
considerable planning and engineering efforts.

12



Peak Independence

IEUA’s Business Goals state that peak power independence will be achieved by 2020.
This EMP details the Agency’s current sustainable capacity during peak periods.
Achieving peak power independence will require further distributed generation
projects and improved energy management capabilities. New projects that can take
advantage of IEUA’s renewable resources will be evaluated to determine the most
cost effective and prudent path to accomplishing this goal.

Carbon Neutrality

In FY 13/14, approximately 36 percent of the electricity consumed at IEUA facilities
was generated by carbon neutral sources. This includes IEUA’s solar, wind, fuel cell,
and biogas ICE installations, as well as a portion of imported electricity that was
procured from Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) certified sources. By continuing
to improve the Agency’s renewable portfolio, optimizing digester gas utilization,
increasing energy efficiency, and procuring greater amounts of RPS-certified
electricity as needed, IEUA intends to procure 100 percent of its electricity needs
from carbon neutral sources by the year 2030.

Table 2 summarizes the short and long-term goals established in this EMP. Each goal
is evaluated in greater detail in following sections of the EMP.

13



L1/91
Ad Jo 1900end) puZ

L1/91
X JO 1900eN0) puZ

91/ST Ad Jo pug

91/ST AdJ0 pug

91/ST Ad Jo pug

Jajyeata) Ajjenuue

90uo pue 9T/51
Ad JO 19)0eND) puZ

uonajduio]
pajeumIsy

‘padmbau S| suoteqeIsul Jejos a3 Jo

Jaumo pue Japraoxd ydd oy Jo uoneradoos ydnoye ‘Lousdy
a1 Jyauaq p[nod sucnejEsul a3 jo aseyoand JySLano ue

e[} 21LIPUI S21WoU029 A30[0Uya] IE[OS 'Vdd B YEncaip sAeLIe

IE[0S JO M §°€ wioy) £)DoLnoaje saanoold £pualing ynd]

*A1[roey Lously yoea 1oj uopdwnsuod ur suonanpal
1981e) pue sfeod LousdId YSIGEISI [[M Y(F] ‘Souljaseq adesn
Ad13ua Bunsixa pue sjpne AZIaua ayj Jo S)NSal 3} UC paseyq

'sajpualdye [euoneiado 1oySiy ur ynsal

ued ey} suonedyipows ssazoad os[e Inq ‘sygenal yuauwrdmba
wo.y sguraes [enualod ajeneaa ATuo Jou 181} SHpne ASI9Ud JAIS
-uatfasduwod 1onpuod ued saruedwod 331a1as A3xsua Laed paryl,
'siseq Je[ndal

B U0 e1ep S JOI[UOW pue prodal o} wesdold e do[aasp 03 paau
M ¥NA[ $221n059.1 3531 Jo adejueApe ayE) 0] J3PJO U "YU
-odeuew ap[s puewap s L)1ioe] Yoes Joj JuLidan|q e apaoad
puejuawsactduul Jo seate [enuajod AJnuapi 0 pasn aq Ued
JBY) UONEULIOJUI S[EN]EA SUIBIUO0D elep SULIalawW-qns S,y NH]
'ssan01d uonIa[as pue maraal

ay} U1 payapisuod aq [[m [esodoad yoea jJo swedur A815ua

oy} ‘s1ouniaifliny ‘uondwnsuod A81aus saonpaa jeyy juswdmba
£uspyye-ysry axmbaa [m yF] 49 pansst sd4y ‘9T/ST Ad

ur Sujuurdag “paimbal yuswrdmba pue y1om Jo adods iy [TeIAp
1e1) SAY Sanss] YN[ ‘poibdIjos ale spafoxd mau dsasuaym
"AAIASUOD

01 sAem Mot JopIsuod 0} saakordwa 1omodwra osfe Ing ‘@8esn
pue spuewap A819us s Aouady a1 Jo SSaUaIBME aseaoul AJuo
10U [[IM SWES] SdUBUSIUIR puE suoneladQ s,ynd[ Suneonpy

uondrsag

STVOD LNAWHIVNVIN ADUINT VNEI "2 3T1dV.L

suone[eIsu]
Ie[os Bunsy
JO aseIng s1enjeAy

s198.1e ] uononpay
Auapig ysnqeIsy

sppny
AZ13ug LHoey

weldosd Sunpel],
13pw-qng
dopaasqq

uonEeIos
Paloig
03U] SIANSEI
Aousionyyg £A819uy
aelaodioouy

Jjels o3 Bujurex],
Juswadeuep
A31auq apiaoad

[eo7)

Juowadeuepy
Ad1aug

Loustowid
[euconeladg

Auaroyyg

[euoneradp

Juswadeuep
AS1oug

Juawageuep
Ad1aug

JuRwadeuey
A8ioug

ads]

14



1€/0¢
Ad 10 1531En) pu?

12/02Z
Ad Jo Ja11End) pu?

61/81 Ad jo pug

81/LT Ad Jo pug

L1/91 Ad jo pug

L1/97 Ad Jo pug

uoRayduiesy
pajewinsy

‘0802

£q fyennau ueqred Jussd g1 Surasmyoe jo [eod ap Yamm syoafoad
ansind 0} 2AL1S [[IM Y] PUE ‘SnUpue) [[im Suntodal suolssius
[enuuy "AnsiSay sjew) a3 03 suolsstws DY Junlodal £q juridiooy
uoqIes B paysiqelsa Y[ ‘€102 Ul ‘ANrennau uoqJeds Jof yuudaniq

e ap1aoad sed 1935381p Jo uononpoad pue o1jojirod sfqemaual s,yNHl

*spoLiad
yead uranp asuapuadspur pLid aInsua [[Im JeY) AI[IGEUTEISnS JO [3A3]
B 9A3I1DE 0} SWiTe £>u2dy ai ‘s[eor) ssaulsng 5, yA] Im Surudiy

'61/81 Ad Jo pua a3 Aq yuadasad gg Aq syuepd Jusunean; ssay)y
e SuLie sonpad 03 suIre yq] "A[[e1jauaq pasn sSIMISYI0 3 JOUUED
yey) sed 1935a81p Jsnquod 03 sareyy Aruadiaws sjesado Z-4f pue T-4y

"SanITIoe] YAl 1B
ade1o3s A81aua [[e1SUI A[9A1I3]3 1500 0] SJudUIsaldy adelc]s A3 ouy

asuodssy puewa( pue ‘UoneZIpIsqns Jueas 'sydd suipnpul ‘satganens

Juawaandeld asneualje ansind [ yd] INg ‘aaniqryold 1800 aq
03 £80[oupa3 JUALIND UMOYS 3AeY saldejen)s Juswaandold [euonipedy,
sanipiqedes WSl S,.VNd] saoaduy Apuesyudis pynom aferols A31aug

a8e103s8

pue Suxnu ‘Surienipuod sed ‘03 psjiui| #q 10U 14 ‘Bpnjoul [im
suondg ‘A[[erysuaq pasn aq ues sed aseyd poe s[qemousal a3 Je}
os dooj se8 s f1jivey ogwr sed aseyd poe sy Sunerodioour loy suondo
FESNSIAUL [[m Y] FUIU0D )14 puE A)fenb mo] s31 01 anp axejj 3y}
03 A3oaa1p 1uas LpuUaLInD sI T-Jy 18 peonpoad sed 131sa81p aseyd poy

"9A11D3]J3 1502 3q 0] pawaap s1aload Juswarduur
pue sypne £319u9 31} WO SUCOBPUIWUI0ID Y]} JIPISU0D [[Im YN HI]

nopdrnsag

0£0Z 4q
LAiennay uogien
LERREL N T

HAVA
Aq aouspuadapu]
Jamod yead

U334 05
Aq 3uvre] sonpay

sanIfIoed

vNg] 1e a8e103S
AS19U7 [[E3su|

uonezundg
ser Jasasi

s109{o1d Ausdylg
yrawa[dum]

jvod

$92IN089Y
a|qemauay

Jawafeuep
Ad1sug

$90IN0saY
3|qemauay

Juowafeuey
Adsaug

$92In0S9Yy
a[qemauay

Louaiyg
[euoneladp

ad4),

15



POLICY RECOMMENDATIONS

Infand Empire Utiiities Agency

Improving energy management requires effort in many facets of an organization. In
addition to monitoring and analyzing energy data, IEUA staff must raise awareness
within the Agency of energy conservation opportunities. Training will be given to
IEUA employees to bring attention te current consumption trends and highlight
areas or strategies that can improve efficiency. This training will be conducted
annually to foster and maintain continued awareness.

Additionally, IEUA’s procurement strategy will be revised to include standard
language requiring high-efficiency equipment whenever possible. Proposals
received are typically weighed by selection criteria such as cost, experience, and
operational impact. IEUA will add another criterion that evaluates the impact on
energy consumption. Proposals that reduce energy consumption will be judged
more favorably than those with negligible or adverse impacts.

Southern California Edison

Any substantial energy improvements at IEUA will rely on coordination with SCE.
Each project is subject to the CPUC’s policies, and interconnection of new projects
‘requires significant effort from both SCE and IEUA staff. IEUA has secured
interconnection agreements for all of the renewables at Agency facilities. Overall,
IEUA has generally experienced difficulties during the interconnection process.
Significant staff time and costs have been devoted to completing the agreements.

IEUA concedes that interconnecting large DG projects with the capacity for
intermittent export presents complexities that must be addressed to ensure
uninterrupted grid service. Interconnection agreements at RP-5 SHF and RP-1 saw
marked progress improvement when twice-weekly conference calls were held with
SCE staff, though SCE is assuredly not capable of offering this level of service for
every interconnection agreement. IEUA believes that improving communication and
policy understanding can streamline the interconnection process, and IEUA is
committed to maintaining a dialogue with SCE and assist as needed.

IEUA’s IDSM improvements rely on participation in SCE's DR program. IEUA is
enrolled in SCE's Aggregator-Managed Portfolio DR program through EnerNOC.
Increasing the Agency’s load reduction capacity will benefit SCE during periods of

16



high grid demand. IEUA’s contract with EnerNOC contains a provision that requires
the delivered load capacity to be at least 75 percent of the target reduction. If the
delivered capacity falls below 75 percent, IEUA does not receive any credit for
reducing load during the DR event. As a resuit, IEUA is hesitant to increase the
curtailment target until reliable load reduction measures can be identified.

Furthermore, the current DR program does not provide any incentive for additional
power that is exported to the grid during DR events. Adding energy storage could
further increase reduction capacities, but current DR program language is unclear
regarding integration of energy storage. Modifying the DR program to include
incentives for exported power above a baseline export level could result in higher DR
commitments.

California Public Utilities Commission

IEUA has relied on PPAs to install renewable technologies, each of which has a
purchase rates between $0.08 and $0.13 per kWh. Since exported is compensated at
a rate between $0.04 and $0.06 per kWh, IEUA’s DG projects are typically sized to
maximize on-site use of the electricity generated and avoid export. Increasing export
rates would benefit IEUA, but are unlikely to occur.

An alternative solution to improving renewable economics would rely on
modifications to the RPS, which mandates that all electric service suppliers provide
at least 33 percent of their energy from renewable sources by 2020. These suppliers
can achieve the mandated limits by purchasing Renewable Energy Certificates
(RECs) that satisfy one of three content categories, often referred to as buckets:

¢ Bucket 1: Energy and RECs (bundled) from an RPS-eligible facility that is
directly connected to the transmission grid

¢ Bucket 2: RECs are purchased and renewable energy is firmed and shaped
with substitute electricity that is scheduled into a California Balancing
Authority within the same calendar year as the RPS generation

0 Bucket 3: Unbundled RECs from RPS-eligibly facility

Because IEUA uses the renewable energy it generates on site, any RECs generated fall
into Bucket 3, which carries the lowest value on the trading market. IEUA’s
experience in pursuing RECs for its renewable installations found that the cost of
obtaining the certificates often negated the potential profits of any sale. However, the
California assembly, with assistance from the California Association of Sanitation
Agencies (CASA) and the Bioenergy Association of California (BAC), is pursuing

17



legislation that would allow for renewable installations at wastewater facilities to be
eligible for Bucket 1 status as part of Assembly Bill 1144. This designation could
drastically improve renewable project economics. IEUA is in support of AB 1144 and
will track its progress closely.

18



Energy Data

NATURAL GAS

Figure 2 shows the Agency’s wide fluctuation in natural gas usage in recent years.
The changes are mainly due to the renewable self-generation technologies employed
at the biosolids handling facilities. Beginning in 2001, IEUA operated natural-gas
fired engines which generated electricity during peak periods to assist the SCE grid.
A blend of natural gas and digester gas was also used in the cogeneration engines at
RP-1. However, the peaking engines were removed from service in 2008, and
SCAQMD Rule 1110.2 curbed natural gas usage in digester gas-fueled cogeneration
engines in the same year, resulting in a dramatic reduction in natural gas
consumption.

FIGURE 2. AGENCY-WIDE NATURAL GAS USAGE FROM FY 07/08 TO 13/14

1,400,000
1,200,000
1,000,000
g
= 800,000
£
W 600,000
0 (4
&
=
9 400,000 -
L]
2 200,000
: I N
<
: e
0 : :
07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14
FISCALYEAR

EIEUA Usage .iFuel Cell Credit

19



Between FY 09/10 and FY 11/12,
the natural gas usage at the Agency
was limited to hot water boilers used
to meet the anaerobic digestion
thermal demand and a minimal
amount needed to maintain
temperature in the digester gas-
fueled cogeneration engines. The

usage increase since FY 12/13 is due

to the fuel cell installation, which is

operated on a blend of digester gas

and natural gas. Since the fuel cell :
catalyst is highly sensitive to air drmma‘ﬁmm Rﬂ*ﬁb"“m
contaminants, the blend may vary

depending on the status of the gas F F F

conditioning system. As such,

natural gas can account for anywhere from 25 to 100 percent of the total fuel cell gas
blend.

The fuel cell agreement structure contains provisions that outline IEUA's natural gas
responsibility depending on the operating condition of the power plant. Under
normal conditions, the fuel cell is expected to operate on a blend of approximately
75 percent digester gas and 25 percent natural gas by flow. As such, IEUA is
responsible for the procurement of 25 percent of the natural gas utilized by the fuel
cell. Natural gas usage on site is heavily dependent on the operational status of the
fuel cell and digester gas conditioning systems. The figures included in this plan
distinguish the natural gas used at [EUA’s discretion and any supplemental natural
gas required by the PPA provider to maintain operation of the fuel cell while the gas
conditioning system is down (“Fuel Cell Credit”).

A breakdown of natural gas usage by facility is shown on Figure 3. This data further
elucidates the point that natural gas usage at the Agency is driven by the
requirements of the technologies installed. Natural gas usage was effectively
terminated at RP-4 and CCWRF when the natural gas peaking engines were removed
from service in 2008. Since the fuel cell was installed at RP-1 in 2012, the facility has

accounted for approximately 87 percent of the Agency’s total natural gas
consumption.

20



FIGURE 3. NATURAL GAS USAGE FROM FY 07/08 TO 13/14 BY FACILITY

800,000

700,000 :
= 600,000 :
= 1
E 500,000 - %1

400,000 - s
g
¥ 200,000
é 200,000 -
e |
"a‘ 100,000 3 v :

. | i ) I"E
2 0 | u_lﬂ - B .8 B
07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12

®RP-1 509,800 54,200 17,500 25,000 36,400 398,181
t1Fuel Cell Credit 0 1] 0 0 337,819
 RP-A/IERCF 37,800 28,000 0 0 0 0 0
& CCWRF 74,700 8,200 0 0 0 0 0
BRP-2 190,100 95,100 74,900 59,100 67,800 63,500 71,200
& RP-5/HQ 93,900 184,600 76,100 69,500 75,200 75,300 52,500

As aforementioned, one of the core goals of the Energy Management Plan is to reduce
energy costs as well as usage. Figure 4 shows the Agency’s overall costs for natural
gas consumption from FY 07/08 to FY 13/14 with the average rate,ona  $/therm
basis, tracked alongside. The recent decline in natural gas pricing resulted in lower
natural gas costs for FY 13/14 when compared to FY 07/08, despite the fact that gas
usage was approximately 31 percent higher in FY 13/14. Consequently, IEUA
routinely analyzes energy rate trends in addition te overall cost.

21



FIGURE 4, AGENCY-WIDE NATURAL GAS COSTS FROM FY 97/08 TO 13/14
$1,000,000 $1.00
$900,000 - $0.90
$800,000 $0.80

$700,000 $0.70

$600,000 $0.60

$500,000 $0.50

$400,000 50.40

W
$300,000 il $0.30
$200,000 $0.20
$100,000 . i $0.10
: I ;

07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14
FISCALYEAR

IEWAgency-Wide Natural Gas Costs . _iFuel Cell Credit  swpmAverage Natural Gas Rate

NATURAL GAS COSTS

NATURAL GAS RATE ($/THERM)

While the decreased price of natural gas has contributed to lower rates in recent
years, IEUA has also reduced costs by procuring natural gas through an Energy
Service Provider, rather than SCGC. The ESP offers both fixed and variable rates for
natural gas that are based on market trends. By utilizing these variable rate
structures through an ESP, IEUA has seen consistent cost savings when compared to
SCGC rates.

ELECTRICITY

The Agency’s efforts to optimize electricity consumption by increasing energy
efficiency and expanding its renewable portfolio are evident on Figure 5. The figure
shows the total electricity usage for the regional wastewater facilities, composting
facility, recycled water pumping stations, and groundwater recharge basins between
FY 07/08 and FY 13/14, as well as the energy efficiency projects certified by SCE
over the same time period. Efficiency projects included damper installations at the
IERCF and VFD installations and chiller replacement at RP-1.

22



FIGURE 5. AGENCY-WIDE ELECTRICITY USAGE FROM FY 07/08 TO 13/14

100,000
00,000 ;
80,000 ‘ !
70,000 - | -
5 60,000 |l
£ b
5 50000
g
40,000 - -
e
g
E 30,000
|
o 20000 |
10,000 |
g +— . .
07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14
FISCALYEAR

@Imported Electricity mCogeneration  :15olar  4Wind & Fuel Cell  ssEnergy Efficiency

In FY 08/09, IEUA installed its solar generation systems and began implementing
energy efficiency projects, resulting in lower electricity usage when compared to FY
07/08. Electricity usage has climbed incrementally since FY 09/10. This can be
attributed to expansions of the Agency’s Recycled Water and Groundwater Recharge
programs, which require significant pumping demand to move water regionally.
Despite the increase in energy demand to the Agency, these practices play a vital role
in sustainable water management in the region and significantly reduce the global
energy consumed in importing water from the State Water Project (SWP). In FY
13/14 alone, the electricity used by IEUA to distribute 38,252 acre-feet (AF) of
recycled water to end users and groundwater recharge basins resulted in the
conservation of approximately 91,0600 MWh that would have been required to pump
the equivalent amount of water from the SWP.2

The amount of renewable energy utilized by the Agency has fluctuated annually, with
electricity produced by cogeneration engines decreasing and low-emitting
renewables (solar, wind, and fuel cells) steadily increasing each year. Due to
increasingly stringent air quality regulations, the Agency has decreased reliance on
the cogeneration engines in favor of technologies with lower emissions. The fuel cell
installation at RP-1 resulted in a reduction of the facility’s criteria pollutant

source: California’s Water-Energy Relationship, Final Staff Report. California Energy Commission, 2005.
23



emissions by approximately 90 percent while matching the nameplate generation

capacity, maintaining the ability to utilize digester gas, and recovering waste heat for
the anaerobic digestion process.

Figure 6 shows the annual electricity usage at each facility, including lift stations,
recycled water pumping stations, and groundwater recharge facilities. In 2011, IEUA
began to separately track electricity consumed by the recycled water pumps at each
RWRP. Prior to 2011, the lack of data availability prevented IEUA staff from
separating electricity usages from treatment and RW processes, so the RW pumping
power consumption is embedded in the totals for each plant. RP-1, RP-4, RP-5, and
CCWREF all employ RW pumping stations on site. For the purposes of this Energy
Management Plan, energy consumption in Fiscal Year 13/14 will be considered the
baseline value when calculating potential future energy savings.

FIGURE 6. ELECTRICITY USAGE FROM FY 07/08 TO 13/14 BY FACILITY

35‘0m "};_._...._ S = oS _See——
30,000 -
£
H 25,000 -
o]
20,000 -
&
=
E 15000 -
o
E 10,000 -
[™]
]
5,000 -
0 - . - :
07/08 08/09 09/10 | 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14
BRP-1 30,990 26,392 27372 | 26702 22,811 25,333 24,337
@RP-4/IERCF| 22,666 20,795 23515 | 21,569 19,423 18,760 18,589
& CCWRF 7,782 8,046 7314 | 6,789 6,340 5,738 6,415
MRP-2 2,198 1,924 1,950 | 2,019 2,035 1,635 1,541 |
®RP-5/HQ 16,081 13,134 9129 | 10131 9,016 9,440 9,746
PS 1616 748 1483 | 1,438 1,445 1,496 | 1,343
MRW 0 0 0 ' 5044 13,731 16,840 | 19,517
14GWR 63 119 393 ;549 743 463 | 436

24



This figure illustrates the high energy intensity of RP-1 and RP-4/IERCF. In FY
2013/2014, these two sites combine to account for approximately 53 percent of the
total Agency energy demand. As such, IEUA’s Energy Management Plan has
particularly focused on these facilities when exploring potential efficiency projects.

Recycled water pumping also contributes significantly to the Agency’s electrical
demand. RW usage in the region has grown steadily in recent years, and is expected
to continue increasing moving forward, Due to the region’s reliance on the Agency'’s
RW distribution system, IEUA has begun to investigate projects that can optimize
electrical consumption in the energy intensive process.

In addition to total electricity usage, the Agency monitors the electrical demand of
each facility on an hourly basis. This information is required to assess the level of self
-generation needed to pursue grid independence during peak periods. The electrical
demand at IEUA’s facilities fluctuates throughout the day and also varies by plant. As
shown on Figure 7, the average hourly electrical demand across all IEUA facilities
varies seasonally as well.

FIGURE 7. FY 13/14 AVERAGE PEAK FACILITY ELECTRICAL LOAD

11,000

10,000 -+

9,000 -+ ==

8,000
é‘ 7,000 —
"g 6,000 - :
g 5,000 — : i -
a 4,000 +—

3,000 +—

[
2,000 +— =
1,000 + - u 1 1
0 +— 2 e
Jul | Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | lan May | Jun

WRP-1 2,954 (2,949 | 3,007 | 2,646 | 2,651 | 2,851 | 2,638 2,509 2,634 2,698
wl RP-2 173 [ 153 | 153 | 161 | 146 | 155 | 152 149 | 186 | 158
& RP-4/\ERCF | 2,364 | 2,235 (2,307 | 2,061 | 2,148 | 2,163 | 2,320 1,911]1,962 {2,121
WmRP-5 1,0501,127|1,115{1,155|1,211 | 1,426 | 1,116 1_.,000 979 [1,101
W CCWRF 681 | 438 | 501 | 559 | 664 | 663 | 588 765 | 721 | 632
= PS 213 | 213 | 222 | 212 | 202 | 201 | 207 | 216 | 217 | 192 | 165 | 166 | 202
o RW 2,548 2,63312,959|2,5551,873(1,999|2,015| 1,723 1,513 | 2,177 | 2,611 | 2,774 | 2,282

25



For reasons explained in the following section, the Agency does not intend to install
encugh renewable energy technology to export electricity back to the grid. Instead,
the goal of IEUA’s Energy Management Plan is to procure sufficient renewable
technology to meet the average load identified through historical and projected
demand. Figure 8 compares the maximum hourly electrical generation by renewable
sources during each month of FY 2013/2014 to the average peak load for all Agency
facilities.

FIGURE 8. FY 13/14 MAXIMUM PEAK RENEWABLE GENERATION

11,000

10,000

9,000

8,000

o4 H H H H BH H H H H H OH

6,000—§~ T ). _,I—_‘ I— - . - — A
| n _] i -
LI

) W| _n
=

| u
| | !

Oct  Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar  Apr  May lun

=

ELECTRICITY DEMAND (KWH)

4,000 “‘

) e

2,000 |

1,000 H |
!

0_;_I—I'I .I-.‘:I:

ul Aug

DlAverage Agency Peak Demand ®ICE ctiSolar HWind  w Fuel Cell

In FY 2013/2014, the Agency’s renewable portfolio was capable of providing
approximately 59 percent of the peak electrical demand for all facilities during
summer months, and approximately 62 percent over the course of the entire year.
Future energy efficiency projects and new technologies will be needed to grow the
renewable portfolio and progress toward sustainability.

Unlike natural gas procurement, IEUA’s electricity purchases are procured through a
mixture of Direct Access and bundled service through SCE. The advantages of

26



bundled service (paying the local utility for both transmission and generation
charges) threugh the 10U or DA (paying the local utility for transmission charges
and a competing ESP for generation charges) vary greatly depending on many
facility-specific factors.

Typically, ESPs offer cost savings opportunities with simplified rates that vary with
market trends and do not include expensive demand charges. SCE’s electricity
rates, although fixed, vary with time of use, and can include standby and departing
load charges that vary by facility and inflate (or in some cases, decrease) costs.
Due to the temporal and site-specific variability in energy rates, the Agency closely
evaluates the procurement options at each facility regularly. Figure 9 displays cost
data beginning in FY 07/08, including the overall average electricity rate, on a $/
kWh basis, that the Agency paid. This rate is inclusive of all renewable, 10U, and
ESP costs. Since there is no significant change over the years, the rate and usage
data track each other fairly closely.

FIGURE 9. AGENCY-WIDE ELECTRICITY COSTS FROM FY 07/08 TO 13/14

$14,000,000 . 5014
$12,000,000 — — , L $0.12

$10,000,000

$8,000,000 B - . 50,08
$6,000,000 ‘ | %0.06
$4,000,000 | . _ 3;,_04
$2,000,000 | - — . $0.02
s_ gt . I ! $

07/08 08/09 09/10 10/11 11/12 12/13 13/14
Fiscal Year

i $0.10

ELECTRICITY COSTS
ELECTRICITY RATE ($/KWH)

o Agency-Wide Electricity Costs === Average Electricity Rate

27



Figures 10 and 11 outline IEUA’s overall energy costs for FY 07/08 and FY 13/14
respectively. In both bases, electricity costs account for over 90 percent of the total
energy costs. Furthermore, current natural gas usage is almost exclusively tied to
fuel cell consumption, which is highly sensitive to operational adjustments.
Electricity usage, on the other hand, is widespread across all facilities and offers
more opportunities for optimization and efficiency increases. Therefore, much of
the focus of this Energy Management Plan and projects discussed herein will be on
reducing electricity consumption or increasing on-site electricity generation
through various means.

FIGURE 10. FY 07/08 AGENCY-WIDE ENERGY COSTS

TOTAL ENERGY COSTS = 510,248,000

28



FIGURE 11. AGENCY-WIDE ENERGY COSTS FORFY 13/14

{CE ELECTRICITY
{O&M)
1.7%

WIND

FUEL CELL = ELECTRICITY (PPA)
NATURAL GAS _——— 0.4%
JEUA NATURAL
GAS

2.4% TOTAL ENERGY COSTS = $11,067,000

The financial impact of renewable installations is apparent when comparing the
two fiscal years. In FY 13/14, approximately 30 percent of all energy procurement
came from PPA sources (including natural gas paid for by PPA provider). Imported
electricity costs were reduced by approximately 10 percent, though the percentage
of bundled electricity purchased increased. The changes seen since FY 07/08 are
the result of several factors, including energy tariffs and procurement options. To
better understand the variance with each facility, the following section includes
details on each site.

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

Greenhouse Gases (GHGs) emitted in the state are regulated by the California Air
Resources Board (CARB). CARB has also developed the Climate Change Scoping
plan, most recently updated in March 2014, which targets industries and large
facilities with high global warming potential and mandates reduction measures to
in an effort to steadily decrease GHG emission levels. Wastewater treatment plants
and composting facilities are not subject to the reduction measures addressed in
the Scoping Plan. Furthermore, no 1EUA facility emits GHGs at a level high enough
to reach the regulated threshold for GHG reporting.

29



Despite the lack of any GHG reporting requirements, in February 2014, IEUA
became a member of The Climate Registry (TCR), a nonprofit organization that
develops standards and protoccls for GHG calculations and reporting. Membership
in TCR is voluntarily, and is a result of the Agency’s aim to practice environmental
stewardship as a regional leader. As a member of TCR, IEUA has committed to
publicly report annual GHG emissions. The first Agency-wide reported inventory,
spanning the 2013 calendar year, is shown in Table 3.

TABLE 3. 2012 GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS BY SOURCE

Source GHG Emissions Percentage
{(Metric Tons COze) of Total
Heavy Duty vehicles 10 0.0
Fleet vehicles 297 0.9
Biosolids Hauling 124 04
Emergency Generators 99 0.3
LPG Combustion | 33 01
Digester Gas Combustion 9,341 279
Natural Gas Combustion 6,735 20.1
Purchased Electricity 16,868 503
Total 33,506 100.0

The reported emissions use TCR protocols to calculate the metric tons of carbon
dioxide equivalents {CO-ze, a combination of COz, CH4., and N20) emitted by IEUA
processes. Both direct (i.e, stack emissions) and indirect {i.e., emissions associated
with services procured by [EUA, such as purchased electricity) emissions were
included in the calculations. 2013 GHG emissions were reported through TCR but
not verified. IEUA has committed to pursuing verification for 2014 emissions.

In addition to annual reporting, IEUA aims to reduce these annual emissions
moving forward in order to align with state and federal GHG reduction goals. An
analysis of the reported data shows that an overwhelming majority of the Agency’s
GHG emissions came from electricity purchases and stationary combustion.
[dentifying the largest contributor to GHG emissions will also assist IEUA in
determining where reductions can be most effectively achieved. Figures 12 and 13
compare the percentage of GHG emissions and electricity usage, respectively, for
each facility.

30



FIGURE 12. 2013 GHG EMISSIONS BY FACILITY

BRP-1 & RP-4/IERCF MRP-2 MRP-5/HQ MCCWRF © LS »RW ..GWR

FIGURE 13. 2013 ELECTRICITY USAGE BY FACILITY

MRP-1 #RP-4/IERCF #RP-2 WRP-5/HQ BMCCWRF LS « RW = GWR

31



The contribution of gas combustion to GHG emissions is apparent when comparing
the figures above. Three IEUA facilities (RP-1, RP-2, and RP-5) consume digester
gas produced on-site. These facilities combine to account for approximately 66
percent of the Agency-wide GHG emissions. However, the same facilities accounted
for only 46 percent of the electricity usage during the same time period.

RP-4/IERCF and the RW program, on the other hand, used a combined 46 percent
of the Agency’s electricity consumption in 2013, but only produced 29 percent of
the GHG emissions. These data indicate that digester gas consumption is the major
contributing factor to IEUA’s carbon footprint.

The renewable installations and efficiency projects have had a significant impact
on IEUA’s GHG emissions profile. Although the Agency only began reporting GHG
emissions in 2013, historical fuel usage and electricity purchase data can be used
to determine emissions in previous years under the same standards. Due to the
increase in on-site renewable generation and reduced cogeneration engine
operation, IEUA has reduced GHG emissions by approximately 36 percent since
2008. Neither the 2008 or 2013 emissions have been verified by a certified third

party.

TABLE 4. GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS COMPARISON

2008 GHG Emissions 2013 GHG_Emissions Percent
{Metric Tons COze) (Metric Tons COze) Reduction
52,400 33,506 36.1

It should be noted that these emissions totals also include biogenic emissions, or
GHGs that were recently contained in living organisms and are therefore
considered carbon neutral. The Climate Registry requires these emissions to be
reported, though they are distinguished from anthropogenic source emissions. Of
the reported 2013 GHG emissions, approximately 28 percent are from biogenic
sources.

Overall, approximately 36 percent of the electricity consumed at IEUA facilities
during FY 2013/2014 was generated by carbon neutral sources (Figure 14). This
value only considers the digester gas usage in the RP-1 fuel cell. Natural gas
consumption in the equipment, though nearly devoid of criteria pollutant
emissions, does result in anthropogenic GHG emissions. The carbon neutrality
figure also accounts for the proportion of imported electricity that is obtained from
renewable or hydroelectric sources, which were obtained from the I0U or DA

32



provider directly. As previously stated in the Introduction, [EUA strives to increase
the carbon neutrality of electricity procurement to 100 percent by 2030. The long
term is needed to account for the significant planning and engineering efforts
involved in changing [EUA’s generation and procurement strategies to permit 100
percent neutrality.

[EUA has developed a preliminary Carbon Management Plan, included in Appendix
B, that identifies a proposed path to achieve 100 percent carbon neutrality. IEUA
will work with third party consultants to further develop the Carbon Management
Plan to include GHG reduction strategies and monitoring efforts.

FIGURE 14. CARBON NEUTRAL SOURCES OF FY 13/14 ELECTRICITY USAGE

#|mported (Non-RPS) . Imported (RPS}) = Solar » Wind @ Biogas {Fuel Celland ICE) = Fuel Cell {NG)

Evaluations for new projects will consider potential GHG reductions that benefit
the Agency’s carbon footprint. Due to the relative infancy of the reporting
protocols and emergence of new technologies, emission factors are not always
readily available through TCR. In these cases, IEUA must perform independent
research to estimate potential GHG emissions reductions.

Furthermore, IEUA has committed to assisting The Climate Registry to develop
Water-Energy GHG Reporting Protocols. With the advent of these protocols,
quantifying and verifying GHG emissions reductions can be standardized, an
essential component in establishing GHG credits and measuring reductions.

33



IEUA is also aware of the impact its facilities can have in reducing emissions of
methane, a short-lived climate pollutant (SLCP). In May 2015, CARB released a
concept paper documenting the importance of decreasing SLCP emissions and
potential measures that could achieve reductions. Wastewater treatment plants
have the potential to reduce methane emissions through effective resource
recovery. IEUA already utilizes anaerobic digestion and co-composting to minimize
methane emissions at its facilities. In addition, the RP-5 SHF diverts organic food
waste from landfills to further reduce methane emissions. This Energy
Management Plan will consider additional ways that IEUA's facilities can minimize
fugitive methane emissions from equipment and potentially divert more organic
waste in a cost effective and reliable manner.

34



Facility Descriptions

REGIONAL PLANT NO. 1

RP-1 is IEUA’s largest treatment plant and is capable of treating an average of 44
MGD of wastewater flow. The facility employs primary, secondary, and tertiary
treatment to produce Title 22 compliant recycled water that is provided to end
users and groundwater recharge basins. RP-1 contains anaerobic digesters and
dewatering facilities that generate renewable digester gas from the sludge
removed during the liquids phase wastewater treatment process.

Gas Production

RP-1 has seven digesters operated in a three-phase thermophilic process. In FY
13/14, the digestion operation produced an average of 560 standard cubic feet per
minute (scfim) of digester gas, or approximately 800,200 scf per day.
Approximately 14 percent of total gas production was acid phase gas, which is the
product of the first phase of thermophilic digestion with a heat rating ranging from
200 to 300 Btu/scf. Due to its low quality, the acid phase gas is not consumed in
the boiler or fuel cell. Instead, the gas is continuously flared.

The heating value of the remaining 86 percent of digester gas typically measures
between 575 and 625 Btu/scf. The preferred destination for this gas is the 2.8 MW
fuel cell operated on site. Prior to introduction to the fuel cell, the gas is directed
through an extensive gas conditioning system that is designed to remove Volatile
Organic Compounds (VOC), sulfides, and siloxanes that may prove harmful to the
fuel cell catalyst. As part of the PPA, IEUA is required to deliver a minimum of
612,000 scf of digester gas per day to the fuel cell, averaged annually. This
requirement accounts for approximately 90 percent of the total consumable (high
Btu) gas produced at the facility daily.

RP-1’s hot water boilers are the second option for the digester gas. The boilers are
required to produce heat for the digestion process, and are capable of operating on
either digester gas or natural gas, but not a blend. The boilers are operated on
digester gas when production is high enough to operate both the fuel cell and

35



boiler, or when the fuel cell is operating exclusively on natural gas. In instances
when the digester gas production exceeds both the fuel cell and boiler demands,
the excess gas is combusted in the flare. The frequency of flare operation heavily
depends on the status of the fuel cell's gas conditioning system. If the gas
conditioning system is inoperable, the boilers can combust up to 420,000 scf per
day, with the excess digester gas being flared.

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter (December through February) months at RP-1 are shown on Figure 15.
Imported electricity, fuel cell generation, and solar generation are all included on
these two load profiles. The figure shows a slight reduction in overall load during
colder months, with peak consumption is approximately 4.2 MW in summer and
approximately 3.9 MW in the winter. In both cases, the peak electrical load occurs
around 13:00 in the afternoon. The generated solar electricity also varies between
seasons, as days are longer and sunnier in summer than winter.

The figure also shows that imported electricity consumption is fairly steady
throughout the day, with RP-1 purchasing approximately 1.4-1.7 MW throughout
the year. The amount of electricity imported was higher than expected, as the
generation capacities of the fuel cell and solar systems should have accounted for
more of the total facility load. In September 2013, a sulfides breakthrough in the
fuel cell's gas conditioning system diminished the catalyst performance and
constrained fuel cell operation to a reduced load. In FY 13/14, the fuel cell
generated, on average, approximately 420 kW less during winter months than
during summer months. However, since this limitation was operational in nature,
the power output of the fuel cell is not expected to vary seasonally in the future.

The data charted on Figure 15 includes electricity used by the recycled water
distribution pumps located on site. These pumping demands were removed in
previous sections to highlight the increasing power requirements that IEUA faces
in distributing recycled water. However, these recycled water distribution
pumping demands must be included when considering the overall facility load

because they impact the procurement and self-generation opportunities that IEUA
can pursue (as described below).

36



0

005
000°T
005'T
0002
0052
000°E
005’
000
005t

00s
000°T

005'T -

000°C
0052
000'€

005’ -

000y
005t

1ejos jo aBeiaay [ (197 [@nd 0 dBesdayE  pauodw jo aBeloav Rl
I Ry VR PR PR w T 1 - L SR\ Y Rt - S T S JY N - S - Y AR~ R S R
S TSP PSS SRS PSS S

w 31140¥d QY01 HIINIM

ey

0> IRy PRy PR < PR~ Y- A Y g
%.0 %.P %? %.0 %& Guw %..r ) o]

GV & oAb <N
& ¢

& oV va 00.0 %.& %.r %.o %.nu oo.a oo.m. %.A. 00.). oQo

AN30Ud Y01 HIWINNS

SHLNOW ¥A.LNIM ANV YHWIWNS INIENA ATE0¥d V0T T-dd AOVHEAY ¥1/€T Ad 'ST TUNDIA

00.0

- POz

0

005
000'T
00s't

00s°C
000°E

) 19¥sn ALDIYIDITI

o

B

o
(a1

000'%
D0s'y

(M) 3DYSN ALDIYIDITI

37



Electricity Procurement

RP-1 receives electricity from a mix of generation sources, which are listed in
Table 5. RP-1's imported electricity purchases are obtained through Direct Access
at day-ahead market pricing. The cost of generation is paid to an ESP, which means
that RP-1 is not subject to high generation demand charges from SCE.
Transmission costs, paid to SCE for the imported power, are determined by the
applicable tariffs imposed by the IOU for large commercial customers with standby
service (TOU-8-B-Standby). The facility is assessed demand charges as part of the
transmission costs, although the demand is reduced by the nameplate rating of the
fuel cell each month. RP-1 is also subject to departing load charges as a result of
the on-site generation from the fuel cell.

TABLE 5.FY 13/14 RP-1 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

Generation Source Service Type Rate Type l;:;‘f;:ytal‘g: a:lf
Imported (as needed)} = Direct Access Market-priced 45
Fuel Cell (2.8 MW} PPA Fixed w/ annual escalator 50
Solar (0.83 MW) PPA Fixed w/ annual escalator 5

In FY 13/14, on-site generation, consisting of the fuel cell and solar array,
accounted for 55 percent of the total facility load. This generation is lower than
expected due to the fuel cell’s extended operation at a reduced load. Table 6 shows
the anticipated electricity procurement scenario assuming full operation from the
fuel cell and 95 percent uptime.

TABLE 6, ANTICIPATED RP-1 PROCUREMENT WITH FULL FUEL CELL OPERATION

n . Percentage of
Generation Source | Service Type Rate Type Facllity Load
Imported (as needed} = Direct Access Market-priced 34
Fuel Cell (2.8 MW) PPA Fixed w/ annual escalator 61
Solar (0.83 MW) PPA Fixed w/ annual escalator 5

38



From data graphed on Figure 15, the average hourly winter load at RP-1 varies
from 3.1 - 3.8 MW, which means that RP-1's renewable installations are
periodically capable of producing more than 100 percent of the facility’s electrical
demand during peak generation periods. As such, RP-1 was required to secure an
export agreement with SCE to enable transmission of power back to the grid.

RP-1 was granted a multiple-tariff agreement that only compensates for power
export from the solar array. The export agreement was completed by utilizing
SCE’s Net Energy Metering (NEM) program. However, because SCE’s NEM program
limits inclusion of fuel cells to systems below 1 MW, Since RP-1 is a DA customer,
only the transmission portion of the power exported and attributed to the solar
array will be compensated by SCE. The entire generation portion will be sold by
the ESP at market price, effectively debiting the total electricity amount provided
by the ESP per the DA contract.

Demand Response

RP-1 participates in the Demand Response program through ENERNOC. During a
DR event, RP-1 staff is tasked with reducing the facility load by 50 kW through
reduced operation of the recycled water pumps. This drop in load represents
approximately four percent of the overall load reduction target of 1,230 kW that
IEUA has agreed to across all Agency facilities. In FY 13/14, RP-1 exceeded 100
percent of its target in all six DR events and averaged a load reduction of 470 kW
per event. The load reductions were achieved through limiting RP-1’s recycled
water pumping. In FY 13/14, RP-1’s recycled water distribution increased to
counteract the recycled water distribution that was lost due to a construction
project at CCWREF. As a result, RP-1 had more flexibility to curtail RW load during
DR events.

IEUA’s DR contract with ENERNOC contains a provision that requires the delivered
load capacity to be at least 75 percent of the target reduction. If the delivered
capacity falls below 75 percent, IEUA does not receive any credit for reducing load
during the DR event. As a result, IEUA is hesitant to increase the curtailment target
until reliable load reduction measures can be identified.

Furthermore, the current DR program does not provide any incentive for
additional power that is exported to the grid during DR events. RP-1’s potential to
export power is increased if load reductions are achieved during DR events.
However, since only a portion of the power exported is compensated by SCE,

39



generating more energy than needed to meet the facility load provides no cost
benefit to IEUA. If the DR program were to also incentivize power that is exported
above the facility’s baseline, IEUA could evaluate the potential for further reduc-
tions without fear of triggering cost prohibitive exports during DR events.

Energy forecast

IEUA’s Wastewater Facilities Master Plan (WFMP) was developed to strategically
prepare Agency facilities for forecasted flow demands. The WFMP is also used to
recommend engineering projects that will modernize facilities to more effectively
treat influent flows, The current WFMP forecasts flow projections and facility im-
provements through the year 2035. This EMP uses the same projections to fore-
cast energy demands over the next 20 years to meet the anticipated flow increases
and process changes. Figure 16 shows the forecasted demand for the summer and
winter months, respectively.

The figure incorporates the expected renewable generation from the solar arrays
and fuel cell with expected performance degradation and equipment {fuel cell cat-
alyst) replacement factored in. The demand growth is proportional to expected
flow increases of approximately 1 percent each year. The WFMP includes three
major projects to be implemented at RP-1 within the 20-year period. The first two
projects are modifications to the flow equalization process and installation of two
additional anaerobic digesters, which will command a small increase in electrical
demand. The third project involves the replacement of RP-1’s aeration system with
a membrane bioreactor (MBR) system and will result in a higher energy demand
estimated at 10 percent. TYCIP projects included for implementation at RP-1 also
considered in these projections.

The red shaded area in each figure represents the RP-1 demand exceeding the gen-
eration capabilities of RP-1’s renewable portfolio. The red hatched area represents
the anticipated energy reductions to be achieved through efficiency projects that
are either under construction or included in the WEMP or TYCIP. The excess sum-
mer load ranges from approximately 500 kW in FY 15/16 to 1,400 kW in FY
33/34. The excess winter load fluctuates from approximately 200 kW in FY 15/16
to 1,100 kW in FY 33/34.

40



000'T
005'T
000°C
0052
000
00s‘e

000% -

00S'? -

000's
oos‘s

]
00%
000'T
005'T
000°Z
005°Z
000'E
009°E
000y
00s'y
000's
005's

8D B4 @ Jejo§T  suopsnpay ARlaui;  puewiag ASIauIm
VA VOSId

W - — Y o

4.%“.. ....@.?a a%@ a&% o...u,a\ e%e ee..nr Eoe %,% w%e a.%ﬂr mbee e¢ae a%e oe,oa oa,&. %,n,. _v,aa o%e &.,..a a%v

4@;&& w&e& ._..‘e?m. a..e,_o.m. o&.&. @A.?ﬁ .mc_,m. Q.__&é &d_ﬂr nm%é 4¢&\ m.Avée .ne.,.re .r...u.oe od.o». m_%z .wa./? Q/oa o\....nu. nu.ﬁa a.r...%

e

+

!

A ANVINIA MV3ad YIININNS

SHLNOW HALNIM ANV JHFWHNS Y0 LSYOHH0d ANVINIQ HIMOd dVIA-0Z T-dd "9T T4NOIA

000'T
00s'T
000'Z
005'Z
000'E
00S'E
000t
00S¥
000's
005°s

e Ll i

{A1) GNVIN3A HIMOd

(M) aNvINEa HImOod
J"" i = e - Y '"'"r'e""—“'- mTtTTTTO X

41



for a public agency with limited capital, it is essential to pursue self-generation
projects that are cost effective. Renewable energy projects are typically cost
effective at higher capacities and when the energy generated is used on-site. RP-1's
renewable portfolio may be stagnant until the excess load during winter months
approaches 1 MW, which is expected to coincide with the MBR installation.
Alternatively, installing new distributed generation systems may make sense in the
near term if IEUA can secure an export agreement with SCE that is economically
favorable to power export from renewable sources. For these reasons, the focus on
energy management at RP-1 over the next 10 years will be placed on conservation
and efficiency projects.

RP-1's digester gas production also plays a vital role in the energy potential of the
facility. In FY 13/14, the treatment plant produced an average of 560 scfm of
digester gas. However, low BTU acid gas accounted for approximately 80 scfm of
the production total. Figure 17 charts RP-1's anticipated gas production with
expected flow increases, sludge thickening upgrades in the TYCIP, and two new
digesters coming online over the next 20 years,

FIGURE 17. RP-1 2Q-YEAR GAS PRODUCTION FORECAST

900 —_— 900

800 S —— . 800

700 tmm_mDE TQOP FUEL CELL AND BOILER — -

500 -

500

400 400

300 300

200 200

100 -

DIGESTER GAS PRODUCTION (SCFM)

100

0 - -0

B w® w0 Wl wd oS > b b o b ) b 0P od b ob b
R AR LA AN A AL LT LN LA L L S I N

FISCALYEAR
tiDigester Gas to Fuel Cell @ Digester Gas Production 1 Acid Gas Production {Corrected to 600 Btu/scf)

Currently, the acid gas is combusted in the flare and only digester gas produced in

42



the second of third phases of the thermophilic process are utilized in the fuel cell.
While there may be potential to use the acid gas phase in a future process, Figure
17 accounts for the difference in heat rating between the gases by converting the
amount of acid gas to an equivalent quantity of digester gas with a heat rating of
600 Btu/scf (the average heat rating of digester gas used in the fuel cell).

The green shaded area represents the amount of digester gas that IEUA is
contractually obligated to provide for the fuel cell operator. The dashed line shows
the level of gas production needed to simultaneously operate the boiler and fuel
cell at full load. Since RP-1's boilers are not currently capable of operating on a
natural/digester gas blend, digester gas is only utilized in the boilers when the fuel
cell is operating solely on natural gas due to gas conditioning restrictions. As a
result, the facility is producing excess digester gas that cannot be used for energy
generation. This EMP will explore several projects that can take advantage of the
energy content in the digester gas.

Potential New Projects

RP-1's large electrical load and digester gas production offer a multitude of
opportunities for additional self-generation and efficiency projects. Table 7
outlines projects that are being considered for implementation at RP-1 and
discusses the feasibility of each, These projects may or may not align with the goals
introduced in Table 2. The objective of this section is to evaluate any concept that
could potentially result in energy conservation at IEUA facilities. Select projects in
the table were evaluated in separate fact sheets, which are included in Appendix C.

43



“pne A81aua 2AlS

=uaya1dwod e ySnoay) paAs[yoe aq p[no Juaw
-S595SE Jo 9dA) ST ‘9A1I93]J9 1500 aIe SaInseaut
UONBAIZSUO) AZ13US JI SUIULIFSP PUR 2INJONIIS
-BIJUI JUSLIND AT} SSISSE 0] papaslu 2 pnom
WI9)SAS JIIE passaaduiod s A)1[1>e] 3] JO IIpne uy

-ap aJe s[onju0d 3asalp ey sadreys NOL Yy
31} 01 303(qNs 10U ST a1cJaIa} pue y(J ysnoay
£Enoare syrodwl T-4Y 20uls ‘SANIBYIS 1500 pats
-piIsuo? Apjua.1ind jou s[ spoliad yead-ucu 0] uon

-e1ado JYAH M| 03 S]ouo) "paderdal aq ued
Juswdinba jo sascard yorym Ajnuap: 03 Aemrapun
S1 S}IUn DYAH Bunsixa s,1-4Y JO JUSWSSasse uy

*SSIUDALIIYS

1500 pue s3ulaes [enuajod ay) ssasse 03 palmnbag
9q [[im armonnseyur Sunydi Sunsxa jo jipne
sAIsuaypadwos v "9ALD3JJa 1500 3 01 A[aY1] o.1e
soniumIoddo uoneAlasuo) A81aua e} suesw
T-dYy e swasAs unysij jo swnjoa ysiy sy,
9014

-13S SI} .10] paJapisucd L[} ISIL S aq A9
pPInom p-4¥ ‘suorjenjeaa Jo sadA) asay) [Im sam
-uafe n[qnd 1s1sSE 01 paudiSap JITAISS JPNE 150D
-0u & 51310 y1omiaN Adrauy ay [ "AI[oE] yoea jo
SUOTIEN[EAD SAISUIYIIdUIOD 0] PINIMIUWLOD IBASU
sey] Inq ‘syipne jsed wody sjyousq usas sey v Al

Aunqiseay

*SwialsAs Jre passaad

-woo s A1) oY1 Jurzisumop usas Jo Jujz|
-[enjuad Yy3noay) paAdlyde aq pinod ssuiaes 43
-1aua Jey) a[qIssod sy 3] “AI[E] oY) 1n0Y3noay)
PaIed0] swaisAs are passaidwod aydpnu
surejuod £)I12€] aY) qinsad e sy “Jre passald

-wo0d alnbai sassazoad Jusunean sy Jo AUB

‘spoliad Yead-uou o] uonelado HYAH

W[ Y21} S[OIIU0D M PR1IYING 10 S[@pow
JUSLYYS 210w 0] paperddn aq ued sjun asayj
Jo Aue]y "[0.1U0D BjeWI]D 0] SHUN JYAH 2SN
e} s8urpping Auew sasnoy L1joe] T-4Y Y,

*Aousnyje Asea.d

-U[ 0} S|0.JIU0D YIIM P31IYINe 10 SIJ°T 9desn
-MOT [3m paoerdar aq ues yey) swalsAs Sul
-1y31[ J00PINO PUE J00PUT SAISUIIXS SBY T-JYH

*S310
~uapLy)e [euonelade Jaysiy ul Jnsad ued yey)
suonesyIpow ssaso01d 0s[e Inq ‘SIJO.0aT JUIW
-dmbs wo.y sSuiaes eryjuazod ajenfeas Luo
10U JB1] S)Ipne A313U9 aaIsuayaldurod 1onpucd
ued sajuedwod ad1a1as AS1aus Alred panyg,

uopdrosag

S1OA[0¥d ADYANE T-dd TYLLNALOd *L H19V.L

uoneziwndo
a1y passaadwio)

sope1ddp pue
s[o.nuoj OVAH

sopeaddp}
Bunysrt

Wpny £3xauy

e

Loustoyyq
[euonelad(

fousioyd
[euoneladp

fuspyyq
[euonielado

Lousdd
reuonetadp

adLj,
19foag

44



"9[(E[[EAR SIUI0ID( BIEP JDYLITY SB PAI3

-pIsuod aq [[m 192load sty os ‘sanIIde] JusunEs.)
Ja1jo 1e pajuswadu Auadal sem ASojourdan
QADBAOUUI DY, "SYdd Sunsixa 03 epius diys.tsu
-11ed ayearrd-o1gnd e se pansand ssajun ‘[enden
Jueoyudis axmbai pnom 10sload Jyoras sy L

*51(s U0 satdo[ou

-1[33) 9|qemaua.t Jatpiny 1o fjumaoddo ue uado
03 10 sI9[Ioq It} Ul sed [eInieu ajeuruIls 0} pasn
aq p[nos uoranpoid sed paseadou] 'S9.Inos 9o
Jo SUeIs wedj uonezipisqns aambad L renuaod
P[nom pue SupfelIapun aalsuadxa UE aq p[nom |
-dY e 81918981 J1qoJorUE UIADS Iy} Sumyo.nay

*S11J0.119J UONEIIE 10} MO][e 03 A[3uipiodoe
sa[npayss uonerado 3snipe pue 4uawdinba mau
91} JO SS3UAANDAYYA 1502 AJnuap! ‘suondo juaur
-aoe[dal [enuajed s3enfeas ¢) pasu pmoem yndl

“A1igIses)
auruLiajap o) spoedun jeuoneladoe pue sgujaes
renuajed ajen[eAa [[m ynd] "s1s0d [epded pue

Buuued jueoyudis asmbal pynom aInseaur siyJ,

Liqiseay

JuLidjoo] 1035981 a1y Suisea Ul IO

-yum Ayaeded uonsadip syj sseatoul o) pausis
-ap alejey]) sassajord Furuaxdy) pue Surxiu
adpn(s Arejornrdoad yum s1a3sa8ip Sunsixs
3umygoxaa uo sasnooj A8ojouynal Surdiswyg

"passiyoe aq ueds uonnpedd sed paseann

-u 1o/pue s3uiaes A319ua JI SUILLISIAP 0]
pajenieaa aq ued saldajenys Suixiu 1o sajdojou
-[29) 3ANeWIA]Y 'Sedolq aonpoad o3 samsadip
a3 Jo aseq 3y} e paonpoxjut Suixiw sed sz
-nn Apuarima T-JYy 1. s1318a81p Jlqolseue ay ],

‘foudniye Jejsueny uad

-A%0 JoUB1Y YI1M SISSNJJIp 10 sIamo[q £uaid
«1J2 JoySry 03 wasAs uonesae Sunsixa ayp Sur
-peaddn £q paisnyoe aq P[NOd UOIIEAIASUDD A3
-IaUYg "MO]] J1e snonunuod Juedjiusis satnbax
1 Sk ‘ssad0ad sAIsua)ul £315Us UR ST UOT)RISY

‘Burp(ing

auo OJUL 532§ JJels [[e Suisuapuced £q adesn
A1123]9 [[elaA0 donpal L[jenusiod pinod AN
-[12€j 9y [, *SwalsAs JYAH pue Sunysi| aetedss
Surimbaa yoea ‘sBurpying aidnnw  saamb
-3 yIym ‘Srradosd AIoe] 9} SS0I0E pala)
<1B3S aJe [Jels sdueuajulenl pue suoperady

nongdrosaq

1gonay
Iaysadig

uonezindo
Sumxipy 193s381(]

sapetddp
uiseq uonersy

sauip[ing
suonesadp
asuspuo)

aweN

$90IN0sFY
a[qemalay

$90.1N0S3Y
a|qemauay

Louaoyyq
[euopesadp

FRlic]allik|
[euoneladg

naford

45



‘Burpunj Jueld pazipisqns lo/pue uonanp

-cad sed .193sa8Ip Ul 9Sea.Jou] Ue M aIniny ay3
ur 2[qela awodaq Leur afoxd sty Tem se HND
o3 se8 aseyd poe ay3 SunasAuod Jo Al[iqera ayy
Sunen[eas s1ynd] (22 [Ty 8y ul passanoad si
1-dd e paonpoud sedoiq ayp jo fuielewr ysiy & se
‘a[qises) Jou AQua.Lind s[323(0ad sKyp Jo aeds Ay

-uonels Sulaladal [enualed e pue ‘suonen
-uz2U02 ‘sanoeded ‘Sa01nos Jusnyul A;nuIpi 0}
paimbai aq pinom UONEN[BAS JISIN, ‘UOT)SSBIP
-0 [IIM SYNSal aAnIsod umoys sAey Sa

~I{198] JUaunjEa.1} JSYEMIISEM JaY30 Aq pozarduicd
s199(01d juanay "uonesls Surpaaj pue Buraadal
asem pooj pajewoine errdordde ue jo yoe| ayy
03 anp sa3ua[[ey2 [euonesado paIaunodus pue
ased ay ui s30aload a3sem pooj palodxs sey yndl
'$)500 uossaiduiod

se8 [enuajod apnpul 03 pasu OS[e [[Im Pa3onpuod
Apms Lyqqisea) Luy "[[29 |2y 313 Je palnbaa
suonesyads ay) 193Ul pnoa sed papus|q sy}

Ji auruLIaap o3 L1enb sed ayd Jo uonenfeas ue
axmbaua pnom Suipusiq ses poy 'uononpo.ud sed
paseaJoui uo snaej e siosload 1apo yym 3]
-fexed ul palapIsuod aq 03 pasu Aeur oafoad sy,
"pazi[iin 3q p[nom sed palecls [eUODIPPE 3y} MOy
SUIULIAJAP 0} PAJONPUOI g 03 Paau p[nom uon
-en[eAs Suriaaurua ue ‘I19A0mOH “T-4Y e Sed 13
-15931p a[qemaual 3y Suzijin ur HIIqIXaY [eUo}
-elado Jajeai8 apraodd pnom syue] a8ea0)s sey

Apyiseay

"asn [BIDIAUIWOD

10J nNJ ap1aoad pue sAemysdiy Jofew

[BJaA8s IESU UOREDO] S,T-dY JO adejueape
aye} p[nod uonejrelsur HNJ v *ONJ uo

aelado 0] s9[2IY24 3193 211 JO o321 axmbalx
pinom 1oa(oad e yong “saparysa 193]) s AOuady
a1} ur pasn aq 03 HN?) 01 sedoiq ayl ur
~1I2AUOD PaJapISuod Sey JJeas ynd| ‘[[29 [ony 10
Ja[i0q a3 uj ses 1a1sadip Sursn 03 UuoRIppeE uj

‘[12Mm se $1935381p d1qoJaeue ayl oqul (04) s9
-SBaIn pue ‘s[IQ ‘sieyq 10 31SEM PoOJ JO uonanp
-0jul 94} Y3lm pasealdu] aq pnoa ucnonpold
ser) 'ssao01d uonsaBip S Ul JAJEMIISEM P2
<eax) woyy a8pn[s sadazne Ajuo Apuarmd 1-44

‘ses

-01q JO asn [BI2[JaUA( Y} SSESIIU] 03 JIPJIO UL
sed pioe 213 Jo Sulpua|q apnpul 0S[e p[nod 13|
-0xd s1y ], yuawdmba £y1j1oe] ur sdesn 10J aIny
-onnserul aiow axmbat pnom ing ‘Koedes
a8e103s 191e243 apraold p[nod syue) amssaid
YS1Y 's90.nosal s[qemaual s AN[IOe] 3 9ZI]
-I1n Janaq pue 25e103s aAnI8Ye 1502 aplacad
pInoa syuel a3elo3s sed aunssard mof Jo uol
-e[[e3su] "ade[} Ay} Ul paIsnquiod s1 [[32 [ony a1}
ul passadoad 1o SI3[10q ayl Ul paISnguios 10U
sTjey] sed Auy 'a)1s uo sed Ja3sadip a101s 0}
AV[Iqe a3 ALY J0U S0P APUSLIND AN[06) 3],

uondrsag

uone[EIsu|
(OND)

sen [eInjeN

passardwon)

1eloag
uonsadyg-07

afe1olg
SED [e1su]

Imey

S30IN0SsaYy
a[qEMIUIY

$20.IN0S9Y
a[qemauady

Sa2Inosay
a[qemausy

Pafoig

46



‘Jyeusq 1500 ay) aanpal pue sagieys peof Sunted
-ap aseaoul pnod Aj[pej sy je Hipedes Sune
-19ua3 Je[os ay) Suisealoul ‘uone[[sul Je[es sy
£q 1espjo aq Aew 53502 YSnoyly 'Terrdes Jueoyiu
-81s aImbau [m uiseq uonezienba ay SuLlaso)

‘san
-1[1ae] £2uady ssodoe 1e a)is ayl je paload £315ua
affemoua. Jagre[ e jo Jusuodwiod e se 3q p[nom
uonejuswa|dur 123load 10} 9In0a1 J[qELA JSOWI

3y ], "2A029YY2 1500 10U S1 JuC[e uone)s uld.Ield
811 se ‘Suipuny jueid armbaa pnom 3oafoad sy,

‘31e1 MO] € 3 110dxa Jamod up nsal

Aewl uonEISUSE MIU AU JEL) JIPISUOD P[NOYS
Apms fpiqises) y “A3o[ouyaa) a1} JO SSIUIANIDY
-J9 1500 92U} 9SLa.1I3p PMoMm YoM ‘28Il peo|
gunuaedsp o1 123[qns s1 ANT1oE) A1) ‘A[[eucnIppy
JusuRaISe JuaLInd S, T-4y Jo Axajdwod ayy Sur
-I9PISUOD 3L} 3} P[ROI YoIyM ‘IS YIim Juaur
-as18e mEthE J3u pagipow € aJmbai pinom
A[oey 8] Je UcRISUaS Je[0s Ul aseaoul Auy

‘uaaold st A3ojouydyy

a3 [run arqiseayur A[ay1[ 51309lo1d sy ‘Surpuny
Jueasd yanoayy pazipisqns A[aeay st 1oafoad e yons
ssauf) *Ajr[qeras SunesIpul eyep I[| S1 2131f)
‘padoraaap usaq aaey sar3o[ouydal Yl S[IYM

ANpqiseay

*8)15-U0 A1[211199]° jelauald

01 19402 a3 doje paxyje Le.lle Je[OS B }Im UIS
-Bq 3} I2A0 I3A0D e [[e3sul p[nom raload swyj,
‘S10P0 3}ERID UBd YHUm ‘ssacoad Jusunean
a1} BuLnp jusnyye Arewrid a103s Ajurerod
-wa) 03 ucnezifenba mo[j sasn LpuaLInd 1-Jy

"S3[01Y34A 1991
Asuady pue ngnd £q pasn aq pmos uoneys
811, *SUONB[[BISUI S|qEMAUSI 3)1S-U0 AT Aq
pasamod uoness Sutdreyp (A7) sp1yaA L1
ue syerado pue [[ejsur 03 sfemysny Jolew Jeau
UOTIEI0] [BIIUSD S JO 38ejueApe axe) ued T-Jy

‘pue|

aqe[leAR UO Je[os 310w [[e3suf 03 [enuajod
a1} A)eNn[eAa ued ANTIDE) A [ *931S Uo pajjelsul
sjoued 1ejos Jo MW £8°0 SeY ARQUALIND -4y

-jeay pue fjoundepe Sunpoad afiym ses

-01q Ay1{enb mo[ azi[nn A[8ALI3]J8 156 Ued Je}
saulqan) sed pue sIazZiprxo [euLay) safexyoed
A3o1ouypa) Suidawa uy 1omod a[qemau

-a1 8uonpoad ut sanynoyip syuasaad ses 13
-1sa81p aseyd pIoe 913 JO JUSIOD JeAY MO] YL

uondisag

Aeliy Iejog
pue .IaA07) uiseqg
uonezienby

uonels
guidaey)

3PIYIA LI

UOoLe[RISUL
Jejos puedxy

suIgam],
sSeN) aseyd py

2WEN

$32I1053Y
a|qemauay

$30IN0S9Y
a]qemauay

$80.IN0SaY
ajgemauay

$30IN0SY
a|qemauay

3d4 ],
Pafoag

a7



"UONEZIPISQNS INCIM d[qelA 109fo1d a1y

ayew 03 ySnoua jou ST }JoUA] 1502 9Y) 12107
-SN) Y( B Se sad1eyd asayy 0] 102{qns jou S| T-49
90UIS "10A9MOH *Sa8.1ey puewIap NO.L Suipioae
4q 53502 21101112312 U0 aAes 0] fenuajod a3

seq ‘spoiiad yead-yo SuLinp AypLIwse 8uLiols
y8noiyy pasanpe ‘Suriys peo’ “I8W0IsNd Y

e SE Snje1s s L)[oe] oyl o1 anp T-JY 1€ 9ARISYD
1502 j0U s1 £3o[ouy>a] a8e10]s AZIaUS JUa.LIND

‘[e21WOU0D3 PIIIPISU0D aq 03 Y31y

00} 8q Aew 51502 uononaisuo? ysnoyy ‘Surdwund
yead-Jjo 10 paonpal YHm UIS g p[noa sSulAes
AS1suyq samponnyseryur Surdid s, Anoes ) 0
sadueyo Juesyudis annbad pnom paload sty

"UOREN[BAD

snp uo sened ydd 8yl [pim MIOM 0] aNUQuoed
M v E] "Aauady a1 10] 9A1123]]9 1500 ST jeq) an
-Tea & je sAe.re a1y [[3s 03 SUl[Im 3 ISNU JSUMO
a1t “IaAaMmO “Toumo o9foad JuaLind ayj PIM
aseyoand [ennuaod ay) Inoqe paambur sey yH|

Anpqiseay

‘paxmbai aq asimIajo pnom
110dxa UayMm IS U0 asn J91e[ JOJ Palols
pue sporiad yead Surinp pazpuuiw are

saseyaind £11011329[0 JeL) S1NSUI pP[nod ade
-101S YIS WaSeuBw Peo] YiLm ISIsse 03 AJojou
-1[23) a8e103s £31aUD JO UCIIL[[EISUI 31} WOL
jauaq Lewl -4y ‘UoneIIU3S J[qemausl Yead
Jo spouzad Buranp jiodxs Joj [enuajod oy pue
Aep ayy InoyFnoiy3 peoj ur UoneLIEA Y3 M

‘AIIqxay reuonelado Sulurejurew afigm
SI10PO 20NPpad AU JUSN[}J2 pajea) A1enia)

10 AIEpU0I3S 3.10]S 0} SUISE] ) SUIAJIpPON
'SIOPO 918310 UED YoIym ‘ssadold jusunean
a1 Surmp uanyes Lrewrid a103s ALrelod
-uIa} 03 uonezifenba moy sasn APUS.LIND T-JY

‘uone

-Iauad 1e[os Wo.1j $1500 AOLIIS[O 81Ny s)eu
-IWII[2 03} an[ea jaxJew Jrej Je sppued ayp Sul
-segoand Suwapisuod st ynil "Vdd e ysnoxyy
V03] 03 P[os ARUA.LIND ST 3)S uo sjaued 1e[os
JO MI £8'0 93 wody pajesauad damod ay L

uondrsag

suone[easu]
ade10g A1auyg

uiseg
uonezienby
1I3AU0Y)

suone[[esul
Iefog 3unsmy

aseyang

aumeN

juaweSeue)y
Ad1auy

JIsmsfeuRy
A819ug

Juswafeuep
ASJauqg

adAL

Jraloag

48



2INPNNSEUL Sunsxa s A3uady oy} uo yedurr
§93load a1y auruLIatap 0] Juawsalie [eryualod
a3} 8)en[eaa [[Im YN[ "sADJBINE ale SSUIABS
1500 pue A)I[Iqrx¥a]) peo] Jo 1yoauaq pue s1s0d
[emdens Jo yoe| 8y 1, "seni[oe] Avualdy 1k syoaload
age1015 AS1ouy asuodssy purwa(q dojaaap

01 f11ed panp e £q paipeoldde usaq sey yH[

Anpqiseay

“fyred

PAIYL oY) AQ PRISA02 5 p[ROMm SUOTe[[RISUT
adeI0)s a1 10 saimyipuadxa eyden 'sawn
Ja130 Je Buraeys yead 10§ 9318 350 93 Aq
pue ‘awn ay3 jo uonted e uondwnsuoed yead
Jo spoiad Surinp asuodsal puewap 10J SN0l
Aq pasn aq p[nood 1eyl sa11s 1507 1e adeiols
Aisneq ureEsul 1ed pInp e aA[oAUl pnom
y3load sy, Tuswdo[aasp Jo sedels [enmm

ur ApusJano st ieyy yoeodde saneaouul ue
sI [00] asuodsaJ puewsp e se age1o0ls A3.10uyg

uondiisag

ueneyelsuj
adea0)g AB1auyg
asuodsay
puewaqg

aureN

WawWIdeuey
A319ug

adAy
Pafoaq

49



Project Forecasts

RP-1’s procurement strategy, current demand, and limited capital eliminate many
of these projects in the near term. Projects focusing on increasing operational
efficiencies are more favorable to current conditions, assuming cost effective
measures are identified. Table 7 includes broad areas of aperation where energy
reductions could be realized, but further work will need to be conducted to isolate
and quantify savings from specific conservation measures. Tracking electrical
demand with the facility’s sub-meters will assist Agency staff IEUA in this
endeavor. IEUA will work with a third party energy consultant within the next year
to conduct a comprehensive energy audit of the RP-1 facility to develop a list of
energy efficiency projects.

Despite the fact that RP-1 imported approximately 45 percent of the total
electricity usage in FY 13/14, the potential to export power during periods of peak
generation impacts the facility’s ability to install new renewable generation
projects. A revision of IEUA’s net energy metering agreement with SCE would be
required. Previous agreement revisions have proven to be costly and time
consuming for Agency staff. Furthermore, any renewable technology utilizing
digester gas would require an increase in gas production, as over 90 percent of RP-
1’s gas production is reserved for use in the fuel cell. The acid phase digester gas
presents an opportunity for renewable technology on-site, but ne reliable, cost
effective solution has yet been found to properly utilize this gas.

Cost savings opportunities and operational flexibility could be achieved through
gas storage projects. [EUA will conduct further evaluations to determine the
potential savings opportunities from storing the gas, which will impact project
viability. Energy storage projects that require IEUA to purchase battery storage are
currently not cost effective because the facility purchases electricity through Direct
Access. IEUA will continue to monitor energy storage technologies and pursue
grant funding opportunities though, as the technology does present the benefit of
operational flexibility and improved demand side management.

RP-1 contains a significant portion of the Agency’s renewable portfolio that
contributes toward the goal of peak power independence by 2020. Further
evaluations will need to be conducted te determine the viability of expanding the
facility’s portfolio through increased digester gas production. In the short term,
IEUA will commit to an energy audit to identify efficiency projects that can reduce
the facility load and optimize the treatment processes.

50



REGIONAL PLANT NO. 4 AND INLAND EMPIRE
REGIONAL COMPOSTING FACILITY

RP-4 and the IERCF are located adjacent to one another on 6% Street in Rancho
Cucamonga. RP-4 is designed to treat an average of 14 MGD of wastewater flow.
The treatment plant employs primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment to
produce Title 22 compliant recycled water that is provided for direct use and
groundwater recharge basins. Biosolids removed from the RP-4 treatment process
are conveyed by gravity through the regional sewer system as influent to RP-1.

The IERCF is capable of recycling approximately 210,000 wet tons of biosolids and
amendment per year into high quality compost. Although RP-4 and the IERCF
operate independently of one another, the two facilities share the same electricity
utility meter. For this reason, the EMP considers RP-4 and the IERCF together.

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter (December through February) months at RP-4 and the IERCF are shown on
Figure 18. Imported electricity, wind turbine generation, and solar generation are
all included in the load profiles. The figure shows a slight reduction in overall load
during colder months, with peak consumption at approximately 3.7 MW in
summer and approximately 3.3 MW in the winter. In both seasons, the peak
electrical load is generally stable between 8:00 and 15:00. The generated solar
electricity also varies between the two seasons, as generation increases in summer
months having more sunlight hours each day. During winter months in FY 13/14,
the wind turbine produced more consistently. However, the maximum power
generated occurred during summer months from the late afternoon to early
evening.

51



0

00s
000°'T
0057
000°C

008z : -
000°€ -
005’ -

oo’y -

005
000'T
00S'T
000
0057
000E
005t
000t

puim jo aBelaay}  Jejos jo eBessay[]  pauodw jo aBelaayE

00 TR PR VP« VR VR ST U JRNY - \ Y - SR M- VIR, M o S S . 3 i : ' . . . )
%...o %n. %.? %b %mv %m. %.f %@ %_m. %z %...o %u.‘ %? %.0 %.m. 00.& Oo.r %.& oom. %z %.& oo.e OO.A. oo.o

SN ALDMLIE

oV

000’

- PRy A P P V- S, VIR P o VR VO O VR o VR S , . e . : . !
P il A G T A Ll LT D Sl AP L VLG T A AP T

JT40Yd avO1 HIWIAINS

SHLNOW YALNIM ANV WHWWNS INIMNA AVOT ADYA1/¥-dd ADVHHAY F1/€T Ad 81 HANIIA

52



The figure also shows that imported electricity demand peaks between the hours
of 7:00 15:00. This coincides with typical operations at the IERCF. Large fans are
used to continuously exhaust the fully enclosed composting process. These fans
operate at a higher flow rate during the day to achieve more frequent air
exchanges for staff working within the enclosed facility. As a result, the facility
experiences peak demand during the middle of the day.

The RP-4/IERCF load charts include electricity used by the recycled water pumps
at RP-4. These pumping demands were not included in previous sections to
illustrate IEUA's increasing power requirements in distributing recycled water.
However, these demands must be included when considering the overall facility
load because they influence the power procurement and self-generation
opportunities that IEUA can pursue.

The existing single electricity meter for RP-4/IERCF requires that the two facilities
be considered as a single power entity. However, load management of RP-4/IERCF
varies due to operational differences and can be improved by using the sub-
metering equipment installed in 2014. Future versions of the EMP will use the sub-
meter data to analyze the demand at each facility independently and focus on
specific site opportunities.

Electricity Procurement

RP-4/IERCF receives electricity from a mix of generation sources, as summarized
in Table 8. Until April 2014, RP-4/IERCF received imported electricity through
Direct Access at day-ahead market pricing. These facilities were required to
withdraw from the Direct Access program as a result of the interconnection
agreement for RP-5 that was obtained through the Renewable Energy Self-
Generation Bill Credit Transfer (RES-BCT) program. As part of that agreement,
exported power is compensated with bill credits on other utility accounts owned
by the generating Agency. In order to qualify, IEUA had to identify non-RP-5
bundled accounts with sufficient load to credit the full RP-5 generation capacity.
RP-4/IERCF was selected as a credit account and removed from the DA program.

Switching to bundled service has resulted in high generation demand charges from
SCE during peak periods. Transmission costs, paid to SCE for the imported power,
are determined by the applicable tariffs imposed by the IOU for large commercial
customers with standby service (TOU-8-B-Standby). The facility is assessed
demand charges as part of the transmission costs, although the demand is reduced

53



by the nameplate rating of the wind turbine each month. RP-4/IERCF is also
subject to departing load charges as a result of the on-site generation from the
wind turbine.

TABLE 8. FY 13/14 RP-4/IERCF ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

Generation Source  Service Type Rate Type ;Zf;;;;aﬁfa‘:’f
[mported Bundled TOU-8-B Standby 90
Solar {1 MW) PPA Fixed with annual escalator 8
Wind (1 MW) PPA Fixed with annual escalator

In FY 13/14, on-site generation, consisting of the wind turbine at RP-4 and solar
array at the IERCF, accounted for 10 percent of the total load of these facilities. As
shown on Figure 18, the minimum load at RP-4/IERCF was approximately 2.1 MW,
Even assuming peak generation, the wind turbine and solar array are not capable
of matching the minimum RP-4/IERCF load. As such, RP-4/IERCF is not required to
have an export agreement with SCE.

Demand Response

RP-4/IERCF participates in the DR program through EnerNOC, During a DR event,
RP-4 staff reduces operation of the recycled water pumps and IERCF staff reduces
fan operation. These practices aim to achieve reductions of 830 kW, which
represents 67 percent of the overall Agency DR target. Additional reliable load
reductions at RP-4 have been difficult to identify. IEUA’s DR contract with
EnerNCC contains a provision that requires the delivered load capacity to be at
least 75 percent of the target reduction. If the delivered capacity falls below 75
percent, IEUA does not receive any credit for reducing load during the DR event. In
FY 13/14, RP-4/IERCF reached 100 percent of their target in only one of six DR
events. On average, RP-4/IERCF achieved 85 percent of its reduction geal, which is
enough to achieve the minimum delivered capacity, but too low tc commit to any
additional reductions in the near future.

54



Energy forecast

Figure 19 shows 20 years of forecasted demands at RP-4/IERCF for the summer
and winter months, based on the WFMP projections. The figure includes the
expected renewable generation from the solar arrays and wind turbine with
expected performance degradation factored in. The demand growth is
proportional to an expected flow increase of approximately 2 percent each year at
RP-4 and an expected 0.5 percent increase in energy demand each year at the
IERCF. TYCIP and WFMP projects expected to affect the power demand were
included in the forecast. However, the only significant project demand involves the
replacement of RP-4’s aeration system with a membrane bioreactor (MBR) system,
This installation will result in a higher energy demand estimated at 10 percent.

The red shaded area in the two graphs represents the facility demand exceeding
the generation capabilities of the solar and wind turbine installations. The red
hatched area represents the anticipated energy reductions to be achieved through
efficiency projects that are either under construction or included in the WFMP or
TYCIP. The excess summer load ranges from approximately 1,500 kW in FY 14/15
to 3,700 kW in FY 33/34. The excess winter load fluctuates from approximately
1,400 kW in FY 14/15 to 3,600 kW in FY 33/34. Figure 19 shows that the peak
demand at RP-4/IERCF does not have much seasonal difference.

55



SHLNOW Y4LNIM UNV HHIWWDNS Y04 LSVIHHOA ANVINEA YIMOd AVAA-0Z AU/ ¥-dd 6T TINIIA

56



Despite the rated capacity of the solar and wind turbine installations, data have
shown that RP-4/IERCF relies heavily on imported electricity during peak periods.
This reliance is expected to increase steadily over the next 20 years. The amount of
imported power indicates that the facility is capable of increasing the amount of
renewable generation on site. Depending on the size and timing of any new
renewable technology installed, it is possible that SCE would require an export
agreement to be established. If the rated capacity of new distributed generation
installations, when combined with the 2 MW generation capacity of the existing
solar and wind installations, is more than or equal to the minimum demand of the
facility at the time of installation, then IEUA will need to secure an export
agreement with SCE.

Potential New Projects

The large electrical load and bundled service at RP-4/IERCF offer an array of
opportunities for further self-generation, energy management, and efficiency
projects. Table 9 outlines projects that have been considered for implementation
at RP-4 and IERCF and discusses the feasibility of each.

a1
L

57



"Swa)sAs JIre passard

-wiod s A[1oe] 3 SUIZISUMOP US4 10 Sul
-ZI[B0U3) YSnc.iy) paaiyoe aq pinod sduiaes
e a[qissod s3] “Aupoe; 91 noysnoay ps
-1e00] SW1a1sAS Ire passardwod s{dnnu surey
-uod A1[19.] 311 Ynsal e Sy “Ire passardwod
axmbau sessa20.1d Juauneal -J4 13 Jo Auely

ipne £d1aua AALS

-usyardwod © Ydnoly) pasalyse aq pinod juaur
-ssasse Jo ad£ sy, "2An0a)ya 1502 aJe SaInseaw
UONBAIISUGD ASIAUS JI SUIULIZ)AP PUR 3INONNS
-BJJUI JUSLIND U] SSISSE 0] papaau ag p[hom
wiAsAs Jre passarduwos s AN[I0E] 91 JO JIpNe uy

uoneznundQ Louaruyg
Iy passaidwoy | [euoneradg

*a)s a3 1 103(01d [o.nuod HYAH
ue ansind [[m Y[ “1OWo0Isn) adIAISS palp 'spoLiad yead-uou 0} uonerado
-unq e se saf.1eyd puewiap Y31y 03193[qns ST O] = DVAH ML 1)) S[O13U0D YILM PaRIYINo 10 S[a
/-4 asnenaq aAndayys 3s00 aq ued spoad yead | -powr JUIPDLYS 10w 0 papelsdn aq ued syun
-ucu o} uonesado Yy AH W[ 03 Sjonuo’) 'padeld | asatfy Jo AUB “[OIIU0D SJLWI]D JOJ SHUN IYAH
-3l 3q ue3 yey} Juswdinba Lryuspt 01 Lemiapun = asn e sSuipqing Auew sAey JOUA] pue ~J4
SI S)uUNn HVAH Sunsmxa s -4y JO JUSUISSISSE Uy

sepeiddy) pue Ayuabdiq
sjonuo]) HVAH = [euonesadp

431 y8noua jno

-[3Mm paysIurwp ag ued AI[IqIsia se ‘Burpymq

Sunsoduicd syl unpm junowreled st £1ajes

Ja)I0OAA JJO.I51 03 DAIDTIPUOD SE 3¢ Jou Aelu sapeiddp Lousroglq

A7¥A1 a3 urgym Bunysr “Aousroyje aseald Bunysry [euoneadp

«U1 03 S[0JIU0D YIm PA1ILINO 10 ST adesn

-MO] 1M paoe[dal aq ued yey) surasLs ur

-y81] JoOopINo puk J00pUI JAISUIIXD SeY $-JY

*SSIUIAMIBYS 1500 pue SSUIALS [erjus)
-od a1} ssesse 0} paamnbai aq [[Im aIMONISBIJUT
Suny3n S8unsixs ayy Jo ypne sarsuayardwon y

"¥-dY 1€ sainseaws SUIABS-1S0D [BI9ASS PIoIA "SaPUADYIS
PINOD A31AI3S SJYL 'SUOTIEN[BAS 3SII[ INM SAl0 |~ [euonelado Jaydry ul }nsal ued Jey3 SUones
-uafe o1pqnd 3sISSE 03 paudisap 2J[AlaS PNE1s0D | -gipour ssanoud ose ng ‘syjosial juawdinba Auanyyyg
-0U ® $19]J0 y10Mm)aN AFrauy ay, “AJ[de) yzea jo woyy sSuraes fenuajod sjeneas A[uo jou upny Adaug [eueneradg
SUOTIEN[BAD 2AISUSYAIdWOD 03 PAWIICD JIASU Jerp sypne £315ua aarsuayaldwod Pnpuod
seyj Inq ‘sypne 3sed wo.ly syyauaq uaas sey yNdl ued saruedwod asiatas £31oua Laed panyL
Aynqisea uopdiosag aureN uu”__w.._._.m

-S104[0Ud ADYANA 109A1/¥-dd TVLLNALOA "6 418V.L

58



"UOLIENTBAD ST}

uo sanJged ydd oY) YIm Y1om 0] SNUnRUeD [[Im
vl £ouady a3 J10] 8ARDAYS 150D SI JBY] SNJeA
B SARLIE 3]} [[95 0} FuIf[Im 3 ISNLI JSUMO
a3 I9ASMOH 19UMO 129(0ad JUaLmd ay3 YIm
asetand enuajod ai ynoqe paainbur sey ynH|

sal}
-1[1oe) £oUady ssodoe 1o ayIs ayl 1k 19afoad Ldioua
a[qemaual 1381 € Jo Jusucdurod B Se 3 pinom
uonejuswa[dur 1oafoad 1oJ aino.d qeia 1sow
871, "2A1}23]J2 150D 10U SI auo[e uoness Suidieyd
aip se ‘Surpuny jueid axmbaa pnom aload siy],

*a)1s a1y 03 s[eued

Je[0S 2J0W SUIPPE JO SSAUAIIAYS 1502 9} SUIW
-1819P 0] pPalaNpPuUod 3q [[IM Apnis AM[IGISEs) ¥
"AB0ToUTD9] SU) JO SSOUSALIDSYS 150D I} ISEIIIIP
pInom piym ‘sadaet)s peol sunaedsp o3 12a[qns
S1AJI[ey 9y} ‘A[euomppy "AJS Yim Juatl
-3313e SULIa)AW JaU payIpoul e aimbal pjnom
AYIpIoR) 93 1 UOTIBISUIE R[0S Ul ISBaIIUl AUy

*s]joq3.1 UOTEI3E 10} MO[[E 03 A|Surpiodoe
sa[npayas uonelado jsnipe pue quawdimbs mau
ay) Jo ssauaAnaaya 1502 Ajnuapt ‘suondo jusw
-aoe[dau [ennuajod ajenfeas o} paau pnom vl

Aqisesy

‘uonelausd

JE[OS WOLJ $1500 AJIDLINDA[a alninj ajeuUTWIa
0] anfea jayIew 1rej je sppued atpy Surseysind
Suriapisuod st y4] "'ydd & ygnoap

VNAI 01 p[os AJUa.LIND ST 331s uo s[aued

Je[0S JO M T 91 wo] pajeraual Jamod ay],

*SA[IIYDA Jo3[)
KouaBy pue orqnd £q pasn aq p[noa uonEIs
aY, 'suone[[eIsul a[qemaual 91s-uo a3 Aq
paiamed uonels Suidieyo (AH) 9[21Yya4 DLIIDID
ue ayelado pue [[eisul o] sAemysiy Jolew Jeau
UONEJD] [RIJUID S JO SBLIUBAPE 33{E) UeD $-J3

*sAe.LIe [euonippe

JoJ pazIinn aq OS[e p[nod -4y 1t soeds

pueT -aoeds Jool a[qereae Juisn walsAs Jefos
Sunsixa sy puedxs 0} [enuajod o) d1EN[RAD
ued AN[10E] a1, "pPa[[BISUI aq 0} SAE.LIE JaYLIn]
J0J d[qeeae adeds (euonippe st alay L, “gur
-p[ing Sunsodwoa ay} Jo Jood 8y} UO pa[[eIsul
s[aued 1e[os Jo M T SeY AQUaLInd JYHI YL

-£auaroyyge Jajsuer) ueBAxo Jaydiy

UM SIaSnyIp Jo s1amoq £ouspye 18y3iy

0} Wa)sAs uoneiae Sunsixas ay) Surpeiddn Aq ¥
-dY 18 PIAIIYDE 9( PINOI UONEAIdSU0D AZ1au
"MO[] IIe Snonunued yueoyrudis saambaa

11 se “ssado1d aA[suajul A81aua ue S[ UoNeIay

nondLosag

SUOTIE|
-[easuj refog Sur | juswaSeuepy]
-1SIXd a@seyamg £319uyg
J4dI
uon
-e15 Suidieyn $a2IN08Y
S[MYIA 210029[H s[qemausy
-dd
uoneeIsu] $80In0s3Y
Jiejog puedxy a[qEMauIY
sapeiddn Ayuapyyg
uisegqg uoneIay reuoneradg
adAy

awmeN yalolg

59



*a8elo)s A313Us 10 suopjej[eIsul

aj(emaua. [euopippe jo uonejuawadun ayy
(31M 9SEIII2P PNOM SSUIAES 1502 aamny -1oef
-01d e yons ySnoiy} paAslyde aq pno3 Jey) sdul
-ABS 1500 3} 9JeN[eAd 07 pajonpuod aq 0] paau
pinom £pmis L[iqises) y Tended pue Suriaau
-18ua jueniiudis.alnbal pmom JIYI] PUe F-J4
1B WISAS UONNGLISIP [edL1129[d Ay} Sumijo.nay

r12aload st Jo yoeduny

1502 31} SUIULI3)AP 0} paambai st uonenjeas
Jayan, "SunLid puewap £qpuels WoLy Jjsuad
paanpal os[e Ing ‘sadret peo] Sunaedap jo
UORBUIUI[S S} UBIL OSTE PINOM SaNI[Ioe] atf)
Sunesedag *201A1as pajpung 0} YIIMS a3} 20UIS
JUDIAYIP 2¢ PINOM SSAUSANIBIJO 150D Y] 184
-moH sanIqiyoxd 1500 aq 03 10a(oad sy punoj
pue Apuapuadapur sapi[oe) om) i) FuLisjatl
J10J g0S W0} SIIBUINSA 1500 PAAladal sey YAl

uon
-ezipisqns jue.d yim a[qela aq Aew 1oaford sy,
LIqxap Juauaseurur ajqenyeaur apiaoad ued

afe.los se ‘ABojourpal 2 ansind 03 shunuod

I YAAT ADUAL/ - 1€ 2A1BI3HS 1500 J0U SI
ASo[ouyda) JUA.LIND 1B} PUNOJ PUE SIOPUDA 258
-103s A810ua wio)] spesodoad paalddaa sey yNAIl

fnqiseay

'sajel uonersusd

pUE UCISSTWSUEL] JaMO] aARY 1BY) SJjLIE) J8
7S wogy A1L129[0 aseyoadnd Ued AY 05 2A0qe
sadejjoa 2014198 je Sunesado sani[oe] "Wa)SAS
A ZT e uo sayesado Apuaimd JOMAL/#dd

'sepuntoddo sanjusoul a[qemau

-a1 pue Juswafeueur 32In0sal asoaduy pmod
SaDI[IDE] paJdajowl 0M) OJUI SIS a) Sunesedss
3w A[IN [edLN23[e U Aleys Jng Jayjoue
auo Jo Apuapuadapur djesado JHYH] pue d4

"1saYBIy

aJe sajed ()] UdUM 31IS U0 pasn Uay) pue
spoL1ad yead Jo apisino (A3ojouyda) aderols
Je[Iuis J0) saLIayjeq a8Ieys 03 pasn aq pnod
suone[[eIsul S[qEMaUA 1By aInsus pnoo age
-10)§ JuawaSeueur peof y3im 151sse 0] A3o[ou
-1[233 28=1035 AZ15U9 JO UOB[[eISUI U WOL]
yaueq Lewt IDYAI/#-dd ‘NOI 2y Wody 1sayS1y
s1 3upuid oL uaym ‘Aep aty Jo I[pprur ay)
Burmp 3saySiy s1 peol Lifioe) sy 3uLIaPISUO)

uondrisa(

ade}oA 901A
-19§ 9sEaIIU|

$19)

-aul AOm om)

qum JOdH[ pue
y-dy sresedss

suone[eIsu]
28ea0315 A310U4

aureN

Jusuradeuepy]
A81ouyg

Juawageuey
A31auyg

juswageuey
AS1aug

adA],

y0iloag

60



Project Forecasts

Based on RP-4/IERCF’s high electrical demand, current generation capacity, and
status as a bundled service customer, there are many opportunities to improve
energy management at these sites. Cost effectiveness will be the main
consideration when determining the feasibility of potential new projects. Available
space can also be a limiting factor when considering expansion of the solar system.

As RP-4/IERCF is IEUA’s second largest user of electricity, IEUA will work with a
third party energy consultant to conduct a comprehensive energy audit of the RP-4
and IERCF facilities once the RP-1 audit has been completed. Such an audit would
be required to develop focused energy efficiency measures and reduce power
consumption cost effectively.

RP-4/IERCF, as a bundled service customer, is an ideal candidate for energy
management technologies that reduce load during peak periods. The load profile
shows that IERCF’s peak usage coincides with SCE’s on-peak rates. Reducing
imported electricity during these periods could result in savings from time-related
generation and demand charges.

Improved HVAC controls could improve energy management and reduce the
overall consumption across the facility during peak hours. IEUA staff intends to
pursue the HVAC control technology for implementation at RP-4 and IERCF. Based
on the project results, the technology could be used at other facilities as well.

Energy storage could have a large impact on load and cost management. As
mentiened in Table 6, current storage technologies have proven cost prohibitive in
IEUA’s BCEs. IEUA is pursuing grant opportunities that will utilize energy storage
with existing or new renewable technologies. Implementing energy storage on site
is considered a valuable asset that can improve energy management capabilities,
reduce operating costs, and provide relief for the grid during peak periods.

Solar costs and land-use efficiency have changed considerably since IERCF entered
into its PPA in 2008. As a result, there may be the potential to add up to 1 MW of
additional capacity between 1IERCF and RP-4. [EUA will pursue proposals for new
solar installations at each site.

61



CARBON CANYON WATER RECYCLING FACILITY

CCWREF is designed to treat an average of 11.4 MGD of wastewater flow. The
treatment plant employs primary, secondary, and tertiary treatment to produce
Title 22 compliant recycled water that is provided to end users. Biosolids removed
from the treatment process are pumped to RP-2 for processing.

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter (December through February) months at CCWRF are shown on Figure 20.
Imported electricity and solar generation are included in the load profiles. The
figure shows energy consumption is 30 to 40 percent lower during winter months
than summer months. Peak summer consumption is approximately 1,200 kW and
peak winter consumption is approximately 820 kW.

The variation is due to the operation of CCWRF's recycled water pumps. During the
winter months in FY 13/14, the RW distribution system at CCWRF was under
constructicn and did not operate. However, the operation of these pumps typically
varies seasonally because RW direct usage is lower during winter months. When
RW demand is low, IEUA is able to satisfy direct use customer needs through RP-
1’s supply system. As a result, the CCWRF RW pump distribution system can be
non-operational for weeks or months at a time. Therefore, despite the lack of
pump station operation, the FY 13/14 facility load is considered characteristic of
operations during the summer and winter months.

The CCWRF load profiles are unique in that two peak usage periods occur, one
during the morning (between 8:00 and 9:00) and the other during the evening
(20:0C to 24:00). During summer months, the daily electrical load varies based on
recycled water pumping demand. The load profile shows peak usage around 1,200
kW at 10:00 and a minimum consumption of approximately 880 kW at 5:00.
During winter months, when the recycled water pumps are typically non-
operational, the electrical load is consistent during the evening, then peaks in the
morning. Peak usage (approximately 820 kW) occurs between 8:00¢ and 10:00, and
the facility load is at a minimum (approximately 560 kW) between 15:00 and
16:00.

62



Jejos Jo afesenyd payodw jo aferany@

%m%eooa%a ew%%%%%%.éa
0 -

o@o%%%%%%%%%
-0

007 00z
m
-
m
oo¥ oor Q
=
D
009 009 w
008 w08 &
3
m
000t oSAM
002t 0027
TUI0ud AYOT HILNIM
00F'T 00b'T

A.\ .@ }. .( ? . . . . . 4+ )
ooo%%oo SV g g GV T ¢ §T G G S ST 8 8P $ P ¢ S

00Z

- 00T m
oov 0ov m
n
009 009 3
008 08 &
a
000°T 000'T
00Z'T _ 00Z°T w
IN40¥d QvO01 HIWWANS
oot 00T

SHLNOW YALNIM ANV YAWNNS DNINA AVO'T S4MDD ADVHIAY ¥1/€T Ad 0T TUNOII

63



CCWREF receives electricity from two generation sources, as listed in Table 10.
CCWREF purchases imported electricity through Direct Access at day-ahead market
pricing. In FY 13/14, imported purchases accounted for approximately 83 percent
of the total electricity consumed. The remaining consumption was generated from
the solar array.

TABLE 10. FY 13/14 CCWRF ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

Percentage of
Generation Source  Service Type Rate Type Facility Load
Imported Direct Access Market-priced 83
Solar (625 kW) PPA Fixed with annual escalator 17

As shown on Figure 20, CCWRF’s winter power demand can drop below 600 kW in
the afternoon. This demand could potentially be met with peak generation of the
solar array, which would result in a small amount of power being exported.
CCWRF does not currently have an export agreement with SCE. No export
agreement will be pursued considering the infrequency and small amount of
power that could be exported. However, if any additional distributed generation
projects were installed at CCWRF, IEUA would need to enter into an export
agreement with SCE.

Demand Response

CCWRF participates in the DR program through EnerNOC. During a DR event,
CCWREF staff reduces operation of the recycled water pumps. The load reduction
goal of 290 kW represents 24 percent of the overall Agency DR target. Due to the
seasonal nature of CCWRF's recycled water operations, IEUA’s ability to meet the
reduction target varies. The DR program uses data from the ten working days
immediately prior to a DR event to calculate the baseline for each DR event. If
CCWREF did not utilize its recycled water pumps during these times, which is likely
during winter months, then meeting a winter reduction goal at CCWRF is
impossible.

In FY 13/14, CCWRF failed to reach 100 percent of its target in all six DR events
and actually saw a load increase in two events. This was a result of the recycled
water pumping system’s non-operation during reconstruction. The Agency’s total
cumulative curtailment of 1,230 kW can be achieved through a combinaticn of the
enrolled facilities. In FY 13/14, RP-1 reduced recycled water pumping loads to

64



compensate for CCWRF’s inability to drop load.

Energy forecast

Figure 21 shows the 20-year forecasted demand at CCWRF for the summer and
winter months, respectively, based on the WFMP projections. The figure
incorporates the expected renewable generation from the solar arrays, with
expected performance degradation factored in. Flow projections at CCWRF are
consistent with current operation, as the WFMP only predicts a cumulative
increase of 0.1 MGD over the 20-year period. As such, there are no significant
demand reduction projects expected at CCWREF. Existing equipment is expected to
be capable of providing the treatment necessary to produce and distribute Title 22
quality water until at least 2034.

The red shaded area in each graph represents the facility demand exceeding the
generation capabilities of the solar installation. There is no red hatched area on the
figure because IEUA has not yet identified efficiency projects to reduce energy
consumption. The seasonal difference in load at CCWRF is again apparent on
Figure 21. Imported power demand during summer months ranges from
approximately 560 kW in FY 14/15 to 660 kW in FY 33/34. The excess winter load
fluctuates from approximately 130 kW in FY 14/15 to 220 kW in FY 33/34. The
increase in these demands over the 20-year period is not a result of increased flow
projections. Rather, it reflects the amount of imported electricity that is expected
to increase each year because of the expected performance degradation of the
solar arrays (estimated to be 1 percent annually).

65



-

JEjogE  SUORInpay Jamod I puewaq AZiau3m

HVIA VIS
4&,&. wm..,e& e&a@ Ap_.om s,w..ﬁwr a%e a.e,.ﬂ_. Esa a@&. w%e aﬁae &..ﬁ_.e ‘_ur_?ﬁ a¢% o._....m,_ a%a @zcv r%a aa.,&. &.ﬁa .oa,&.
0 e e s e e ——t— L i e o b e e e TR B .llﬂ o
|
.— o0z
. oor
- — —
- | e
SEN - - - e .+ §.ﬂ
ANVYIANEA JV3id H3LNIM
" oozt

00t 1

R - L N S calP G R o e L DL U P

ANYW3A Nv3ad YININNS

SHLNOW HALNIM ANV HAWWNS Y04 LSV2dH0d ANVIWAQ YIMOd dVAA-0Z AUMDID "TT HAN 3L

{motl) aNvwaa ¥amod

(A1) aNVINQ ¥aMOd

66



CCWREF projections indicate a reliable demand over the next 20 years. The amount
of imported electricity during winter months is not well-suited toward adding
additional renewable power projects, as installations in the 100-200 kW range are
typically cost prohibitive. Furthermore, expansion of the current solar system on
site is infeasible due to a lack of available space. Should a cost-effective distributed
generation project be identified, it would almost certainly require an export
agreement with SCE.

Potential New Profects

Opportunities for further self-generation, energy management, and efficiency
projects at CCWRF are limited due to the consistent electrical load, existing solar
generation, and status as a Direct Access customer. Table 11 lists projects that
have been considered for implementation at CCWRF and discusses the feasibility
of each.

67



upne A319Ua IAlS

-uayaidwod e ySno.Uiy} pasllyde ag p[nod Jusw
-ssasse Jo adA) ST, "9AN09)j 1500 aJB SaInseaul
UONBAIISUOD AS19UD JT UIULISISP PUE JINJINLIS
-EJJU JUS.LIND 3} SSISSE 0} Papasl aq p[nom
wa1s4s Iie passardmod s A1[10e) 3Y3 Jo Hpne Uy

495 woly sadreys puewap ySy 01 329[qns jou

S1 pUE I8UI0}SN) SS32Y 10311(] B SI JYMDD 9Sned
-2q 9ALDJJ3 1509 aq 10U AJ¥I] [[Im spoLtad yead
-uou 0} uonelade JYAH 1wWI[ 01 sjo.nuo?) paserd
-al 9q ued eyl Juswdmba AJjnuapi 03 Lemaapun
S1 s3uN DY AH Sunsma s JYmdD JO JUSWSSISSE Uy

*SS3UIANIYS 1500 pue sSUJAES [Bjua)}
-od a1} sS9sSE 0) pa1mnbal aq [[IM 3JMPNIISBIjuL
Sunys Sunsixa s Jo ypne aarsusyardwos y

*TIMDD e saunseaw SulAes-150) p[aIA pInoo
9I1AIIS S L, "SUOTIEN[EAD Jo s3dA] 3Sa1p) Yum S0
-ua8e o1qnd ysisse 03 pauBisap 9JIALSS Jpnie IS0
-0l © S.19JJ0 N.I0MIaN AS1auyg 3yl “AIfIoe] Yoes Jo

Suonen[eAs aAISuayarduic) 0] paRIMUWOD J3AU
sey Inq ‘syipne 3sed wo.j syyauaq uaas sey v il

Anqqiseay

*SwIa1sAs I1e passaxduwod

s A1[oe) a1} SUIZISUMOP UdAD Jo SUlZi[e.nuad
ySnoayl pasaryase aq pnoed sguraes Ad1aua

uoneziupgdp
Je1[) afqissod st 3] “Amye] ay) Inoysnoayl pated
Jry passaidwon
-0[ SUIA]SAS J1e passatduiod sidp[nw surejuod
ALyoe] ay) 4nsad e sy “Ire passaldwod axmb
-8 sassanold jusunean MDD 913 Jo Auely
‘sponad yead-uou 03 uonessdo
IVAH HWI] 1By} S[OLUO0I HM PSIIPINO I0 S[3 sape.dd pue
-potul JusdLd alow 03 papesddn aq ued s3iun ,
s[ejuo) OVAH
253t} Jo AUB "[0.1IU0I LW 10] SUN IYAH
asn 3ey} s3uIp[Ing JO [Jpuey e Sey 2YMDD
“fouapiyye
aSE.IIUL 0] S[OIIUO0I YIIM PSNGINO 10 ST sapeid

a8esn-mo] 3m pacejdal aq ued Jer Sma) -dp Suny8ry
-s£s Jumy31[ Joopino pue 100pul SeY JUMD)D

“Sa1

-u3apYya euonesado JayS1y ur 3nsad ued jeys
suonesyIpow $$3704d 0S[e 3Nq ‘SIJOLAI JUSW

1pny A310u
~-dinba wogy s8ulaes [enuajod ajenjeaa A[uo ey 1
jou jei sypne A315Ud aAlsuayaIduiod Ionpuod
ues satueduron aotalas A31aua Lred panyg,
uondrLosag IWEN

SLOAI0Yd ADYEANH DIMDD TYILNALOd "TT T4VL

Louayyg
[eucnesadp

Louaoylq
[euonesadp

Aouapiyy
[euoneiadp

Auaiduy
[euoneladg

adAy
aloxd

68



Inpnaseljul Sunsxa s Aouady o

uo Joedu s3dafoxd 3] SUTWLISSP €] JuewsaIde
Tenusajod sy} ajen[eaa [Im yN4l "s8uiaes 1502
pourad yead jo s8ejueape axe) 0} 2D1AISS pI[pung
0] Y2UMS 0] paau A[9YI] P[NOMm JYMDD PANDEIIE

' a1e s§uiaes 3500 pue ANfIqIXa[] PEO] JO Jyauaq pue
51500 [eydes jo yoe ay L 'sen[oe) Louady e syal
-o01d a8e103§ A310uq asuodsey puewa( dojaaap
01 f&1.1ed paiy) e £q payoeordde usaq sey yndl

‘spoafoad aferoys AS19us [erjuaed ajen

-[eAa 03 SNURUOD (1M Y[ 10sloxd 2A129139 1500
e p[al£ A[[enualod p[nos ajel y( ay3 Sulfjipowr 1o
UONBZIPISQNS “19A9MOY] “IoWCISN) Y(J € Sk SMEls
s A[10'] 341 03 1P JHAMDD J€ SATII]JD 1500 10U

s1 A3ojoutaa) afelo)s £31aUa Jualiny “sedreyo
puewap oL Surpioae £q s1s03 £1311)09]3 U0 3AES
o3 renuayod sy sey ‘spoutad yead-jjo Surmp £
-DLSe SuL1ols YSnoay paaaiyase SunjIys peo
‘uonENn[eAS

siy) uo sended vdd 93 YIM YI0M 0} anuTjued
M YN[ "£ouady a1]3 10J 2ALDD 1502 ST 1eY] an
-[eA e e SARLIE 3 [[9S 0] SUI[[IM 3G 1SN IDUMO
9y} ‘Iaaamoy “1eumo 1aload Wwarmd ay) yum
aseypand enusjod a1} ynoge palmbur sey ynHI

's]joq)a. UOLje1ae 10] MO[[e 0] A|3uIpaodde
sa[npayos uonerado jsnlpe pue quawdinbs mau
a1} Jo ssauaAnoape 3soo Anuapl ‘suondo juawr
-aaedal [enuajod sjenfeas 03 pasu pnom yN Al

Anngisead

‘faed

P13 31 A PaJ1aA02 9( P[NOM SUOTIR[[EISUI
a8e103s ay} 10j saanyipuadxa [ejde) “sown
Jatpo ye Sulaeys yead Jo0] ays 1501 a1y £q
pue ‘awn ay3 Jo uonsod e uondwnsuod yead
Jo spotiad Sulinp ssuodsal puewap 10J s Q]
Aq pasn aq pnod ey} Sa)s 1501 Je agel0ls
A1a13eq Surreisut A11ed pInp) B SA[OAUT p[noMm
1aload ay L, Juawmdojaaap Jo sadels renur

u1 APua1In s1iey) peoidde sanesouur ue
sI (00} @suodsas puewap e se agelo0)s AG1ouy

‘palinbai aq asimlajo pjnom 11odxa
uaym a}IS UO IS 153e] I0] pPadols pue spoLiad
yead Sunnp paziwrunu se saseyaaind LyoLn
-33[2 Je1]1 2INSU3 p[noo adelols JusWaseueul
pEO[ yum }sIsse 03 ASojouyra) afelols A519ua

JO UOnE[[EISUI S} W] Jgauaq Aewl JYM DD

‘UonEIauAS J18]0S WOy 53500 L)

~1JLI03[3 NN S)BUTLI[S 0} SM[EA )8} IBUI JiE]
je spaued a1 Burseypand SuLiapisuod s1ynAl
'Vdd & ySnoayl yndl 03 pios Apus.aind s1 erre
Jeres My §z9 a3 wolj pajesauas ramod ay,

‘£3uargye Jajsuel) uad

-Ax0 1oYy31Y YIIM SIISnJJIp 10 sIamojq £ouald
-1JJa 13yS81y 03 WIISAS uonelae Junsixs ay) 3ur
-pei3dn £q paAaTydE 3q pNod UONeAIaSUO0D A3
-Iaug "MO[j Jre SNONunNuod Juedyudis sarmbal
31 se ‘ssasoad aalsuajul A81aua ue S| UCHEIDY

uopdLosaqg

uoTye]
-Tejsuj agde103s ekl
= ~a8euep
A31auyq ssuods
A3Ioug
-3y puewa(
suone[eISu Juett
mmmh”u ﬁm._m_“ -sBeuEl
& 4 A31suy
suone| JusW
-[eysuf Jejos sul -ageuepy
-1STXJ aseyaing A313ug
sapeaddpn Louaroyyg
ulseq uonelay = [eucnetsdp
adA],

JuIeN 139(014

69



Project Forecasts

IEUA's ability to install new renewable energy projects at CCWRF is limited by
available land and low import demand. In the near term, [EUA will focus on energy
efficiency projects to optimize the treatment process and minimize the electrical
demand. IEUA will work with a third party energy consultant to conduct a

comprehensive energy audit of CCWRF that will identify potential efficiency
projects.

70



REGIONAL PLANT NO, 2

RP-2 has been in operation since 1960. Originally designed to treat both liquids
and solids, the facility has exclusively treated biosolids since 2002. At RP-2, all
solids removed from RP-5 and CCWRF are thickened and digested. RP-2 contains
digesters and dewatering facilities that generate renewable digester gas from the
solids that have been removed during the liquids phase wastewater treatment
process.

RP-2 is operated under a lease with the United States Army Corps of Engineers.
With the lease term set to expire in 2035, IEUA plans to remove RP-2 from service
within the next eight to ten years and relocate the solids processing to RP-5. As a
result, the energy management opportunities at RP-2 are limited to projects with
short payback periods without significant infrastructure.

Gas Production

RP-2 has three anaerobic digesters in operation and an aerobic digester that is
only put in service during emergencies. In FY 13/14, the digestion operation
produced an average of 160 standard cubic feet per minute (scfm) of digester gas,
or approximately 229,100 scf per day. The acid phase gas, which is the product of
the first phase of mesophilic digestion, cannot be consumed in the beiler or
cogeneration engine due to its low quality. Unlike RP-1, RP-2’s acid phase gas is
not continuously flared. The acid phase gas is sent to gas mixers and injected into
the second phase of the digestion system. After assisting with solids mixing, the
acid phase gas is combined with the digester gas from the second phase and is
combusted as needed in RP-2’s boilers, engine, or flare. The acid phase gas can also
be sent directly to the flare if operating pressures of the second phase digesters are
too high.

The heating value of the digester gas typically measures between 550 and 625
Btu/scf. The preferred destination for this gas is RP-2’s 580 kW cogeneration
engine. This ICE is operated and maintained by IEUA staff on site. In FY 13/14, the
ICE consumed an average of 116 scfm. The ICE is subject to SCAQMD Rule 1110.2,
which requires that stationary digester gas-fueled engines meet stringent
emissions limits by January 1, 2016 for VOC, nitrogen oxides (NOy), and carbon
monoxide (CO). While there has been discussion of extending this implementation
deadline to January 1, 2017, no rule language has been promulgated indicating as

71



such. Retrofitting the RP-2 ICE with sufficient emissions control technology to
meet these standards would prove to be cost prohibitive. Therefore, IEUA plans to
remove the ICE from service by the end of the 2015 calendar year.

RP-2’s hot water boilers are the second option for the digester gas. The boilers are
required to produce heat for the digestion process, and are capable of operating on
either digester gas or natural gas, but not a blend. The boilers are operated on
digester gas when production is high enough to operate both the ICE and boiler, or
when the ICE is down for maintenance. When the digester gas production exceeds
both the ICE and boiler demands, the excess digester gas is combusted in the flare.

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load at RP-2 for summer (June through September)
and winter (December through February) months are shown on Figure 22.
Imported electricity and ICE generation are included on these two load profiles.
The figure shows a slight reduction in overall load during summer, with peak
consumption around 180 kW in summer and approximately 165 kW during
winter. The load at RP-2 is so low that approximately 40 percent of the electricity
generated from the ICE was used on site in FY 13/14, while 60 percent was
exported.

72



174
or
09
o8
00T
ozt
orT
091
081
00z

o0z
or
09

00T
0ZT
ori
091
081

00T -

&

uaBo) jo aBelaay @ uutonE_ Jo afesany

A.\A\ %A..A.. <L gl Leh

)- .J).FA. 0).0&
%%%%%%.% %%%ooaaoaaooaoaaooeoq%.

ERBEEIRC®C
[ 2] L o o
(mvo1) 39WSn ALDINIDITI

g

g

F1HO¥d AVOT1 HIINIM

.(

3
~

e’ w8y S AT A A A T . . . . . - . .
gt ™ %a%aoﬂ,%%%.oo%oaam.%@oaro%oama%o%%e%a%o
c T

S
=i
(A1) 39S ALIDIMLDATA

311H04d AVOT ¥ININNS

SHLNOW d4.LNIM ANV YIWWNS NN ATE0Ud AVO'T Z-dd ADVHAAY $T/€T Ad "ZZ TUNDIA

73



Figure 22 also shows that imported electricity consumption is much higher at RP-2
during summer months. RP-2 has two electrical meters with SCE. One meter serves
the control room building, which typically imports electricity to power the lighting
and HVAC needs of the building. The second meter services the rest of the
treatment plant. With the two meter configuration, the ICE may be exporting
power while RP-2 still receives imported electricity for the control room needs.
Imported electricity is significantly lower during winter months, when the HVAC
system is not operated as frequently.

Electricity Procurement

Table 12 lists the two sources of electricity at RP-2. Imported electricity purchases
are obtained through general bundied service with SCE. The cost of the electricity
generated by the ICE is determined by the average O&M costs IEUA spends to keep
the ICE in operation divided by the total electricity produced. Electricity costs
generated by the ICE have historically been estimated at $0.08/kWh. The
compensation that IEUA receives for exported power fluctuates each month. In FY

13/14, SCE paid IEUA an average of $0.052/kWh for electricity exported from RP-
2.

TABLE 12. FY 13/14 RP-2 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

Generation Source Service Rate Percentage of

Facility Load
Imported Bundled General Service 22
ICE (580 kW) . 0&M Costs 78

In FY 13/14, on-site generation accounted for 78 percent of the total facility load.
As expected with the engine size, the amount of electricity generated on site
regularly exceeds RP-2's total consumption. However, power generated by the ICE
cannet be used in the control room building due to the separate utility metering,
As a result, 22 percent of RP-2's power needs are met through importing
electricity.

74



Demand Response

RP-2 participates in the DR program through EnerNOC. During a DR event, RP-2
staff is tasked with reducing the facility load by 10 kW, a nominal value that was
selected in order to include RP-2 in the Agency’s DR portfolio. This drop in load
represents less than one percent of the overall load reduction target of 1,230 kW
that IEUA has agreed to across all Agency facilities. In FY 13/14, RP-2 exceeded
100 percent of its target in two of the six DR events and averaged a load reduction
of 6 kW per event.

RP-2 could contribute additional load during demand response events in the form
of exported power. Increasing the ICE output could have the same grid effect as
dropping load at the facility, but exported power is not compensated in the current
DR program. If the DR program were to incentivize power that is exported above
the facility’s baseline, [EUA could temporarilj increase ICE load to maximize the
power output.

Energy forecast

Figure 23 shows the 20-year energy forecast for RP-2. There are no significant
energy demand projects planned for the facility because the solids processing is
expected to be relocated within ten years. Figure 23 incorporates the expected
renewable generation from the ICE through December 2015. The demand growth
is assumed to be proportional to expected flow increases at CCWRF and RP-5.

The blue shaded area in each figure represents the anticipated generation from the
RP-2 ICE, which exceeds the RP-2 demand when operational. With the ICE
operation terminated by the end of 2015, RP-2 will import electricity for all of its
power needs beginning in 2016. The maximum summer load of approximately 180
kW occurs in FY 23/24, RP-2's expected final year of operation. The maximum
winter load of approximately 170 kW occurs in FY 23/24 also. RP-2 is expected to
remain in full operation until the solids processing operation is complete and
active at RP-5.

75



00T -

00Z

00€ -

peuodx3 T IDIM  SUDHONPSY JAMOJFY  puewag ABIsugm

a0z -

00E

oot -

nne

UY3A YIS

a@.,@m ma,.e@ e&am a&% om,% a;% @e..ﬂr ﬂ%a oﬁar &__ae .aa_.% A%u_. e._._.aa a%a a;&. ma.% @».3 _vfoa aa,% &.ﬁa
m i L g S Y S U
_
_

ANYIN3Q MV3d 33INIM
P I T L s S S R e T ] S O A ST P A

B

GNYINIa NV3d YIWNNS

SHLNOW 43.LNIM NV Y2 WINNS Y04 LSYOHYO0d ANVIWHA YHMOd YVHA-0Z Z-dY "€Z TdNDA

aﬁ&.

00T

00z

0ot

{Mx) ONYWIG YIMOd

(M) aNvINaa H3MmOod

76



Despite the ICE shutdown at the end of 2015, RP-2 will continue to produce
digester gas. In FY 13/14, the treatment plant produced an average of 160 scfm of
.digester gas. Figure 24 charts RP-2’s anticipated gas production based on expected
flow increases to RP-5 and CCWRF. The projected ICE gas usage is shown in dark
blue. Once the ICE is shut down, digester gas will primarily be consumed by the
boiler. Boiler gas usage, shown in light blue, is estimated to meet the average heat
demand of the facility beginning in 2016. RP-2’s digestion process does not require
the amount of heat generated by the boilers operating at full load, so there will be a
portion of digester gas combusted in the flare as well.

FIGURE 24. RP-2 20-YEAR GAS PRODUCTION FORECAST

200
180
160
120 -
120
100
80
60

40

DIGESTER GAS PRODUCTION (SCFM)

20

0
R L L AR s LA AN A G g ,p‘» RN IN AR o

FISCAL YEAR
{EDigester Gas Production  mBoiler Gas Usage  mEngine Gas Usage

RP-2 is in a unique position as a generator of renewable digester gas as it will no
longer be able to operate the existing ICE due to environmental restrictions. IEUA’s
Business Goals identify the need to beneficially use digester gas and strive toward
energy independence during peak periods. However, these goals must be achieved
cost effectively, New self-generation projects are difficult to justify for a facility
that is only expected to be in operation for an additional eight to nine years.

Potential New Projects

RP-2's digester gas production offers several opportunities for distributed
generation and efficiency projects, as shown in Table 13.

77



*Z-dy 1e uoneruawaiduw Joj SIS

~EDJUI 9( 0] PRUIULIAISP Sem 103foxd sIyL "G-J¥ 031
paaouw s1 BuIssanoid spijos ay) aduoe a1eso[al 0]
IMIIPIP A134 3q os[e p[nom ASo[ouyaa) 1), *SIAD
-U9IU} JULUILIBA0T (M UlA ‘BADNIqIYo.ld 3503
8 03 PaUULIaI8P SEM 3JBWITISA UL, "UOTIB[[BISUT
1192 [2Ny MY 00€ e Joj [esodoad e paaranal ¥l

"3A[Dage 2q 0}

uaao.Id 184 sey Sunpou ynq ‘ssuifua paanj-ses .9
-15981p uo pajensuowap Suraq ApuaLmd are said
-0[0U1I3] [0JIU0 JANEILIAY "dAnIqIyoad 1502 aq
pmom waioad a3 Jey) pauluLI31ap pue i1sed I
uI suone[[e1sul yans 10J sjesodoad paarasal yd]
aurdue z-JY 9Y3 I0J UOLIE[[eISUT JAZIpIX0 JnNL[eIe
/DS ue Surrapisuod usym suonedipdmwed juasald
I1e azis aurdus pue ‘O1fenb sed ‘Inode] ANyoe] 3y,

*SS9UDANIBJJI 10D pue

s8uraes enjuajod a1 ssasse 03 paimbal aq [Im
ampnnseyur Sunysi Sunsms Jo Jipne uy ‘Peis
J0J y1om juentpiudis axmbaa jou pip pue yoeqLed
1Ioys B paLLed Aoy JiI pans.and aq Ajuo pnom
syyo.aa 10 sapeiddn BunySiy yewn A1 s11]

Annqiseay

"GWOVDS a3 £q pajen3aa

aq jou pynom L3y Jey) ySnous mof aq p[nom
[192 [3Ny 91 WO.J sSuoisstwy ‘z-Jy Je uoneiado
10j 3zIs [ewndo ay) aq pnom ({23 [31Y MY 00€
e ‘papiacad sjesodoad uo paseg "s31s uo panp
-o0.d sed aty) wo.ay yomod pue jeay ajersusd

0} [[92 [en] SeF J191SaBIp € [[EISUl p[nod YNl

‘GT0Z JO PUA 33 Je UMOp IS SI )] 3Y) IoUQ

‘T0TTT 21Ny WOV 4Aq pasodul
SIUI}] SUOISSTWA 9TZ U3 199 03 YInoua mo|

SUQISSIW UIdNP3L 1B JANIS]J5 3] 03 udAoId
Uua9aq aABY SJISZIPIXC INATEIED (Him pajdnod
swa)sAs (YDS) 1sA[e1ED UOHINPAL JANII3S

AJuo ‘Apusa.Lm) "weansumop £30[outaa) jo.01
-U0D SUQISSIUIA pue g7 a1 Jo weansdn wa)
-sAs Suiuonipuoo sed e Suijeisul Aq g Bunst
-Xa 9y} Jo adejueape aye] pjnom oaload siyjJ,

*A3Ua121JJ8 9SeaIOUL 0] S[OLJUCD YJIM PanIl)
~3N0 JO SHT 28esn-mo[ yim pasejdal aq ued
1B} swaisAs Sunysif Joopul Aued sey Z-JY

uondpsag

S103[0¥d A9YANE 2-dd IVILNILOJ €T ATdV.L

UuonE[[eIsu]
[1°0 [Pnd

D1 U0 [0.U0)

uonsnquIcy)
-1504 [[Easu]

sopeadd|)
Sunydr

saIeN

S92AN0SIY
a[gemaudy

$92IN0SY
J[qeEmauay

Louapyyq
Jeucneradp

ad4),
1aloag

78



-ucndo

ST} 8JEN[BAD 0} INUNUOD [[IM YA 05 ‘PAIIPISU0D
Buraq axe ssnumuacddo juels [e1sA9s ‘Jeasmoy
“1aload pasodoad ayy 1oy Ajjenb jou pip sanijoe)
VN4 ‘YNSal e Sy "PAZIANIUAIUL 519M SeS 1935331p
Jo uyas QOO‘T Jo ssaoxe ul Sunpoad ANUslSISuc)
sjueld juauryear) A[uo ey} AQ1S0D 0S paIapIsucd
alam §3501 uondalu] 'SMLOd 01 UCHIEN RAS
uonoaiuy suepawoiq e paplaoctd A[snowasid Hnos

"7-4Y 1e 2]qIseajul Apua.Ling st yafoxd

SIU [, 'SeN[NoyJIp pue $1S00 Juedijiusdis L11ed
pom uonels Suian] e SUnLd0[a. ‘AICULISTIIN]
'suonesado [eo1dA) s,yNAT Ulim 31 AJLIessad9u
jou s30p uonels Suifery N7 e surdofoiap
‘pa.aiaja.ad st uonezinn sed J191s981p ysnoypy

'siead g 0 £ Jaye

Suneoojai jo Juajul a3 Yim paudisap aq pnom
swasAs Suuonipuc) sed pue suIqInIoLI W

a3 Jo uoneelIsu] waload s Jo Apiqisea) ayy
Bunen[eas AQUaLIND SI puUE UCTIB[[EISUL SUIQINY
-0I21UI MY 009 & 10) [esodo.ud e paaedaa vl

Aqses

'5150) IDUBUIUIEUI
Suro8uc pue ‘uonddUUOIINUI ‘BUTICQIPUC)
sed apnppul uonoatur auradid jo s3son *Lrenb
sed ayj Juswndop 03 paambai aq pinom 3un

|-daaxp10od3a pue Surjdures yueoyrudg auijadid

(on2s) s Aueduwor seq e[uaojIe) WISINog
a3 ojur uonH3[ul Palip 10J JNHYNS Afenb
' 03 £1[10€] Ay 3e paonpo.d sed 131se31p

a1y Suruonipuod almbal pinom ysload sy g,

*3]IS U0 UonEls Sul

-[any e do[aaap 0} DN ySnous aeauss pnom
7-dd ‘*1qe[reae sed 121sa31p jo Junowe sy)

U0 pasegq "HNJ Uo 31e1ado 0] SSILDA 193} 911
Jojgonsl axmbai pinom oafoad e yong "Sapiy
-2A 139]] 5 A2uaBy ayj Ul pasn aq 03 HN?) 01 sed
-01q 911 SUI2AUOD paJapISuod sey JJels yNAl

*Jeay pue L1119

ajeIauad 03 L11oe] ay3 £4q paonpo.d sesd sy
Jo [[e 311N pP[nod pue ‘Z'0TTT ANy GWDVIS
Japun SUOTEIU] SUOISSIW 03 1aigqns aq jou
pNCAM SULGINIOIDNW Y], "WoISAS Suruonipuod
sed pue auiqINoITW M3 009 © Yum suidua
uonerauadod 2y aoedar pinom pafoad siyL,

nopdLosag

uonalug
surjadig
ser) [eanieN

UOnE[[EIsu]

(OND)
sen [eimeN

passardwio)

uomne[EISU|

IUIQJIN}OJIT[A

ameN

saoinosay
alqemausy

$20Inosay
a[qemauay

S$22IN0S3Y
a[qemausy

ad4y
123l014

79



Project Forecasts

The relocation of solids processing from RP-2 to RP-5 within the next ten years
eliminates many energy projects from consideration. Efficiency projects with short
paybacks may be warranted, but the introduction of large pieces of equipment is
difficult to justify. Removing the cogeneration engine from service by the end of
December 2015 complicates RP-2's energy forecast. RP-2 will continue to generate
renewable biogas with valuable energy content, but investing capital into a facility
expecting to cease operation within ten years has limited value.

IEUA evaluated several projects that could utilize RP-2’s existing digester gas
production and comply with the stringent air quality regulations. Of the projects
identified, installation of a microturbine appears to be the most feasible based on
cost and portability. However, project success would rely on meeting strict
schedules and budgets. Deviating from either could drastically affect the cost
effectiveness of the microturbine installation. IEUA will consider all aspects of this
project before determining whether to invest in the technology.

80



REGIONAL PLANT NO. 5 AND IEUA HEADQUARTERS

RP-5 is designed to treat an average of 15 MGD of wastewater flow. The treatment
plant employs primary, secendary, and tertiary treatment to produce Title 22
compliant recycled water that is provided to direct use end users. Biosolids
removed from the RP-5 treatment process are pumped to RP-2 for thickening,
digestion, and dewatering.

RP-5 SHF is located adjacent to the RP-5 treatment plant and is designed to
process up to 705 tons per day of food waste and dairy manure. IEUA currently
leases the RP-5 SHF property and equipment to Inland Bioenergy, LLC (IBE). IBE
operates and maintains the facility with the goal of producing sufficient biogas to
operate two 1.5 MW cogeneration engines. IEUA has the option to purchase all of
the power purchased by the engines. Any excess power produced will be exported
to SCE. Currently, RP-5 SHF only processes food waste in two anaerobic digesters.
The first cogeneration engine began to produce power in February 2015.
Currently, IBE plans to operate only one ICE at any time.

IEUA’s two Headquarters (HQ) buildings are located directly west of the treatment
plant. The electricity used at the buildings and Central Plant (designed for heating
and cooling the HQ) is metered with the same utility meter as RP-5. For this
reason, energy efficiency projects considered for implementation in the HQ
buildings and Central Plant will be considered with RP-5.

Facility Load

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter {December through February) at RP-5 are shown on Figure 25. Imported
electricity and solar generation are included in the load profiles. The figure shows
a slight reduction in average load during winter, with peak consumption at
approximately 2.0 MW in summer and approximately 1.7 MW in the winter. The
load reduction during winter months is a result of reduced HVAC operation and
recycled water pumping. The generated solar electricity also varies between the
two seasons, as generation increases in summer months, which have more sunlight
hours each day than winter months.

81



05z
005
0/
0001
0sz'T

00T -
0sL'T -
0007 +
057z -

<Ll 1 o T 5 - oL 3 . 3 . i r -
T Sl AT S Lt L L el A A LR gL i R Al

Jejos jo afesaay] papodwy jo aelany @
.D‘r i agh R <

0

o
g
-
29YSN ALDMIOII

I130Yd QYO HIINIW

Sboal gL Gl
%.@ %u\ %.? nvb %.@

v

AT
o AN

G Loh o L v I R . ; , . B . , ,
S ST S ST ST S E S

R
~
SN ALDIMLIT

T1304d QVOT HININNS |

SHLNOW d2.LNIM ANV YAWINS ONIINA AVOT S-dd G9VIIAY $1/ET Ad "SZ AUNDIA

82



Figure 25 also shows that total electricity consumption is fairly steady throughout
the day with the exception of a peak between the hours of 6:00 and 8:00 and a
drop in consumption between 16:00 and 18:00. The variability in overall electrical
consumption is more dramatic in summer months, as the average load fluctuates
between 1,200 - 2,000 kW. In winter months, the average load varies between
1,400 - 1,700 kW. The amount of electricity imported is expected to decrease in FY
14/15 with the introduction of the cogeneration engines at RP-5 SHF.

Figure 25 includes electricity used by the recycled water pumps. These pumping
demands were not included in previous sections to illustrate IEUA’s increasing
power requirements in distributing recycled water. However, these demands must
be included when considering the overall facility load because they influence the
power procurement and self-generation opportunities that IEUA can pursue.

Electricity Procurement

RP-5 receives electricity from the mix of generation sources listed in Table 14.
Electricity imported to RP-5 is procured through bundled service with SCE. RP-5
also utilizes two distributed generation sources in addition to SCE import. The
combination of 3 MW from the ICEs and the existing 1 MW of generation from the
solar array results in a renewable generation capacity that exceeds the typical
facility load. SCE required IEUA to obtain an interconnection agreement through
the RES-BCT program, which compensates exported electricity through bill credits
at other Agency facilities that are on bundled service. RP-5 distributed generation
projects began to export power in March 2015.

TABLE 14. FY 13/14 RP-5 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

. Percentage of
Generation Source = Service Type Rate Type Facility Load
Imported Bundled TOU-8-B Standby 82
Solar (1 MW) PPA Fixed with annual escalator 18
89% of i I rt
ICEs (3 MW) PPA &g eq“:::ie“t mpo 0

IEUA did not purchase power from IBE in FY 13/14 because the ICEs were not yet
operational. The procurement rate under the PPA with IBE allows IEUA to
purchase the electricity generated by the engines at a rate equal to 89 percent of
what IEUA would have otherwise paid SCE. A third-party energy service contractor
developed the appropriate tariff structure for power generated from the engines.

83



The contractor will also annually reconcile the billing to ensure that the PPA
provisions are met.

Demand Response

RP-5 participates in the SCE DR program through EnerNOC. During a DR event, RP-
5 staff reduce operation of the recycled water pumps. The RP-5 reduction target of
50 kW represents 4 percent of the Agency’s DR cbligation. Achieving the DR target
is difficult during winter months because RW pumping and demands are already
reduced. In FY 13/14, RP-5 participated in four summer DR events and two winter
DR events. During the summer events, RP-5 reached 100 percent of its target in all
four events and averaged load reductions of 349 kW. However, during the winter
events, RP-5’s load increased by an average of 186 kW. Due to the seasonal
demand variations, it is unlikely that IEUA will commit to additional load reduction
measures.

If the ICEs are operated at full load, RP-5 will likely consistently export to the grid.
Under this scenario, RP-5's participation in the DR program would be minimal
because reductions could not be achieved from a facility with no appreciable load.
Until the operational nature of the ICEs is known, RP-5's DR contribution will
remain static.

Energy forecast

Figure 26 shows 20 years of forecasted average demands at RP-5 for the summer
and winter months, based on the WFMP projections. The figure includes the
expected renewable generation from the cogeneration engines and solar array
including expected solar performance degradation. Although the engines have a
combined capacity of 3 MW, their actual generation is limited by RP-5 SHF's
digester gas production from the food waste feedstock available for processing.
Because RP-5 SHF has yet to achieve full operation, this plan assumes a consistent
output of 500 kW at the end of FY 14/15 and an increase of 500 kW every two
years thereafter until reaching a maximum sustained generation of 1.5 MW in FY
18/19.

The energy demand growth at RP-5 is proportional to an expected flow increase of
approximately 1 percent each year. TYCIP and WFMP projects expected to affect
the power demand were included in the forecast. The relocation of RP-2 solids
processing is expected to be completed in FY 23/24. This project is expected to

84



increase the facility load by over 50 percent. There are currently no energy
reduction projects planned at RP-5.

Figure 26 shows that the peak energy demand at RP-5 does not have much
seasonal difference. The red shaded area in the two graphs represents the facility
demand exceeding the generation capabilities of the solar and cogeneration
installations. Assuming the food waste digestion project is capable of generating
approximately 800 kW, RP-5's renewable portfolio is expected to result in
continuous energy export. Once RP-5 is expanded to include RP-2’s solids
processing, the facility load is expected to exceed the energy generated on site.

85



SILLNOW HH.LNIM ANV HEWWNS 404 LSVITU0d ANYINAA HIMOd dVIA-0Z S-dY "9Z TUNDI

36



Potential New Projects

RP-5’s imported electricity consumption depehds heavily on the success of IEUA’s
food waste digestion project with IBE. With no generation from the engines, RP-5
will continue to import electricity and be subject to high SCE demand charges
during peak periods. If the engines consistently produce more than 800 kW, RP-5
will likely become a continuous exporter of electricity.

Due to the high variability of RP-5s energy forecast, RP-5 would be best served by
taking a cautious approach to new energy projects. Potential projects will also be
evaluated as part of the RP-5 expansion and RP-2 relocation Pre-design Reports.
Cost effective efficiency measures are most likely to be implemented in the short
term. Table 15 outlines projects that have been considered for implementation at
RP-5 and discusses the feasibility of each.

87



‘paziumde aq ued ssajoud S Ji SUIULID}

-9p 0] papuawWWwodal Si uonetado JUaIINI Y] Jo
UO[EN[eA? Ue g ‘paIapIsuod aq o) A[9YI[ 10U ale
SIJO4IBI1 JUIUNSIAUL JUIIAI 1) 0] BN "paj[eIsul
SEM JB[IUD JLIDI[3 JUAIDYYJ ‘Mau e ‘10d{oxd sty Jo
Med sy 10z ui pajajdwod sem jueld [enuad a3
Jo Aqmqerpas a1 Sutaoadwat uo Suisnoog 1refoad v

"SS9UBANIAYJA 1507 pue SSUIAES [erjUa]
-od 31y} ssasse 0} padinbaa aq [[m armPnnseIUL
Sunysi| Sunsxa atp} Jo JIpne aalsusya1duIod y

"G-d¥ Je saunseswl JUIAES-150) P[alL pinod
821A19$ SIY ], 'suonenyeas jo sad£y asay ypm sam
-uage ogqnd )sisse 0] paud[sop ad1AIIS HPNE 150D
-0U E SI1aJjo YIomiaN AS1auy ay [, “L[or] yoes jo

SUOLIEN[BAD SAISUIYAIdUWOD 0} PANIWILOI JIAU
sty Ing ‘sypne jsed wolj syyousq uaas sey Yl

Apqiseag

'sduraes AZ1oua Ul Jmsag

pIneo uonerado paygipoul 1o ‘S[0JIU0D ‘S}jO.I
-38J y3noayy yuerd s Jo Louaidyya ayl Suiaoad
-wj *G-J3 1€ pajeso] jue[d [e13Uad B ysnoayl
paasIyoe s1 DH Joj duijooo pue Suneay ay ],

sBuraes AB1aua alow ul }nsal pnos L8o
«[ouyna] QAT 01 IJOLIAI B "I9ASMO "SAINSEII
Lyuandyye 3unydy Jo [pA2] € paiinbal Yorgm
‘Burp[ing wnuneld 491 & Se psudisap alom
s8urpying YH VNI A2 35IIUI 03 S[o13
02 3}M PRAIJINO JO STHT 28esn-mo[ pIMm
paserdax aq ues yeyy swalsAs Sunysy Joop
-<JNO PUE JOOPUI AISUIIXa dABY DH PUE -4y

g

-uayje reuoyesado Jay3y urInsal ued ey}
suoneIyIpows ssad0.ad os[e Inq ‘s1yo.1al Jusw
~-dmbe wo.y sButaes enuajod ajenfeaa Ljuo
J0U JEI) S)Ipne AZIaUa SAISUaYa1duiod 1p0puod
ued seruedwoo aoialas A81aua Ared panyl

uondLosag

SLDH[0Y¥d ADYANHT S-d¥ TVLLNALOd ‘ST 14V

sjuawdAoIdu]
Jaeld
[enua) JH

saperddp

Sunyadry
OH/5-dd

npny Ldiauyg

swmey

Lousiyg
[euonetadp

Luanpmg
reuoneladg

Louapmy
[euonelad(

add],
Pafoag

88



‘sanijoe)

£2uady ssodoe a0 818 ay) Je 1o3foad £81aus
ajqemaual 1281 e Jo Jusuodwod e se aq pnom
vonejuswadur 109{oxd .10} 91n0J a[gelA }S0W
a1, "9AY3YJ 1500 10U S1 SUO[E Uone)s Suld.reyd
a1y se ‘Surpuny juels almbsa pnom afoad sy

paJojdxa

aq os[e poys sjuridjooy Jajfews ym spued
JUSIIIYS 2I0W ‘Mau YIm s[aued Sunsmo 1504391
03 uondo uy ‘sjpued ayy Sunelofai J0 SUIAOTISL

Jo A)[IqISes] 31} UILIS}Ap 0] Iapraoad

Vdd U3 JIm 9)BUIP.I00D 0) PaduU [Im YNAI

“f11ed pIA e £q paumo SIABLIR Je[0S 31} 9sheloyg

"s]jo.0aa uonelae Ioj mofle 01 A{3uip.1odoe
sa[npatas uonerado isnipe pue quawadmbas mau
3y JO SSausANDAYR 1502 AJnuapl ‘suopdo Jusw
-aoe[dad fenuajod ajenjeas 0] paau p[nom vl

‘upne £31aua aasuaysadwoeo

B YSno.ayl paAalyde aq PInod JUIWISSasse

Jo adA£y STy L, *0AnI9L9 1502 A SaInseaul
UONBAIISTOD £315U2 J1 SUIULII}SP PUE 310}
=JNOSEIJUT JULINY 31} SSOSSE 03 PIPIAU 3q pMoMm
wAsAs Jre passarduro s Ar[oe) sy jo 31pne uy

Aqiseay

SUONINPal HHS Ul NS
-31 OS[E p[nom SAT 01 193] 21Y3A Aouady a3
Sumyonay syaloid uoneraussd pangqLusip
5,5-d4 £q patamod suonels Suidreyp Ax
210w Jurjfeisul Aq A319Ud d[qeMaUIl PISED)
-ug a1} Jo 38ejueApe aye} Ued ] ‘SapdIysa
orqnd £q pasn aq ued jey) suonels Surd.reyd
Ad Te19A9s 3 paddimba Apeaaje st DY vn4l

‘usisap 109load

03 Jouid [eryyauaq aq pmom sppued Jejos 3y} Jo
uon.uod e 2)e20[3.1 10 dA0WR 03 sucndo s,y 1
Jo 8urpuelsiapun uy ‘suoneoyipow jueld ayy
Suru8isap uaym WI2IU0D B 3q 0] pajdadxa si
asn puej ‘G-4Y 01 3uIssano.ad SpI[os Jo UOTIEI0]
-31 9 [PIAA "PUE] JO $S.I08 (T Alleau BULISACD
‘L1[1o€] atp Jo uonaod 1SoMIPNOS aty) U0 PI[Tels
-ut sjoued Te[0s Jo pAN T Sey Apualind -4y

-fousyye Iajsuen; uadixo Jaydiy

TIM SIISTYJIP 10 SI1amofq A>usiiys I9ys1y
03 wsAs uonelae Sunsxa ayy Surpeaddn
£q paaaIyoe ag pInod UONBAIISUCD ABIauUy
*MOj ITe SnONUNIUO0? JuedyIudis saambad

11 se ‘ssas01d aA1suajul AS10Ua Uk SI UONRISY

"SwIa)sAs J1e passaaduiod s A1[10e)

aya Surzrmndo ySnoayy passuyde ag pnod
s8uiaes £81aua e aqssod st 3] "A[oe] sy
InoySno.1y) pareso] sSwa)sAs e passarduwod
ardnnw surejuod A|oe]) sy ], “1re passardurod
axmnbai sassasoad jusunean §-Jy 2ul Jo Auep

uondiLosag

suonels
Suirey)
3PIY3A JLOI3[Y
OH

uoneesuy
Jejog
asea1da( §-dy

sapeaddn
uIseq uonelay
S-dd

uoneziundQ
Jry passaidwo)

S-dd

JweN

$32.1M0S3Y
alqemauay

$321N0S3Y
a[qemaudy

Aouspyya
feuopeadp

£rus1oyyg
[euonesadp

Pafoiy

89



‘aImpnaseljur Sunsma s AHuady

a3 uo 1oedurn soaload a1y sunLIalap 03 JUIW
-2313e [enuajod Iy} ajenyeAa [[Im V(H] PALOERINE
aJe s3ujaes 3502 pue L[[IqIXaY PeO] JO JYsUaq pue
51500 [e31ded Jo yae[ Ay L, 'sanijioe] Louady 1e s103(
-0.1d afe.01g A1auy asucdsay puewaq dopaasp
01 £3.red panp e £4q payoeoidde usaq sey ynH]

"UOTIRZIPISQNS JUeLS YIIM S[qelA oq Aew!

oload ay ], AIqxay yuswaSeuewr ajgen[eaur
ap1aoad ued ade03s se ‘ASojouyoay ap ansind

0] SNUALOD [[IM VNI "S- 18 A0S 1800

10U sy AS0[0UTI5] JUALIND JEY} PUNOJ PUB SICPUIA
a8eu0)s A81aus wog sesodoxd paaresal sey yAl

"UOREN[BAD
s11 uo sanded vdd a1 Hm HI0Mm 0} anURUC)
(M Y] *A2uady at) J0J 3ANI3YR 1500 S1Iey]

anfea e je sAeLIe 5 [[9S 03 SUI[Im 3G ISNUW ISUMO
a1} ‘T19ABMOH “IBUMO 133(01d Jua1Ind ay) Ym
aseyoand enuaod ayy Inoqe paambur sey ynA[

Anpiqiseay

“Kred

PIIY) 31 Aq P3ISA0D 8¢ P[NOm SUCHE[EISU]
ade103s ay} 105 saanjipuadxa [epde) “sawin
Ja1po Je Sulaeys yead JoJ 231s 1501 Ay Aq
pue ‘ourn ay3 jo uoniod e uonduwnsuoea yead
Jo spouiad SuLmp asuodsaa puewap 10J s) Q[
Aq pasn aq p[nod 1ey} sa)1s 1soy Je afeims
Aranyeq Suiqeisul A11ed paryl e aA[0AUI p[nOM
paloid ayJ, Juswido[aasp Jo sadels reniul

ut Apuatand st yerp Yoeoadde saneaouu] ue
s] [003 9suodsal puemap e st ade.a03s A3aouy

umma.mE are

s3jeI [10] UayMm 9IS U0 pasn uay} pue spoLiad
yead jo apisino (A3o[ourd91 98103 Ie[IWIs
J0) salIaneq a31eyd 03 pasn aq p[noa suor}
-E2[[EISU] S[qemausd JeY} aInsua p[nod agelois
‘Juswafeuewl peof (3im isisse 03 AJojou

-9} afer0)s A819u2 Jo UOnE[[EISUL IY] WOY
1gouaq Aewr G-JY "AM[IDe] 3J1AIDS pajpunyg e sy
‘5-d 03 pajedolai st 3ulssad

-oud spijos aouo suondo s £ousdy ay) pued
=Xo 0s[e pnom syoued Ie[os ay jo dIgSIaum()
"uonelaussd Ie[os Woly $3502 A191L09[8 Iy
S1BUIWI[ 0] IN[eA 133Jew J1ej] e saued ay)
Surseysand Burtapisuod st yq] 'Vdd © ySnoap
VNHI 01 p[0S AQUA.LIn? ST IS uo s[pued

Je[0S JO MIN T 91 Wog] pajerauas Jamod ay L,

nopnduosag

uone[eIsu}
afea015 A810uy
asuodsay

puewa( S5-d3d

Sucne[elsu]
adel0lg

AdIauyg -4y

SUOTIE[
-[easuj Iejog Sur
-)SIX3F aseyaanyd

S-dd

aureN

Jusw
-a8euep
A819uy

jusw
-ofeuey
A31ouy

waw
-a3euepn
A31aug

od4iy,
Pafoid

80



Project Forecasts

Forecasting the energy future of RP-5 is difficult with the uncertainty surrounding
the food waste digestion project at RP-5 SHF. The cogeneration engines fueled by
the digester gas from RP-5 SHF are rated at 3 MW. The facility has secured an
interconnection agreement with SCE that compensates the Agency for exported
power, but the food waste project has yet to prove that sustained operation.

Projects focusing on energy efficiency and load flexibility should yield positive
results regardless of the food waste digestion project’s success. [EUA will work
with a third party energy consultant to conduct a comprehensive energy audit of
the RP-5 and HQ facilities to develop energy efficiency measures and reduce power
consumption cost effectively.

As a bundled service customer with distributed generation, RP-5 is an ideal
candidate for energy storage that could reduce utility costs during peak periods
and optimize load management, Pursuing the Demand Response Energy Storage
project could improve RP-5’s resource flexibility and lower utility bills without
committing capital outlay.

The relocation of RP-2’s solids processing and RP-5 expansion will significantly
impact RP-5's infrastructure and energy profile. The pre-design phase of the
relocation project is expected to begin in July 2015. Given the large area currently
dedicated to the solar array, IEUA will evaluate the available options for modifying
the array if the land is needed for new solids processing equipment.

91



ALL TEUA FACILITIES

Overall, IEUA has the capacity to treat an average of 84.4 MGD of wastewater flow.
In FY 13/14, the RP-1, RP-4, RP-5, and CCWRF combined to produce 38,252 AF of
Title 22-compliant recycled water for indirect reuse and groundwater recharge
and the biosolids processed at RP-1 and RP-2 accounted for approximately 36
percent of the 147,800 wet tons of biosolids composted at the IERCF. In addition to
the treatment plants and composting facility, electrical consumption from the
pump stations and GWR facilities are included in this section as well.

Gas Production

IEUA generates renewable digester gas from solids processing at RP-1 and RP-2. In
FY 13/}4, the two facilities combined to produce over 375 million cubic feet of
biogas at an average of 715 scfm. One of the Agency’s energy goals is to effectively
manage the renewable digester gas by maximizing its beneficial use, Figure 27
categorizes the gas consumption at IEUA facilities in FY 13/14.

FIGURE 27. FY 13/14 DIGESTER GAS CONSUMPTION BY EQUIPMENT

92



In FY 13/14, over half of the digester gas produced by IEUA facilities was flared.
Ideally, the flares at RP-1 and RP-2 should be utilized as emergency relief valves
for the gas loop, rather than serving as the primary consumer. However, the
amount of gas flare in FY 13/14 was largely due to the complications with the fuel
cell’s gas conditioning system. Because the gas conditioning system was unable to
sufficiently treat the digester gas for consumption in the fuel cell, the fuel cell
operated strictly on natural gas during the majority of year. At RP-2, the ICE
proved more reliable as a consumer of digester gas. In FY 13/14, only 34 percent
of the digester gas produced at RP-2 was flared, while 58 percent of RP-1’s gas was
consumed by the flare. Predicting the Agency’s gas consumption with full fuel cell
operation will be shown in the Energy Forecast section of this plan.

Agency Leoad

The average hourly electrical load for summer (June through September) and
winter (December through February) months at all IEUA facilities are shown on
Figure 28. Imported electricity, energy reductions, and generation from solar,
wind, fuel cell, and ICE installations are included on these two load profiles.
Beginning in 2016, the RP-2 ICE will no lenger operate, but the two 1.5 MW ICEs at
RP-5 SHF are expected to be operational. The figure shows an average load
reduction of 1.1 MW during colder months. Peak consumption is around 11,300
kW in summer and approximately 9,800 kW in the winter. In FY 13/14, on
average, approximately 68 percent of the Agency’s summer load was imported
from the grid, and approximately 72 percent of the electricity consumed during
winter months was imported. During peak periods, imported electricity accounted
for 62 percent and 70 percent, respectively.

93



301 Jo afesany @ puip, Jo 9813y ] 123 9n4 o afessayEl  Jejos jo oBesaay O papodw) o adetany ]

%% ST S G 5 ST G $T $T ST 6 ST S $T 0 @ ob 8 $° Y ¥ T & &
0 -0
000°% 000'%
000°Z 0007 m
000°E 000’ 3@
000y - 0007 =
000°s - 000°S m
0009 — 0009 -
0002 - o000'L $
000'8 - oo0's o
000'6 000°6 M
00001 00001
000°TT ) - -t .=t 000°1T
- - “THO¥G Q0T HANIM |
S F ST G G G T 9T ¢ G ST G T @ P B P ¢ ¢ ¢
0 - 0
000't 000°F
0007 000z [
000°€ oo’ 1]
000y - o00'r B
000's -000's
000'9 000's =
000°L = o002z &
000’8 oo0's @
0006 - s ; ' 0006 o
00001 “ .... . # 00001
§-.ﬂ._” T ' S, SSS— e e—— SOsH.H
000°ZT - 31d0Ud AYOTHIWINNS | o

SHLNOW YALNIM ANV YIANNS DNTINA ATIA0Yd AVOT VNIl ADVHIAY ¥ 1/ET Ad 82 TUNDIA

54



Electricity Procurement

IEUA’s diverse generation portfolio results in a number of procurement strategies
and sources. Table 16 lists the various sources of generation that provide power to
the Agency. The fuel cell costs in Table 16 include IEUA’s natural gas costs that are
required for the fuel cell operation. The cost of the electricity generated by the
cogeneration engines is determined by the average O&M costs IEUA spends to
keep the ICE in operation. These costs have historically been estimated at $0.08/
kWh.

TABLE 16. FY 13/14 IEUA ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT

Generation Service Percentage of Percentage of

Source Type satefyps Overall Load Overall Costs
Imported Bundled Various 23.0 21.7
Imported TR Market-prices 45.8 45.7

Access _
Fuel Cell 28 MW)* | ppa | Fixed withannual 196 223
escalator

Fixed with annual
Solar (3.5 MW) PPA escalator 8.2 8.0

. Fixed with annual
Wind (1 MW) PPA escalator 0.6 0.4
ICE (0.58 MW) - O&M Costs 2.8 1.7

*Includes [EUA’s natural gas costs for fuel cell operation.

In FY 13/14, on-site generation accounted for 31 percent of the total facility load
and 33 percent of the Agency’s electrical costs. The load from each generation
source only includes electricity. Thermal generation from the fuel cell and
cogeneration engine is not included in this table. The table shows that the fuel cell
electricity costs are the most expensive generation sources in IEUA’s portfolio. It is
likely that the proportionate cost of power generated from the fuel cell will
decrease in future years because the PPA’s annual escalation rate is lower than
historically averaged imported rate increases.

Demand Response

IEUA participates in the DR program through EnerNOC. During a DR event, IEUA
staff is tasked with reducing the overall Agency load by 1,230 kW. In FY 13/14,
IEUA exceeded 100 percent of its target in three of the six DR events and averaged

95



-

a load reduction of 1,355 kW per event. IEUA’s ability to meet its reduction target
depended heavily on the time of year. Over the four warm weather DR events,
IEUA facilities averaged a load reduction of 1,619 kW per event. Over two events
during colder months, the average load reduction was 828 kW. The difference is
reduction ability is due to the seasonal RW pumping demands to which IEUA is
subject.

IEUA will further refine its demand response capabilities by evaluating the
treatment processes that can be turned off during DR events. In coordination with
Operations staff, IEUA’s Energy Management group will use the sub-metering data
to quantify the load required for each process, then formulate a DR plan that
details which processes can be called upon for load reductions throughout the
year. Seasonal variation will be avoided to the extent possible to ensure that DR
load reduction targets can be reliably met.

g6



For the time being, IEUA’s inability to meet its DR reduction targets during colder
months means that the Agency is unlikely to increase the target in the next DR
contract. However, if SCE would consider compensating facilities for increased
export during DR events, IEUA could optimize its renewable resources to increase
the load available to the grid during demand response events.

IEUA will also evaluate Demand Response Energy Storage projects at several
facilities. Using energy storage to reduce grid demand is a favorable alternative to
taking facility processes offline. Stored electricity not used for grid dispatches can
then be used for peak shaving, resulting in cost savings for the Agency. The
proposed concept would also allow for more frequent demand response events,
which means the I0U would benefit as well,

Energy forecast

Figure 29 shows the 20-year energy forecast for the treatment plants, pump
stations, and composting facility. Energy efficiency projects currently planned are
anticipated to reduce peak consumption by approximately 875 kW. On site
renewable generation is expected to account for a minimum of 49 percent of the
Agency’s load in FY 33/34, and a maximum of 72 percent of Agency load in FY
18/19.

The difference between summer and winter demand ranges from 830 kW to 920
kW. The minimum Agency load over the next 20 years is expected to occur in the
winter of FY 14/15. In both summer and winter forecasts, the Agency demand is
expected to increase by approximately 4 MW over the course of the next 20 years,
with the largest demand increases coinciding with the solids expansion and MBR
installation projects.

97



SHLNOW JHLNIM ANV HdWHANS HOA LSYOHHOd ANVINIA YIMOd dVHA-0Z VNHI "6Z HANDIA

98



Gas production forecasts for the entire agency are shown on Figure 30. The figure
estimates changes in gas production at RP-1, RP-2, and RP-5, as well as anticipated
gas usages in the RP-1 fuel cell, RP-2 engine, and RP-2 boiler. The relocation of RP-
2’s solids handling process to RP-5 will result in the removal of the RP-2 boiler.
However, because the heat demand is not expected to change with the solids
handling relocation, an equivalently sized boiler is expected to begin operation at
RP-5. For this forecast, the RP-2 and RP-5 boilers are estimated to use the same
amount of digester gas.

FIGURE 30. JEUA 20-YEAR GAS PRODUCTION FORECAST

1,200 1,200
1,100 1,100
1,000 1,000
= 900 500
£
O 800 800
o,
Zz 700 700
[=]
5 600 600
E 500 500
£ 400 400
2 a0 300
9
l.;‘_,. 200 200
8 100 100
Q9
2 o

-0
'19\ﬁm\‘ﬂmﬂﬁﬂ?\ﬂﬁ\@m‘&b‘t"\'ﬂ13‘\1'%'1?3‘191‘3‘(”0@“\3’;'\?}'5"3‘#%’5&

b S Bl WD 0 WD
LA P Sl s g gl ¢
RN R LR LR R g
FISCALYEAR
[E Digester Gas Production tzAcid Gas Production LIRP-1 Fuel Cell Usage
WRP-2 Engine Usage # RP-2/RP-5 Boiler Usage

The dark red shaded area on the figure shows the average digester gas production
that exceeds the needs of the digester gas-consuming equipment on site. IJEUA will
evaluate potential projects that can utilize this digester gas beneficially in order to
minimize flaring and optimize renewable resources.

Potential New Projects

This EMP has presented and assessed the feasibility of potential new projects at
each facility. Table 17 summarizes the potential projects considered to be feasible
based on available resources, facility load, and cost effectiveness. The projects
listed in this table will be evaluated further for implementation at IEUA’s facilities.

99



‘paseyaand aq [[im seLie 3}

Ji SUIULIZIAP 03 SISA[EUE Jyauaq-
1500 e wwiogaad [[m YN F] ‘PaAlsdal
st jesodo.ad e asug ‘uondo aserp
-ind a3 ansind o3 1apraoad ydd

000'005°L$ ay3 01110 YIBal 0} INUNUCD [[IM
Je1s vyl sresodoad Aue pasrasad
joU sey Ing ‘sAe.Lie 3} Jo aseyd
-md enualod e Sujpaedaa 1epla
-01d ydd 9y yam paxmbur yna)
WIOMIBN
AB1ouq oy Aq pajonpuod sp
-ne aip Jo Luiotid e aq [um Aouan
, -y Suny8r qJuawdmba feumdo
000'007% u“ﬁ bEMmE pue _cbnou_hc /pue
jgoqal jo seate [enualod U3 S53
-se 03 paimbal aq [m aamonas
-eyyui 3unyar[ Sunsixa Jo pne uy
*£31[10€) YYoEa e pa
(Bupuny -Juawajdun aq ues ey sainseaul
- UonEeAIISIOI ASI9Ua aA1alS
armbas -1502 AJyuapi 03 y1omaN L81aug
e YL 1PIM SHI0R mwmn_?ccu nm
ul payiuapt JJe1s Suiuued pue ‘aourusjuEwW
sanEEaul] ‘suonerado BurwauiEus vl
I 'GT0Z Ateniqgs, ui ssadsoad yipne
a1} pajeniul pue JyIomiaN 4310
-ug Y[, y3m dn paudrs sey ynd|
adpn
H.“...am.nm“..m uopejudwajduaj 0] Yied

*SWIa1SAs Je[os ay3 £q pajels

-uagd samod aiy Burseypand jo 51502
Suro8uo sreuruLIa) 0 J9PIO UL SN[EA
19y1ew Jiej Je sAeLre ay sseyaand
01 ay1] pnom v J “Aued pap e
Aq psujejuIell pUB PIUMO 18 Y(H]
e sAelLie xejos Junsixo a3 Jo [y

*$S9] 10 saeak

aAl Jo yoeqhed e pppIf pue my

0SS 1940 Aq puewap sonpal pnoed
SAHT PIm swslsAs Sunysi| oopino
pue Joopul 3UMyoal ey} pamoys
uonenfeas Lreurmraad v sjon

-U02 pasealoul pue sygo.nyal Sunydi
wodj jgsuaq ues sanifey yadf v

"SADUIDLJS [BUONE

-Iado Jaydy ui J(nsa1 ued ey} suon
-eaygIpow ssa00ad os[e Ing ‘syyojal
wawdinba woyy s3uaes jenualod
a1en[eAa A[uo jou jey) syipne A810ua
aAIsusya.1dwod Jonpuod Ued Saru
-edwiod 3314135 A319u0 Laed pany

uopdisag

Juawageuey
A310uy

£ouapyyq
[euonetad

Luaoyrg
[euonetadp

adA] paforg

suone|esu|
Iejos Sunsmyg
aseyoIng

sapeaddn
Sunysr

supny A81auy
aaIsuaya1duro)

aureN

NOLLV.LNFWHTdWI 404 dIYAAISNOD 39 0L SLIAI0Ud ADYINE VN4l LT I'19V.L

1\4

v

v

Ayqoey

1c0



000°00ST$

(ATuo
summ yrers)
BUON

000'000'0Z$

39o8png
pajewpsy

‘uonydo yoes Jo AN[Iqisea)
[eucniesado pue sSousAIaf)s 1502
3} SUIULIISD 03 PAIINPUOD aq [[Im
UOIEN[EAS 3SE) SSAUISN( B ‘Pajquias
-se uaaq aaey suonde [{e asug -doo|
sed 1215a31p ay ojul ses aseyd poe
a3 a1e1od10oul o) pausisap suol

-do [e1248s £JRIUApPI 0) ARIOCE[[0D
[IIm JJB1S SADIAIAS [EJTUYDD) PUP ‘SU0L
-elodo ‘Buuued ‘Buireauidua yNH[

'spaaul s, yd] S1eam
yern 1eload Y © I0] Juswaaide
ue do@asp 03 a1BI0QE[[03 [[Im JJe3s
SJIAIS PEINIC) PUR ‘DIURUSUIRW
‘Burrasuidusa ‘Buruueid ynd] 'sen
-1[19e) yn 41 e s3vsfoad STy dojaaap
o0} fyred parp e (pim Suipue)sispur)

_JO wInpueloway B 0jul paIsjua yYNH]

"paatasaa spesodoad

ayl Jo £y[iqIseay ay3 SUIULISISP

0] Pa1INPUOD 34 [[LM UOLEN[EAT 35€)
ssauisng v "sioplaoad A31aua Jejos 0}
pansst aq [[m siesodoud Joj 1sanbal
E ‘uondafes aIs Suimofjoy ‘sfelre
Je[os al1e] a]EpOWUIOIDE UED Jey)
sayis [enualod sjenfeAs [[im ¥l

uonejuawadur] 03 qied

‘a8e101s seS sA[0AUI P[NOD

109load ay [, ‘pasn AJ{enyausq st T-d4
e paonpoud sed a1 jo [[e yeys os doo|
seg 103sa31p a3 ypm sed aseyd proe
a3} X1W 01 ABM JUSIILYJD 150D ISOW A
SUILIAIAP 0} PAlINPU0D ag [[Im Uonen
-[eA® uy aAnIqIyoxd 1500 9q 0} UMOYS
aAEY 3sN [eRIjauaq J0j Sed ap) Surzyun
s1oaload "aaep ay3 01 PadAIp ANJUALIND
St T-dY 38 paonpoud sed aseyd poy

"SauIn
13130 Je Sutaeys yead 10J 1S 150Y 3y}
Aq pue ‘aurn a3 jo uontod e uondwns
-u0d yead jo spoLtad SuLinp asuodsaa
puewap 10 SNOI Aq pasn aq p[noo 1ey}
(vnd1 013500 ou 3e) sanioe] yad e
a8e103s A1aneq Sureisur A1red pang

B aAJoAul pnom o9foxd ST YL

"SaIMI[IE) IS0 5,
-N41 3& $1502 AN[IIn 19SPo 03 AIILNOJ[D
ySnoua 310dxa p[noo jeyy L1oe] yndl
auo je Aeile Je[0s & Jo UonEe[[eIsul 3y}
aA[oAu] pinom 1aload sty “uonjeziues
-10 SWES 31} Aq P9y SIUNOIIE IS0
U0 S}pa.Ld sk e 0] s1oa(oad AZisud
a[qemaual wo.y £1HL1dale pajtodxe
Joj smo[pe wetdoxd 17g-$9Y S.H508

aondrLsaq

$92IN0S
-9y a|qemaudy

WU ETLIER 1 |
A81auq

$32IN0s
-9y 9[qemauay

adA] a0y

gunap
sen 1315381

uone[Esuf
adeimig
A319ug
asuodsay
puewia

AeL1y Je10S
MM S T[EISU]

SUIEN

T-dd

d4MI] pue
‘S-dY ‘T-dd

v

Afpey

101



spefead aleroys A319ud

[enualod Ajnuap! 03 s1apraold asaiyy
Im suondo SSnasip 01 anUPUod

HIM Y14 "aAnDaya 1500 syafoad
9Bl 0] SAIPISYNS JUIUNLIFA0S
9ZI[On 10 sjuswaaide aIeys 1500 18jJ0
Jeq] s1aplaoad aojalas A&1aua punoj
pue suonido ade03s A31aua ansand 03
panunuos sey ynA| LAaniiyold 1500
alam suoneeisul adeaols A31au9 jo
aseypand ay 105 sjesodoad snoiaai]

00000S'T$

"pautiojIad uonenjeay

ase7) ssalllsng e pue panssi aq [[Im
stesodoad J1oj 1senbai e ‘uoneynsuod
ST SUImMO[jo] "asn pue] s[qe[ieA. 213
3m paAlIYde aq pnod yey) L31oeded
uonersuss [eruajod ayp suruLIalap
0] SI0pUaA [[IIM }NSUOD [[LM VT

000'000'%$

‘H04dHl Pue y-dy

1e uonequawapduwi ansind 03 ropusa
91 M HIOM 0] SNUDUOI [[IM YV H]
‘spoLrad yesd-uou o3 uonessdo YYAH
iy o3 paudisap sjonuos Aiddns oy
JOPU3A B [}IM 19W sey ynH| ‘pase[dau
aq ued yey) uawdmba fnuapl

0] AeMISpUN S1 SHUN JYAH

8unsixs s §-Jy JO MUIWSSISSE Uy

000'SZT$

198png

pajewnsy uoneyuawafdar) 03 yped

-1sayd1y axe sajel N0

UIYM 9){S U0 pasn uaiy pue sporiad
yead jo spisino (ABojouynay a8eams
Je[Iwis 10} saLIajjeq ISIeyd 03 pasn
9q p[nod suche[ejsul A[gemauat 1ey)
aInsus pnod adelnls Jusmadeuew
peo[ YaIm Is1sSe 01 Aojouyray
ade103s A319u3 Jo uone[reIsSur

Y woyy Jyausq ued I/ -dd
‘N01 ay1 woy 3saydry st Supud NOL
uaym ‘Aep a1 Jo a[ppru ayy Surnp
1saydny st peo| A1[19e] 3y SULIAPISUO)

‘fyipedes uonelauas Jelos

a1 puedxa 03 $-JY 1€ puE| 2[qE[IEeAe
uoe 10 JDYd] Jo Joo ayy uo sjaued
[euonippe Suyelsut SurapIsuod
STYNAHI "Vdd & ysno. yndf 03 plos
Apuaymo st ayls uo sjaued JIejos jo
M T 93 wody pajessual 1amod 3y,

'spoLiad

jyead-uou o3 uopesado JyAH Itwiy
JeY] S[0.IIU0D UM PaRILANo JI0 S|Spowt
JUAIJe alow 03 papelddn aq ued
S)Iun asatf Jo AU [oIIU0D AR
10J S}IUN JVAH asn Jetf) ssup[mg
Auew sABY JDYH] PUE H-dY

uondposag

JauwaSeue]y
£d1ouy

Lousyd
[eucneladp

fouapyg
[euonesadp

adA | 10aloxg

uone[Esu]
afe101g
AZ1augy

uone[jelsu]
Jejog puedxy

sapeaddn
pue sjonuo;)
OVAH

amweN

42941
/-4

ADHdI
/¥-ad

Ele)ici
/¥-dd

Anpey

102



adglL

000'000°c$

128png
palewnsy

'810¢2

An{ u1 ui8aq 03 pa1dadxa St YIIYM
aalo1d uonesopaa A1[oe] uipuey
spijos a1 jo aseyd uSisopaid

3 YHMm [ef[eled ul pajenyead

aq [ suondo a[qe[reay ‘s[aued apy
funeso[al Jo Suraowalx Jo AM[IqIses]
9} suTWLIIRP 0} Joplaoad Ydd a4}
(AIM 5JBUIP.I00D [[IM V] ‘paseyaind
aq jouued sjaued Iejos o) Sununssy

'siead g 0] £ J9yje

Suryedo[as Jo Jua3ut Y im paudisap
ag pmom swalsAs Suruonipuocd

SES pue 3ulqIMmo.IDIW 31 Jo
uone[[eIsuj 129(oxd ay3 Jo uonenfeay
9se7) ssauIsng e Sunanpuod APuUaLInd
S1 pue UON)E[[eISUI dULQINJ0ITW MY
009 e l10j [esodoad e paaredss yNAl

gonejuawaydary 03 Ped

‘u8isap 109fo1d 03

Joud [ejagauaq aq pjnom sjaued Jejos
a1l jo uon.Jod g 3130721 10 SARUIAI

03 suonjdo s ynH1 Jo Suipuelsiepun
uy ‘suonesyipous Jueld ay) Surusisop
UM WI3IUOD B 3q 0} pajoadxa

st asn pue| ‘§-Jy 03 Suissaooad spijos
JO UOTIED0[a AL I "PUE[ JO SSI0€ QT
Apeau Surraaod ‘A)[E) oY) Jo uontod
1SaMIINOS 31} U0 pa|[elsul s[aued
IB[0S JO M T Sey Apua.Lind §-dy

“eay pue 211011099 elauad

01 Aqioey ayg £q paompouad sed

Y1 JO [[& AZI[IN PNOJ pue ‘Z°0TTT MY
ANDVYIS Iapun SuoneNw|] SUOISSTW?
01 3133lgns aq JoU p[NOM AUIGINJOIOTUI
ay ], ‘weisAs Suruonipuod sed

pue aulg.Imo.or (M3 009 & M I3]
Z-dd 93 azedad pinom 13load sty

uondLisa(g

$22In0S3Y
ajgemauay

$aoanesay
a|qemausy

adA) oaloig

uone[eIsu|
Jejos S-dd
asea.1da(]
uone[esu|
SU1q.MI0IDTN ey
aureN Lumoey

103



Project Forecasts

Implementing all of the projects listed in Table 13 is estimated to require
$38,025,000 in capital expenditures, However, these projects will require further
evaluation before funds can be committed to the Agency’s budget. Efficiency
projects with low payback periods are most likely to be implemented. IEUA will
depend on The Energy Network's comprehensive energy audits to identify
potential efficiency projects at each facility. Measures identified will be assessed by
IEUA staff for feasibility and operational impacts prior to implementation.

IEUA will investigate several new solar projects. Evaluating the cost effectiveness
of purchasing the existing solar arrays is a current priority, although it requires
collaboration from the PPA provider and equipment owner. Purchasing the

104



existing panels will also impact the Agency’s ability to remove or relocate a portion
of RP-5's solar array, if deemed necessary as part of the RP-2 solids processing
relocation project. Potential solar system expansion will be considered at RP-4/
IERCF, in addition to a new multi-megawatt capacity array that can benefit from
SCE’s RES-BCT program by crediting IEUA’s SCE costs at Agency's facilities through
export.

Energy storage will be heavily pursued to improve IEUA’s demand side
management capabilities. IEUA will pursue energy storage installations through
two separate avenues: 1) as a demand response tool employed collaboratively
with SCE, and 2) through direct purchase with subsidization. Introducing energy
storage to [EUA’s portfolio would allow progression toward the goal of peak period
independence without devoting resources to new distributed generation projects.

Retrofitting inefficient HVAC equipment and installing controls to limit peak
period operation will target cost reductions at RP-4/IERCF. This project will be
closely monitored to determine actual savings based on system performance. If the
project proves to be a success, it will be considered for implementation at other
IEUA facilities that experience high demand charges.

Optimizing digester gas utilization will be addressed at RP-1 by evaluating options
to allow for the beneficial use of acid phase gas. IEUA staff will coordinate with
industry professionals to investigate several operational modifications that would
permit RP-1’s equipment to aperate on a fuel mixture that includes the acid phase
gas. At RP-2, removal of the ICE by the end of 2015 signals the end of distributed
generation using digester gas. IEUA evaluated several projects that could utilize RP
-2's existing digester gas production and comply with the stringent air quality
regulations. Of the projects identified, installation of a micraturbine appears to be
the most feasible based on cost and portability. IEUA will perform a detailed BCE
of this project before determining whether to invest in the technology.

105



Path to Implementation

Evaluating potential energy projects at each [EUA facility produced several viable
projects to be considered for implementation. The process also uncovered
complexities that frequently affected the viability of potential projects. This section
aims to foster understanding of new project implementation by delineating the
typical incentives and disincentives.

NEW PROJECT PRIVERS

Electrical Demand

Any energy project considered for implementation should cost effectively achieve
at least one of two goals: 1) reduce the facility load through efficiency measures,
process modification, or new technology, and/or 2) increase the Agency’s self-
generation capacity. These goals can be achieved in several ways, but in each case,
the facility demand must be considered. Furthermore, recognition of the facility’s
electrical requirements alone is not enough. Since new projects are typically
evaluated for feasibility over a ten to twenty year period, each evaluation must
include current and future electrical loads. Forecasts should include anticipated
demand increases as well as efficiency measures. The EMP also considers facility
demands during summer and winter months because of seasonal variation in
operations. For reasons described below, new project may be designed to avoid
power export. In such cases, the lowest facility demand must be considered when
determining the facility’s available load.

The scope of potential projects at IEUA facilities will vary widely depending on the
percentage of electrical load at each facility that is being supplied by an external
source (through either bundled or Direct Access service). Evaluations conducted in
this EMP have shown that projects focused on efficiency measures alone are more
likely to be considered when the imported contribution to facility load is below 1
MW. Distributed generation projects below 1 MW typically carry long payback
periods and/or risks that hinder viability.

106



Available Resocurces

New project implementation, especially for distributed generation projects, is also
driven by the facility resources available. Renewable digester gas production at RP
-1 and RP-2 opens up a multitude of projects that can take advantage of the heat
content in the gas or optimize its use through more efficient processing. Increasing
IEUA’s renewable portfolio through additional solar or wind installations would
require available land space, which is increasingly more difficult to attain as
regional development grows.

Regulatory Impact

Environmental regulations must also be considered when evaluating a potential
project. As a public agency located in Southern California, IEUA is located in a
region that contains some of the more stringent regulatory air and water quality
measures in the country. IEUA’s ability to install renewable energy projects has
been greatly affected by air quality regulations for digester gas-fueled engines.
SCAQMD Rule 1110.2 played a role in IEUA’s decision to pursue fuel cell
technology at RP-1, and compliance with the rule will also factor into future ICE
operations at RP-2 and RP-5 SHF.

Assembly Bill 32 (AB 32}, the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006,
requires industries to implement GHG reduction measures in order to achieve
1990 emissions levels by 2020 in the state. Although wastewater treatment plants
have not been identified in the state’s scoping plans and no IEUA facility emits
GHGs above the reporting thresholds identified in the bill, the Agency has
proactively begun to track GHG emissions and consider global warming potential
of new projects. IEUA recently joined the Climate Registry to voluntarily report
GHG emissions across the agency on an annual basis.

Cost Effective Sustainability

While each of these factors can drive potential projects toward or away from
feasibility, IEUA’s Business Goals dictate that new projects must be cost effective.
This EMP strives to work within the confines of Southern California’s
environmental regulations and modest capital as a public agency to achieve
sustainability at peak periods through efficiency projects and renewable
generation. New projects often require subsidization from outside sources to be
considered cost effective. As such, IEUA staff is continually pursuing grant

107



opportunities that can be applied toward beneficial projects.

IEUA has utilized several sources of grant funding since 2002 to develop energy
efficiency projects. Both SCE and SCGC offer incentives for efficiency projects,
although IEUA has partnered with SCE more regularly due to the amount of
electricity usage at the Agency and greater potential for reductions. IEUA also
received funding from the Department of Energy (DOE) and the Natural Resources
Conservation Service to complete renewable generation projects in the past. The
most significant source of grant funding has historically come from the California
Energy Commission, which has provided nearly $20 million to fund various energy
projects across Agency facilities over the past 12 years.

NEW PRCGJECT BARRIERS

In its experience installing and evaluating energy projects, IEUA has observed
several barriers that can detrimentally affect project feasibility. Identifying these
difficulties and offering solutions is imperative to fostering sustainable growth and
a key component of this EMP.

Grid Interconnection

Generating facilities in SCE’s service area are required to obtain an interconnection
agreement under SCE's Rule 21 tariff. All of IEUA’s renewable energy installations
have interconnection agreements, each achieved with varying levels of difficulty
depending on the level of project complexity.

The 3.5 MW of solar arrays were granted interconnection with SCE in 2008.
Interconnection of the 1 MW wind turbine was approved in 2010, The installations
were not complex, so the interconnection agreements were obtained quickly and
without difficulty. Because the nameplate capacities were designed to use 100
percent of the generated electricity on site, the interconnection agreements did not
contain export provisions, which simplified the process.

RP-1's fuel cell installation proved to be a more complex interconnection process
than previous agreements. The combined nameplate capacities of the fuel cell and
solar array resulted in potential export during times of peak generation. In
December 2012, IEUA submitted an interconnection application for the fuel cell
and solar installations that would compensate IEUA for any electricity exported.
SCE’s NEM program allows for export from solar electrical generating facilities
with capacities below 1 MW, However, SCE’s fuel cell NEM schedule contains the

108



same 1 MW limit, which means that IEUA cannot export electricity from the fuel
cell installation.

The combination of two renewable energy installations at the same facility with
opposing export capabilities presented difficulties in the interconnection process.
In April 2014, following extensive discussions with SCE staff, IEUA executed a
multiple tariff interconnection agreement that would allow IEUA to exporta
maximum of 3.5 MW; however, only the portion generated by the solar facility
would be eligible for compensation. Tracking the electricity from the renewable
installations would be achieved through Net Generation Output Meters (NGOMs).

IEUA evaluated the proposed NGOM project and determined that installing the
meters would be cost prohibitive. Considering RP-1's load and renewable
generation capacity, the amount of electricity exported is expected to be minimal
and sporadic. As of April 2015, IEUA was in discussions with SCE to allow for
export from RP-1 without compensation, while maintaining the ability to install
NGOMs in the future if the project is later deemed to be cost effective.

IEUA also encountered difficulties obtaining an interconnection agreement at RP-5
that would allow for export from the REEP ICEs. IEUA initially applied for an
interconnection agreement for the ICEs in 2006 under SCE’s biogas NEM program,
but the agreement was never finalized because the ICEs were never commissioned.
As a result, IEUA was required to submit a new application for interconnection
under SCE’s RES-BCT program, which would allow for expeorted electricity to be
compensated as bill credits on IEUA’s other SCE accounts. IEUA submitted the RES-
BCT application in June 2013 and executed the interconnection agreement in May
2014. The REEP ICEs were commissioned in January 2015 and first exported to the
grid the following month.

Based on these experiences, IEUA considers the process of obtaining
interconnection agreements with SCE to be unfavorable toward new renewable
projects. When progress stalled on both RP-1's NEM and RP-5's RES-BCT
agreements, IEUA held conference calls with SCE staff twice per week to ensure
that information was processed as quickly as possible and that the application
evaluation continued in a timely manner. The recommendations and requirements
provided by SCE to comply with interconnection standards were costly, and in the
case of RP-1, were considered cost prohibitive. For a public agency attempting to
expand renewable generation with a limited project budget, the interconnection
process contains significant expenditures, both in capital outlay and staff time.

109



In both experiences at RP-1 and RP-5, the interconnection process was
complicated because one renewable installation exceeded the 1 MW Ilimit
established in the NEM tariff. Increasing this limit to allow for larger renewable
installations to be considered in the NEM program could reduce the time and costs
involved in obtaining interconnection agreements. Furthermore, IEUA noticed a
marked improvement in progress once regular conference calls were scheduled to
maintain communication with SCE staff. Although this contributed to the
considerable staff time devoted to the interconnection process, the conference
calls reduced the overall duration of the application evaluation, Establishing
frequent communication with SCE staff during the entirety of the evaluation
process will be considered an essential component of any future interconnection
agreement.

IEUA is currently working with BAC and CASA to open a dialogue with the CPUC
regarding interconnection concerns. By communicating past difficulties to the
CPUC, the IEUA is attempting to help identify straining areas of the interconnection
process and hopefully foster discussion on potential paths to improvement.

Renewable Energy Economics

Consistent with IEUA’s Business Goals, projects that improve sustainability during
peak periods will only be pursued if they are determined to be cost effective after
thorough analysis and evaluation. Most of the renewable installations at IEUA’s
facilities were designed to avoid exporting electricity when facility demand is
lowest. Although inadvertent export is allowed under SCE’s Rule 21 and IEUA is
compensated for electricity exported at RP-2 and RP-5, the economics of exporting
electricity to the grid are not favorable to IEUA. IEUA’s average costs of electricity,
on a $/kWh basis, in FY 13/14 are shown on Figure 31. For comparison, SCE’s
average compensation rate for exported electricity from NEM customers is shown
in red on the same figure.

The figure shows that current renewable installations are cost effective because
they supplement imported electricity at a lower rate. Although the average cost of
solar was $0.001 higher per kWh in FY 13/14, the fact that solar panels generate
power during SCE’s peak periods means that the solar installations are cost
effective on a TOU basis since they supplement imported electricity that would
otherwise carry high demand charges.

110



FIGURE 31. FY 13/14 AVERAGE ELECTRICITY COST BY SOURCE

$0.240 7 $0.127 $0.128

$0.125
$0.120
£ 0100 1 $0.087
i , - $0.080
=~ $0.080 -
§
e ;
% 50.060 1 so 047
2 F =
d 50-040 L
$0020
S 2 P o e . —
lmported Solar Fuel Celi Wind Exported
Electricity Turbine Electricity

Because the export compensation rate is anywhere from $0.033-0.081 lower per
kWh than IEUA’s electricity procurement rate (based on FY 13/14 data), IEUA
cannot recover the procurement costs of exported electricity through
compensation alone. Compensation rates for NEM customers are calculated using a
market-based mechanism derived from hourly day-ahead electricity pricing,
similar to the mechanism used by ESPs that provide electricity to IEUA through the
Direct Access program. The rate reflects the costs that SCE avoids in procuring
power during the time that it is produced by the generating facility. It is unlikely
that SCE will substantially increase the compensation rate to accommodate
facilities desiring more robust renewable portfolios with the ability to regularly
export. As such, revised economic models must focus efforts elsewhere.

An alternative solution would rely on modifications to the CEC’s RPS, which
mandates that all electric service suppliers provide at least 33 percent of their
energy from renewable sources by 2020. These suppliers can achieve the
mandated limits by purchasing RECs that satisfy one of three content categories,
often referred to as buckets. Because IEUA uses the renewable energy it generates
on site, any RECs generated fall into Bucket 3, which carries the lowest value on
the trading market.

111



IEUA’s experience in pursuing RECs for its renewable installations found that the
cost of obtaining the certificates often negated the potential profits of any sale,
However, the California assembly, with assistance from CASA, is pursuing
legislation that would allow for renewable installations at wastewater facilities to
be eligible for Bucket 1 status as part of Assembly Bill 1144, This designation could
drastically improve renewable project economics. IEUA is in support of AB 1144
and will track its progress closely.

In addition to export compensation, project economics also depend heavily on the
capital expense required for installation. Although IEUA was able to avoid capital
expenditures for the solar, wind, and fuel cell installations by entering into PPAs,
the cost of installation was factored into the electricity procurement rate for each
agreement. The procurement rate was also affected by potential government
incentives, grant subsidizations, and for the wind and fuel cell installations,
transfer of RECs to the PPA provider.

Whether IEUA pursues PPAs or outright purchase, the cost of installing renewable
technologies greatly affects the project feasibility. In the past, IEUA evaluated
several technologies for implementation that were determined to be cost
prohibitive, including gas storage, energy storage, fuel cells, biogas conversion to
compressed natural gas, small hydropower, geothermal, and biogas conditioning
to inject into the natural gas pipeline. IEUA’s resources allow for a wide array of
energy projects, many of which are simply too expensive to implement at present.
However, with additional government incentives or further subsidization
opportunities, some of these technologies may be considered cost effective if the
capital required is sufficiently reduced.

Furthermore, greater incentive and subsidization opportunities could result in
more applications of new technology across the industry. The renewable resources
utilized at IEUA are not unique to its facilities. With wider application of new
technologies leading to greater market saturation, projects that were once cost
prohibitive could now be considered cost effective.

Energy Forecasting

IEUA’s BCEs rely on energy forecasts to determine potential savings over the life of
the project being evaluated. IEUA uses the historical rates published by SCE to
estimate average rate increases moving forward. Historically, SCE's rates for
commercial customers have increased by an average of six percent per year, which

112



includes the rate of inflation. To remain conservative, IEUA uses annual utility
increases of four and six percent when evaluating new projects, which provides a
range of potential savings.

The California Independent System Operator (CAISO) operates the bulk of the
state’s wholesale energy market. CAISO’s operation of the power grid allows
insight and open access into the energy industry. As part of its activities, CAISO
tracks the average net load for the state each day. In 2013, CAISO identified that
California’s solar installations have had a combined effect on the net load that
could significantly influence the energy needs of the state in years to come.

Figure 32, often referred to as the “duck curve,” shows CAISO’s actual net loads for
March 31 in 2012 and 2013, along with projections each year until 20203, Between
the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., the figure shows slight energy increases that
closely track the previous year. Between the hours of 7:00 am. and 7:00 p.m,, or
during daylight hours, the demand on the grid declines sharply each year. Figure
32 estimates that mid-day grid demand in 2020 could be as much as 9,000 MW
less than the actual demand in 2012. The reason for the drop in demand is the
widespread installation of solar energy systems across the state, which will further
reduce grid demand during daylight hours if solar installation trends continue.

FIGURE 32. CA’S NET LOAD PROJECTIONS THROUGH 2020 {DUCK CURVE)
Net load - March 31

28,000

26,000

24,000 |-

22,000

% 2°'m° P amaaa T&’Eh‘j&]r—- - .-’:: :
g, 18,000 LT Y
16000 |
e = 2(ﬂ 6( il
!‘Lm A - ——. i‘o]ﬁ - ,.,,,m  —
2019
overgeneration
10,000 | e LT
I risk
o] T T T T v . . s T v : - . . r . - . : T ; .
120m 3am dam Sam 12pm 3pm 4pm Ppm
Hour

Isaurce: “What the Duck Curve Tells us about Managing a Green Grid,” CAIS0, 2013 .
113



This new load profile carries significant concern for the state’s energy generators.
Between the hours of 5:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. in 2020, grid demand is expected to
increase by 80 percent over the course of three hours. The problems presented by
this curve will require creative solutions by energy generators, and will involve
employment of energy storage in large quantities. Nevertheless, the scope of this
concern extends beyond IEUA’s influence.

However, the Agency could be impacted by the resulting change in tariffs that
utilities can implement in response to the duck curve. New projects are evaluated
under the assumption that tariffs structures will be similar over the next 20 years.
Certain potential projects, such as solar installations, rely on avoiding or reducing
demand charges from the electrical utility to achieve an economic benefit. If the
peak period is shifting from mid-day to late evening to match the expecting net
load peak, project economics could be greatly affected. Other projects that increase
efficiency or can be programmed to adjust to varying peak pericds may not be
affected by potential modifications to SCE's tariffs. IEUA will continue to monitor
discussion of the duck curve, as well as SCE’s plan to respond to the changing net
load.

114



Management Practices

In addition to tracking energy usage and evaluating potential projects, IEUA's EMP
includes several measures that are applied throughout the year to optimize
resources and better understand the Agency portfolio.

PROCUREMENT

With the exception of RP-4 and RP-5, I[EUA has the option of procuring electricity
through [0Us or separate ESPs. Natural gas is procured through an ESP for [EUA's
larger usage needs (core accounts), as well as its smaller accounts (non-core), IEUA
currently purchases electricity through unbundled service, or DA, at three of its five
largest accounts, and bundled service at the remaining two and all smaller

& :

115



accounts (standalone RW and GWR facilities). The Agency has realized
considerable savings during the summer months utilizing direct access (DA}
agreement.

The pricing structure for electricity generated from IEUA's renewable installations
varies between each agreement. The PPA rates are structured similarly, with fixed
rates and annual escalators that were negotiated to produce long-term financial
benefits for the Agency. Considering the large historical variation in grid pricing
from year to year, establishing a fixed energy pricing forecast for much of the
Agency’s demand is a valuable planning tool for energy management.

Prospective cost savings depend on the negotiated electricity purchase price of
each PPA, anticipated rate increases from the electrical grid, and expected power
generation from the installations, The negotiated purchase pricing (Figure 33), on
a $/kWh basis, generally compares favorably to grid purchase pricing.

FIGURE 33. PPA RATE COMPARISON TQ GRID FORECASTS

0.40

0.35 S
Grid Price Forecast

0.30 - —_...{e% Annual Escalation]

e
¥
tn

Grid Price Forecast
{4% Annual Escalation)

o

[y

wn
3

UNIT PRICE [$/KWH])
o
[\ *]
[ ]

0.10

0.05

0.00
2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031

s [CE Solar Wind s===FyelCell == Purchased from Grid

116



Current PPA purchase rates are competitive with the grid purchase rates, but the
long-term benefits become apparent when comparing the annual escalating scales
between the two costs. Based on energy industry forecasts, grid electricity costs
are expected to increase between four and six percent, on average, over the next
20 years. Since each PPA’s annual escalation rate is below four percent, the Agency
anticipates that all PPA installations will realize annual savings within the next two
to three years. The amount of savings achieved can vary widely, as shown on
Figure 34.

FIGURE 34. CUMULATIVE SAVINGS ESTIMATE FROM RENEWABLES

$30,000,000 ;
/
/

$25,000,000 / -

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000 1 7 4 -
Grid Price Forecast 4 # o
$5,000,000 {49% Annual Escalation) & ”

$0

CUMULATIVE SAVINGS ($)

-55,000’000 ¥ T T T T T { i T 1 ] i T T T T T T T T T T T T 1
2007 2009 2011 2013 2015 2017 2019 2021 2023 2025 2027 2029 2031

Each agreement also contains the option of purchasing the equipment rather than
continue as a PPA customer. [EUA is continually evaluating this opportunity, as well
as imported energy procurement options, annually to determine the most cost
effective solution in both the short and long term.

INCREASED MONITORING

With the advent of sub-metering at each facility, IEUA will have the capability of
tracking electricity usage by process. As of April 2015, the Agency’s sub-meter

117



equipment was still undergoing medifications to reliably provide electrical usage
data. Once the installation is complete, IEUA will be able to identify the energy
intensity of each treatment process. As aforementioned, the sub-meters will be
used to quantify energy usage for each process and identify potential load
reductions that can be incorporated in the DR program.

Several resources have made strides in recent years in establishing energy metrics
for wastewater treatment processes. The Agency can use these resources to
compare the sub-meter data and gauge potential areas for improvement. Rather
than targeting processes that are simply energy-intensive, efficiency projects
should focus on processes that use more energy than is considered necessary or
standard within the industry.

Moreover, tracking energy usage from each process will benefit IEUA’s Operations
and Maintenance staff, as sudden variations in energy usage can signal the need for
repair or replacement. To the extent allowed by currently available data,
performance management tools (i.e., Key Performance Indicators (KPI) and Unit
Production Costs (UPC)) are being used to monitor energy use and energy
generation at the facilities. These tools are important components of an effective
energy management program. As mere data on energy use become available
through sub-metering, the KPI and UPC tools will be expanded to take full
advantage of the information collected from the meters. [EUA staff will be tasked
with incorporating the process energy usage into regular Operations and
Maintenance staff responsibilities.

EDUCATION

In addition to tracking data and identifying programs, the Agency must educate its
employees on their role in improving energy management. Raising awareness of
energy usage and cost impacts can empower staff to conserve and even
recommend process changes that might otherwise be overlooked by an auditor
unfamiliar with process details.

IEUA's external affairs staff produces a monthly newsletter that is distributed to all
employees at the Agency. Beginning in May 2015, the monthly newsletter will
include a regular update focusing on energy management, conservation
opportunities, or education. Additionally, IEUA Operations and Maintenance
employees will be given annual training that explains IEUA’s energy procurement
strategy, cost impacts, and how they can help reduce energy usage.

118



NEW PROJECT SOLICITATION

IEUA has the ability to include specific standards or performance objectives in
project scopes whenever issuing RFPs. Beginning in FY 15/16, RFPs issued by IEUA
will require vendors to include high-efficiency equipment in any project, as
warranted. New project evaluations will also consider the impact on energy
consumption and management. Proposals that improve energy management will
be prioritized over similar proposals that are neutral or adverse to energy
management.

AUDITING

Along with sub-metering information data, an energy audit can help identify
efficiency opportunities within the treatment plants. Agency staff regularly audits
equipment through the Asset Management Plan to determine if processes can be
optimized through equipment retrofit/replacement or operational adjustments.
IEUA will utilize The Energy Network to conduct comprehensive energy audits of
each of the treatment plants by the end of FY 15/16.

Furthermore, the Energy Management Plan, updated every two years, will serve as
an annual analysis of energy usage with the goal of targeting energy intensive
processes and uncovering potential conservation opportunities.

119



Appendix A

IEUA Business Goals



NVId INFJWIDVNVIN ADHINS STOC vN3I




IEUA Business Goals

October 2013




Business Goal Development

PURPOSE: It is critical that IEUA Business Goals align with the Agency’s Mission, Vision & Values which
are defined by the needs of our Stakeholders and the value provided to the Public. The Business Goal
Development process includes a review of existing Agency-wide policy goals and their refinement based
on current and future needs. It is also critical in setting the framewaork for the development of the [EUA
Strategic Plan that will shape and guide the Agency’s fundamental decisions and actions over the next
several years.

BACKGROUND: Over the last several years, the Agency-wide policy goals, which have guided the
Agency’s decisions and actions in executing its mission and attaining its vision, have been categorized
into nine major thematic areas: Conservation & Water Quality, Technological Innovation, Rate
Stabilization and Cost Effectiveness, Operational and Maintenance Efficiency, Strategic Planning and
Capital Implementation, Waste Management and Resource Utilization, Interagency Relationships and
Community Partnerships, Fiscal Accountability and Regulatory Compliance, and Staff Training,
Development and Well Being.

These Agency-wide policy goals guide the development of the capital improvement program,
operational budget, and organizational goals and objectives each budget cycle. As a way to further
define the Agency’s levels of service (LOS), several workshops were held with the IEUA Board of
Directors in 2011. However, the LOS developed as part of these workshops were primarily focused on
the Agency’s operational functions. In early 2013 staff recommended the LOS be expanded into more
broad based IEUA Business Goals to also include the following topics: water reliability, fiscal
accountability and employee wellbeing. It was also determined that the development of the IEUA
Business Goals should include input from Stakeholders including: IEUA Board of Directors, IEUA staff,
Technical Committee members and Policy Committee members.

IEUA Business Gouals




BUSINESS GOALS FUNCTION: For any organization to remain relevant and effective, its ability to
adapt and prepare for change is essential. As illustrated below, the IEUA Business Goals must be must

be continually evaluated as part of the planning process to ensure that they meet the current and future

needs of the Region.

Agency Mission & Values

,v\ ~ Business Goals (LOS)

g .
[ §
[
' l
[}
]
! Strategic Plan
| |
L
%
L Y
Y —,
A )
“ Planning Elements :
Vool I T T T
Facility mwR Semer Ten-Year Flnanciaf Policies & Goals &
Wasler Waster System Ming. Caphtal Flan Procedwes Chjectives
Plan Plan Plen Flan

IEUA Business Goals




BUSINESS GOALS STRUCTURE: The IEUA Business Goals were categorized into six main areas: Fiscal
Responsibifity, Workplace Environment, Business Practices, Water Reliability, Wastewater Management
and Environmental Stewardship. Within each Business Goal {i.e. Water Reliability), several Objectives
were established to support the Business Goal (i.e. beneficial use of recycled water, etc.). For each
Objective, a Commitment was developed to define the level of service that IEUA will provide {i.e.
develop recycled water infrastructure to reuse 50,000 AFY). The structure of the Business Goals is
shown in the following figure:

"'-F'I'I"-'-.' Fial=1xl
= £ i mant

Hudgst Henning

=Cammitment

= Cormrmid e nt

Crr=ditwr] I'II"". 141

= Comimnitment

Employer of
Chodo=

= Corrpmat mae it

Trai g

= Comrmilminl

stalt Safety

» Conry pruitams il

Business
Practices

& Cafrmilrmant

IEUA Business Goals

Water
Reliability

Recycled

= Lo neia

Ganoommwater

RechareeE

= Cormrmifmied

Wastewater
Management |:

Capacity

= Commbtment

B TEme

Construttio
& Domm tment

Bacesoly

[T

= {ammyitimmenit

Ensrgy
Managament

s Cammitment

: Environmenta
Stewardship

*Commitment

Gamd MEphr

» Camm tment

IEUA Business Gools




DOCUMENT STRUCTURE: Included within this narrative is one page for each Business Goal — which
outlines the Business Goal intent, each Objective and the corresponding recommended Commitment.
Background on each Objective/Commitment is included within the Appendix.

Hal 1
I (EUA will sofaguard tha Agarcy’s facal heolr through orgorizational afficiancy, : .
i i sitlvaar b I . dali o Business Goal
i adaptlon of balancad muitlysar Sudgets ond rates thaf mueat full cost-of-sarvice I

i i

I 1

targats, molrtain a digh q..'s l,r e u" ratiry ond sreserva artobilhed 'uaa bulenea

I Fonding & Appropriation Key Objective

Obfactive: U5 o0l agzroprinely Tund opevational malmensnce ane tashal lnvesimen® coss,

k= - -.-_-_-.-_-_-_-_"'."'.T..-..":.'r.:":.-:
1 | Recommended Commiement: 202 will azmoar sardies rater and charges shat Fully

I suzoory the costs of senvice snd provide & reliable and steady flow of Cperating révenue

]
i
to supgcnt all opersticnal exgences, tapitsl replacement end debt service cests. In : Commitment Level
1
]
-

| addition, IEUA will ensure thet servize retes and chergessuppor the Agen:y‘i

i com TR 22 4. J1gl-.-.' ¢ lecele 2t serdiza

! Background Information Location

B b S e e

SCHEDULE: The development, review and approval of Business Goals entails a sequence as indicated in
the schedule below:

¢ [EUA Staff Workshop |

«

¢ [EUA Staff Workshop I

¢ [EUA Board Workshop |

* Water Managers'/Technical Committee Workshop

¢ |EUA Board Workshop Il

¢ Water Managers'/Technical Committee Workshop |l

* Joint IEUA Board/Policy Member Workshop

¢ |EUA Board Approval

H€EEEEEE:

Following the completion of this process, the adopted Business Goals will be used as the basis for
the development of several planning documents, including the Strategic Plan, Integrated Water
Resources Plan, Facilities Master Plan Update and the Asset Management Plan.

IEUA Business Goals m




DEFINITIONS: The following list is provided to define key terms utilized in the Business Goals
Narrative.

Board of Directors - Five elected officials providing the governance of Inland Empire Utilities
Agency and representing the following Divisions:

e Division 1: Terry Catlin

e Division 2: Gene Koopman

s Division 3: Steve Elie

e Division 4: Vacant

e Division 5: Michael Camacho

Chino Groundwater Basin - 5,000,000 AF of groundwater storage encompassing
approximately 235 square miles of the upper Santa Ana River Watershed within San
Bernardino, Riverside and Los Angeles Counties. A substantial portion of the Chino
Groundwater Basin overlaps with the IEUA Service Area.

IEUA Service Area - 242 square miles located in the southwest corner of San Bernardino
County incorporating: the City of Chino, the City of Chino Hills, the City of Fontana, the City of
Montclair, the City of Ontario, the City of Upland and unincorporated areas of San Bernardino
County.

Imported Water - A supplemental water source to local water supplies generally purchased
through the State Water Project.

Member Agencies - Cities, agencies and districts that contract with IEUA for regional
wastewater services and Imported Water deliveries (* denotes member agencies who also are
signatories to the Regional Sewage Contract):

e (City of Chino*

e City of Chino Hills*

e Cucamonga Valley Water District*

e (City of Fontana*

s Fontana Water Company

¢ City of Montclair*

¢ Monte Vista Water District

e  City of Ontario*

* San Antonio Water Company

e City of Upland*

IEUA Business Goals




Policy Committee — A committee comprised of policy members from Regional Sewage Contract
member agencies and IEUA.

Public - The approximately 850,000 residents within the IEUA Service Area who receive the
benefits of the services provided by the Member Agencies and IEUA.

Region - The geographical location where [EUA maintains a sphere of influence which is
broader than the IEUA Service Area.

Regional Water Agencies - Agencies and districts having water interests within the Region
but are not Member Agencies. These include but are not limited to:

e Chino Basin Watermaster

® Jurupa Community Services District

* Los Angeles County Sanitation District

e Metropolitan Water District

* Orange County Sanitation District

* Orange County Water District

+ San Bernardino Flood Control and Water Conservation District

¢ Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority

e  Western Municipal Water District

Stakeholders - A general term to define all interested parties including: Board of Directors,
Policy Committee, Technical Committee, Member Agencies and Regional Water Agencies.

Supplemental Water - An additional water supply originating from outside the IEUA Service
Area that may offset the demand for Imported Water - may include outside groundwater,
recycled water, ete.

Technical Committee - A committee comprised of public works/water managers from the
Member Agencies and IEUA.

IEUA Business Goals




A. Business Goal: Fiscal Responsibility

4,

IEUA will safequard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational efficiency, adoption
of balanced muitiyear budgets and rates that meet full cost-of-service targets, maintain a
high quality credit rating and preserve established fund balance reserves to effectively
address short term and long term economic variability. Furthermore, IEUA will provide
open and transparent communication to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal
policies of the Agency.

Funding & Appropriation [Agency Management, Financial Planning, Accounting & Fiscal Management]
Objective: IEUA will appropriately fund operational, maintenance and capital investment costs.

Commitment: IEUA will adopt service rates and fees that fully support the costs of service
and provide a reliable and steady flow of operating revenue to support all operational
expenses, capital replacement and debt service costs. In addition, IEUA will ensure that
service rates and fees support the Agency’s goal to sustain high quality Commitment Levels,

Reference Material: Appendix A.1

Budget Planning [Agency Management, Financial Planning, & Accounting & Fiscal Management]
Objective: IEUA will accurately forecast future operational, repair & replacement, capital
improvement and debt service costs as needed for the creation of multiyear budgets and rate
resolutions that create fiscal stabilization for IEUA and the Member Agencies.
Commitment: IEUA will provide multiyear forecasts for operational, repair & replacement,
capital investment and debt service costs to support the adoption of multiyear budgets and
rates enhancing dependability and stability.

Reference Material: Appendix A.2

Reserves [Financial Planning, Accounting & Fiscal Management]
Objective: 1EUA will preserve fund reserves that sustain the Agency’s long term fiscal health, high
quality credit rating and ensure its ability to effectively address economic variability.

Commitment: IEUA will adopt financial policies to establish and preserve fund reserves
above legally or contractually mandated levels to maintain Commitment Levels. In addition,
{EUA will support short and long term funding requirements and sustain the Agency’s long
term fiscal health and high quality credit rating to reduce future borrowing costs.

Reference Material: Appendix A.3

Creditworthiness [Financial Planning, Accounting & Fiscal Management]
Objective: |EUA will sustain a high quality credit rating and debt service coverage ratio to safeguard
the Agency’s fiscal heaith and reduce future borrowing costs.

Commitment: IEUA will reinstate the Agency’s credit rating to AAA by FY 17/18 to reduce
borrowing costs anticipated for the expansion and improvement of existing facilities to meet
future growth in the Agency's service area.

Reference Material: Appendix A.4




B. Business Goal: Workplace Environment

IEUA is committed to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,
retaining and developing a highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s Mission,
Vision and Values.

1. Mission, Vision & Values [All Agency Staff & Board]
Objective: IEUA will uphold Business Goals, Objectives and Commitment Levels that support
and advance the Agency’s Mission, Vision and Values.

Commitment: IEUA will maintain the highest standard of ethical conduct from all
Agency staff by promoting values of prudent leadership, integrity, collaboration, open
communication, respect, accountability, high quality, passion and efficiency to support
the Agency’s Mission, Vision and Values.

Reference Material: Appendix B.1

2. Employer of Choice [Human Resources, & Agency Management]
Objective: |IEUA will be an Employer of Choice.,

Commitment: IEUA will provide a work environment that will attract and retain highly
skilled, motivated, professional and committed employees.

Reference Material: Appendix B.2

3. Training [Agency Management & Human Resources]
Objective: IEUA will provide employees with state-of-the-art skills and knowledge to meet
current and anticipated Agency needs.

Commitment: IEUA will facilitate and provide opportunities for staff to further their
personal/professional development in support of maintaining a highly skilled workforce.

Reference Material: AppendixB.3
4. Staff Safety jSafety, Human Resources, & Agency Management]

Objective. IEUA will promote and ensure a safe and healthy work environment to protect
employees and Stakeholders.

Commitment: IEUA will have no mare than 1 day of lost time due to work related Iliness
or injury per 1,000 days worked.

Reference Material: Appendix B.4

fEUA Business Gouals




€. Business Goal: Business Practices

IEUA is committed to applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally
sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

1. Efficiency & Effectiveness jAii Departments]
Objective IEUA will promote standards of efficiency and effectiveness in all Agency business
practices and processes.

Commitment: IEUA will integrate Lean techniques to evaluate its current business
practices and processes and identify ways to improve the quality, cost and value of the
services the Agency provides to the Member Agencies and the Public.

Reference Material: Appendix C.1

2. Customer Service [All Departments]
Objective: IEUA will provide excellent customer service that is cost effective, efficient,

innovative and reliable.

Commitment: IEUA will respond to and meet the Member Agencies expectation for
enhanced value added services. IEUA will solicit Stakeholder feedback on performance
and goal alignment on an annual basis.

Reference Material: Appendix C.2

3. Regional Leadership and Community Relations [Agency Management, Planning, & Engineering]
Objective: |EUA will cultivate a positive and transparent relationship with its Stakeholders to
enhance quality of life, preserve our heritage and protect the environment.

Commitment: IEUA will partner with its Stakeholders on common issues to create and
implement integrated and innovative solutions, minimize duplication of efforts and
support education and outreach to the Public. Furthermore, [EUA will incorporate
Member Agencies and Regional Water Agencies into various |[EUA related projects and
programs to ensure that a transparent and broader regional representation is achieved.

Reference Material: Appendix C.3
4. Policy Leadership [Agency Management, Planning, & Engineering]

Objective: |EUA will effectively advocate, campaign and guide the development of policies and
legislation that benefit the Region IEUA serves.

Commitment: |IEUA will promote a collaborative approach for the development of
positions on policies, legislation and regulations that impact Agency policy objectives.

Reference Material: Appendix C.4

£0A Business Goals




D.

Business Goal: Water Reliability

IEUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated water
resource management plan that promotes cost-effective, reliable, efficient and
sustainable water use along with economic growth within the IEUA Service Area.

Water Use Efficiency & Education /Planning, Engineering, & Public Information]

Objective: 1EUA will promote education and water use efficiency to enhance water supplies
within the Region and exceed State goals for reductions in per capita water use within the [EUA
Service Area.

Commitment: IEUA will promote to reduce water use in the |IEUA Service Area to less
than 200 gallons per capita per day (gpcd) by 2018.

Reference Material: Appendix D.1

New Water Supplies [Planning &, Engineering]

Objective: IEUA will support the Member Agencies and Regional Water Agencies with the
development of reliable, drought-proof and diverse local water resources and Supplemental
Water supplies in order to reduce dependence on imported Water supplies.

Commitment: IEUA will promote reducing demand for Imported Water during dry and
normal years and storing Imported Water into the Chino Groundwater Basin during wet
years. In addition, IEUA will support maximizing the beneficial use of existing water
infrastructure, while meeting future increased demands through investment in local
water resources, Supplemental Water supplies and conservation efforts.

Reference Material: Appendix D.2

Recycled Water [Planning, Engineering, Operations, & Maintenance]
Objective: IEVUA will support maximizing beneficial reuse of recycled water to enhance reliability
and reduce dependence on Imported Water.

Commitment: IEUA will complete the development of recycled water infrastructure and
will support the Member Agencies in achieving reuse of 50,000 AFY by 2025.

Reference Material: Appendix D.3

Groundwater Recharge [Planning, Engineering, Operations, & Maintenance]
Objective: IEUA will maximize all sources of groundwater recharge.

Commitment: [EUA will support the recharge of all available stormwater and maximize
the recharge of recycled water within the Chino Groundwater Basin. Furthermore, IEUA
will pursue the purchase and storage of cost-effective Supplemental Water supplies.

Reference Muaterial; Appendix D.4

JEUA Business Goals




E. Business Goal: Wastewater Management

IEUA systems will be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that when
expansion planning is triggered, designs/construction can be completed to meet
regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentally responsible and cost
effective manner.

1. Capacity [Planning, Engineering, & Construction Management]
Objective: IEUA will maintain capacity within systems and facilities to meet essential service
demands and to protect public health and environment.

Commitment: |[EUA will ensure that systems are managed and constructed so that 90%
of capacity is never exceeded.

Reference Material: Appendix E.1

2. On-Time Construction [Engineering, & Construction Management]
Objective: IEUA will ensure capital projects are designed and implemented in a timely and
economically responsible manner.

Commitment: IEUA will design and construct facilities through efficient project
management to ensure that 80% of projects are completed on schedule and 90% of
projects are on budget.

Reference Material: Appendix E.2

3. Biosolids Management [Operations & Maintenance]
Objective: IEUA will manage all Agency produced biosolids in a compliant, fiscally prudent and
environmentally sustainable manner.

Commitment: |[EUA will ensure that 95% of the Inland Regional Compost Facility’s
capacity is utilized, all biosolids produced by IEUA are treated at IERCF, Agency solids
generation is minimized through efficient dewatering operations and alf compost is
marketed far beneficial use.

Reference Material: Appendix E.3

4. Energy Management [Pianning, Engineering, Operations, & Maintenance]
Objective: IEUA will optimize facility energy use and effectively manage renewable resources to
achieve peak power independence, contain future energy costs, achieve statewide renewable
energy, distributed generation and greenhouse gas reduction goals, and provide for future rate
stabilization.

Commitment: IEUA will achieve peak power independence by 2020 through the
implementation of renewable projects, energy management agreements and
operational efficiencies.

Reference Material: Appendix E.4

JEUA Business Goals




F. Business Goal: Environmental Stewardship

IEUA Is committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment through
conservation and sustainable practices.

1. Regulatory Compliance [Compliance, Operations, & Maintenance]
Objective: IEUA will comply with all federal, state and local laws at each Agency facility.

Commitment: IEUA will have no more than 2 notices of violation annually from the
State Water Resources Control Board, Air Quality Management District, or Non-
Reclaimable Waste System for all Agency owned and operated facilities.

Reference Material: Appendix F.1

2. Good Neighbor Policy [Compliance, Operations, & Maintenance]
Objective: IEUA will control odors at all Agency facilities for the purpose of improving the
environment and being a good neighbor to the local community.

Commitment: IEUA will perform a quarterly odor monitoring assessment to develop
actual and acceptable baseline odor thresholds. Acceptable baseline thresholds will be
used to measure treatment plant performance and drive necessary capital
improvements.

Reference Material: Appendix F.2

3. Response & Complaint Mitigation [Compliance, Operations, & Maintenance]
Objective: IEUA will investigate and appropriately respond in a timely manner to any
environmental issue or complaint received at any Agency Facility.

Commitment: |IEUA will immediately respond to any event that threatens public health
and safety and will respond within 5 working days te any non-emergency complaint or
suggestion.

Reference Material: Appendix F.3

4. Environmental Responsibility jAgency Menagement, Planning, & Engineering]
Objective: IEUA will strive to implement actions that enhance or promote environmental
sustainability and the preservation of the region’s heritage,

Commitment: IEUA will consider and assess environmental sustainability, public use
and heritage preservation options for all of its programs and projects.

Reference Material: Appendix F.4

IEUA Business Goals




Appendix

Reference Materials

. Fiscal Responsibility

A.1 - Funding & Appropriation
A.2 - Budget Planning

A.3 - Reserves

A.4 - Creditworthiness

. Workplace Environment
B.1 - Mission, Vision & Values
B.2 - Employer of Choice

B.3 - Training

B.4 - Staff Safety

. Business Practices

C.1 - Efficiency & Effectiveness

C.2 - Customer Service

C.3 - Regional Leadership & Community Relations
C.4 - Policy Leadership

. Water Reliability

D.1 - Water Use Efficiency & Education
D.2 - New Water Supplies

D.3 - Recycled Water

D.4 - Groundwater Recharge

. Wastewater Management
E.1 - Capacity

E.2 - On-Time Construction
E.3 - Biosolids Management
E.4 - Energy Management

. Environmental Stewardship

F.1 - Regulatory Compliance

F.2 - Good Neighbor Policy

F.3 - Response & Complaint Mitigation
F.4 - Environmental Responsibility



Business Goal: /EUA will safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational efficiency,
adoption of balanced multivear budgets and rates that meet full cost-of-service
targets, maintoin a high guality credit rating and preserve established fund
balance reserves to effectively address short term and long term economic
variability. Furthermore, IEUA will provide open and transparent communication
to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal policies of the Agency.

Objective: [EUA will appropriately fund operational, maintenance and capital investment
costs.

Commitment: /EUA will adopt service rates and fees thot fully support the costs of service and
provide a reliable and steady flow of operating revenue to support all operational
expenses, capital replacement and debt service costs. in addition, IEUA will ensure
that service rates and fees support the Agency’s goal to sustain high quality
Commitment Levels.

Commitment Level Background

» Historically, the Agency’s operating revenues (net of property tax supplement) have
been lower than operating expenses (i.e., services provided by the Agency do not
generate revenues needed to pay for total cost of operations), resulting in an operating
structural deficit. The operating structural deficit has been supported by a combination
of property tax receipts and fund reserves.

* The allocation of property tax receipts and fund reserves to support operating activities
reduced the amount of property taxes available to support capital investment, and over
time, diminished the Agency’s fund reserve balances.

» Given the uncertainty of property taxes, it is essential for the Agency to reduce its
reliance on this funding source to support recurring expenditures (O&M and debt
service costs) over time.,

» In 2013, IEUA will release the first Asset Management Plan, which will provide
management strategies and funding requirements to repair and replace aging
equipment at each of the treatment facilities based on condition assessments. Funding
of R&R is essential to ensuring facilities are maintained to support the Agency’s
Commitment Levels.

* IEUA is committed to ultimately having rates that fully support recurring costs, including
O&M,R&R, and debt service costs. Achieving this goal will allow the Agency to fully
allocate property tax receipts to support capital investment, including future expansion
of existing facilities, and reduce future borrowing costs.

» Fiscal Year 2013/14 is the second year of a three-year rate resolution adopted by the
Agency’s Board of Directors in February 2012 for the Regional Wastewater and Recycled
Water programs. The multi-year rate increases begin to address the net operating
structural deficit resulting from rates not fully recovering program costs.



A

ix A2

Business Goal: /EUA will safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational

efficiency, adoption of balanced muitiyear budgets and rates that meet full
cost-of-service targets, maintain a high quality credit rating and preserve
established fund balance reserves to effectively address short term and long
term economic variability. Furthermore, IEUA will provide open and
transparent communication to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal
policies of the Agency.

Objective: IEUA will accurately forecast future operational, repair & replacement, capital

improvement and debt service costs as needed for the creation of multiyear
budgets and rate resolutions that create fiscal stabilization for IEUA and the
Member Agencies.

Commitment: /EUA will provide multiyear forecasts for operational, repair & replacement,

capital investment and debt service costs to support the adoption of multiyear
budgets and rates enhancing dependobility and stability.

Commitment Level Background

In addition to the annual adoption of the Operating Budget and TYCIP, the Agency also
prepares a Long Range Plan of Finance (LRPF).

The LRPF aligns the Agency’s financial capacity with long-term service objectives. The
LRPF uses forecasts to provide insight into the Agency’s future financial capacity so that
Agency strategies can achieve long term sustainability of financial and service
objectives. It provides the most cost-effective funding strategy to support the
operations and capital requirements in line with established policies and goals.

Based upon the LRPF and other financial documents, the Agency is committed to
adopting multiyear budgets and rates to facilitate the integration of the financial and
strategic planning.

Adoption of multiyear budgets and rates will provide a more strategic approach to
resource allocation, as well as streamline the Agency’s rate increase process and provide
long term stability.



A i

Business Goal: IEUA will safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational efficiency,
adoption of balanced multiyear budgets and rates that meet full cost-of-service
targets, maintain o high quality credit rating and preserve established fund
balance reserves to effectively address short term and long term economic
variabifity. Furthermore, IEUA will provide open and transparent communication
to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal policies of the Agency.

Objective: IEUA will preserve fund reserves that sustain the Agency’s long term fiscal health, high
quality credit rating and ensure its ability to effectively address economic variability.

Commitment: /EUA will adopt financial policies to establish and preserve fund reserves above legally or
contractually mandated levels to maintain Commitment Levels. In addition, IEUA will
support short and long term funding requirements and sustain the Agency’s long term
fiscal health and high quality credit rating to reduce future borrowing costs.

Commitment Level Background

¢  Fund balance is a measure of the net worth (total assets minus total liabilities) of an
organization and Is a strong indicator of its financial health. In addition to consolidated fund
balance at the Agency-wide level, IEUA also maintains fund balances at the individual
program level.

e The fund balance reserves are designated for specific purposes, and include four month
operating contingency and debt service as prescribed by the current bond covenants, capital
construction, improvement and replacement, rate stabilization, self-insured workers’
compensation and liability insurance, retiree medical benefits, and other short term and
long term requirements.

e The figure below compares the Agency’s actual and projected total fund balance to the
“targeted” amount from FYs 2009/10 through 2016/17. Targeted fund balance as defined in
the Agency’s 2012 LRPF is the sum of 50 percent of operating revenues, and total fund
balance reserves designated to support debt service costs.

M‘llllonz
£t £ 2 2 &
[

|
|

1

|
|

g
|

g
|
]

2010/11 201412 ) .:mall3 00371 200415 256 201617 2opn8
O & M Reserves Debt Reserves. Capital Reserves Targeted
* Anupdate of the Agency’s financial policies adopted in 2005 is planned in 2013 as part of
the implementation of a long range financial model. A key objective will be to align reserves
and thresholds to meet the Agency’s short term and long term needs and develop a funding
strategy.



endix A.4

Fiscal Responsibility - Creditworthiness

Business Goal: I£UA will safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health through organizational efficiency,
adoption of balanced multiyear budgets and rates that meet full cost-of-service
targets, maintain a high quality credit rating and preserve established fund
balance reserves to effectively address short term and long term economic
variability. Furthermore, IEUA will provide open and transparent communication
to educate the Member Agencies on the fiscal policies of the Agency.

Objective: IEUA will sustain a high quality credit rating and debt service coverage ratio to
safeguard the Agency’s fiscal health and reduce future borrowing costs.

Commitment: [EUA will reinstate the Agency’s credit rating to AAA by FY 17/18 to reduce borrowing
costs anticipated for the expansion and improvement of existing facilities to meet
future growth in the Agency’s service areq.

Commitment Level Background

e As part of the 2012 multi-year rate increase, |[EUA established minimum debt coverage
ratio targets for the upcoming fiscal years. The following table shows the DCR targets,
the actual DCR’s and forecasted DCR’s {F}:

FY 11 T .
11/12 FY 12/13 FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16
Actual ijé_:lgd e ' Forecasts
Target 1.43x 1.50x 1.70x
Actual/Forecast 169x 1.92x 1.75x 2.01x 2.18x

e The FY 2011/12 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR} reported an Agency DCR
of 1.69x and the following credit ratings: AA- (S&P), Aa2 (Moody’s), and AA- {Fitch).

e The adopted FY 2014-2023 Ten Year Capital Improvement (TYCIP) includes expansion of
the Agency’s southern service area facilities in FY 2018/19 where most of the future
population growth is anticipated. This expansion is projected to be financed with new
debt. Improvement of the Agency’s long term credit rating to AAA and DCR to 2.70x
(DCR is the ratio of net revenue available to meet debt service costs). In the current
market, the differential cost of borrowing between AA and AAA is about 20 basis points.
On a $40 million bond issue, this equates to a borrowing-cost-savings of over $2.4
million over a 30 year term.

e Lower borrowing costs equate to lower fees.



Appendix B.1
Workplace Environment - Mission, Vision & Values

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,
retaining and developing a highiy skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s
Mission, Vision and Values.

Objective: IEUA will uphold Business Goals, Objectives and Commitment Levels that
support and advance the Agency’s Mission, Vision and Values.

Commitment: /EUA will maintain the highest standard of ethical conduct from all Agency staff by
promoting values of prudent leadership, integrity, collaboration, open communication,
respect, accountability, high quality, passion and efficiency to support the Agency’s
Mission and Vision.

Commitment Level Background

Mission Statement: The mission of the Agency is to supply imported and recycled water;
collect, treat, and dispose of wastewater; and provide other utlity-related (renewable electrical
energy, compost) services to the communitles it serves. The Agency strives to provide these
services in a reglonally planned, managed, and cost-effectlve manner.

Vision: The Inland Empire Utilities Agency will strive to enhance the quality
of life in the Inland Empire by providing optimum water resources
management for the area’s customers while promoting conservation and
environmental protection.

Values: The success of the Agency depends on
teamwork, mutua! trust and respect, and commitment
to the highest standards of quality, responsibility,

accountability, and dedication.

‘. !Environmental
Stewardship |

Water
Reliability

Wastewater
Management

Business

Workpiace
Environment

: | Responsibility

l Fiscal

§ ot 1
egulatory

Compliange

Ciihwrat

* Management will ensure that principles, policies and practices support the Business
Goals, Mission, Vision and Values of the Agency.



A

endix B.2

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,

retaining and developing a highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s
Mission, Vision and Values.

Objective: IEUA will be an Employer of Choice.
Commitment: /EUA will provide a work environment that will attract and retain highly skilled,

motivated, professional and committed employees.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA will recruit, retain, and promote a diverse and qualified workforce committed to
the Agency’s Mission, Vision and Values. This will be achieved by utilizing modern
recruitment practices that provide flexible and responsive recruiting solutions to assist
with filling positions in a timely and effective manner.

IEUA will encourage and maintain a highly motivated and trained staff by designing,
implementing, and supporting a learning environment which encourages growth and
development of Agency staff.

IEUA will strive to align project/work tasks with the skills of its employees to create a
rewarding and successful work environment.

IEUA will create a culture that recognizes a dedicated staff and attracts qualified
individuals through the use of creative communication methods and continued
education of available employee benefits to increase knowledge of these programs and
services. In addition, IEUA will update the Agency’s various award recognition programs
to reflect the Agency’s cost containment strategies.

IEUA will reduce stress from work-life imbalance by promoting partnerships, cross
training, shared responsibilities, and a culture of teamwork to allow any and all
employees recuperative time away from work activities.

IEUA will inspire trust and confidence in Management by: clearly defining the Agency’s
Mission/Vision/Values, by creating Business Goals that support the
Mission/Vision/Values, outlining a Strategic Plan to achieve those goals, communicating
how the Agency is accomplishing these goals, and effectively linking these goals to each
employee objectives and performance.



Appendix B.3

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,
retaining and developing a highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s
Missign, Vision and Values.

Objective: {EUA will provide employees with state-of-the-art skills and knowledge to
meet current and anticipated Agency needs.

Commitment: [EUA will facilitate and provide opportunities for staff to further their
personal/professional development in support of maintaining a highly skilled
workforce.

Commitment Level Background

e All Agency employees have access to online training:
4+ Leadership, Team Building, and Mentoring Skills Training
4+ Microsoft Office Training
4+ OSHA Required Safety Trainings
Employees are provided with login information, which allows the employee to perform
trainings at the most optimum time to fit their daily schedule.

e Selected Agency employees have the ability to attend onsite classroom trainings. The

following onsite classroom trainings are going to be provided for Fiscal Year 2013/2014:
“7 Habits of Highly Effective People”, (4} specialized onsite workshops, (12) 4-hour
Microsoft Office trainings and policies and procedures training.
¢ Three types of offsite training are going to be provided for Fiscal Year 2013/2014:
4+ Southern California Local Government Supervisory Program — This is a 3 day
training course to provide skills for new supervisors.
4+ Southern California Local Government Leadership Academy — This is a 7 day
training program for Managers provided by current ar retired City Managers.
+ Liebert Cassidy Whitmore Training — Legal Counsel provides workshops to
Managers, Supervisors, and aspiring Supervisors on relational issues.

e IEUA also provides tuition reimbursement up to $2,500 per year for employee educational
expenses that increase their job knowledge and skills. Additionally, certification and degree
incentives are awarded to employees who earn Associates, Bachelor’s and Master's Degree, and
specific program certification.

® Each Agency Department has training budgets to perform trainings on specialized skill sets for
their employees.



Appendix B.4

Workplace Environment - Staff Safety

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to provide a positive workplace environment by recruiting,
retaining and developing a highly skilled team dedicated to the Agency’s
Mission, Vision and Values.

Objective: IEUA will promote and ensure a safe and healthy work environment to protect
employees and Stakeholders.

Commitment: [EUA will have ne more than 1 day of lost time due to work related illness or injury per
1,000 days worked.

Commitment Level Background
* IEUA will sustain a clean, safe, and healthy working environment for all Agency
employees at all facilities. This will be achieved by:
4 Administering and monitoring required safety and regulatory trainings;
4+ Conducting annual intra-department safety audits; and
4+ Conducting annual emergency response drills, such as HAZWOPER training, fire
drills, and earthquake drills

¢ IEUA has maintained an outstanding employee workplace injury record. For Fiscal Year
2012/2013 the Agency had no lost time due to work related iliness or injury. Most employee
workplace injury events that occur at IEUA are typically due to cuts, scrapes, and bruises. Rarely
does a workplace injury incident result in lost time.

e Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) categorizes work related illnesses or
injuries by: recordable cases (a case that resulted in medical treatment beyond 1* aid, loss of
consciousness, or a significant injury diagnosed by a physician), transfers or restrictions (a case
that resulted in an employee not being able to perform their job duties; however, their job
duties were madified to meet the requirement of the illness or injury), lost time {a case that
resulted in an employee not being able to work for one day after the date of injury), and death.
For 2010 through 2012, IEUA had the following work injury statistics:

By Case
: _ I Transfers or
Calendar Year | |RecordableCases | ot e
2010 E B - :
2011 12 & . :
2012 13 ks 0 .
By Days
] _ Transfers or
Calendar Year Restrictions |
2010 81 150
2011 235 >
0

2012 390



Appendix C.1

Business Goal: IEUA is committed to applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally

sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

Objective: IEUA will promote standards of efficiency and effectiveness in all Agency

business practices and processes.

Commitment: /EUA will integrate Lean techniques to evaluate current business practices and

processes and identify ways to improve the quality, cost and value of the services the
Agency provides to the Member Agencies and the Public.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA is committed to providing its Stakeholders with high quality service in a cost
effective, regionally planned manner. Continued assessment and improvement of our
business processes and practices is essential to ensure optimization of efficiency and
effectiveness.

Lean was originally developed to reduce waste in manufacturing and evolved from Total
Quality Management (TQM); the manufacturing practices of the Toyota Motor
Corporation. However, rather than focusing on mass production, Lean focus on the
elimination of waste while providing the same, or enhanced, value to the customer.
Application of Lean techniques will help define key performance indicators (KPIs) to
more effectively measure, monitor, and realign processes to meet the Agency’s business
goals and objectives.

In April 2013, the second phase of the Agency’s Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP}
business system, first implemented in 2007, went live to streamline the recording,
tracking and reporting of employee and payroll data. This enhancement helps support
the Agency’s efficiency and effectiveness initiative by eliminating redundant systems,
enhancing data integrity, and supporting more transparent and timely reporting.

The Agency’s ERP system and integrated format also helps support the transition from a
reactive to a condition based monitoring (CBM) maintenance philosophy strategy; a key
initiative of the Agency. Under CBM, the 45 percent of resources currently allocated to
reactive maintenance (unplanned or emergency repairs) will shift to support a
predictive strategy denoted by improved planning and scheduling and more effective
diagnosis of equipment functionality.

The same integrated approach is being applied to the Agency’s existing Supervisory
Control & Data Acquisition (SCADA) System network which is currently comprised of a
wide variety of equipment and applications located throughout the various facilities.
Significant effort went into documenting the current state and analyzing the Agency’s
SCADA systems resulting in the 2012 Board adoption of the Recycled Water,
Groundwater Recharge and Facilities SCADA Master Plans.



endix C.2

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally
sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

Objective: IEUA will provide excellent customer service that is cost effective, efficient,
innovative and reliable.

Commitment: /EUA will respond to and meet the Member Agencies expectation for enhanced value
added services. IEUA will solicit Stakeholder feedback on performance and goal
alignment on an annual basis.

Commitment Level Background
s IEUA is committed to providing excellent customer service by:
+ Providing the primary services of the Agency —water management, wastewater
management, biosolids management, and other resources management
disciplines.
4 Ensuring that these services are offered in an effective, sustainable and cost
efficient method.
+ Providing clear and direct responses to customer suggestions, inquiries, and
complaints.
¢ Maintaining open sources of communication to ensure stakeholder’s interests
are discussed and opportunities are pursued.
e IEUA will optimize customer service by ensuring alignment and management of core
procurement business functions, roles and responsibilities.
e Media relations will continue to be cultivated and press releases will remain a major effort along
with the Agency internal and external newsletter and updates.
¢ Social networking and website maintenance will remain a top priority for Agency outreach and
communication initiatives.
o |EUA will collaborate with all Stakeholders to ensure open communication and discussion of
issues and policies that affect the IEUA Service Area, (i.e. topics such as imported water rates
and deliveries, development and availability of local water supplies.}



Appendix C.3
Business Practices - Regional Leadership & Community Relations
Business Goal: /EUA is committed to applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally
sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.
Objective: IEUA will cultivate a positive and transparent relationship with its Stakeholders
to enhance quality of life, preserve our heritage and protect the environment.
Commitment: /EUA will partner with its Stakeholders on common issues to create and implement
integrated and innovative solutions, minimize duplication of efforts and support
education and outreach to the Public. Furthermore, IEUA will incorporate Member
Agencies and Regional Water Agencies into various IEUA related projects and
programs to ensure that a transparent and broader regional representation is
achieved.

Commitment Level Background

¢ |EUA will promote and sustain effective communication between the Agency and its
Stakeholders through use of various methods, including frequent meetings/workshops,
newsletters and electronic media.

e Incorporating the Agency's branding initiatives, staff will create a recognizable standard
to educate the public about water recycling, water conservation and capital
infrastructure/replacement investments.

» |EUA is committed to taking actions that consider the cost, quality and value of service
for communities we serve.

» The Agency strives to foster open, positive and collaborative relationships with all
Stakeholders to meet the water needs of the Region now and in the future,

Sewage Contracting fmported Water
ABENCIRS
Wastewater
Water Retail
Agencies Water Conservation
Recycled Water
Energy

SANPA Sabmity Management

Groundwater Recharge

Watermaster

Drganics Retycling



Appendix C.4

Business Goal: /IEUA is committed to applying ethical, fiscally responsible and environmentally

sustainable principles to all aspects of business and organizational conduct.

Objective: IEUA will effectively advocate, campaign and guide the development of

policies and legisiation that directly benefit the Region IEUA serves.

Commitment: /EUA will promote a collaborative approach for the development of positions on

policies, legisiation and regulations that impact Agency policy objectives.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA will provide leadership on legislative solutions and regulatory standards for water
reliability, water guality, energy management, wastewater collection, treatment and
reuse, organics management, and stormwater and watershed management.

IEUA will continue to effectively seek State and Federal grant funding for Agency and
regional projects that achieve IEUA’s policy objectives; (e.g. the Recharge Master Plan,
Renewable Energy, the Optimum Basin Management Plan, and the Recycled Water
Program).

IEUA will actively research, monitor, review, and adopt positions on federal and state
legislation that benefit the IEUA’s and the Member Agencies policy objectives. This
information will be shared and discussed with all Stakeholders.

JEUA will support the development of public affairs, public awareness, community
education and outreach, media relations and legislative programs on issues that address
the policy objectives of IEUA. Open communication and collaboration among the
Agency and its Stakeholders is of prime importance.

IEUA will work with Member Agencies to formulate methods and approaches for addressing
community and agency concerns and ensure that concerns, needs, and requests are responded

to in a timely manner.

IEUA will actively review and provide recommendations on procedures and processes to
improve the efficiency, cost effectiveness, customer responsiveness, quality and environmental

sustainability of Agency programs and projects.

IEUA will coordinate -intergovernmental activities with Stakeholders, industry associations, and
regulatory agencies and will appear before local and state bodies on public affairs and other

matters.

IEUA will comply with the Brown Act requirements, and other laws pertaining to special districts.

IEUA will navigate and implement the regulatory changes as a result of pension reform.



Appendix D.1

Water Reliability - Water Use Efficiency & Education
Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated

water resource management plan that promotes cost—effectivé, reliable,

efficient and sustainable water use along with economic growth within the

Objective:

Commitment:

IEUA Service Areq,

IEUA will promote education and water use efficiency to enhance water

supplies within the Region and exceed State goals for reductions in per capita

water use within the IEUA Service Areq.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA will promote to reduce water use in the IEUA Service Area to less than 200
gallons per capita per day (gpcd) by 2018.

The Water Conservation Act of 2009 {SBX 7-7) requires urban retail water suppliers to
continue demand management measures to reduce water use, as measured by gpcd, by
10% by December 31, 2015 and by 20% by December 31, 2020 to maintain eligibility to

receive state water management grants and loans.

The baseline water use for the region from 1999 - 2008 was calculated to be 251 gpcd.
The reduced water use targets can be achieved through: water use efficiency (WUE)
active programs, WUE passive policy initiatives, and recycled water use. The current
goal of the Urban Water Management Plan and the Water Use Efficiency Business Plan
is to achieve the 20 x 2020 per capita water use reduction in the following manner:

2015 Reduction 202C Reduction
Projected Reduction from WUE Activities 5 gpcd 13 gpcd
Projected Reduction from Recycled Water Use 38 gped 45 gped
TOTAL Projected Reduction 43 gped 58 gpcd
10 Year Baseline 251 gped
Target 226 gpcd 201 gpcd
Projected Achievement 208 gpcd 193 gpcd

Additional per capita water use reductions can be achieved within the IEUA Service
Area. IEUA’s policy goal is to strive to achieve the 20 by 2020 reduction through
conservation measures alone. IEUA will collaborate with all Member Agencies to review
and update the Water Use Efficiency Business Plan to achieve this goal and will support

the reduction of water use below 200 gpcd by 2018.

IEUA will continue to expand regional water efficiency educational, outreach and rebate

programs.




A

ixD.

Business Goal: [EUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated

water resource management plan that promotes cost-effective, reliable,
efficient and sustainable water use along with economic growth within the
IEUA Service Areo.

Objective: IEUA will support the Member Agencies and Regional Water Agencies with the

development of reliable, drought-proof and diverse local water resources and
Supplemental Water supplies in order to reduce dependence on Imported
Water supplies.

Commitment: [EUA will promote reducing demand for Imported Water during dry and normal years

and storing Imported Water into the Chino Groundwater Basin during wet years. In
addition, IEUA will support maximizing the beneficial use of existing water
infrastructure, while meeting future increased demands through investment in local
water resources, Supplemental Water supplies and conservation efforts.

Commitment Level Background

As part of the 2010 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP), IEUA has set a goal to
maximize use of local water supplies and minimize the need for Imported Water,
especially during dry years and other emergency shortages from Metropolitan Water
District (MWD).

Unless additional water reductions are achieved or new local water supplies are
developed, current projections show that regionally an additional 10,000 AFY of costly
Imported Water will be required by year 2025.

It is understood that future Imported Water reliability will be lower and costs will be
higher. Over the next ten years, it is estimated that the IEUA/Member Agencies will
purchase $600 million in Imported Water. A 10,000 AFY water supply shift from
Imported Water would reduce MWD purchases by approximately $100 million over the
same ten year period.

IEUA is in the process of preparing an Integrated Resources Plan {IRP}, which will
provide an achievable long-term strategy to meet current and future water needs. The
IRP will evaluate existing water supplies and demands, forecast future water supplies
and demands, and evaluate additional water efficiency and alternative sources of new
water supply that will reduce future reliance on Imported Water.



1X

Water Reliability - Recycled Water
Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated

Objective:

water resource management plan that promotes cost-effective, reliable,
efficient and sustainable water use along with economic growth within the
IEUA Service Area.

IEUA will support maximizing beneficial reuse of recycled water to enhance
reliability and reduce dependence on Imported Water.

Commitment: /EUA will complete the development of recycled water infrastructure and will support

the Member Agencies in achieving reuse of 50,000 AFY by 2025.

Commitment Level Background

* |EUA has a current wastewater flow of approximately 60,000 AFY. Based upon
wastewater forecasts and potential future interconnections, IEUA is targeting a reliable
recycled water supply of 50,000 AFY for direct use and groundwater recharge by 2025.

¢ Asoutlined in the Recycled Water Business Plan, IEUA is in the process of expanding
recycled water infrastructure to meet the 50,000 AFY delivery target. IEUA will release
the Recycled Water Plan Update in 2014.

* In addition, the IRP will have specific focus on the development of additional direct
recycled water connections and a specific emphasis on recycled water interties and
enhanced groundwater recharge capabilities.

fed Wa
Coenal Proec

June 2013

Lo R I .
‘\"\ S ——

= Estimated Fiscal Year 2012/2013 recycled water delivery for direct use and groundwater
recharge is 31,500 AFY. Increasing recycled water deliveries to 50,000 AFY is key to
meeting the other three Objectives/Commitment Levels (Water Use Efficiency &
Education, New Water Supplies, and Groundwater Recharge) for the Water Reliability
Business Goal.



Appendix D.4

Water Reliability - Groundwater Recharge
Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the development and implementation of an integrated

Objective:
Commitment:

water resource management plan that promotes cost-effective, reliable,

efficient and sustainable water use along with economic growth within the

IEUA Service Area.

IEUA will maximize all sources of groundwater recharge.

IEUA will support the recharge of all available stormwater and maximize the recharge
of recycled water within the Chino Groundwater Basin. Furthermore, IEUA will pursue
the option to purchase and store cost-effective surplus iImported Water supplies.

Commitment Level Background

Groundwater currently comprises about 60% of the water supply needed to meet urban
water demand for the region.

The Chino Groundwater Basin contains approximately 5 million AF of water storage with
an additional 1 million AF in unused storage capacity. The current safe-yield of the Basin
is 145,000 AFY and declining. Historically, discounted Imported Water has been
available and utilized to recharge the Basin when pumping has exceeded the safe-yield.
The MWD discounted replenishment water was discontinued in 2012, changing the
economic impacts of over-production of groundwater.

The Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Program developed new sources of
replenishment water: local stormwater and recycled water.

IEUA has been shifting the need to buy Imported Water to meet replenishment needs,
to the cost-effective use of stormwater and recycled water.

0,000 T —
g Dimported Water

oEomwatar
ORseycad Waler

g anpo0 | ‘f"

L ] |

E #

£

i wnow

E 000

E 100

IEUA will continue to partner with CBWM to maximize the recharge of all available
stormwater and recycled water and will only recharge imported water proactively when
economically viable or as necessary to meet replenishment requirements.



n

1

Wastewater Management - Capacity

Business Goal:

IEUA systems will be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that
when expansion planning Is triggered, designs/construction can be completed

to meet regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentally
responsible and cost effective manner.

Objective: IEUA will maintain capacity within systems and facilities to meet essential

Commitment:

service demands and to protect public health and environment.

never exceeded.

Commitment Level Background

Economic development of the region is dependent upon well planned public works
infrastructure in place prior to land development. Wastewater collection and treatment
are critical components of this infrastructure.

IEUA has and wili continue to utilize operational flexibilities provided through flow
diversion and bypass systems to maximize beneficial use and capacity of the integrated
collection system, wastewater treatment system, recycled water system, and organics
management system.

For Fiscal Year 2012/2013, all four IEUA Wastewater Recycling Facilities have a Percent
Capacity Utilization between 60% - 70%. The Ten-Year Percent Capacity Utilization
projection shows slight increases for RP-1, RP-4, and CCWRF; however, RP-5 has a
substantial increase to 95%:

V2012/13 i F¥ 2022/23
Actual* Frojection

Trauted Tume Perreml Troatesl Vi
il | (70 TR e Gupiehy | G | gy | Moo Eapaciy

By cllay Tiamt Vow  Gopely | Ullkatine | ew Gty iyl
RP-1 277 440 3% 304 440 @9%
RP-4 9.8 14.0 70% 108 14.0 7%
CCWRF 74 114 £5% 80 114 70%
RP-5 10.5 163 4% 15.5 163 95%
IBUA Total 55.3 857 65% 64.7 857 76%

For Fiscal year 2013/2014, IEUA will be updating the Facilities Master Plan, which will
considered future growth patterns, alternatives for expansion of the Wastewater
Recycling Facilities, and impacts to the Recycled Water and Organics Management
systems.

IEUA will ensure that all planning, design, construction, and start-up activities for
treatment system expansions are scheduled and completed before the 90% Percent
Capacity Utilization is reached.

IEUA will ensure that systems are managed and constructed so that 90% of capacity is



Appendix E.2

Business Goal: IEUA systems will be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that

when expansion planning is triggered, designs/construction can be completed
to meet regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentally
responsible, and cost effective manner.

Objective: IEUA will ensure capital projects are designed and implemented in a timely

and economically responsible manner.

Commitment: [EUA will design and construct facilities through efficient project management to

ensure that 80% of projects are completed on schedule and 90% of projects are on
budget.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA is committed to ensuring that projects are completed: on-time to obtain the
beneficial use of required equipment as required by Operations, Maintenance, and
Compliance, and on budget to contain costs and accurately project Agency future
expenditures.

Constructability reviews, which will include technical input from Construction,
Operations, Maintenance, and DCS staff, will be included as a standard design element
with the goal of reducing the number of change orders experienced during construction.
Construction Management staff have received schedule training to allow for detailed
reviews of contractor construction schedules. Staff will effectively analyze contractor
schedules to highlight deficiencies in critical paths that may result in extended project
schedules.

At the completion of a project pre-design report (PDR), budgets will be created with
well-defined scopes of work that include all project costs: design/construction
consultants, construction contract award, and all Agency labor costs {Engineering,
Construction Management, Operations, Maintenance, DCS, Finance, and Accounting).

A project will be deemed on budget if all design, construction, and start-up activities are
completed and expenditures on the project are between 90-100% of the project budget.
schedules for duration of design and construction/start-up will be created at the time
the project budget is created {completion of the PDR}.

The Engineering schedule metric will be based upon the project design kickoff meeting
and the Award of Construction Contract. The Engineering activities will be deemed on
schedule if the duration between the Award of Construction Contract and design kickoff
meeting is +/- 10% of the initial estimate.

The Construction Management schedule metric will start at the preconstruction
meeting and conclude with the Operations acceptance of the project. The Construction
activities will be deemed on schedule if the duration between the project acceptance
and preconstruction meeting is +/- 10% of the initial estimate.



ixE,

Business Goal: /EUA systems will be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that

when expansion planning Is triggered, designs/construction can be completed
to meet regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentally
responsible, and cost effective manner.

Objective: IEUA will manage all Agency produced biosolids in a compliant, fiscally

prudent and environmentally sustainable manner.

Commitment: JEUA will ensure that 95% of the inland Regional Compost Facility’s capacity is utilized,

all biosolids produced by IEUA are treated at IERCF, Agency solids generation is
minimized through efficient dewatering operations, and all compost is marketed for
beneficial use.

Commitment Level Background

In 2001, the Chino Basin Organics Management Business Plan set a goal for the region to
divert organic solids from landfills and to consume locally generated recycled organic
material. Under a loint Powers Agreement, IEUA in partnership with Los Angeles
County Sanitation District constructed the Inland Empire Regional Composting Facility
{IERCF) to meet this goal.

IERCF has an operating capacity of approximately 400 wet tons per day for wastewater
biosolids. IEUA’s owned portion of this operating capacity is equivalent to 50% or
approximately 200 wet tons per day of biosolids material. IEUA currently generates
approximately 190 wet tons per day of biosolids.

IEUA’s goal is to send all biosolids generated at its wastewater facilities to [ERCF:
however, IERCF requires one shutdown day per month to perform preventative
maintenance on operating equipment. On maintenance days, IEUA will utilize the use of
storage at RP-1 and RP-2, while maintaining contracts with third party composting
facilities as a contingency.

IEUA supports reducing solids generation at its wastewater facilities. Currently, start-up
activities for the new RP-1 Centrifuge Dewatering Building are commencing and full
operation should be achieved by the end of 2013. The new centrifuges will increase the
biosolids total solids percentage from the current 16% up to 24%. This will decrease the
IEUA biosolids generation by approximately 50 wet tons per day, resulting in excess
IEUA capacity at IERCF.

All biosolids and wood amendment sent to IERCF are processed and treated to produce
a Class A exceptional quality compost. IERCF compost, which is created and marketed
as SoilPro Premium Compost, is beneficially used by contracting agencies and sold as a
soil conditioner that improves water retention, resulting in better plant growth and
reduces water requirements.



A

ix E4

Business Goal: IEUA systems will be master planned, managed and constructed to ensure that

when expansion planning is triggered, designs/construction can be completed
to meet regulatory/growth needs in an expeditious, environmentally
responsible, and cost effective manner,

Objective: IEUA will optimize facility energy use and effectively manage renewable

resources to achieve peak power independence, contain future energy costs,
achieve stotewide renewable energy, distributed generation and greenhouse
gas reduction goals, and provide for future rate stabilization.

Commitment: /EUA wiff achieve peak power independence by 2020 through the implementation of

renewable projects, energy management agreements and operational efficiencies.

Commitment Level Background

IEVA facilities currently use approximately 75,000 MWh of electricity annually at an
annual cost of approximately $9,000,000. This is 26% of the non-labor Operations and
Maintenance budget and the highest, non-labor cost of the Agency.

The region’s population is forecasted to increase by 50% by 2030, which will further
increase demand and cost for electricity. Electricity prices are volatile; however,
historically, the average annual increase has been between 4% - 6%.

IEUA has created a preliminary Energy Management Plan to reach energy independence
from the grid during peak energy use/pricing period (noon — 6:00 PM) by 2020 through
increased energy efficiency, increased on-site energy generation, a diversified energy
portfolio and energy demand response.

Through Power Purchase Agreements (PPA’s), IEUA has expanded its renewable energy
portfolio to include 3.5 MW of solar, 1.0 MW of wind, and 2.8 MW of biogas fuel cell
production,

IEUA will develop an updated energy management plan that will focus on integrating
energy efficiency, demand response, and renewable energy generation programs to
contain future energy costs and contribute to achieving statewide renewable energy
and greenhouse gas reduction goals.



Environmental Stewardship - Regulatory Compliance
Business Goal: /EUA /s committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment

through conservation and sustainable practices.

Objective: IEUA will comply with all federal, state and local laws at each Agency facility.
Commitment: /EUA will have no more than 2 notices of violation annually from the State Water

Resources Control Board, Air Quelity Management District, or Non-Reclaimable Waste
System for all Agency owned and operated facilities.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA has set Key Performance Indicators (KP1) at each Agency facility to monitor
compliance with all regulations stipulated in the NPDES, AQMD, and NRWS permits.
When compliance KPI’s are exceeded, incident reports are created to outline the facts
and causes of any noncompliant event. The incident reports are reviewed and
corrective action is taken to prevent future KPI noncompliance.
It is up to the discretion of AQMD to issue NOV’s; however, in general a NOV is issued
for: operation of equipment without a valid permit to operate, excessive exceedance of
a permit stipulated emissions requirement, or operations resulting in a nuisance to the
public.
For Calendar Year 2012, IEUA had the following AQMD notices of violation:
Date | Incident - Commerits

Ammonia Tank Level
9/5/12 Exceedance (greater NOV issued (item resolved)
than permitted capacity)
Unpermitted Pilot Unit
Installation

9/5/12 NOV issued (item appealed)

SWRCB defines violations as “serious” and “non-serious” and each type of violation may
be subject to a minimum liability penalty (MMP). In addition, sewage spills, including
large recycled water spills, are subject to administrative civil liability penalties (ACL). Any
MMP or ACL would be considered a notice of violation. For Calendar Year 2012, IEUA
had the following SWRCB incidents; however, no incidents were deemed serious:

1/10/12 Turner Basin RW
Release
SB Lift Station Sewer Spill was contained and cleaned before
4/3/12 Overflow reaching surface water
4/12/12 CalPoly Pomona RW
Release
5/8/12 Philadelphia NRW Spill was contained and cleaned before
Sewer Overflow reaching surface water
CCWRF 7-d Median Investigation identified issue as sample

12/19/12 Coliform contamination



A ix F.2

Environmental Stewardship - Good Neighbor Policy

Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment
through conservation and sustainable practices.

Objective: IEUA will control odors at all Agency facilities for the purpose of improving the
environment and being a good neighbor to the local community.

Commitment: [EUA will perform a quarterly odor monitoring assessment to develop actual
and acceptable baseline odor thresholds. Acceptable baseline thresholds will
be used to measure treatment plant performance and drive necessary capital
improvements.

Commitment Level Background

e IEUA facilities and processes have the potential to produce odors.

e Each facility is operated under AQMD permits that include odor control requirements.

* AQMD has a rule that prohibits odor impacts to the community.

» Substantial funding has been made into odor control technologies at Agency Facilities.

* |EUA routinely performs odor circuits around each facility to measure for hydrogen
sulfide. Hydrogen sulfide has an odor described as smelling similar to rotten eggs and is
generally used as a surrogate for wastewater odor presence.

» [EUA will review extending similar odor circuits to all Agency Facilities and will review expanding
measurements to include ammonia {pungent smell) and mercaptans (rotten cabbage smell).

» In addition, IEUA will perform a quarterly odor profile analysis at each of the treatment facilities.
An odor profile analysis is completed by inviting participants from Member Agencies and IEUA
staff to survey facility odors and grade them by intensity (week to strong) and characteristic
(rotten eggs, fishy, rotten cabbage, etc.). See following diagram for example sample locations.

Regional Plant No. 1 Regional Plant No. &

i

L o s L N T
s Based upon the odor circuits and odor profile analysis, odor baselines will be created and
thresholds will be set for each facility. An odar control plan will be created to determine any
capital expenditures required to meet the established thresholds. Based upon the required
capital expenditures, the odor thresholds may be adjusted to provide the most efficient odor
control strategy.



Environmental Stewardship ~ Response & Complaint Mitigation
Business Goal: /EUA is committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment

through conservation and sustainable practices.

Obijective: [EUA will investigate and appropriately respond in a timely manner to any

environmental issue or complaint received at any Agency Facility.

Commitment: [EUA will immediately respond to any event that threatens public health and

safety and will respond within 5 working days to any nonemergency complaint
or suggestion.

Commitment Level Background

Generally, all Agency facilities have Operations & Maintenance staff onsite 10 hours per
day, 7 days a week to respond to any compliance or public health & safety events.
During hours when facilities are unmanned, Operations & Maintenance staff are on-call
and receive alarm notifications for any compliance or public health and safety event.
For Calendar Year 2012, IEUA had 17 onsite compliance related incidents, 2 emergency
response events due to recycled water releases, and 2 response events to sanitary
sewer overflows. Each event was responded to immediately.

For Calendar Year 2012, IEUA received 4 odor complaints from members of the Pubilic.
Each complaint was theroughly investigated by Agency staff and incident reports were
created. Most complaints cannot be substantiated; however, the Agency has modified
operations in an attempt to reduce the potential of creating odors.



Appendix F.4

Business Goal: [EUA is committed to the responsible use and protection of the environment

through conservation and sustainable practices.

Objective: IEUA will strive to implement actions that enhance or promote environmental

sustainability and the preservation of region’s heritage.

Commitment: IEUA will consider and assess environmental sustainability, public use and

heritage preservation options for all of its programs and projects.

Commitment Level Background

IEUA constructed a new headquarters buiiding and committed to design standards that ensured
prudent use of natural resources and proactive conservation measures. This project has enabled
the Agency to achieve recognition and leadership in support of building a sustainable
envircnment. This recognition was presented to the Agency through the U.S. Green Building
Council’s Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design (LEED™) program earning the
“Platinum” level rating by meeting specific requirements. IEUA will take actions to sustain the
Platinum LEED status of its facilities.

In 2007, IEUA opened the Chino Creek Wetlands and Educational Park, one portion of the
overall efforts being taken in the watershed under the Chino Creek Integrated Plan (CCIP}. The
general function of the CCIP is to focus planning attention on the lower Chino Creek area of the
Prado Basin in a process of preserving and restoring the Prado Basin, maximizing value to the
community, improving water-quality and flood control, and providing habitat restoration,
recreation, water conservation and public education. The park is open to the public during
daytime hours and consists of: 22,000 various drought tolerant plants, 1.7 miles of nature trails,
22 acres of habitat, and 6 ponds.

The 1630 West Recycled Water Pump Station was constructed at Vineyard Park in Ontario. As
part of the project, new park bathroom facilities were constructed and improvements of the
parking lot, electrical, and irrigation systems were completed providing benefit to the local
residents.

IEUA will expand its environmental and education programs including: annual Earth Day
activities, Garden in Every School and Inland Empire Garden Friendly. IEUA will collaborate with
all Stakeholders {including Cal State San Bernardinoc Water Resource Institute and Home Depot)
on the Inland Empire Garden Friendly program to promote sustainable environmental principles
and incorporate the history and tradition of the Region.

IEUA completed construction of the wetlands mitigation area in Basin 2 of the RP-3 Recharge
Facility in July 2004. Basins 1, 3 and 4 are used actively for groundwater recharge, while most of
Basin 2 is occupied by the mitigation wetlands. The vegetation was planted and the irrigation
system installed in May 2005.



Appendix B

Carbon Management Plan



L
b
-

&

NVTd LNFWIDYNVYN ADHINI STOZ VN3




CARBON MANAGEMENT PLAN
INTRODUCTION

IEUA’s Business Goals discuss the need for effective energy management in order to meet
California’s Greenhouse Gas (GHG) reduction goals. This Carbon Management Plan intends to
provide a baseline for future reduction goals and introduce specific carbon management efforts that
will be further developed and expanded upon in successive plans. Effective carbon management is
instrumental in sustainably and efficiently treating wastewater and providing recycled water for
the Chino Basin.

GHG REPORTING

IEUA became a member of The Climate Registry (TCR) in 2013. TCR membership is voluntary, and
requires an annual inventory of GHG emissions. IEUA’s 2013 GHG emissions were reported, but not

verified by an independent third party. IEUA has committed to pursue verification for the 2014
reported GHG emissions.

Figure 1 shows the breakdown of IEUA’s 2013 GHG emissions by scurce. A more detailed
categorization is shown in Table 1. GHG emissions reported through TCR are divided into Scope 1
(direct emissions) and Scope 2 {indirect) emissions. Approximately 21 percent of IEUA's GHG
emissions are emitted directly from fossil fuel combustion at IEUA facilities (Scope 1). The
remainder of the inventory is made up of indirect electricity purchases, emissions from mobile
combustion related to biosolids hauling, or emissions from biogenic sources (Scope 2).

FIGURE 1. IEUA’S 2013 GHG EMISSIONS BY SOURCE

1.3%

¥ Mobile Combustion & Stationary Combustion {Fossll Fuels) i Blogas Combustion  ® Purchased Electricity



« MY, 42PUn papnjoul oo g3/ ID PUDB ‘S-dy b-d¥ ‘T-dY 30 Burdumd 123pm pajosoad 1of pasn £1014308)9 WO SUCISSIWE DI 210N

905°CE | 0192 ELTL Y44 IPE'6 89891 /)1 L6l &L 66 SEL9 ol

£z £e 0 - - £z - - - - - uones

UoneULIC{Yd3(]

Buiney

el ¥zl 0 7A - - - - - - - sprjosorg

L0€E 0 LOE - - - 01 £62 - - - SaIIY3A 19[4

¥0E F0E 0 - - v0E - - - - - amd

655°C 655 0 - - 655t - - - - - MY

SLL SLL 0 - - SLL - - - - - 51

¥PST| 6151 9z - - 61ST - - - £z € J4MDD

0LE'E | TL9T £69 - LOE G9€Z - - - 6 889 OH/S-dY

160°E 869C Z6¢E - SL¥Z ¥ee - - - 12 ZLE ¢-dd

LY0'S | ££0'S ¥l - - £€0'S - - - ¥1 T AL/ $-d¥

z9¢g's1 G796 LEL'S - 6559 990°¢ - - €t €e 1L9'S T-dd
(1ssata) uonsnquIoy) | AHILIPIY [9s91d | UI[0oSeY ad1 | 1°s9ld S

suossyuyg [B10L [ejoy, | HORSNqUIo) ) sedoig __mwmﬂ_uu:m . . : Lo 921IN0g
oY 1oL | z adoas | T adoos I[IqON uonsSnquIo) I[IQOR | UONSNquIoe) Areuonels

(suoissiurg paarpuj) z adoas

suoIssnuy Paug) 1 2doas

ALI'TIDVA ANV Hd0ODS A9 SNOISSINA DHD £10¢Z S.VHI 'T 4T9V.L




CARBON NEUTRALITY BY 2030

In recent years, IEUA has worked to develop a diverse portfolio of renewable energy technologies.
Since 2008, 3.5 MW of solar panels, a 1 MW wind turbine, and a 2.8 MW biogas fuel cell have been
installed at IEUA facilities, which adds to a 580 kW biogas engine that has been in operation since
1990. In 2010, IEUA entered into a public-private partnership to operate a food waste digestion
process designed to provide renewable fuel for two 1.5 MW biogas engines at IEUA's RP-5 facility.
These biogas engines began to generate power in early 2015.

As shown in Figure 1, electricity purchases account for half of IEUA’s GHG emission profile. Through
renewable resource optimization and expansion, IEUA aims to procure 100 percent of its electricity
through carbon neutral sources by 2030. In Fiscal Year 2013/2014, 36 percent of electricity
purchases were procured from carbon neutral sources (Figure 2). It should be noted that only
biogas used in the fuel cell was considered to be carbon neutral. Natural gas usage in the fuel cell
was separately included in the 64 percent of procurement from non-carbon neutral sources.

FIGURE 2. IEUA FY 13/14 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT SOURCES

@ Imported (Non-RPS) © Imported (RPS) © Solar © Wind ® Biogas (Fuel Cell and ICE) M Fuel Cell (NG)

Achieving a goal of 100 percent carbon neutrality will require significant planning and engineering
effort. Biogas optimization, increased plant efficiencies, and new renewable projects will all be
pursued to work toward the 2030 goal. IEUA used information from the Wastewater Facilities
Master Plan (WFMP) to project electrical needs over the next 20 years based on the anticipated
increase in influent flows. IEUA also used the following assumptions to estimate the contribution of
renewable resources toward meeting the 2030 electrical needs.

. w Digestion Operations — [EUA estimates that the cogeneration engines powered
by the food waste digestion process will generate at 90 percent capacity by 2030.



e Microturbine Installation — IEUA is currently evaluating the installation of a microturbine
that would operate on biogas and serve as a replacement of the 580 kW engine at RP-2.

¢ Fuel Cell Operations - IEUA assumes that the fuel cell at RP-1 will maintain operation on a
75/25 mixture of biogas and natural gas, respectively. Equipment degradation rates
specified by the manufacturer are included in the projection.

= Solar Installations — IEUA is currently evaluating the installation of an additional 1 MW of
solar generation, which was incorporated into the projection. Generation capabilities of the
solar were estimated to decrease at a rate of one percent per year, consistent with
manufacturer specifications.

= Increased RPS - Based on current legislation, IEUA anticipates that by 2030, 50 percent of
electricity procured through import will come from renewable sources.

¢ Increased Energy Efficiency - Based on preliminary energy audit results, implementing
energy efficiency measures at IEUA facilities is expected to reduce energy usage by 15
percent on average.

Using these assumptions and the projections from the WFMP, IEUA has estimated that 81 percent
of its electricity needs in 2030 will be generated from renewable resources (Figure 3).

FIGURE 3. PROJECTED 2030 ELECTRICITY PROCUREMENT SOURCES
) ~0.5%

12%

& Imported (Non-RPS)  Imported (RPS) © Solar = Wind i Biogas (Fuel Cell, MT, & ICE} M Fuel Cell (NG}

To better understand where the carbon neutral electricity will be coming from, Figure 4 breaks
down the anticipated generation from carbon neutral sources in the 2030 projections. These
estimates account for projected demand increases from the WFMP, as well as expected efficiency
upgrades. Existing renewable resources (3.5 MW of solar, 1 MW wind turbine, 2.8 MW fuel cell, and
580 KW engine) are not included in either column.



FIGURE 4. PROJECTED 2030 CARBON NEUTRAL RESOURCES

0,000 -
| |
70,000 i -
| ] Demand Reduction from Anticipated Energy
Projected Demand | Efficiency Upgrades
Increase
60,000 - —
600 kW Microturbine
§ Additional 1 MW of solar at RP-4/IERCF
£
2 Additional RPS import - CPUC regulations
8
£
3
[}
5
w

50,000
anticipated to require 50% of grid electricity
40,000 +— . to come from renewable sources
REEP Engines - estimated at 90% capacity
30,000
20,000
10,000
(4] s st i e e e |

FY 13/14 2030 Projected

Future planning efforts will be focused on tracking the performance of renewable installations,
researching new opportunities to increase the procurement of electricity from carbon neutral
sources, and identifying potential avenues of bridging the gap between the current level of carbon
neutrality and the 2030 goal.

GHG MANAGEMENT

In addition to achieving carbon neutrality, IEUA will evaluate and implement measures to improve
GHG management. Beginning in FY 15/16, GHG reductions will be considered favorably in the
selection criteria for proposals received for new engineering projects.

The Carbon Management Plan will also be revised in parallel with IEUA’s Energy Management Plan
to ensure continuous evaluation and improvement toward GHG goals. Future planning efforts will
enlist the assistance of third party consultants to generate a more robust management plan that
evaluates potential GHG monitoring and reduction measures such as the carbon neutrality of fleet
vehicles, tracking GHG impacts in various water supplies, and expansion of IEUA’s GHG inventory to
include Scope 3 emissions.



NY1d INTFINFOVNYW ADYINT STOZ VN3l




Appendix C

Organics Diversion



NYI1d LINFWIOVYNYIN ADHINI STOZ YNNIl




ORGANICS DIVERSION
INTRODUCTION

California has adopted several policies to reduce the short-lived climate pollutants (SLCP) and
Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions by 2030, like the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006
(AB 32), and the mandatory commercial organics recycling law (AB 1826) in 2014, AB 1826 requires
business to recycle organic waste by April 1, 2016, based on the amount of waste generated per week,
and expects local governments to adopt and implement a mandatory commercial organic waste
recycling program by January 1, 2016. Since composting and anaerobic digestion are acceptable
alternatives to organics landfill disposal, Agency's facilities and staff know-how may represent a
valuable resource to IEUA’s Member Agencies required to comply with AB 1826.

FEASIBILITY STUDY

The Agency’s “Organics Diversion” initiative was introduced in support of IEUA’s Member Agencies
and local businesses, in complying with the State’s organics diversion requirements. As result, staff
is conducting a feasibility study in the Agency’s service area, to evaluate the amount and the current
processing and disposal practices of:

e fat, oil and grease (FOG)
= domestic and commercial food waste
» high strength industrial waste.

A critical element of the feasibility study is the digester gas production estimate associated with the
amount and type of organic waste available in the Agency’s service area, and the development of a
business case evaluation related to co-digestion and digester gas utilization facilities. Potential
beneficial use of the biogas generated is:

* electricity generation (internal combustion engine, microturbine, fuel cell)
* conversion to natural gas pipeline quality (pipeline injection and for vehicle fuel)

Because of the significant energy value associated with food waste, the implementation of an organics
diversion program and food waste co-digestion will be essential in supporting the Agency long term
goals of peak power independence and carbon neutrality.

PROJECT BARRIERS

Social, political, economic and regulatory barriers can adversely affect the implementation of the
Organics Diversion initiative at IEUA. Community support is essential to ensure proper disposal and
prevent food waste contamination; as well the full support of the Member Agencies directly
responsible for providing waste management, or contracting the waste collection and disposal to a
third party. Lack of funding, slow return on investments, uncertain revenue stream and incentives
may be too risky for the Agency; and, delaying the implementation and enforcement of organic
recycling laws may limit the amount of waste available for co-digestion, preventing the development
of a competitive organic waste market, with tipping fees comparable to other disposal options.



]

Intand Empire Utilities Agency

G075 Kimball Aveniie
Chino, CA 81708
Pione; (9D9) 9931600




Fuel Cell

Unit Price {$/kWh)

Recovery

0.35

0.30

0.25

0.20

0.15 =

0.10 A

0.05

0.00

Facility: Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1 {RP-1) 24,000
Estimated Generation
Manufacturer: Fuel Cell Energy, DFC3000 —  20.000
E 4 - a» = o o
Rating Output: 2,800 kW =
= 16,000 —
Estimated Annual Output: 19,260 MWh/yr 5 .
. . , B 12,000 _\ [
Commercial Operation Date: 1/1/2013 o - | J
@ |
@ H =
Power Purchase Agreement: Anaergia (20 years) Z 8000 "
S !
PPA Rate: $0.1262/kWh (2013) - $0.2017/kwh (2033)  © 4000 ) | -
Ancillary Equipment: Gas Cleaning System, Heat . ' | | . ! _| 1
0 = I“ e S T e
Fuel Requirements: 612,000 - 830,000 cft/day biogas 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15
. ! R ' Co P i
; | IR R i L g : _
; | Grid Price Forecast : : -
; i . (6% Annual Escalation) ! | ;
i do | ;s LR : : ¥
; i | Grid Price Forecast oo ? R
‘ | (4% Annual Escalation : ' :’. =1 |
| . AN I I T T LT
‘ Fuel Cell ! : "w T |
‘ o — i~|—-.—-. s 30 ‘ .Tﬂg‘ﬁ.‘hﬁrd“i"""? ’ ; i ESwe-x ) WO
- “‘: | | [ i b i : : :
; Savings FY 12/13 — FY 14/15 - $343,000 “
! : i Expected Savings PPA Term $790,000 (4% Escalation) |
j ' . (FY 12/13 — FY 32/33) $13,540,000 (6% Escalation) _
L ; P & 1 7 T T 7 ! T O A
] g S = a 3 & & & = 8 & o
= P ) - & = & o o ) = & 3
(=] 8 = = — —t - ™~ o [a] ™ ™~ m
o j=3 Qo Q Q (=] (== (=] j=) o Q <o o
™~ o~ o~ ™~ [} (o] o~ ™~ ™~ ™~ o~ ™~ ™~
14 ,
& Engine
= 12 @ Fuel Cell
: ———— ek bl ——
§ 10 +~
SRR e Fedcion
2 NO,  992%__
8 0.6 1 SOx  99.9%
£ 04+ PMyp  1000%
[45]
0.2 47
0.0 . L __—
NOx SOx PM10




Facilities: Carbon Canyon Water Recycling Facility, 9,000
Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 1, No.4, No.5 8,000 - _ — Estimated Generation -
Manufacturer: SunPower, Evergreen =
g __-S' 7,000 "—__-__H_-ET__"""
Rating Output: 3,500 kW g 6,000 - y . = B N
Estimated Annual Output: 7,000 MWh/yr § 5000 B —8—B—B—B-
] L
Commercial Operation Date: 12/2008 £ 4,000 3 — H B B B B
Q3000 —HF——F— &8 &
Power Purchase Agreement: SunPower £
= 2,000 +—-———B—B -
U ’
PPA Rate: $0.1173/kWh (2008) - $0.1709/kwh (2028) & _ [ =~ = =~ = |
Number of Panels: 18,210 o L : : : —_]
3 =1 o o a9 -t 3
Type of Panels: Ground/Roof Mounted Fixed Tilted, % & 3 0 o o <
Ground Mounted Tracker < < 8 5 2 b =4
0.40 sy T . — e a—— , ! ,_
Savings FY 08/08 — FY 14/15 - $440,000 :
035 :
Expected Savings PPA Term $1,030,000 (4% Escalation) ;
0.30 | (FY08/09-FY 28/29) $3,700,000 (6% Escalation) |- .
—_ : ; P ; :- % |
= H . ] 3
2 025 5 : : : ; : ‘ "]
= | ! i ! | _— i
& : ! ‘ ‘ : w
Y 0.20 4+ Splar ’ | : e S T)
= i | - I .
o o A
£ 0.15 T : | ]
t | ' . i
0.05 ; } | Grid Price Forecast __ | Grid Price Forecast i
: i (4% Annual Escalation) (6% Annual Escalation)
0.00 - : ; LS VRN SO B S bt S IS NS Aovoes B S S PO
8 a S et 3 3 8 & & S & & &
= & ) o Iy ~ & = & o ~ o 3
Q [=] - - — — = o ™ o [a} o o
& & = & & S & = & & & & 154

Environmental Benefits Since 2008
Renewable Energy = 43,524 MWh

Equivalent to:

* Carbon sequestered by 10,896
acres of forest in one year

* Removing 2,799 passenger vehicles
from the road for one year

VvOC=047 CO0=333
NOx=1.64 PM10=0.39
50x=022 CO2e =13,293




Wind Turbine

1,600
Facility: Regional Water Recycling Plant No. 4 (RP-4) -_— e o= -
/7
Manufacturer: Mitsubishi, MWT 62/1.0 - 1000A = )
< 1,200 7 Estimated Generation —
Rating Output: 1,000 kW =
g p s ,
Estimated Annual Output: 1,500 MWh/yr S 50 »
B 7
o
Commercial Operation Date: 12/3/2011 g
)
Power Purchase Agreement: Foundation Wind Power g 400 ' Fo-
= |
PPA Rate: $0.085/kWh {2011) - $0.145/kWh (2031) g |
Wind Speed: 7 mph (100 kW) — 27 mph (1,000 kW) N e T w
- o oh o
— -l - Loa)
Tower Height: 180 ft R I3 = &
0.40 T " T ] T - H T 2 T e T 3 T
035 || S2VIngsFY 11/12 - FY 14/15 $45,000 : i ! |
Expected Savings PPA Term $520,000 {4% Escalation) | |
030 +| (FY 11/12 —FY 31/32) $790,000 {6% Escalation) ; - >
& § b | ; -t f ‘- ®
o 020 +—— : ; : ; — e
o B s ) —_— 1
a : i ; v - I ; i
£ 015 . — --—"'!" i T ; —
o | ; : ! f ‘ : < - g i
0.10 e e ———— ! i I
. ; : T S| L ' ‘ :
0.05 : ‘ - Grid Price Forecast —— Grid Price Forecast -_--g-_
; | . (4% Annual Escalation) ' (6% Annual Escalation) ;
0.00 i " ’ st : : — ; T i
8 S o = S 3 8 & P & & & o
s ¢ 9 9 9 5 g g & 5§ 5 g 3
& = 4 & Q & b 4 & & b & &

Enviranmental Benefits Since 2011

Renewable Energy = 1,498 MWh

Equivalent to:

» Carbon sequestered by 375 acres
of forest in one year.

* Removing 96 passenger vehicles
from the road for one year.

VOC=0.02 C0=011
NOx = 0.06 PM10=0.01
SOx=0.01 CO2e =458




	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Action Item 1A
	Action Item 1B
	Action Item 1C
	Info Item 2A
	Info Item 2B
	Info Item 2C
	Info Item 2D
	Info Item 2E
	Info Item 2F
	Info Item 2G
	Info Item 2G
	Info Item 2I

